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CORPORATE CULTURE

|. Core Concepts

Core Values  : Strict, Efficient, Upstraight, Harmonious;
Corporate Spirit: A Never Ending Pursuit of Excellence;
Vision : Home ¢ Stage ® Dream;

Ethical Code  : Integrity, Responsibility, Loyalty and Dedication.

II. Strategic Thinking

Strategic Obijective: To develop into a top-notch industry group specialized
in clean energy;
Business Policy  : Being Pragmatic and Innovative, Larger and Stronger,

Being Strategic and Energefic, Innovative and Effective.

lll. Management Ideology
Safety

Human Capita: Provide a stage for everyone to unleash their talents;

: Safety first, Life foremost;

Responsibility : Link position with duty and value both rewards and punishment;

IV. Logo of Cultural Communication

Green technology for a better world
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When the first China Beijing
International Fair for Trade in
Services was held in China
in May 2012, Wen Jiabao,
the then Premier of the State
Council and Member of the
Standing Committee of the
Political Bureau of the CPC
Central Committee, visited
the exhibition room of China
Guodian Corporation.
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According to the statistics on thermal power plant flue gas desulfurization
and denitrification industry and thermal power plant flue gas
desulfurization concession released by China Electricity Council in
February 2012, Longyuan Environmental, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
this corporation group, ranked first in seven categories, leaving other
domestic counterparts far behind. Since 2005, Longyuan Environmental
has been at the top of the list for seven years in a row.

When the first China Beijing International Fair for Trade in Services was held
in China in May 2012, Wen Jiabao, the then Premier of the State Council and
Member of the Standing Committee of the Political Bureau of the CPC Central
Committee, visited the exhibition room of China Guodian Corporation and
asked about the development of the environmental science and technology
service industry, fully affirming the achievements this corporation had made.

, this corporation signed a cooperation framework agreement with
ia's Irkutsk Electric Power Company and discussed about such technical
problems as plasma ignition, bag-type dust collector, blower frequency conversion,
boiler decoking, heat pump, and DCS, hoping that both sides could take this
opportunity to carry out in- exchanges and cooperation in future.

 published in July
e operation revenue up to

In August 2012, this corporation issued a domestic corporate bond in an
aggregate principal amount of RMB 4 billion Yuan.

In August 2012, the opening ceremony of Guodian Galaxy Water Co., Ltd., a
holding subsidiary of Lucency Enviro-Tech which is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of this corporation, was held in Qingdao. This corporation constantly
accelerates the efforts in merging and reorganization by means of equity
merging and asset acquisition so as to optimize the industrial organization
structure and occupy the commanding heights of market development.

As of the end of 2012, this corporation established five national key
laboratories, five provincial R&D platforms, and six corporate technology
R&D centers, making a series of breakthroughs in technological innovation
and speeding up the pace of industrialization.
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AWARDS & PRIZES TO GUODIAN TECH
EERIRFTEEZREEE

210 patents were granted in 2012, including 41 patented inventions, 2 international patents. At present, the Company has

accumulated 533 patents, including 107 patented inventions, 10 international patents. An amount of RMB47,393,400 of
government subsidy for technology has been received and RMB300 million of Capital Operation Budget Fund for State-
owned Enterprises was granted for three technology industrialization projects. In addition, the Group was approved by the
government to participate in 1 project under the national 863 Program and 2 projects under the national 973 Program. The
capability of the Group in research, development and technology is highly recognized, it participated in the establishment of 1
international standard, 14 national standards and 5 industrial standards, of which 3 standards have already been promulgated.
The Company has received 3 Second Prizes and 1 Third Prize of Technology Advancement from the National Energy
Administration; 1 Second Prize of Technology Advancement from the Ministry of Environmental Protection; 1 First Prize and
1 Third Prize of Power Technology Advancement from Chinese Society of Electrical Engineering and 4 First Prizes, 2 Second
Prizes and 1 Third Prize of Technology Advancement from Guodian Group. The National Centre for the General Utilization,
Research and Development of Energy, Lignite and Low-rank Coals (B85 85 JR #8 B (K & i 47 & A A 3¢ AR .0 has passed the
hearing of the National Energy Administration.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

AR

Directors

Non-executive Directors
Mr. ZHU Yongpeng

Mr. YANG Guang

Mr. FENG Shuchen

Mr. YAN Andrew Y.

Executive Directors
Mr. YE Weifang

Mr. LI Hongyuan
Ms. WANG Hongyan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. LU Yanchang

Mr. ZHAI Ligong

Mr. SHI Dinghuan

Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony

Supervisors

Mr. QIAO Baoping
Mr. CHEN Bin

Mr. XU Xingzhou
Mr. GUAN Xiaochun
Mr. LI Wei

Legal Advisors

Joseph P.C. Lee & Associates in association with Cadwalader,

Wickersham & Taft LLP as to Hong Kong law
Suite 2702, 27th Floor
100 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Beijing Dacheng Law Office as to PRC law
No.3 China Investment Tower

Dong Zhimen South Avenue

Beijing, China

Auditors

International

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road, Central
Hong Kong

PRC

RSM China Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd.

8&9/F Block A, Corporate Square
#35 Financial Street, Xicheng District
Beijing

Joint Company Secretaries
Mr. TANG Dejun
Mr. WONG Ki Yan Davhen (CPA, FCCA)
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Authorized Representatives
Mr. YE Weifang
Mr. WONG Ki Yan Davhen

Compliance Advisor
China International Capital Corporation Hong Kong Securities Limited

Llegal Address and Headquarters in the PRC
Suite 1101, 11/F, Building No.1

Block No.16 Xi Si Huan Zhong Road

Haidian District, Beijing, PRC

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong
Unit 4001, 40/F, Cosco Tower, 183 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong

Nomination Committee
Mr. LU Yanchang (Chairman)
Mr. ZHAI Ligong

Ms. WANG Hong Yan

Audit Committee

Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony (Chairman)
Mr. ZHAI Ligong

Mr. YANG Guang

Remuneration and Appraisal Committee
Mr. ZHAI Ligong (Chairman)

Mr. ZHU Yongpeng

Mr. LU Yanchang

Strategic Committee

Mr. ZHU Yongpeng (Chairman)
Mr. FENG Shuchen

Mr. YE Weifang

Mr. LI Hongyuan

Mr. ZHAI Ligong

H Share Registrar

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Website Address

www.01296.hk

Principal Banks

China Construction Bank Corporation

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. (Hong Kong Branch)
Wing Lung Bank Limited (Hong Kong Branch)

BREAX
R
EEBSE

ERER
hEERSRESESERAT

EEMUEPIEEERER
B4t m e R
PH Y 3R AR K 1655 FT
15EE11B1101E

ERTEERMH

BB ERRNEHR 1835 iR AE40E4001E

REZEE
BIES % (28)
B EA
ERL L

BitEEE
BLERE(ZE)
By ft
B ks

FMHEREREES
B ()
RAGLSE

BES 4

BRZEg
SRACK 58 4 (/)
18 BB 5
RIS
EREKE
BuMEL

HER 3% 35 & iC B2
ERNREFERERAR

4k

www.01296.hk

FEERERIT
FERRBITREERAR
ZBBITRBERAT (FBHT)
XERITERAR (BEHT)

2012 ANNUAL REPORT £ &

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

HEMRBRREEROGERAA



o« CORPORATE PROFILE
DA A

The following chart illustrates the Group’s business segments and sub- TRIWRANEBNEL S REDE -
segments:

Guodian Technology &
Environment Group Corporation Limited
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CORPORATE PROFILE

DA

Guodian Technology & Environmental Group Corporation Limited (the
“Company”, “our Company” or “GUODIAN TECH"), formerly Guodian
Technology & Environment Group Co., Ltd.,, was converted into a
joint stock limited liability company on May 16, 2011 and listed on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Exchange”) on
December 30, 2011. The Company, together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group” or “our Group”’), is the flagship platform for environmental
protection and energy conservation solutions and renewable energy
equipment manufacturing and solutions businesses within the China
Guodian Group (the “Guodian Group”) and its subsidiaries and
associates.

The principal businesses of the Company are carried out under two
segments, namely, the environmental protection and energy conservation
solutions, and the renewable energy equipment manufacturing and
services. The Company is a leading market player in the PRC in these
industries given its advanced technology and diversified business
models. In 2012, the Company ranked the 25th among Top 500 Global
New Energy Enterprises.

Desulfurization tower against the blue sky
B X T H AR IE

EERNBRREBROBR AR (FEIA
Al [RXAFIXEENBRD I AEE
BERREBAER AT - K2011F5H516H
EX bl A AR D A R A I R20114F12
A30BUEBEEAR M (BBIXZFRD
EREM - ARBRMB AR (FEIAE
B RETHEEEEEQ A (HEESEE])
REK B AR MEE QBB ORIRREEE
FRAFRMA BERERIBRERBRA
REBHEETS -

KRR ELBEBD ABME D - BVIRR & 82
AT ERMA BERRIGBRERREE
e RRBREHELENRITFZ TLH
¥BEAEERBERITEELEMA - 2012
F A RAANEEBRIAER D ¥50058 - HE
B BB o

2012 ANNUAL REPORT £ &

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

HEMRBRREEROGERAA



06

CORPORATE PROFILE

REN A

In its environmental protection and energy conservation solutions
business, the Group is the largest supplier of technology and integrated
systems solutions to coal-fired power plants in the PRC, providing
innovative and advanced technology designed to reduce pollutant
emissions and to maximize efficiencies in resource utilization, with
overall objectives of reducing the environmental impact of coal-fired
power generation and maximizing cost-efficiencies and profitability
for its customers. Leveraging on its comprehensive environmental
protection and energy conservation technologies and solutions for all
aspects of coal-fired power plants (with the core business lines being
SO, and NOx emissions reductions, water treatment, plasma ignition
and combustion stabilization, and energy management contracts),
the Group is capable of providing “One-stop Shop” solutions to its
customers tailored for their specific needs. The Group is also one of the
leading manufacturers of wind and solar power generation equipment in
the PRC in its renewable energy equipment manufacturing and services
business, with well-established brands and is well known for its product
quality and performance. In line with its strategic focus on providing
integrated solutions and services, the Group also provides renewable-
energy related services such as the maintenance and repair of wind
turbine generators and solar power station engineering, procurement
and construction business.

Focusing on technology innovations and industrial applications, the
Group has achieved significant technology and product innovations
through original ideas, resources consolidation and technology
renovation. Among its leading technologies in the PRC or globally,
the Group’s plasma ignition technology is ranked first in the world.
In the domestic market, the Group keeps a leading position in
many technologies, including wet flue gas desulfurization, seawater
desulfurization, furnace combustion De-Nox and flue gas denitrification.
The Group’s brand names, such as Longyuan Environmental, Longyuan
Technology, United Power, Longyuan Cooling, Guodian Zhishen and
GD Solar, have gained significant brand recognitions in the PRC. As
of December 2012. the Group has obtained 523 patents, including 10
international patents and 103 patented inventions. The Company has
received more than 40 science and technology awards at national or
ministry level and participated in nine projects under the 863 Program
and two sub-projects under the 973 Special Project. The Group has
established five national laboratories, five provincial-level research and
development (“R&D”) platforms and six intra-group technology R&D
centers.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
DA

The Company believes that its strategic focus on investing in and
promoting technological R&D as a core activity to support the
development of its various businesses has yielded substantial returns,
allowing it to maintain its established position at the forefront of
technological advancements in the environmental protection, energy
conservation and renewable energy industries, and to develop
innovative, practical and cost-efficient solutions and applications and
high-quality products in these industries. The Company also believes
that these industries are expected to play a key role in the sustainable
growth and development of the PRC energy and power sector, which
is integral to the sustainable economic growth and development in the
PRC. Going forward, the Company expects to leverage on its operations
in the PRC to expand internationally, with the objective of becoming a
top tier supplier of integrated clean technology solutions and services.
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE 2
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Green Aspirations by SHI Xiaohong
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS
MBREME

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTE AREBTT ARBTI ARBTT AR¥TxR

Revenue L ON 3,966,148 5,349,651 10,998,908 18,706,980 21,776,510
Profit before taxation i A A E 241,272 247,792 680,465 1,271,574 1,263,905
Income tax g% (41,123) (53,337) (118,639) (107,161) (229,934)
Profit for the year REFE 200,149 194,455 561,826 1,164,413 1,033,971

Attributable to:

=

B

Equity owners/shareholders 2R A &) #E z

of the Company FiBEE/RE 90,854 95,545 350,359 840,681 692,947
Non-controlling interests PR i 109,295 98,910 211,467 323,732 341,024
Profit for the year AN E FI 200,149 194,455 561,826 1,164,413 1,033,971

Basic and diluted earnings SRR E AN K #5558

per share (RMB cents) AF(ARED) 1.9 2.0 7.2 17.3 11.4
Total non-current assets EMENEELRTR 1,847,198 6,272,829 13,371,840 14,730,958 20,345,067
Total current assets MENEERT 5,620,230 9,632,862 19,096,520 27,324,740 25,950,620
Total assets BERE 7,467,428 15,905,691 32,468,360 42,055,698 46,295,687
Total current liabilities ME R EEE (4,769,651) (11,411,443) (21,219,909) (29,118,663) (26,763,084)
Total non-current liabilittes  JEiBI & E4A%E (424,792) (1,414,323) (3,148,420) (1,940,956) (7,391,477)
Net assets BEFE 2,272,985 3,079,925 8,100,031 10,996,079 12,141,126

Total equity attributable to xS A2ZERER

equity owners/ PN/
shareholders of FiB®E/BRE
the Company 1715595 2,332,040 6,157,176 8,771,546 9,281,884
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR M 557,390 747,885 1,942,855 2224533 2,859,242

Total equity T R 2,272,985 3,079,925 8,100,031 10,996,079 12,141,126




SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS
MBREERE

. For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Group recorded
consolidated revenue of approximately RMB21,776.5 million,
representing an increase of approximately 16.4% over last year;

o For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Group’s gross profit
was approximately RMB3,380.6 million, representing an increase
of approximately 21.5% over last year;

o For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Group’s operating
profit was approximately RMB1,871.9 million, representing an
increase of approximately 12.6% over last year;

. For the year ended December 31, 2012, profit attributable to
equity shareholders/owners of the Company was approximately
RMB693.0 million, representing a decrease of approximately
17.6% over last year;

. For the year ended December 31, 2012, earnings per share of the
Group (excluding non-controlling interests) were approximately
RMB11.4 cents, representing a decrease of approximately 34.1%
over last year; and

. The Board recommends the distribution of a final dividend of
RMB2.0 cents per share (before tax) for the year ended December

31, 2012.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERYE

After years of rapid development, the Company has become
the core brand within China Guodian Corporation. The
Company is widely recognized for its risk resistance and
innovation capacities, and has established its reputation within
the PRC electric power industry. The Company has achieved
distinctive competitive advantages, thanks to its advanced

technologies, diversified business models and a team of

employees with strong business sensitivity.

RBZFHNRERR  ARAEERSTE
MEBREE  ARRINAARE D RAFENEEBEH

@E\E./‘\ﬂ

Mr. ZHU Yongpeng
KEAKREE
Chairman

BExk

BHEZRA  EREENTEPEZERE - ARAHE
RENKM - ZTTENEBRAN - BEARRT S B H
MBFETHL MTEBROGFES -

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company, |
am honored to present to you the 2012 annual report of the Group (the
“Annual Report”).

The world economy in 2012 continued to experience volatility and
change. The increasingly complex challenges of energy security issues
and the adverse effects caused by the climate change are threatening
the further development and prosperity of human society. A revolution
in the energy sector is, therefore, inevitable. Nowadays, in order to
attain energy conservation, environmental protection and sustainability
of China's economic growth, the PRC government is committed to
accelerating the reform of economic growth model, promoting ecology
awareness and education and advancing the energy production and
consumption revolution. The "green and intelligent" concept has been
introduced into the electric power industry, along with a series of
scientific and technical innovations.

ERHRR :

BHREERXRAAREFS(THIESS )
A S AL IRER A AR SR E2012F FE RS (T
HWIER]) -

20126 - HRICERESS - Bb o A
I 48 24 1) B B2 A2 R &2 2 [ B FN SR AR &L Pl
ERHPINTEEERE ARS8 E—
FERMER - Bt - e REHBUFEE—
B85 BTHHAER  (RERE -
BERAENAFERE FRERF—EZN
RINRE S m I RIER » R AOHEAREX

AR EBRREENEES D - EHE
EHEsATARE BRI HRAR—F7T
RHBIHTRCR °



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERYE

After years of rapid development, the Company has become the core
brand within China Guodian Corporation. The Company is widely
recognized for its risk resistance and innovation capacities, and has
established its reputation within the PRC electric power industry. The
Company has achieved distinctive competitive advantages, thanks to
its advanced technologies, diversified business models and a team of
employees with strong business sensitivity.

Looking forward, the Company will continue to leverage on the platform
and resources provided by its controlling shareholder, the China
Guodian Corporation and further develop into a globally recognized
supplier of products and services in environmental protection and
energy conservation solutions and renewable energy equipment and
solutions. The Company will strive to become a global leader in the
provision of integrated clean technology solutions, to maximize returns
to its shareholders as well as to contribute further to the society with its
extraordinary performance.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend our sincere
gratitude to all the shareholders for their support and trust and to all our
staff for their unremitting efforts and relentless pursuit.
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Mr. ZHU Yongpeng kR %E4E
Chairman ZEF&
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After years of cultivation, the Company has developed a
series of wellknown brands, such as Longyuan Environmental
Protection,  Longyuan Technology, United Power, Longyuan
Cooling and Guodian Zhishen. The Group has developed into
an integrated group of companies with diversified business
segments and sfrong synergies and built up a reputable brand
name as the largest provider of coalfired power plantrelated

environmental protection and energy conservation services and
renewable energy products and services in the PRC.

BRZENBOEE  ARSEREIERER DR

i BADN RLA BESES-FIITBLE
e MMERIE BRRA-REERABAES Sk
Broqeent EXBEPFINERCEE  ERPRKANNEHERRK

Fap g AT BAERERGAERBEEMITENERIE -

Dear Shareholders: BHARE :

It has been a full year since the Company was listed on the Main Board B A al2011F12 308 £ & 7 B 32 BT = 1k
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on December 30, 2011. During last TTTELBEE-—F - FREN—FF AR
year, the Company has adhered to the concept of "Aiming to Become BIIER[ R - ABE - AThE KEH]
A Great Enterprise and Group with A Wide Development Sphere and NBERIBSMFHOE - FHEE - FHEFH -
Market" and the development strategy of "Being Strategic and Energetic, HFIER | B3R BB - 4 & T BB # | ok
Innovative and Effective". The Company continued to deepen its internal B BB EEKEE BHEHELEX
incentive mechanism reform, optimize and integrate its business assets, It ERNAES T EERFER  SKBEX
promote its corporate culture, and achieve new technological and BEHEREREESL

operational breakthroughs. The Group has made great progress in
various aspects.

The Group has overcome multiple challenges on many fronts in 2012: 2012¢ % & I%HT}EHEEP BANETELE
the slowed-down investments in the coal-fired power industry in the R 42 %E*Ej:fpaa"ﬂa T 3% 55 5 A
PRC, the declined construction scale of wind power, the intensified B L}(&;Mj(%guuﬁl] il ‘féf%’“é?m\i%i
market competition and the trade barriers for exporting photovoltaic W& BIRPWALNARE2178E T EF
products. The Group has recorded revenues of approximately Y AREEI38ETT ©

RMB21.78 billion and gross profits of RMB3.38 billion for 2012.
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In addition, the Group also achieved significant operational growth. For
example, the total installed capacity of flue gas desulfurization projects
of the Group reached approximately 100 GW, a leading position in
the industry. The Group's in-furnace denitrification technology also
has a leading position in the world market. Furthermore, the Group's
contracted water processing capacity reached 1.5 million tons per day.
In addition, the Group successfully produced and connected to grid its
B6MW double-fed offshore wind turbine with its proprietary intellectual
property rights, a major technological breakthrough in the wind power
industry.

After years of cultivation, the Company has developed a series of well-
known brands, such as Longyuan Environmental Protection, Longyuan
Technology, United Power, Longyuan Cooling and Guodian Zhishen.
The Group has developed into an integrated group of companies with
diversified business segments and strong synergies and built up a
reputable brand name as the largest provider of coal-fired power plant-
related environmental protection and energy conservation services and
renewable energy products and services in the PRC.

Looking ahead, the Company will strive to seize opportunities presented
by the market, continue to maintain its leading positions in the various
industries in the PRC, become a dynamic and innovative clean
energy technology provider and make additional contributions to the
construction of a green and beautiful China.
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Mr. LI Hong Yuan ZRE&E%4
President #8485 FF
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWED N

Certain statistical data and other information relating to the PRC and the
industries in which we operate contained in, for instance, the section
entitled “Key Industry Developments” in this Annual Report, have been
derived from various publicly available official publications. The Company
believes that the sources of this information are appropriate sources
for such information and have taken reasonable care in extracting and
reproducing such information. The Company has no reason to believe that
such information is false or misleading or that any fact has been omitted
that would render such information false or misleading. The information
has not been independently verified by the Company or any other relevant
party and no representation is given as to its accuracy. The Company
makes no representation as to the accuracy of the information contained in
such sources, which may not be consistent with other information compiled
within or outside the PRC. Accordingly, the industry information and
statistics contained herein may not be accurate and should not be unduly
relied upon for your investment in the Company.

This Annual Report contains certain forward-looking statements and
information relating to the Group or the Company that are based on
the management’s belief and assumptions. The words “anticipate,”
“believe,” “expect,” “going forward” and similar expressions, as they
relate to the Company, the Group or the Group’s management, are
intended to identify forward-looking statements. Such statements
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The ceremony held in the USA for the first overseas wind power project’s completion
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWEDN

reflect the Company’s management’s current views with respect
to future events and are subject to certain risks, uncertainties and
assumptions. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties
materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, the
Group’s financial condition may be adversely affected and may vary
materially from those described herein as anticipated, believed or
expected.

2012 INDUSTRY AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Key Industry Developments

In 2012, the PRC government continued to introduce new regulatory
initiatives applicable to the PRC power and power-related industries,
mainly aiming to diversify the PRC energy supply structure by
encouraging the development of the renewable energy sector and
to reduce environmental pollution by promoting the development of
environmental protection and energy conservation industry and setting
specific targets for emission reductions.

For the purpose of this Annual Report, “PRC” refers to the People’s Republic
of China, hereby excluding Taiwan, the Macau Special Administration Region
of the PRC and the Hong Kong Special Administration Region of the PRC.

The on-grid connection of the first batch of SMW wind turbines on land made in China
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED

The followings are the key regulations issued by the PRC Government
and regulatory authorities which are expected to have a material effect
on the Group’s business, operation and financial conditions:

12th Five-year Plan for Development of New Materials Industry ((#7#
HEZI+ -7 |%EHZ)) (the “Plan for New Materials Industry”)
and the Guidance Catalogue of Self-relied Innovation of Major Technical
Equipment for 2012 ((EAX K Mi##E 5 F BIF 158 B % (20124F)))
(the “Guidance Catalogue for 2012”). On January 22, 2012, the PRC
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, the Ministry of Science
and Technology, the Ministry of Finance and the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission jointly issued the Plan for
New Materials Industry and the Guidance Catalogue for 2012. The
Plan for New Materials Industry estimates that during the 12th Five-
year Plan period, in the area of new energy, China’s newly installed
capacity of wind power, total installed capacity of solar power stations
built during the period, and the installed capacity of nuclear power
would reach 60.0 GW, 10.0 GW and 40.0 GW, respectively. In addition,
the innovation focus projects listed in the Guidance Catalogue for 2012
include flue gas and NOx integrated control equipment and electric-bag
composite fly ash removal equipment for coal-fired power plants.
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The production line for the final assembly of wind turbines
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12th Five-year Plan for Development of Energy Conservation and
Environmental Protection Industry ({[+ =71 |FREIRIREZE TR F]))
(the “Plan for Energy Conservation and Environmental Protection
Industry”). In June 2012, the PRC State Council issued the Plan for
Energy Conservation and Environmental Protection Industry. The Plan for
Energy Conservation and Environmental Protection Industry specifically
stipulates that during the 12th Five-year Plan period, energy conservation
and environmental protection industries should achieve an average
year-on-year growth rate of at least 15.0%. It also stipulates that by
2015, the gross production of the environmental protection and energy
conservation industries would reach approximately RMB4.5 ftrillion, with
the amount of the increment being equal to approximately 2.0% of the
PRC GDP. According to this Plan, the key measures to promote the
energy conservation and environmental protection industries include
tightening air pollution control, researching, developing and promoting
flue gas denitrification technology and equipment for key industries,
demonstrating and promoting flue gas desulfurization technology
and equipment, upgrading flue gas desulfurization technology and
equipment used by existing coal-fired power plants and large and
medium scale industrial furnaces and accelerating the demonstration
and application of the filter bag ash removal equipment, electric-bag fly
ash removal technology and fine fly ash control technology.

The generator of the BMW double-fed offshore WTG
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12th Five-year Plan on Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction
(CEPBERPE 1+ —F /##])) (the “Plan for Energy Conservation and
Emission Reduction”). In September 2012, the PRC State Council
promulgated the Plan for Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction.
Among others, the Plan for Energy Conservation and Emission
Reduction sets out the following targets: the amount of national SO,
emissions in the PRC would be reduced by 8.0% from approximately
22.7 million tons in 2010 to approximately 20.9 million tons in 2015; and
the amount of national NOx emissions in the PRC would be reduced by
10.0% from approximately 22.7 million tons in 2010 to approximately
20.5 million tons in 2015. Furthermore, the Plan for Energy Conservation
and Emission Reduction stipulated that the amount of SO, emissions
attributed to coal-fired power industry would be reduced by 16.0% from
approximately 9.6 million tons in 2010 to approximately 8.0 million tons
in 2015; and the amount of NOx emissions attributed to coal-fired power
industry would be reduced by 29.0% from approximately 10.6 million
tons in 2010 to approximately 7.5 million tons in 2015.

12th Five-year Plan on Prevention and Control of Air Pollution in
Key Areas ((EZ 2GR 5261 =4a/#2Z/)) (the “Plan on
Prevention and Control of Air Pollution”). In October 2012, the
PRC Ministry of Environmental Protection, National Development and
Reform Commission (the “NDRC”) and the Ministry of Finance jointly
issued the Plan on Prevention and Control of Air Pollution. It applies

The first batch of low-NOx swirl chamber produced in 2012
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to 19 provinces which are designated to be the key areas for prevention and
control of air pollution and requires SO, emission in the coalfired industry
must be further controlled. All coal-fired power generators must install the
desulfurization equipment. The desulfurization equipment which is unable to
comply with the emission standards stably must be upgraded. The overall
effective desulfurization rate of the coal-fired power plants must reach 90.0% or
above. Furthermore, the Plan on Prevention and Control of Air Pollution requires
acceleration of the upgrade of low-NOx combustion equipment and installation
of denitrification equipment of coal-fired power generators. It also requires that
all current operating coal-fired power generators with unit capacity of more
than 0.2 GW and operating history within 20 years shall have the effective
denitrification rate and overall effective denitrification rate of more than 85.0%
and 70.0%, respectively.

Notice on Several Issues Relating to Expand the Pilot Areas of
Denitrification Tariff Subsidy Policy ({18 A fE #t & (B & i 25 46 B A
B R#E41)) (the “Denitrification Tariff Notice”). In December 2012,
the NDRC issued the Denitrification Tariff Notice. The Denitrification
Tariff Notice allowed coal-fired power generators nationwide with
installed denitrification equipment to receive the denitrification tariff
subsidy, which expanded the recipient group from those generators
located in 14 provinces or cities to all over the country, effective from
January 1, 2013. The standard amount of denitrification tariff subsidy
remains to be RMB0.008/kWh.

The first retroﬂttmg project of low-NOx combustion furnaces completed in the USA
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12th Five-year Plan for Implementation of Cleaner Industrial Production
(CTEEFZREEHTIT=AJ#2Z)) (the “Plan for Cleaner
Production”). In March 2012, the PRC Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology, the Ministry of Science and Technology and the
Ministry of Finance jointly issued the Plan for Cleaner Production. The
Plan for Cleaner Production aims to further promote cleaner industrial
production systems and production services. It sets the targets
that in China, by 2015, through the implementation of projects and
emission reduction of principal pollutants, more than 70.0% of the PRC
companies in key industries (including the power industry) must achieve
the “Advanced Cleaner Production Enterprise” status. When applied to
the thermal power industry, criteria for Advanced Cleaner Production
Enterprise mainly refer to (i) quantitative evaluations, based on factors
including the power stations’ energy and resources consumptions,
comprehensive resources utilization and pollutant emission; and (ii)
qualitative evaluations, based on factors including the power stations’
use of the encouraged cleaner production technologies and cleaner
production management, establishment of environmental management
system and compliance with environmental regulations.

The deposition of amorphous silicon thin-film
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Opinions of the State Council on Implementing the Most Rigorous Water
Resources Management System ({ B 5z B & 7T R B IEK B IR & FE #l
95 £2)) (the “Opinions”). In January 2012, the State Council issued
the Opinions of the State Council on Implementing the Most Rigorous
Water Resources Management System. The Opinions emphasize the
importance to use and to conserve water resources efficiently and
effectively in the PRC and establish national “red lines” (i.e. rigorous
standards and targets) for 2015, 2020 and 2030, respectively, for
the quantity and efficiency of water resources use and development,
reducing water pollution and improving the water quality. The Opinions
also require all PRC governments to establish an effective implementing
mechanism to achieve the various targets relating to water resources
management and to encourage the development of water conservation
and water treatment businesses.

12th Five-year Plan for Development of Wind Power ((/&l EZ/E [+ =7 |
#Z/)) (the “Plan for Wind Power Development”). In July 2012, the
PRC National Energy Administration issued the Plan for Wind Power
Development. Among others, the Plan for Wind Power Development
sets specific targets for PRC wind power development during the 12th
Five-year Plan period: (1) total wind power cumulative installed capacity
having commenced operation must reach 100.0 GW, among which the
cumulative installed capacity of offshore wind power must reach 5.0 GW
by 2015; (2) breakthroughs must be made in Wind Turbine Generators
(“WTGs") designs; key components manufacturing technologies and
the manufacturing capabilities of offshore wind power equipment must
be enhanced. The Plan for Wind Power Development further provides
that the scale development of wind power industry must be promoted
continuingly after the 12th Five-year period and by 2020, total wind
power cumulative installed capacity must be more than 200.0 GW,
among which the cumulative installed capacity of offshore wind power
must reach 30.0 GW.

12th Five-year Plan for Development of Solar Photovoltaic Industry (¢
BreEIXE#+ =7 |%/FE#Z)) (the “Plan for Solar Photovoltaic
Industry”). In February 2012, the PRC Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology promulgated the Plan for Solar Photovoltaic
Industry as a guidance for the development of solar photovoltaic
industry during the 12th Five-year period. The Plan for Solar Photovoltaic
Industry states that China’s solar photovoltaic industry has experienced
rapid development and has become one of a few industries in the PRC
capable to compete in the international market and potentially to hold
a market leading position globally. Promoting the development of solar
photovoltaic industry has great importance to industrial transformation
and upgrade, energy structure adjustments, energy conservation and
emission reduction for the PRC. The PRC Government has listed solar
photovoltaic industry as a strategic emerging industry which China
intends to develop further in the future. The main objectives for the
solar photovoltaic power industry during the 12th Five-year Plan period
include developing critical technologies relating to the photovoltaic grid
connected systems and energy storage equipment and significantly
reducing photovoltaic power generation cost, which is expected to be
reduced to RMBO0.8/kWh by 2015.
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12th Five-year Plan for Development of Solar Power Generation ({ X /%
e THE[1+ A /#Z)) (the “Plan for Solar Power Development”).
In September 2012, the PRC National Energy Administration issued
the Plan for Solar Power Development. According to the Plan for Solar
Power Development, by 2015, total installed capacity of solar power
must reach 21.0 GW and power generated per year must reach 25.0
billion kW/h. The Plan estimates that a total investment of approximately
RMB250.0 billion is needed in order to achieve the above targets.
The Plan for Solar Power Development further requires that the scale
development of the solar power industry must be promoted continuously
after the 12th Five-year Plan period and that the total installed capacity
of solar power must reach 50.0 GW by 2020.

Key Business Developments

Effective capturing of growth opportunities arising from regulatory
changes and continuing expansion of production and operation
scales in the environmental protection and energy conservation
solutions businesses. The issuance of new regulatory initiatives by
the PRC Government and regulatory authorities on environmental
protection and energy conservation applicable to PRC power and
power related industries described in the section headed “Key Industry
Developments” stimulated the demand for our Group’s environmental
protection and energy conservation solutions, creating significant
growth opportunities for the Group’s businesses. The Group entered
into new desulfurization engineering, procurement and construction
(“EPC”) contracts with capacities at approximately 7,100.0 MW in
2012. The cumulative installed capacity of desulfurization concession
operations of the Group as of December 31, 2012 reached to 30,890.0
MW, representing an increase of 4,960.0 MW, or 19.1%, from 25,930.0
MW as of December 31, 2011. During 2012, the Group also entered
into new denitrification EPC contracts and denitrification concession
operation contracts with capacities of approximately 27,290.0 MW and
1,600.0 MW, respectively. The Group also entered into new low-NOx
combustion contracts with a total contract value of more than RMB1.0
billion in 2012. As of December 31, 2012, the Group’s production
capacity of SCR denitrification catalysts reached 16,000.0 m3 per year.

The Group’s build-own-transfer (“BOT”) water treatment capacity
increased to approximately 1.5 million tons per day as of December 31,
2012, as a result of the Group’s acquisition of Galaxy Water Treatment
Limited Company ($8;7 /K5 H% 15 AR A 7l) (“‘Galaxy Water”) in May 2012.
For its energy conservation business, the Group in 2012 entered into
27 new energy management contracts (“EMC”) with the total amount of
contract value of approximately RMB623.6 million. Furthermore, in 2012,
in the overseas market, the Group successfully completed its low-NOx
denitrification retrofitting project located in the United States of America,
which passed all technical parameters specified by the project owner.
The Group also entered into a comprehensive energy conservation and
environmental protection retrofitting cooperation agreement in Russia
to provide its plasma-assisted coal combustion technology, frequency
conversion technology, heat pump and filter bags ash removal products
and solutions. The Group also entered into new plasma-assisted coal
combustion services contracts in Korea and Turkey.
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Steady growth of the wind power products and services business
despite challenging market conditions. 2012 was a challenging year
for WTG manufacturers in the PRC, with a reduction in investment in
the PRC wind power industry, caused by unresolved issues of wind
power curtailment and on-grid connection. In 2012, the Group’s wind
power products and services business recorded an increase in revenue
of approximately RMB1,951.3 million, or 21.2%, as compared to 2011,
due to the Group’s continuing efforts in promoting this business and
its competitive advantages in the WTG technologies, access to its
clientele, brand name, and the quality of its products and after-sales
services. The Group’s WTG sales volumes by product types during the
years are set forth below:
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Completed Sales Orders
TR HE E
(units) (units)
(B) ()
2012 2011 As of December 31, 2012
M2012512A31H
Confirmed Successful
orders tenders
ERATE BRI AR
1.5 MW 1.5k E 2,005 1,596 1,680 729
2.0 MW 2.0KE 83 — 195 155
3.0 MW 3.0KEL 25 15 — 282
Total =aEr 2,113 1,611 1,875 1,166

Maintaining and strengthening market leader position across
business lines and segments. In 2012, the Group maintained its
market leading positions in the PRC in its various business operations.
According to the information published by the China Electricity Council,
in the desulfurization services sector, the Group was the largest
desulfurization EPC service provider in terms of newly installed capacity
for the year ended December 31, 2012 and cumulative installed
capacity as of December 31, 2012, and the largest desulfurization
concession operator in terms of the cumulative contracted capacity
as of December 31, 2012. In the denitrification services sector, the
Group was the largest EPC service provider in terms of newly installed
and contracted capacity for the year ended December 31, 2012 and
the cumulative installed capacity as of December 31, 2012, and the
largest denitrification concession operator in terms of cumulative
contracted capacity as of December 31, 2012. The Group’s annual
production capacity for SCR denitrification catalysts ranked the second
and the installed capacity of the generators equipped with SCR
denitrification catalysts ranked the third in the PRC. In terms of the
energy conservation business, the Group maintained a leading position
in the plasma ignition and tiny-oil ignition businesses. According to the
Chinese Wind Energy Association, Guodian United Power Technology
Co., Ltd. (BB A B HiMlTAR AR (“United Power”), the Group's
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subsidiary and the primary platform for the wind power products and
services business, was the second largest WTG manufacturer in the
PRC in terms of newly installed capacity in 2012; it was the third largest
WTG manufacturer in the PRC in 2011. According to BTM Consult
ApS, United Power was the seventh largest WTG manufacturer globally
in terms of newly installed capacity in 2012. According to rankings
compiled by IMS Research (IHS) and published on the March 2013
issue of the PV Magazine, Guodian Solar (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. (B E 3k
(JIL#) AR A7) (“Guodian Solar”), which is the Company’s subsidiary
and the primary platform for the Group’s solar products and services
business, was the seventh largest solar power EPC general contractor
globally and ranked second among all PRC companies mentioned in
the rankings, based on the newly installed capacity in 2012.

Further development in WTG technology and diversification of
WTG product lines and services. The Group has been dedicated
to the innovation of the WTG technologies and achieved significant
developments in 2012. On December 10, 2012, the Group completed
the installation of five WTGs for super high altitude areas on the plateau
with the altitude of over 4,500 meters. The Group also developed its 6
MW WTG and successfully connected it on-grid in 2012. In September
2012, the Group’s WTG pitch control system obtained the CE certificate
issued by Ente Certificazione Macchine, and therefore received export
permission to the European Union countries. The Group also adopted a
new production and sales model of “mobile factory”, through which the
Group assembles parts and components of WTGs into final products
at a temporary or leased plant near the site of its customer’s wind
farm. The “mobile factory” model is expected to enable the Group
to effectively reduce transportation costs in relation to sales of the
WTG products. Furthermore, the Group further developed its WTG
maintenance and repair services in 2012 by having established five
regional management centers and a supporting spare parts storage
system for the WTG maintenance and repair services, supported by a
team of experienced technicians.

Diversification of financing sources and successful completion of
the issuance of its corporate bonds. The Company completed the
issue of its domestic corporate bonds (the “Corporate Bonds”) with
an aggregate principal amount of RMB4.0 billion on August 22, 2012.
The issuance of the Corporate Bonds is part of the Company’s efforts to
further diversify its financing sources to reduce financing costs and to
optimize the Company’s debt structure. See also “— Analysis of 2012
Financial Results — Indebtedness” for more details.
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Continuing efforts in technological innovation and research
and development. The Group achieved significant technological
breakthroughs in 2012. The Group’s in-furnace denitrification
technologies successfully applied in over 100 power plants. The
Group successfully applied its cutting-edge low-NOx technology in the
Scientific and Technological Showcase Project of 600 MW Unit Dual-
Scale Super Low-NOx Combustion for Guohua Ninghai Power Plant
(B % 32 /5 & MR60OMW i 78 & R /Z #8 ENOXEL /R #518 B), which are
able to reduce the NOx level to below 100mg/Nm3 and is remarkably
high in the world. The Group also accomplished the “W” Shape Flame
Furnace Plasma Ignition project (“W'E! A (A$RIESEEFRAIER) in
Xingyang Power Plant, Inferior Coal Plasma Ignition Project ([ &
Z£BEF2AIEH |) in Changzhi Power Plant and Key Showcase Project
of 600 MW Unit Wall Combustion Low-NOx retrofitting project ([600
MW AR i A Gz s e R A SE E B R #8158 B |) in Changzhou Power
Plant during 2012, all of which expanded the application of the Group’s
technologies and received positive feedbacks from the market, and
thus are expected to benefit the Group by bringing in a larger group of
clients. The Group also achieved important technological breakthroughs
in its solar power products technologies. The conversion rates of the
gallium arsenide solar cell developed by the Group reached 33.0%
and 40.0% under haploid light condition and under concentrated
light condition, respectively. On August 3, 2012, the Group’s 500kW
photovoltaic inverter passed the low voltage ride through capacity
(“LVRT”) full-function test by the National Energy Solar Center of
China Electric Power Research Institute. The Group also achieved
significant breakthroughs in WTG technologies. Please refer to “-Key
Business Developments - Further development in WTG technology and
diversification of WTG product lines and services” for more information.

The Group received a spectrum of industrial recognitions and awards in
2012 for its achievements in technology innovations and research and
development:

. In April 2012, the Digitized Implementation of the Field Bus
Technology project ([RGB EFHMNE FT(LHITEE]) was
awarded the China Electric Power Technology Award Third Prize;

o In July 2012, the Industrial Application of Qil-free Coal-fired Power
Plant Integration Technologies ([ A M KA E S MK E R T8 E
Z/vEHE]) project received financial support from the National
Projects of Transformation of Key Scientific and Technological
Achievements;

. In October 2012, the Research on Flue Gas Desulfurization
Engineering Technology Specification ([ 12 5 i3 & T 12 52 17 47 &5 6
7%t |) project jointly carried out by the Group and other participants
was awarded 2011 National Environmental Protection Science and
Technology Second Prize;
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. Pulverized Furnace Dual-scale Low-NOx Combustion Technology . [ 1 80 1B & RS ENOX PR B 5 17 | 18
(TR 8 1B &8 R E {ENOx A 1T ] ) was awarded National Energy BERERRPEIIMES 548 [EH
Administration Technology Advancement Second Prize and HhiEE R EENOXM R B 5 A
“Pulverized Furnace Dual-Scale Low-NOx Combustion Equipment” 2012F B REBNE® °

([ RS R EENOXAERE ) was listed as one of 2012
National Key New Products; and

. The Group undertook a sub-project named as Research on . AEEEAE T -_AIBRREZREH
Technologies for Recovering Residual Heat and Water from 18 H [ #2065 88 [0 Uk K A B8 82 B 1l
Smoke Emission of Power Station Furnace ([ 5 uf$848 HE/E&E 84 MRE] THWIEE FRE[ESuhREHE
R KG EUREEMTAFFE]) under the Key Technology Research fE R 2 R OK 1D B sk g ffE e ] o

and Development Projects in the 12th Five-year Plan of the PRC
(T+=ZRIBEREZEREHEEIEE) named as Key Technologies
and Demonstration of Residual Heat and Surplus Energy Recovery
and Exploitation ([ &2 &k &% [ WA FB A 52 Bl K R &8 ).
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ANALYSIS OF 2012 FINANCIAL RESULTS

Please read this section in conjunction with the audited consolidated
financial results of the Company as of, and for the year ended,
December 31, 2012.

Analysis of Consolidated Results

Revenue

Revenues of the Group in 2012 were approximately RMB21,776.5
million, representing an increase of approximately RMB3,069.5 million,
or 16.4% from RMB18,707.0 million in 2011, mainly due to the growth
in wind power products and services and environmental protection
businesses. Revenues in the wind power products and services and
environmental protection businesses increased by approximately
RMB1,951.3 million and RMB1,592.8 million as compared to 2011,
which represent percentage increases of approximately 21.2% and
37.4%, respectively. The increase in revenue generated from wind
power products and services business was primarily attributable to
the Group’s continuing efforts in expanding this business. The revenue
increase in the environmental protection business was primarily due
to policies issued by the PRC Government in late 2011 and in 2012 as
well as the Group’s leading position in this business segment. These
increases were partially offset by a decrease of revenue from the
Group’s solar power products and services business. The decrease in
revenue from the solar power products services business was due to
a decrease in revenue in the solar cells and modules manufacturing
business resulting from the Group’s disposals of Guodian Jintech Solar
Energy Technology (Yixing) Co., Ltd. (B & @E ARG R (BHE) BRA
7l) (“Jintech”) and Guodian Ningxia Solar Co., Ltd. (RE=ZE K[F8LH
fR A 7)) (“Ningxia Solar”) in June 2011 and August 2011, respectively,
both of which were primarily engaged in manufacturing and sales of
solar power products, and the consequential deconsolidation of results
of Jintech and Ningxia Solar from the Group’s results in 2012.

Revenue by segment Revenue by segment

Revenue by segment
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The following table sets out the Group’s revenue by segment and TR BIH 5 E E=20129F K2011F 12831
as a percentage of total revenues of the Group for the years ended BILFERSBE DO AREB WA KEA(L
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively: AEFBBBANE D
2012 2011
(RMB million) % (RMB million) %
(AE¥EER) (ANRBEET)

Environmental protection and BRKEEEBRRFE
energy conservation solutions:

Environmental protection R 5,855.4 26.9 4,262.6 22.8
Energy conservation solutions IS S 919.6 4.2 788.7 4.2
Total &5 6,775.0 31.1 5,051.3 27.0

Renewable energy equipment T BEEFRRERERES :
manufacturing and services:

Wind power products 2% 2 n K2 BR 75 11,161.2 51.2 9,209.9 49.2
and services
Solar power products K88 & i K AR 75 3,649.3 16.8 4,295.0 23.0

and services

Toal AR wewes 680  13sm48 22
Alothers . FEA®Y o | ll 108 08
Total &% 21,776.5 100.0 18,707.0 100.0
Revenue

KA 2012 2011

& ~ ! ~

4.9% 0.9% ‘h 4.2% 0.8%

\ Wind power products
/l l and services

EEERRRE

Solar power products and

@ services
1 A5 BEE fm R BR 3%

All others
FrEHEM
Note #Eit
(1)  Revenues included under this category are mainly from the wind power (1) BRZEBHRAETEREREHEDE
generation by wind farms, other power related products and rental of - HMENHEEERARBEEDE -

properties.
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Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the Group increased by approximately RMB2,471.6
million, or 15.5%, from RMB15,924.3 million in 2011 to RMB18,395.9
million in 2012. This was primarily attributable to increases in cost
of sales in wind power products and services and environmental
protection businesses, partially offset by the decrease in cost of sales
in solar power products and services business.

The following table sets out the Group’s cost of sales by segment and
as a percentage of total cost of sales of the Group for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively:

HELE

2012 AREBHEK A A ARK18,395.95
B B2011FERM AR15,924 3B E LY
BRARKE24716B 8B L15.5% - KK
FTERRRRTERMRY  RERELHEE
RAEER - BARBREERIREEBSNEES
BB REIRSE 7 LB D S E R A R A -

T3k 9 B & 5 8 220124 20115612 431
BLtEEESBEINAEBHEEREA K
HEEAEEAHEEKRANE DL

2012 2011
(RMB million) % (RMB million) %
(AR®BET) (ARBBEET)

Environmental protection and BRKEEEEBRRIE

energy conservation solutions:

Environmental protection IRIR 4,761.3 25.9 3,639.0 22.9

Energy conservation solutions ERERA AR 677.6 3.7 511.9 3.2
Total &% 5,438.9 29.6 4,150.9 26.1
Renewable energy equipment T BEERRERERRH

manufacturing and services:

Wind power products BB EmR RS 9,455.9 51.4 7,687.9 48.3

and services
Solar power products NG 3,430.8 18.6 3,986.8 25.0
and services
Total SEh 12,886.7 70.0 11,674.7 73.3
All others FiA E At 70.3 0.4 98.7 0.6
Total S 18,395.9 100.0 15,924.3 100.0
Cost of sales
HEKE 2012 2011
(9 ~ 3 =

3.7% 0.4% _h 32% 0.6% “

22.9%

g i

51.4% 18.6% 48.3%

Wind power products
,]l and services

AEERKRERE
Solar power products and
;‘% services
- KBEERRES
All others
FrEHEM
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

For the foregoing reasons, the gross profit of the Group increased
by approximately RMB597.9 million, or 21.5%, from approximately
RMB2,782.7 million in 2011 to approximately RMB3,380.6 million in
2012. The average gross profit margin across all segments of the
Group increased from 14.9% in 2011 to 15.5% in 2012. This increase
was primarily attributable to an increase in the gross profit margin in
the environmental protection business, partially offset by decreases
in gross profit margins in the energy conservation solutions, wind
power products and services and solar power products and services
businesses. The gross profit margins in several business lines of the
Group’s environmental protection business segment increased during
2012. The decrease in the average gross profit margin in the energy
conservation solutions segment was primarily due to the decreases
in gross profit margins in the Group’s EMC and plasma-assisted coal
ignition and combustion stabilization businesses. The decrease in the
average gross profit margin in the wind power products and services
segment was primarily attributable to intense market competition
and maturing of the WTG manufacturing business, which resulted in
continued declines in the average selling prices for WTG units on an
industry-wide basis, partially offset by declines in prices of raw materials
and components used in the WTG manufacturing process during the
period. The decrease in the average gross profit margin in the solar
power products and services business was primarily attributable to
the sharp decrease in the gross profit margin in solar power cells and
modules manufacturing business, partially offset by an increase in the
gross profit margin in the solar power EPC business.

EFAREFE

EREMRREA AEBE2012F /) F ) 8
2011 MBLL AR AR KS97. 98 & T sk
21.5% (2011 FAEB EFHABARE
2,782 7TH BT 20128 AEBEFLH A A
R#3,380.6E B T) - NEBMA DI FH
FE R RKE2011F 19114.9% K £2012F 1)
155% - EFEERFERRARRERKEF
KRR BERERASTRER REEM
MR AR KRG aEE @ MR K6 EF
KR AOBEEET LSS RRERER X
R REE - 2012F  AEERREBEHS
E¥BENENEBMER -HEBRIER
¥BNIEHEFNETREIZZEAALNEE
EMCREB TR ARBREBNER X
TFE - BEEmERBEBSHTFHEENET
fEEZREBMRIA TS F K AR
ETE  UBITEGRRNBERATHE
BT BEEE TR HEBARRD
BERMBREBRIZMANRM B ANZ MG
BRTEELIEE KREEER KRS
¥BEMIEHEFNETREIZEZAAKNGE
B RAHEEEBHNENERZE T -
185 BT PR30 1 K5 BEEPCE 75 E F R 4
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The following table sets out the Group’s gross profit and gross profit TR 2 BIE 5B 220129F K2011F12 531
margins by segment for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, AItFEZRSHDEDHAREBEFTERE
respectively:

2012 2011
(RMB million) % (RMB million) %
(AR¥BER) (AR%®BET)
Environmental protection and R REHEMBRFE
energy conservation solutions:
Environmental protection RF 1,094.1 18.7 623.6 14.6
Energy conservation solutions IS 242.0 26.3 276.8 35.1
Total ShEr 1,336.1 19.7 900.4 17.8
Renewable energy equipment T E4HRBHEE R RS
manufacturing and services:
Wind power products [ E 2 fn e BR S 1,705.3 15.3 1,522.0 16.5
and services
Solar power products KB 8EE i KR 218.5 6.0 308.2 7.2
and services
Total &5t 1,923.8 13.0 1,830.2 13.6
All others P EA 120.7 63.2 52.1 34.5
Total &h 3,380.6 15.5 2,782.7 14.9

Gross profit margin

EFE

\ . Wind power products

y ~ /l -~ and services

ll | mEERRERS

[
16.5% | 15.39 ﬂ e Sola_r power products and
y services
L 72% | 8.0%], KB RER R
2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012

Other revenues R A
Other revenues increased by approximately RMB116.4 million, or 20124 + EMk A A R#468.48 BT -
33.1%, from approximately RMB352.0 million in 2011 to approximately BO0ITFEMHAREKI0EETERLAA
RMB468.4 million in 2012. This increase was primarily due to additional R¥116 488 L533.1% - R X EZREE
subsidies granted by the PRC Government during the period for the EHANPRRAR TEBFEEE ALE
Group’s research and development projects and other operational A& EE B -

activities.
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Other net (losses) lincome

The Group recorded other net losses of approximately RMB5.6 million
in 2012, compared with other net income of approximately RMB278.3
million in 2011. The change between the two years was primarily due
to the one-off income recognized from disposals of the Group’s equity
interests in certain companies during the re-organization process
in 2011. The net loss in 2012 was primarily due to an adjustment of
consideration of approximately RMB34.5 million paid to the acquirer of
Jintech’s equity interests, disposed of by the Group in 2011, and a net
foreign exchange loss of approximately RMB17.6 million mainly incurred
by the Group’s solar products and services business, partially offset by
an income of approximately RMB39.4 million from sales of raw materials
for the environmental protection business.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately RMB45.6
million, or 7.2%, from approximately RMB635.0 million in 2011 to
RMB680.6 million in 2012. This increase was primarily attributable to the
increase in WTG transportation expenses incurred in relation to WTG
sales.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately RMB175.4
million, or 15.7%, from RMB1,115.5 million in 2011 to approximately
RMB1,290.9 million in 2012. This increase was primarily attributable to
increased wage and salary expenses from an increase in the number
of the Group’s employees resulted primarily from acquisitions of
certain subsidiaries in 2012 in connection with the Group’s business
expansions, and an increase of approximately RMB30.3 million for
inventory write-downs in relation to the Group’s solar power products
and services business.

Operating profit and operating profit margin

For the foregoing reasons, operating profit increased by approximately
RMB209.4 million, or 12.6%, from approximately RMB1,662.5 million
in 2011 to RMB1,871.9 million in 2012. Operating profit margin
slightly decreased from 8.9% in 2011 to 8.6% in 2012, primarily due
to decreases in operating profit margin from the Group’s energy
conservation solutions, wind power products and services and solar
power products and services businesses, partially offset by an increase
in the operating profit margin from the Group’s environmental protection
business.

At (F518) W FH

REBF2012F NS HMEBFELHIA
R¥56B &7t ME E£2011F12831H Lt
HI2011F R E b IR 28 F 5840 B AR #2783
BET EMFHELHEZRALENE
MFEHPEAREEASEEE TA
AP A % AE T ER 1S 89 — R MR 2R - 722012
F ZEFBIFEIERARASENRE
(FEBR0MFRE) MIEFZHHOA
REB45EBETHEHEARURAREE KNG
HERMERBEBEENNARKI768E
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The following table sets out the Group’s operating profit margins
by segment for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively:

TR BI85 & E20124F K2011412 731
AlEFREZSHEDNAREEEFBE

2012 2011
% %
Environmental protection and RERRSEMBRALG R
energy conservation solutions:
Environmental protection RIR 12.2 7.6
Energy conservation solutions BN BERRIR T 5 16.5 22.0
Segment operating margin D ER LR =R 12.8 9.8
Renewable energy equipment TEERERRERERRE
manufacturing and services:
Wind power products and services [2\ 5 EE on R AR T 7.9 9.3
Solar power products and services A5 8e = m & AR 7% 2.5 4.3
Segment operating margin D ER R =R 6.6 7.7

Finance costs

Finance costs increased by approximately RMB227.4 million, or
54.7%, from approximately RMB415.4 million in 2011 to approximately
RMB642.8 million in 2012, primarily due to an increase in principal
amounts borrowed by the Group in 2012 to fund its operational
expansions. The increase was also partially due to the completion of
certain construction projects during the reporting period, such as the
construction of solar cells and modules production facilities. Interest
expenses related to these projects ceased to be capitalised upon
projects’ completion. As a percentage of Group revenues, finance costs
increased from 2.2% in 2011 to 3.0% in 2012. The Group endeavored
to reduce the finance costs by, among others, issue of Corporate
Bonds and replacing loans carried high interest rates with loans
carried relatively lower interest rates. See also “- Liquidity and Capital
Resources.”

Profit before taxation

As a result of the foregoing factors, profit before taxation of the Group
was approximately RMB1,263.9 million in 2012, which remained
constant as compared with approximately RMB1,271.6 million in 2011.

R B A

20124 « IR A K9 A R #5642.88 B 7T
B201FMHARBA54EETEEL A
R#227 A5 B L 54.7% I EREER A
BAEBERERASEMARELERERE
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Income tax

Income tax charges increased by approximately RMB122.7 million, or
114.5%, from approximately RMB107.2 million in 2011 to RMB229.9
million in 2012. The Group’s effective tax rate increased from 8.4% in
2011 to 18.2% in 2012. The relatively low effective tax rate in 2011 was
primarily due to tax deductions granted to the renewable energy and
related business of the Group. The Group’s effective tax rate in 2012
was 18.2% which was comparable to its effective tax rate of 17.4% in
2010.

Profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year decreased by
approximately RMB130.4 million, or 11.2%, from approximately
RMB1,164.4 million in 2011 to approximately RMB1,034.0 million in
2012.

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests of the Group increased by
approximately RMB17.3 million, or 5.3%, from approximately RMB323.7
million in 2011 to approximately RMB 341.0 million in 2012.

Profit attributable to equity shareholders/owners of the Company

As a result of the foregoing, profit attributable to equity shareholders/
owners of the Company decreased by approximately RMB147.7
million, or 17.6%, from approximately RMB840.7 million in 2011 to
approximately RMB693.0 million in 2012.

Frig#

B R 2011 M A R107.28 B L1
RE2012FM ARM2200FE L BEHY
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Analysis of Segment Results DEEE DT
TR D B & 5 & =20124 K2011412 531
AIEFEAEBADBRA - EF AL EF)
AR BEEEEEAEFERAKA - EF)
MEEFENE DL

The following table sets out the Group’s segment revenues, gross profit
and operating profit, each as a percentage of total Group revenue,
gross profit and operating profit for the relevant period, for the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively:

2012 2011
(RMB million) % (RMB million) %
(AR¥EER) (ARBBET)

Environmental protection and BRRERHEBRFR

energy conservation solutions
Environmental protection: RIR
Revenue WA 5,855.4 26.9 4,262.6 22.8
Gross profit ES| 1,094.1 32.4 623.6 22.4
Operating profit e 7124 38.1 323.0 19.4
Energy conservation solutions:  FgZRR 5 -
Revenue ON 919.6 4.2 788.7 4.2
Gross profit ES| 242.0 741 276.8 9.9
Operating profit EFIE 151.8 8.1 173.5 10.4
Segment revenues SEBA 6,775.0 31.1 5,051.3 27.0
Segment gross profit 2EEF 1,336.1 39.5 900.4 32.3
Segment operating profit 2 E AR R E 864.2 46.2 496.5 29.8
Renewable energy equipment T BERERRERER RS

manufacturing and services
Wind power products [ B i & R 7 -

and services:
Revenue LON 11,161.2 51.2 9,209.9 49.2
Gross profit ES| 1,705.3 50.4 1,522.0 54.7
Operating profit e 881.0 47.1 857.4 516
Solar power products INCE L

and services:
Revenue WA 3,649.3 16.8 4,295.0 23.0
Gross profit ES| 218.5 6.5 308.2 111
Operating profit e 91.6 4.9 182.9 11.0
Segment revenues SEBA 14,810.5 68.0 13,504.9 72.2
Segment gross profit AEBEF 1,923.8 56.9 1,830.2 65.8
Segment operating profit A PBEFE 972.6 52.0 1,040.3 62.6
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Environmental protection and energy conservation solutions

Environmental protection

The following table sets out the revenue, cost of sales and gross
profit attributable to the environmental protection business, each as a
percentage of revenue for this business for the years ended December
31, 2012 and 2011, respectively:

2012 2011
(RMB million) %  (RMB million) %
(AE®EEBR) (ARBBET)

Revenue 5,855.4 100.0 4,262.6 100.0
YA
Cost of sales (4,761.3) (81.3) (3,639.0) (85.4)
HEKAR
Gross profit 1,094.1 18.7 623.6 14.6
E
Revenue

Revenue from the environmental protection business increased by
approximately RMB1,592.8 million, or 37.4%, from approximately
RMB4,262.6 million in 2011 to approximately RMB5,855.4 million in
2012. The increase was mainly attributable to increases in revenues
generated by the NOx emissions reduction and water treatment
businesses, partially offset by a decrease in revenues generated
by the SO, emissions reduction business. Revenue generated from
NOx emissions reduction businesses increased by approximately
RMB1,373.1 million or 103.3% as compared to the preceding year.
The growth in this business line was primarily attributable to the
increased market demand as a result of the favorable policy initiatives
promulgated by the PRC Government in 2011 and 2012, aiming to
reduce air pollutions by, among others, tightening NOx emission
standards applicable to coal-fired power plants and incentivizing NOx
emissions reduction. Growth in revenue in the water treatment business
was primarily due to the Group’s efforts in expanding this business
and the acquisition and consolidation of results of Galaxy Water and its
subsidiaries in 2012. The Group recorded revenues of approximately
RMB651.1 million and approximately RMB262.6 million from its
water treatment EPC business and water treatment BOT business,
representing year-on-year growths of approximately 83.6% and 320.8%,
respectively. The decrease in revenue generated from the Group’s SO,
emissions reduction businesses was due to declines in revenues from
the desulfurization EPC business and the slow-down of increases in
newly installed coal-fired power plants in the PRC, partially offset by
an increase of approximately RMB154.0 million in revenue from the
desulfurization concession business in 2012.
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The following table sets out the revenues from the business lines
comprising the Group’s environmental protection business, each as
a percentage of the revenue from this business, for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

TR D BIE 5 E E220124F K2011F12 531
ALFEREEASERRERNSER
BN - UREBHEBFEZEBBRA
RMEDL :

2012 2011
(RMB million) % (RMB million) %
(AR%BER) (ARE®BET)

SO, emission reduction ik 1,873.3 32.0 2,283.9 53.6
NOx emission reduction fi 7l 2,702.3 46.2 1,329.2 31.2
Water treatment KEEIE 1,008.0 17.2 487.0 1.4
Ash removal(® BREEM 271.8 4.6 162.5 3.8
Note: it -

(1)  Ash removal was classified under “Others” for the year ended December
31, 2011.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the environmental protection business increased
by approximately RMB1,122.3 million, or 30.8%, from approximately
RMB3,639.0 million in 2011 to approximately RMB4,761.3 million in
2012, primarily due to increases in cost of sales corresponding to
revenue growth in the NOx emissions reduction and water treatment
businesses as described above.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

As a result of the foregoing factors, gross profit attributable to the
environmental protection business increased by approximately RMB470.5
million, or 75.4%, from approximately RMB623.6 million for 2011 to
approximately RMB1,094.1 million for 2012. Gross profit margin for this
business increased from 14.6% in 2011 to 18.7% in 2012, primarily
due to increases in proportionate revenue contribution and gross profit
margin of the NOx emissions reduction business as a result of the
surged market demand for denitrification products and services and a
consequential increase in their average contract prices. In addition, with
the Group’s relatively high production capacity for SCR denitrification
catalysts, the demand of which exceeded the supply because of the
rapid development of the denitrification market, not only the profits from
sales of SCR denitrification catalysts but also the gross profit margin for
the Group’s denitrification EPC projects increased. Gross profit margin
from the water treatment business increased from 9.7% in 2011 to 22.8%
in 2012. An increase in proportionate revenue contribution from water
treatment BOT business contributed to the increase in gross profit margin
for water treatment business. Gross profit margin for water treatment EPC
business and water treatment BOT business increased from 9.6% and
24.3% in 2011 to 19.0% and 36.7% in 2012, respectively. The increase
in gross profit margin for water treatment EPC business was attributable
to the relatively high gross profit margins for certain EPC projects carried
out by the Group in 2012. The comparatively high gross profit margin for
the Group’s BOT business in 2012, as compared to 2011, was primarily
due to some of the Group’s BOT projects had entered into a stable
operation stage and the relatively high gross profit margin of Galaxy
Water's BOT projects, also contributed to the increase in gross profit
margin for the Group’s water treatment business in 2012. The decrease
in gross profit margin for SO, emission reduction business was primarily
due to the maturing market and the reduced market demand.
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The following table sets out the changes in gross profit margins for
the business lines comprising of the Group’s environmental protection
business for 2012 as compared with 2011:

TRHFFN012FERAEBIRREFNE
AR EF R E2011E ML B 1L

2012 2011

% %

SO2 emission reduction iR 14.2 15.6
NOx emission reduction iR 23.1 19.5
Water treatment 7K R 38 22.8 9.7
Ash removal K EE 11.3 7.3

Energy conservation solutions

The following table sets out the revenue, cost of sales and gross profit
attributable to the energy conservation solutions business, each as a
percentage of revenue for this business, for the years ended December
31, 2012 and 2011, respectively:

2012 2011
(RMB million) %  (RMB million) %
(AR®EEBR) (AEBBE&ET)

Revenue 919.6 100.0 788.7 100.0
A
Cost of sales (677.6) (73.7) (511.9) (64.9)
HEKA
Gross profit 242.0 26.3 276.8 35.1
E
Revenue

Revenue from the energy conservation solutions business increased by
approximately RMB130.9 million, or 16.6%, from approximately RMB788.7
million in 2011 to approximately RMB919.6 million in 2012. This was
primarily due to increases in revenues from the plasma-assisted coal
ignition and combustion stabilization and the EMC businesses, partially
offset by decreases in revenues from waste heat recovery services and
steam turbine flow passage retrofitting businesses.

Increases in revenues for the Group’s plasma-assisted coal ignition and
combustion stabilization and EMC businesses were primarily attributable
to favorable policies issued by the PRC Government, which incentivized
development of the energy conservation services provided to the coal-
fired power plants in the PRC.

A decrease in revenue from the Group’s waste heat recovery business
was because the Group’'s waste heat recovery business has been at the
development stage. The business has been subject to fluctuation due to a
limited number of projects. A decrease in revenue from the steam turbine flow
passage retrofitting business was primarily attributable to certain steam turbine
flow passage retrofitting services being carried out under the EMC business
model and the relevant revenue classified as EMC revenue and thereby
not recognized as revenue from the steam turbine flow passage retrofitting
business, as well as to a general decline in demand due to market saturation.
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The following table sets out the revenues from the business lines
comprising the Group’s energy conservation solutions business, each
as a percentage of the revenue from this business, for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

TR B & 7 & =20124F K2011412 31
BEFERREASEMERRIREY
MEEBGORA - UREBEEEFEEZ
¥BBRANB DL -

2012 2011
(RMB million) %  (RMB million) %
(AR%BER) (ARE®BET)

Plasma-assisted coal ignition SHrey Il RER 401.7 43.7 330.2 41.9

and combustion stabilization
Steam turbine flow TR R B 76.8 8.3 102.6 13.0

passage retrofitting
EMC EMC 249.3 271 65.0 8.2
Waste heat recovery o] 1L 191.8 20.9 284.4 36.1
Others( Hpo - — 6.5 0.8
Note: Eit -

(1)  The business under this category was mainly the external construction
services, which the Group undertook irregularly. No revenue was recorded
from this business in 2012.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the energy conservation solutions business increased
by approximately RMB165.7 million, or 32.4%, from approximately
RMB511.9 million in 2011 to approximately RMB677.6 million in 2012.
This increase was mainly attributable to increases in cost of sales for
the plasma-assisted coal ignition and combustion stabilization and
the EMC businesses, in line with the increases in revenues in these
businesses.
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Gross profit and gross profit margins

As a result of the foregoing factors, gross profit attributable to the
energy conservation solutions business decreased by approximately
RMB34.8 million, or 12.6%, from approximately RMB276.8 million in
2011 to RMB242.0 million in 2012. Gross profit margin for this business
decreased from approximately 35.1% in 2011 to 26.3% in 2012.
Decrease in average gross profit margin in the energy conservation
solutions business was primarily due to decreases in the gross profit
margins in the Group’s plasma-assisted coal ignition and combustion
stabilization and EMC businesses, partially offset by increases in
the gross profit margins in the Group’s steam turbine flow passage
retrofitting and waste heat recovery businesses. Decrease in the gross
profit margin of the plasma-assisted coal ignition and combustion
stabilization business was due to decreased average selling prices
for the relevant products and services caused by the maturing market
and decrease of investment in the coal-fired power industry, where the
Group’s customers for this business operate. Decrease in gross profit
margin of the EMC business was primarily due to decreased average
EMC contract price caused by intensified market competition. In
addition, in 2012, the Group’s subsidiary in the EMC business obtained
relevant certifications, and became qualified for the PRC Government’s
subsidies granted to certain EMC service providers, thereby having
the ability to offer competitive prices to its EMC customers. Increases
in the gross profit margins in the Group’s steam turbine flow passage
retrofitting and waste heat recovery businesses were due to fluctuations
in the prices of the solutions, which were tailored for specific projects,
and the limited number of the projects.

The following table sets out changes in gross profit margins for the
business lines comprising the Group’s energy conservation solutions
business for 2012 as compared with 2011:
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Renewable energy equipment manufacturing and services

Wind power products and services

The following table sets out the revenue, cost of sales and gross profit
attributable to the wind power products and services business, each
as a percentage of revenue for this business for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively:

2012 2011
(RMB million) %  (RMB million) %
(AR¥B&ET) (AR¥BETL)

Revenue 11,161.2 100.0 9,209.9 100.0
A
Cost of sales (9,455.9) (84.7) (7,687.9) (83.5)
HERA
Gross profit 1,705.3 15.3 1,522.0 16.5
E
Revenue

Revenue attributable to the wind power products and services
business increased by approximately RMB1,951.3 million, or 21.2%,
from approximately RMB9,209.9 million in 2011 to approximately
RMB11,161.2 million in 2012. The increase was primarily due to an
increase in the Group’s WTG sales volume in 2012, resulting from the
Group’s business expansion efforts to increase market share in the
WTG manufacturing industry.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales attributable to the wind power products and services
business increased by approximately RMB1,768.0 million, or 23.0%,
from approximately RMB7,687.9 million for 2011 to approximately
RMB9,455.9 million for 2012, primarily due to an increase in the WTG
sales volume during the year, and partially offset by declines in the
prices of raw materials used in WTG manufacturing process.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

As a result of the foregoing, gross profit attributable to the wind power
products and services business increased by approximately RMB183.3
million, or 12.0%, from approximately RMB1,522.0 million in 2011 to
RMB1,705.3 million for 2012. Gross profit margin for this business
decreased from 16.5% in 2011 to 15.3% in 2012, primarily due to
continuing declines in the average selling prices for WTG units on
an industry-wide basis due to the industry’s maturing process and its
intensified market competition, although such declines were partially
offset by decreases in the prices of raw materials and components
used in the WTG manufacturing process.
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Solar power products and services

The following table sets out the revenue, cost of sales and gross profit
attributable to the solar power products and services business, each
as a percentage of revenue for this business for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively:

2012 2011
(RMB million) %  (RMB million) %
(AR®EER) (ARBBET)

Revenue 3,649.3 100.0 4,295.0 100.0
HA
Cost of sales (3,430.8) (94.0) (3,986.8) (92.8)
HEK A
Gross profit 218.5 6.0 308.2 7.2
E
Revenues

Revenue attributable to the solar power products and services
business decreased by approximately RMB645.7 million, or 15.0%,
from approximately RMB4,295.0 million for 2011 to approximately
RMBS3,649.3 million for 2012. The decrease was primarily due to
the Group’s disposals of Jintech and Ningxia Solar in 2011 and the
consequential de-consolidation of results of Jintech and Ningxia Solar
from the Group’s results in 2012. This decrease was partially offset by
an increase in revenue generated from the solar power EPC business,
as a result of the Group’s efforts in expanding this business line.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales attributable to the solar power products and services
business decreased by approximately RMB556.0 million, or 13.9%,
from approximately RMB3,986.8 million for 2011 to approximately
RMB3,430.8 million for 2012, primarily due to corresponding decrease
in revenues from solar cells and modules manufacturing sector,
partially offset by an increase in costs of sales for the solar power EPC
business.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

As a result of the foregoing, gross profit attributable to the solar
power products and services business of the Group decreased by
approximately RMB89.7 million, or 29.1%, from approximately RMB308.2
million for 2011 to approximately RMB218.5 million for 2012. Gross
profit margin for this business decreased from approximately 7.2% in
2011 to approximately 6.0% for 2012. The decline in demand for solar
power products and further intensified market competition resulted
in a sharp decrease in average selling price across the solar power
industry. In addition, the value of the raw material inventories also
decreased significantly. The decline was partially offset by increases
in the gross profit margin and proportionate revenue contribution of the
Group’s solar power station EPC business.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group’s principal use of cash has been to fund its business
operations. Its main source of liquidity in 2012 was indebtedness
in the form of long-term borrowings (including the net proceeds
of approximately RMB3,971.6 million from the Group’s issuance of
Corporate Bonds) and short-term bank borrowings, as well as the net
proceeds of approximately RMB192.0 million from the issuance of the
additional over-allotment shares during the period.

In 2012, the Group experienced significant cash outflows and increased
its reliance on financing in order to increase its production capacity
in its wind power products and services business and to expand its
operation scale in its environmental protection and energy conservation
solutions businesses. In order to effectively capture the growth
opportunities arising from regulatory changes and increased market
demands in the PRC, the Group also expanded its desulfurization and
denitrification concession businesses and its EMC business, all of which
are capital intensive in nature.

The following table sets out net cashflows of the Group for the financial
years as of and ended December 31, 2012 and 2011:
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Cash and cash equivalents
at December 31

RELRSER RS FE
BMERBEL 2 REFR

REFH(EM) ELEZREFE

R12A31EHMRE KRB EEY

(1,559.5) 346.4
(3,505.1) (3,529.6)
2,843.0 7,026.9
3,405.3 5,626.6




-

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWEDN

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities

Net cash used in the Group’s operating activities in 2012 amounted
to approximately RMB1,559.5 million, as compared to 2011, when net
cash generated from operating activities amounted to approximately
RMB346.4 million. The increase in net cash outflows used in operating
activities was primarily attributable to cash payments made to repay
trade payables for the expansion of the wind power products and
services business through purchasing raw materials and other
production materials.

The significant growth of trade and bills receivables for the Group’s
wind power products and services business, which was in line with the
growth of such business and its proportionate revenue contribution,
were also factors contributing to the amount of net cash outflows in
operating activities.

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in the Group’s investing activities in 2012 amounted
to approximately RMB3,505.1 million, as compared to 2011, when
net cash used in investing activities amounted to approximately
RMB3,529.6 million. Cash outflows for investing activities were primarily
used to fund the Group’s expansion of operations, in addition to the
Group’s acquiring equity interests from, or making capital contribution
to, a few companies. Please see “- Material Investments” and “-Material
Acquisitions of Subsidiaries” for more details.

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net cash generated from the Group’s financing activities in 2012
amounted to approximately RMB2,843.0 million, as compared to
2011, when net cash generated from financing activities amounted
to approximately RMB7,026.9 million. Cash generated from financing
activities in 2012 was primarily from the net proceeds of approximately
RMB3,971.6 million generated from the issuance of Corporate Bonds,
proceeds from borrowings of approximately RMB16,935.9 million and
the net proceeds of approximately RMB192.0 million from the issuance
of the additional over-allotment shares during the period, and partially
offset by repayment of borrowings of approximately RMB17,831.5 million
and interest payments of approximately RMB910.2 million in 2012.

Working Capital

As at December 31, 2012, the Group’ s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to RMB3,405.3 million, a decrease of RMB2,221.3 million
as compared to RMB5,626.6 million as of December 31, 2011. As
at December 31, 2012, unutilised bank credit facilities amounted to
approximately RMB20.0 billion.

REEE (R ELHELER

REB0I2FKEEEBNFEANE S FEL
B ARMA155958 BT - M20116 L& &
PELAMNESFENAARKEIM64BET -
KEEEFEANRSIINRFEENMEEZER
EAEXNAEE AR FERRSE®MKIR
BEBMBERMBIEMMEEM BB
MBS HMEEANBENREBENE S E -

A& B B E E an R 5 7 R WOR B
H&%T@Wﬁfﬂaiﬂiﬁi&%ﬂ‘km%)\ﬁﬁﬁ
HEHAHRANBEBMERE -3 R
BEREEHERRSFFERN—ERE -

REZBHRANEEFE

REBE012FHEEHNFEANE R FELD
ABARMKIE05.18 &L M0 FEREE
FERARIE S FENAARKS529.68 8
T o REFHTHRSINDFEEERARN
AEBKEEHNHE  LEHERASEWE
HEMAm®REREHEMATEE - 158
28— EAREINM— ERKEBEHBR
Al e

BETBELNTEEFE

REB012ERMEEHNEENRE S FELY
B ARM2843.08 BL 0 M2011F @& &
BELAMNASFELNABARKE? 026988
To-BMETHELENRSSBEEEZRRH
NEENRIEHFATESKNHARYS71.6
BETTHFHE EBRAESHHARE
16,935.98 £ JT 1R A LA K B8 1T B 5B AL & %
B ARK192.08 & LW FE » X%
HAMS AR ERENEHARYE17,831.5
BETMAEHNARKEI0.28 ETHAHBH
HEH o

BEES

2012F12A31H - SEMNBE U RRESE
B4Rt ARY3,405.38 87T Eﬁi2011$
B HIM A R#5626.65 & Tk - wWA
R#2221 388 T - é%12012$12)%31
A AEEHKRFEANBITEELSFOBA
R #2008 7T °



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEBNWEDN

The Group’s gearing ratio, which is calculated by dividing net debt
(includes interest-bearing other payables and interest-bearing bank
loans, less cash and cash equivalents) by total equity plus net debt,
increased from 37.0% as at December 31, 2011 to 51.6% as at
December 31, 2012. This was primarily due to an increase in net debt
of approximately RMB6,481.0 million, partially offset by the increase in
equity of approximately RMB1,145.0 million. The increase in net debt
of the Group principally reflects an increase of interest-bearing other
payables and interest-bearing bank loans of approximately RMB4,259.9
million and a decrease in cash and cash equivalent of approximately
RMB2,221.3 million. See also “- Analysis of 2012 Financial Results -
Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

Based on the existing cash resources and unutilized bank credit
facilities, the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) confirm that the
Group’s working capital will be sufficient for its present requirements
and for the next 12 months.

Net Current Liabilities

As at December 31, 2012, the net current liabilities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB812.5 million, representing a decrease
in net current liabilities of approximately RMB981.4 million, or 54.7%,
as compared to December 31, 2011. The decrease was primarily
attributable to decreases of the Group’s current portion of long-term
borrowings and short-term borrowings, the Group’s trade and bills
payables and the Group’s other payables of approximately RMB1,114.9
million, RMB368.2 million and RMB943.2 million, respectively, and
attributable to an increase in the Group’s trade and bills receivables of
approximately RMB4,335.1 million, partially offset by decreases in the
Group’s cash at bank and in hand and in the Group’s inventories of
approximately RMB2,374.9 million and RMB4,182.0 million, respectively.
The Company completed the issuance of Corporate Bonds and
obtained a net proceeds of approximately RMB3,971.6 million in 2012.

Inventory Analysis

The inventories of the Group decreased by approximately RMB4,182.0
million, or 55.8%, from RMB7,488.9 million as of December 31,
2011 to RMB3,306.9 million as of December 31, 2012, primarily due
to increased sales volume of WTG products and the significantly
decreased inventories of WTG products. The Group’s inventory turnover
days decreased to 107.1 days in 2012 from 170.5 days in 2011.

Trade and bills receivables

Trade and bills receivables increased by RMB4,335.1 million, or 43.7%,
from RMB9,925.6 million as of December 31, 2011 to RMB14,260.7
million as of December 31, 2012. Such increases were primarily
resulted from increases in the trade and bills receivables in the wind
power products manufacturing business.
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The following table sets out the breakdown of the Group’s trade and
bills receivables as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively:

&R B 5 R20124F K20116F12A31H
RNEBEREREZIHEAPEE :

As of As of
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
H20124 20114
12831H 12H31H
(RMB millions)
(AR¥EER)
Trade receivables for contract work & R T2 A FE R 3R 4,082.5 3,709.4
Bills receivable for contract work ARIIEMEKEE 1,730.0 310.1
Trade receivables for operating leases & & &1 EWER 539.7 332.3
Trade receivables for sale of goods S 7 o R R AR 7 O E U BR SR 7,548.5 4174.3
and rendering of services
Bills receivable for sale of goods 84 7 o M BR HIR 7% 10 FE W R R 495.5 1,495.3
and rendering of services
Less: allowance for doubtful debts o RIS (135.5) (95.8)
Total &t 14,260.7 9,925.6

The Group’s receivable turnover days increased to 202.7 days in 2012
from 151.6 days in 2011, roughly in line with the increased growth of,
and revenue contribution from, the wind power product and services
business, which reflects the time lag between sales of the WTG unit
and actual payment by the customers, which is a characteristic of the
industry.

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

The Group’s deposits, prepayments and other receivables increased
by 57.4% from RMB1,139.9 million as of December 31, 2011 to
RMB1,794.7 million as of December 31, 2012. The increase was
primarily attributable to an increase of approximately RMB330.5 million
in prepayments for construction contracts and purchase of inventory for
the Group’s environmental protection business, and attributable to an
increase of approximately RMB116.8 million in the amount of bidding
and performance deposits resulting from the Group’s expansion across
its business segments, in particular the Group’s solar power equipment
manufacturing business, WTG products manufacturing business,
desulfurization concession operations business, NOx emission reduction
business and water treatment business.

Trade and bills payables

Trade and bills payables decreased by 3.0% from RMB12,664.9 million
as of December 31, 2011 to RMB12,276.7 million as of December
31, 2012, primarily due to the Group’s payments of its trade and bills
payables in relation to wind power equipment manufacturing business.
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Indebtedness

The following table sets forth the Group’s borrowings as of December
31, 2012 and 2011:

&1

TR N2012K%2011F12A31 B AN E B
RIfEFRIE M -

As of As of
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
201245 M20114F
12H831H 12H31H
(RMB millions)
(AR¥BEERT)
Long-term interest bearing borrowings R % E &
Bank loans: RITER
Secured FEp i 1,842.0 293.1
Unsecured f 4 4 1,439.9 1,175.2
Other loans: HEMER
Secured AIKH 6.2 —
Unsecured AR 5.0 11.7
Corporate bonds RNEEH 4,042.1 —
7,335.2 1,480.0
Less: Current portion of o RHEAE e BN ER 26 (968.6) (341.3)
long-term borrowings
Total &5t 6,366.6 1,138.7
Short-term interest bearing borrowings EH % &R
Bank loans: RITERK
Secured FEg i 927.1 249.5
Unsecured E: v 7,427.7 10,347.5
Other loans (unsecured) E B R (EER) 500.0 —
Current portion of long-term borrowings K HIfE Z &9 ENEREB 968.6 341.3
Total St 9,823.4 10,938.3
Total indebtedness EIH A58 16,190.0 12,077.0

The Group’s indebtedness increased by approximately 34.1% from
RMB12,077.0 million as of December 31, 2011 to RMB16,190.0 million
as of December 31, 2012, primarily attributable to an increase in non-
current portion of long-term borrowings (including the Group’s issuance
of Corporate Bonds with an aggregated principal amount of RMB4.0
billion) of approximately RMB5,227.9 million, partially offset by the
decrease in short-term borrowings (including current-portion of long-
term borrowings) of RMB1,114.9 million. The proportion of short-term
indebtedness to overall indebtedness decreased from approximately
90.6% in 2011 to 60.7% in 2012, with a corresponding proportional
increase in long-term indebtedness.

Substantially all of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in RMB.
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The following table sets out the maturity profiles of the Group’s long-
term borrowings as at the dates indicated:

TE%ZEIJZJSE@ SPrEIR B BB R R R
BHIER

As of As of
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
A2012%F R20114F
12A31H 12H31H

(RMB millions)

(ARBBEER)
Within 1 year or on demand 1FARIREREERE 968.6 341.3
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F LA EBE2F AR 773.7 777.3
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F DA E1B5F A 3,780.1 190.0
After 5 years 5F A 1,812.8 171.4
Total =18 7,335.2 1,480.0

The Group’s effective interest rate (determined by dividing total interest
expenses by the sum of outstanding borrowings and other interest-
bearing payables) increased from approximately 6.3% in 2011 to
approximately 6.9% in 2012, primarily due to an increase in average
interest rates for bank loans offered by PRC commercial banks. In
order to reduce its finance costs, the Group issued Corporate Bonds
and replaced its loans in 2012. As of December 31, 2012, the Group’s
effective weighted average interest rate was approximately 5.4%,
reduced by approximately 1.3% compared to approximately 6.7% as of
December 31, 2011 calculated with the same method.

The weighted average interest rate is calculated as the total amount
of total interest expenses, divided by the amount of each of the loan,
multiplied by the actual borrowing months and divided by 12; put it
another way, dividing the total amount of the interest expenses by the
sum of the weighted borrowings as of December 31, 2012. The sum of
weighted borrowing is the sum of the outstanding balance of each loan
as of December 31, 2012 multiplied with the weighted index (dividing
the number of months for which the loan was borrowed by 12).

Contingent Liabilities

The Group’s contingent liabilities decreased by approximately 22.9%
from RMB1,615.7 million as of December 31, 2011 to RMB1,245.3
million as of December 31, 2012. The Group’s contingent liabilities at
the end of the period primarily consisted of bidding guarantees and
performance guarantees provided by the Group, and a guarantee
provided by Galaxy Water, one of the Company’s non-wholly owned
subsidiaries, to a related party of its minority shareholder.
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Material Investments

On June 28, 2012, the Group subscribed to and was alloted with
141,062,000 H shares of Huadian Fuxin Energy Corporation Limited (£
BREHEERRMD AR A R) (‘Huadian Fuxin’), a company listed on the
main board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 0816), with
a consideration of approximately RMB193.0 million.

On March 1, 2013, the Group sold 62,562,000 H shares of Huadian
Fuxin, with selling price of approximately RMB90.1 million. As a result
of the disposal, the Group held 78,500,000 H shares of Huadian
Fuxin, representing approximately 1.0% of the total issued shares, or
approximately 4.4% of the issued H shares of Huadian Fuxin on that
day.

Material Acquisitions of Subsidiaries

Acquisition of Galaxy Water

On February 16, 2012 and April 20, 2012, the Group entered into
purchase agreements to acquire 70% of equity interest in Galaxy Water
with a consideration of approximately RMB466.2 million. Galaxy Water
became the Group’s subsidiary after completion of the acquisition in
May 2012.

Acquisition of Zhaojing

On December 25, 2012, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement to subscribe to 51% of the equity interest in Jiangsu
Zhaojing Optoelectronics Technology Co., Ltd. (T#& K& BRI K ERE
AR A7) (“Zhaojing”) with a consideration of approximately RMB153.0
million. Zhaojing became the Group’s subsidiary after completion of the
acquisition.

Market Risks

The Group is exposed to various risks associated with its business
operations, including credit and counterparty risk, interest rate risk,
liquidity risk exchange rate risk, among others.

Credit and counterparty risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to our cash at bank and
in hand, trade and bills receivables, deposits, prepayments and other
receivables and other non-current assets. The Group has an internal
credit polity to monitor exposure to its counterparty credit risk on an
ongoing basis.

Substantially all of the Group’s cash is deposited in state-owned or
state-controlled PRC banking institutions. Therefore, Directors consider
such risks to be insignificant.
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The Group performed credit evaluations on all its customers, and
monitor outstanding receivables due from such customers on an
ongoing basis. The Group’s credit evaluation focuses on the customer’s
payment history, ability to pay and takes into account industry and
customer-specific considerations, as well as the general macroeconomic
climate. The Group generally requires its customers to settle progress
billings and other debts in accordance with agreed contract terms.

Interest rate risk

The Company has significant borrowings and its operational activities
are significantly dependent on the availability of credit facilities at
competitive rates. Substantially all the Company’s borrowings are
denominated in RMB and are owed to PRC bank lenders and financial
institutions, which are subject to adjustments in interest rates based on
changes in the applicable regulations of the People’s Bank of China.
Accordingly, fluctuations in interest rates may have a significant impact
on the Group’s business, operations and financial condition. The
Company issued Corporate Bonds with an aggregate principal amount
of RMB4.0 billion in 2012, which are subject to fixed interest rates, and
thereby are not subject to interest rate risk.

The Group does not currently hedge its interest rate risks through any
derivative instruments or other hedging arrangements.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s operating cash flows are subject to significant irregularity,
given the nature of the businesses in which it is engaged. The Group
increasingly carries out its water treatment business through the BOT
business model and its desulfurization business through the concession
business model. While the Group believes that such business models
generate steady cash flows and revenues for the Group over expended
periods, such business models require substantial up-front capital
investment and a longer period to fully recoup such investments as
compared to the traditional business model of EPC. Accordingly, while
the Group aims to ensure that it has sufficient working capital to meet
its operational requirements or has access to sufficient banking credit
facilities to continue its operations without disruption, the cash flow
position of the Group is integral to its continued growth and expansion.

Exchange rate risk

The continued development and expansion of the Group’s international
operations is expected to result in increased exposure to exchange
rate risk, arising primarily through export sales which would typically be
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group expects that its future
export sales will principally be denominated in either the United States
dollar, the Euro or the Hong Kong dollar. As of December 31, 2012,
the Group recorded a net foreign exchange loss of RMB17.6 million.
In addition, after the completion of its IPO on the Stock Exchange in
December 2011, the Group holds approximately HKD273.5 million
of partial net proceeds denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Directors
consider the Group’s exchange rate risk to be insignificant. The Group
does not currently hedge its exchange risk.
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The RMB is not a freely convertible currency, and the PRC Government
may at its discretion restrict access to foreign currencies for current
account transactions in the future. Changes in such foreign exchange
controls may adversely affect the Group’s international operations and
sales, and may prevent the Group from satisfying its foreign exchange
denominated obligations. In addition, the Group may be restricted from
paying dividends on its listed H shares to shareholders by any such
changes in regulations.

Outlook 2013

Last year witnessed the promulgation by the PRC Government of a
series of laws and regulations which, among others, lay out nationwide
performance parameters, standards and goals for environmental
protection and energy conservation solutions sectors and renewable
energy sectors. These laws and regulations constitute part of
the regulatory environment in which the Group conducts its core
businesses. Concerned with recent environmental pollution outbreaks
and ongoing energy sustainability issues, the PRC Government is
expected to intensify its efforts to improve the energy structure and to
enhance environmental protection in 2013, signaled by public speeches
given by senior PRC Government officials and new issued policies at
the beginning of 2013. On January 1, 2013, the PRC State Council
issued the 12th Five-year Energy Development Plan ({g&R3=ERE [+ —F |
#21)), which provided a blueprint and an action plan for the energy
development in the PRC during the 12th five-year period. The 12th Five-
year Energy Development Plan anticipates that during the 12th five-
year period, the average annual growth rate for the wind power and
solar power in the PRC would be 26.4% and 89.5%, respectively. In
a speech given on February 19, 2013, Mr. ZHOU Shengxian, the PRC
Minister of Environmental Protection, highlighted the importance of air
pollution reductions. According to the speech, rigorous emission limits
would apply to new projects of six heavy-polluting industries, including
coal-fired power, steel, petrochemical, cement, colored materials and
chemical industries, and to existing projects of three industries, coal-
fired power, steel, petrochemical industries, located in the identified key
control areas in 19 provinces. Therefore, despite that global economy
is still navigating through the path to recovery, the Group anticipates
that favorable regulatory environment in the PRC is likely to present
significant market opportunities for the Group’s businesses in 2013. In
response to the PRC Government’s focus on promoting development
of the renewable energies and strategic energy-related environmental
protection and resources conservation measures, the Group’s goal is
to leverage on the significant market opportunities presented by the
regulatory changes in the PRC, by focusing on enhancing technological
innovations, strengthening overall management, promoting product
and service competitiveness and increasing market shares. The Group
plans to improve its innovation capability, advanced technologies,
brand recognition and corporate culture in order to achieve the Group’s
sustainable development.
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To leverage on the favorable policies in the PRC and to enhance its
core competitiveness, the Group intends to implement the following, in
2013:

Continuously focusing on technology innovations and further
exploring future growth areas

The Group believes that the advanced technology is the core
competitiveness of the Group’s businesses. To enhance this core
competitiveness, in 2013, the Group plans to continue its efforts in
aiming to achieve breakthroughs in the identified key research and
development areas and core technologies, allocate sufficient financial
and other resources to technology research and development and
ramp up product innovations. Furthermore, the Group intends to
accelerate the progress of technology research and development of
lignite comprehensive utilization, flue gas waste heat comprehensive
utilization, large-capacity offshore wind power generation, microgrid,
wind farm energy storage systems, decentralized energy seawater
desalinization, CO, capture and fine particles (PM 2.5) collection, and
to complete the showcase project for industrialization of the GaAs
concentrator solar cell and the technological R&D for lignite conversion.
In the meanwhile, the Group intends to focus on developing its general
contracting business for power stations and its information management
and electronic engineering business, and to cultivate markets outside of
the power industry, in order to further explore new growth areas for the
Group.

Integrating and optimizing business assets and promoting industry
upgrade

In order to enhance the synergies among various segments and
business lines and to increase its competitiveness, the Group intends
to further integrate and optimize its core business assets. The Group
plans to maintain and promote its existing market-recognized brand
names and to create new products and services to diversify its portfolio.
The Group also plans to actively search quality acquisition targets in
the desulfurization and denitrification concession and water treatment
businesses, as and when the market presents such opportunities, in
order to optimize the Group’s business assets. While aiming to steadily
improve its traditional businesses, the Group intends to focus on
desulfurization and denitrification concession operations and promote
industry upgrade of its business. For environmental protection and
energy conservation solutions, the Group intends to further improve
its product and service quality, further develop and industrialize its
new business line of EMC services and promote the application of
new comprehensive boiler energy conservation technologies, such as
waste heat recovery and low-NOx combustion technologies. In relation
to its renewable energy related business, the Group intends to further
develop the “One-stop Shop” service model for wind power products
and services to differentiate its services from its competitors and to
increase the scale of its solar power EPC general contracting services.
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Developing innovative business models and further cultivating the
international market

Leveraging on the achieved leading market position in the PRC, the
Company intends to further explore opportunities presented in the
international market. The Group plans to further develop the “One-
stop Shop” business model by extending selected business lines to the
upstream and downstream markets so that the Group’s services cover
the entire lifespan of a project, from planning, design, EPC general
contracting to maintenance. The Group intends to utilize the new
business model to promote international cooperation and renewable
power station investment, in order to materialize its “Going-out” strategy
and create synergies between the Group’s domestic and international
businesses. The Group also plans to further improve its overseas sales
network and to accelerate establishment of overseas sales offices at
selected locations, by strengthening operations of its existing overseas
branches, subsidiaries and offices in locations such as the United
States of America, Canada and Thailand and by establishing new
offices selectively, in order to achieve a shared overseas sales network
within the Group.

Enhancing management efficiency and increasing profitability

The Group intends to improve the overall management efficiency and to
transform the administration method, in order to increase its profitability.
The Group plans to enhance its centralized capital management and
increase financial efficiency, through implementing measures such
as strengthening cost control and budget management. In addition,
the Group intends to enhance cost control of the value chain, by
establishing centralized management platforms for functions including
the material procurement, project bidding and capital management,
in order to improve the cost control of the logistics, procurement,
processing and design phases of the management.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ES - ESNEREEAER
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company consists of 11 Directors, including three
executive Directors, four non-executive Directors and four independent
non-executive Directors. The Board of the Company’s function and
responsibility include: convening general meetings; reporting its work
to the general meeting; implementing resolutions approved by general
meetings; deciding on the Company’s business plans and investment
plans; preparing the Company’s annual budget and final accounts,
preparing the Company’s profit distribution plans and proposals for
the increase in or reduction of the registered capital; and exercising
other powers, functions and responsibilities as set out in the articles of
association of the Company. The Company has entered into a service
contract or appointment letter with each of Directors.

The following table sets out certain information relating to Directors of the
Company. On June 8, 2012, Mr. YAN Andrew Y. was appointed as an non-
executive Director of the Company, and Mr. SHI Dinghuan was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company. The current
term for all the Company’s Directors will expire on May 15, 2014.
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Name Age Position Date of Appointment
e Fie ::Aa ZEAH
Mr. ZHU Yongpeng 62 Chairman of the Board of Directors and May 16, 2011
RAXRIEAE Non-executive Director

EERFIFNTES 201158 16H
Mr. YE Weifang 60 Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors and May 16, 2011
HEFLEAE Executive Director

BEERENTES 2011458 16H
Mr. YANG Guang 48 Non-executive Director May 16, 2011
B HKEE HEMITES 20114658 16H
Mr. FENG Shuchen 48 Non-executive Director May 16, 2011
BEE k4 HEMITES 201158 16H
Mr. YAN Andrew Y. 56 Non-executive Director June 8, 2012
B ks HEMITES 201246 A8H
Mr. LI Hongyuan 47 Executive Director May 16, 2011
FRESTE BITES 2011458 16H
Ms. WANG Hongyan 48 Executive Director May 16, 2011
Ersshic+ BITES 2011457 16H
Mr. LU Yanchang 72 Independent Non-executive Director September 21, 2011
BEFIE 2 % A4 BYERITES 201149 821H
Mr. ZHAI Ligong 66 Independent Non-executive Director September 21, 2011
Bk AE B ERITES 201149 821H
Mr. SHI Dinghuan 69 Independent Non-executive Director June 8, 2012
AERKE BYERITES 201256 A8H

Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony 52

EBLERE BIUFNITES

Independent Non-executive Director

September 21, 2011
2011498 21H
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Mr. ZHU Yongpeng, is the chairman of the Board of Directors and a
non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. ZHU serves concurrently
as president of the Guodian Group, chairman of the board of directors
and non-executive director of GD Power, and chairman of the board
of directors and non-executive director of China Longyuan Power
Group Corporation Limited (38/RE 1% E &% AR 2 7))(“‘Longyuan
Power”). Mr. ZHU commenced to serve on the Board in January 2005.
Mr. ZHU previously served successively as director of general office
of the power department of the Ministry of Energy from June 1988 to
September 1993; vice president of China Longyuan Electric Power
Group Corporation of Ministry of Electric Power from September 1993
to November 1997; president of China Longyuan Electric Power Group
Corporation of Ministry of Electric Power from November 1997 to June
1999; president of China Longyuan Electric Power Group Corporation
from June 1999 to July 2000; and vice chairman of the board of
directors, president of GD Power during the period from July 2000 to
October 2002. He also served as vice president of the Guodian Group
from December 2002 to March 2008, and president of the Guodian
Group since March 2008. Mr. ZHU received a bachelor’'s degree in
engineering from Northeast Dianli University in 1982. Mr. ZHU is a
Professor-level Senior Engineer, receiving special allowance from the
PRC State Council.

Mr. YE Weifang, is the deputy chairman of the Board of Directors
and an executive Director of the Company. Mr. YE joined the Group
in May 1997. He previously served successively as general economist
of Xionghui General Contraction Company of North China Electrical
Bureau from September 1996 to May 1997; vice president and
president of Beijing Guodian Longyuan Environmental Engineering
Limited Liability Company from May 1997 to January 2005; president
of the environmental engineering branch of the Company from January
2005 till May 2006; general manager of Beijing Guodian Longyuan
Environmental Engineering Limited Liability Company from May 2006 to
December 2006; vice president of the Company from December 2006
to June 2009; and president of the Company from June 2009 to May
2011. Mr. YE has been the deputy chairman of the Board of Directors
of the Company since June 2011. He received a bachelor’'s degree in
thermal power engineering from North China Electricity Power University
in December 1979 and a bachelor’'s degree in economics from the
Correspondence Institute of the Party School of the CPC Central
Committee. Mr. YE is a Senior Economist.
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Mr. YANG Guang, is a non-executive Director of the Company.
Mr. YANG serves concurrently as head of science-technology and
comprehensive business department of the Guodian Group. Mr. YANG
joined the Board of Director of the Company in January 2005. Mr.
YANG previously served successively as designing chief engineer,
deputy director and director of engineering division of South West
Electric Power Design Institute from 1994 to April 1998; deputy chief
engineer of South West Electric Power Design Institute and director of
project division of South West Electric Power Design Institute from April
1998 to June 1999; deputy director of economic and trade division of
international department of the State Power Corporation from February
2001 to November 2001; director of economic and trade division of
international department of the State Power Corporation from November
2001 to January 2003; deputy head of engineering and construction
department of the Guodian Group from January 2003 to December
2006; head of international cooperation department of the Guodian
Group from December 2006 to October 2008, and head of international
cooperation and overseas business department of the Guodian Group
from October 2008 to September 2009. Mr. YANG received a bachelor’s
degree in engineering from Chongging University in July 1985 and is
also a Senior Engineer.

Mr. FENG Shuchen, is a non-executive Director of the Company and
serves concurrently as president of GD Power. Mr. FENG joined the
Group in September 2004. He previously served successively as chief
manager of Chaoyang Power Plant from October 2000 to February
2002; deputy chief manager of Guodian Datong No.2 Power Plant from
February 2002 to December 2002; chief manager of Guodian Datong
No. 2 Power Plant from December 2002 to September 2004; vice
president of the Company from September 2004 to July 2008; President
of the Company from July 2008 to April 2009; and head of the human
resources department of the Guodian Group from April 2009 to October
2010. Mr. FENG graduated from Shenyang Electric Power Institute
in August 1982. He also completed a post-graduate study in control
theory and control engineering in North China Electric Power University
and received a master’'s degree in engineering. Mr. FENG is a Senior
Engineer.

Mr. YAN Andrew Y., is a non-executive Director of the Company since
June 8, 2012. He also serves concurrently as the managing partner of
SAIF Partners. Mr. YAN previously served as managing director and
head of Hong Kong office of AIG Asia Infrastructure Fund from 1994
to 2001; director for strategic planning and business development at
Sprint International Corporation from 1993 to 1994. Mr. YAN majored
in airplane design and obtained his bachelor’s degree in engineering
from Nanjing Aeronautic Institute (now named as Nanjing University
of Aeronautics and Astronautics) in 1982. Mr. YAN also studied at a
master’s program in sociology at Peking University between 1984 and
1986. He has also obtained a master of arts in international political
economy from the Princeton University in 1989.
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Mr. LI Hongyuan, is an executive Director and president of the
Company since 2011. Mr. LI joined the Group on May 16, 2011. He
previously served successively as president of Guodian Xuanwei Power
Generation Co., Ltd. from April 2002 to January 2006; vice president
of Guodian Yunnan Branch from March 2004 to January 2006; deputy
head of Department of Environmental Protection of the Guodian Group
from January 2006 to December 2006 and deputy head of Department
of Safety Supervision from December 2006 to October 2008; and
president and executive director of Guodian Yunnan Power Co., Ltd.
from October 2008 to April 2011. Mr. LI received a bachelor’'s degree in
engineering from Taiyuan University of Technology in July 1986 and a
master’'s degree in engineering from Kunming University of Science and
Technology. Mr. LI is a Senior Engineer.

Ms. WANG Hongyan, is an executive Director and chief accountant of
the Company. Ms. WANG joined the Group in January 2005. Ms. WANG
previously served successively as financial executive of China Longyuan
Electric Power Group Corporation from June 1993 to December 2000
and vice president of Long Wei Power Technology Co., Ltd. from
January 2001 to February 2004; and deputy manager of department
of finance of GD Power from February 2004 to January 2005. She also
served as deputy chief accountant and manager of department of
finance of the Company from April 2005 to April 2006, and served as
chief accountant of the Company from April 2006 till now. Ms. WANG
received a bachelor’s degree in accounting from Renmin University of
China (No. 1 Branch) in July 1987. Ms. WANG is a Senior Accountant.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LU Yanchang, is an independent non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. LU serves concurrently as a vice president of China
Association for Science and Technology and president of Chinese
Society of Electrical Engineering. Mr. LU served successively as deputy
general of department of power generation, head of dispatch bureau,
chief engineer and head of department of general office in the Ministry
of Water Resources and Electric Power from June 1984 to May 1988;
chief engineer for electric power and head of power department of
the Ministry of Energy from May 1988 to April 1993; deputy minister
of Ministry of Power Industry from April 1993 to March 1998 (and vice
president of State Power Corporation and deputy chairman of the
board of directors of China United Telecommunications Corporation
from December 1996 to March 1998); vice president of State Power
Corporation and deputy chairman of the board of directors of China
United Telecommunications Corporation from March 1998 to June
2001; deputy chairman of the sixth China Association of Science and
Technology from June 2001 to June 2006; deputy chairman of the
seventh China Association of Science and Technology since June
2006 and member of the tenth national committee of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. Mr. LU graduated from department of
power of Tsinghua University and majored in thermal power. Mr. LU is a
Professor-level Senior Engineer.
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Mr. ZHAI Ligong, is an independent non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. ZHAI serves concurrently as deputy managing president
of China Association of Production Science, and deputy executive
and secretary-general of China Birth Defect Intervention and Aid
Foundation. Mr. ZHAI served as deputy head of Institute for Energy
Economies of Shanxi Academy of social sciences from May 1979 to
December 1982; chief officer of Shanxi Taiyuan Governmental Research
Center for Technology Economy from December 1982 to December
1985; successively as director, chief general and deputy head in the
National Bureau of Statistics from January 1986 to November 2000;
chairman of Central Work Committee for Central Government-led
Enterprise and board of supervisors of State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of the State Council from November
2000 to July 2010. Mr. ZHAI graduated from the Department of Labor
Economics at the Capital University of Economics and Business,
formerly known as Beijing College of Economics, in July 1970.

Mr. SHI Dinghuan, is an independent non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr SHI serves concurrently as counselor of State Council
of the PRC, chairman of China Renewable Energy Society,China
Science and Technology Consulting Association, China Productivity
Promotion Center, China Society for Science and Technical Information,
and deputy president of China Industry-University-Research Institute
Collaboration Association. Mr. SHI was appointed as Secretary of the
Ministry of Science and Technology of the PRC in August 2001. He was
also involved in the preparation of the National Program for Medium
and Long-term Planning for Scientific and Technological Development
(2006-2020) from 2003 to 2005. Mr. SHI graduated from Engineering
Physics Department of Tsinghua University in 1967.

Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony, is an independent non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. FAN received his MBA degree from University of
Dallas. Mr. FAN serves concurrently as chairman and managing director
of AsiaLink Capital Limited. Mr. FAN also serves as independent non-
executive director in the following companies listed on the Main Board
of Hong Kong Stock Exchange: Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
(220.HK), Raymond Industrial Limited (229.HK), Shanghai Industrial
Urban Development Group Limited (563.HK), China Development Bank
International Investment Limited (1062.HK), Technovator International
Limited (1206.HK), Renhe Commercial Holdings Company Limited
(1387.HK), Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (2882.
HK), CITIC Resources Holdings Limited (1205.HK) and Tenfu (Cayman)
Holdings Company Limited (6868.HK).
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Board of Supervisors

The board of supervisors of the Company consists of five members.
Except that employee representative supervisors are elected by
employees, supervisors are elected by the shareholders of the Company.
Supervisors serve a term of three years after which they may be re-
elected or re-appointed. The responsibilities of the board of supervisors
include: reviewing and verifying the financial report, business report and
profit distribution plan prepared by the Board of Directors, and (upon
doubt, if any) appointing certified public account and certified public
auditor to examine again the financial information of the Company;
supervising financial activities of the Company; supervising the
performance of Directors, president and other senior management and
safeguarding against any breach of the law, administrative regulations
and provisions of the articles of association of the Company in the
course of discharging their duties; requiring Directors, president and
senior management to correct actions that may harm the interests of the
Company and exercising other rights granted to them by the articles of
association of the Company.

Supervisors

The following table sets out certain information relating to the
supervisors of the Company.
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Name Age Position Date of Joining Date of Appointment
®A Fie Hx A B ZERH

Mr. QIAO Baoping 57 Chairman of the Board of Supervisors May 16, 2011 May 16, 2011
BRFEE EEgXE 2011457 16R 201145 H16H
Mr. CHEN Bin 53 Supervisor January 6, 2005 May 16, 2011
BER X, 5T A B 200541 H6H 201145516 H
Mr. XU Xingzhou 51 Supervisor May 16, 2011 May 16, 2011
FTERMN ST A BE= 20114F5 A 16H 2011457 16H
Mr. GUAN Xiaochun 56 Employee Representative Supervisor November 12, 1998 May 16, 2011
BELESTE BTHRRES 1998411 H12H 2011E5/16H
Mr. LI Wei 39 Employee Representative Supervisor March 10, 2008 May 16, 2011
FELE Bt TRERES 200843 H10H 2011458 16H
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Mr. QIAO Baoping, is chairman of the board of supervisors of the
Company. Mr. QIAO joined the Group on May 16, 2011. He serves
concurrently as vice president and party secretary of the Guodian
Group. Mr. QIAO previously served successively as managing
director of standing committee and organization department of Central
Committee of the Communist Youth League from August 1998 to May
2000; managing director of mass work department of Central Work
Committee for Central Government-led Enterprises from May 2000
to July 2000; managing director of mass work department of Central
Work Committee for Central Government-led Enterprise from July 2000
to May 2003 (also as secretary of Committee of the Communist Youth
League for Central Government-led Enterprises); managing director of
Mass Work Bureau and United Front Work Department of State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council
from May 2003 to June 2005; and member of the party committee
and disciplinary officer of China Power Investment Corporation from
June 2005 to June 2008. Mr. QIAO received a bachelor's degree
in economics from Nankai University in August 1983 and obtained
master’s degree in management engineering from Central South
University of Technology and master’s degree in laws from Party School
of the CPC Central Committee. Mr. QIAQO is a Senior Economist.

Mr. CHEN Bin, is a supervisor of the Company. Mr. CHEN joined the
Group on January 6, 2005. He also serves concurrently as assistant
president of the Guodian Group and head of finance management
department. Mr. CHEN previously served successively as director of
financial budget office, financial and property rights department of
State Power Corporation from April 1999 to October 2001; general
accountant of Sinohydro Engineering Corporation from November 2001
to January 2003; general accountant of GD Power from February 2003
to November 2006 (also vice president of GD Power from March 2004
to November 2006); head of financial and property department as well
as deputy general accountant of the Guodian Group from November
2006 to October 2008;and deputy chief accountant and head of finance
management department of Guodian Group from October 2008 to April
2012. Mr. CHEN received a bachelor’'s degree in power management
from Northeast Dianli Institute, and a master's degree in management
from North China Electric Power University in April 2011. Mr. CHEN is a
Senior Accountant.
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Mr. XU Xingzhou, is a supervisor of the Company. Mr. XU joined
the Group on May 16, 2011. He serves concurrently as head of the
human resource department of the Guodian Group. Mr. XU previously
served successively as deputy director and director of the Salary
and Insurance Division of human resource department of State Power
Corporation from May 1999 to January 2003 and deputy head of
the human resource department of the Guodian Group from January
2003 to November 2010 (also chairman of the board of supervisors
of Guodian Sugian Company and Guodian Kaiyuan Company since
October 2003). He has been appointed as head of the Social Insurance
Center of the Guodian Group since October 2003 and head of the
human resources department of the Guodian Group since November
2010. Mr. XU received a bachelor’s degree in management engineering
from Jilin Technology University in July 1983, attended a part-time
postgraduate program in Tsinghua University and received a master’s
degree in enterprise management. Mr. XU is a Senior Economist.

Mr. GUAN Xiaochun, is an employee representative supervisor of the
Company. Mr. GUAN joined the Company on November 12,1998. He
serves concurrently as party secretary, disciplinary officer and chairman
of the labor union of the Company, and as chairman of the board of
directors of Yantai Longyuan Power Technology Co., Ltd., Guodian
Longyuan Electrical Co., Ltd. and Beijing Huadian Tianren Power
Control Technology Co., Ltd. Mr. GUAN previously served successively
as president of Guodian Longyuan Electrical Co., Ltd. from August
1998 to April 2001; president and chairman of the board of directors of
Guodian Longyuan Power Technology and Engineering Co., Ltd. from
April 2001 to August 2004 and disciplinary officer and chairman of the
trade union of the Company from April 2006 to April 2009. Mr. GUAN
received a bachelor’'s degree in engineering from Northeast Dianli
University in February 1982 and is a Senior Engineer.
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Mr. LI Wei, is an employee representative supervisor of the Company.
Mr. LI joined the Group on March 10, 2008. He serves concurrently as
manager of the inspection and audit department (Disciplinary Office)
of the Company and deputy disciplinary officer. Mr. LI previously
served successively as deputy director of the audit department and
vice president of the financial department of China National Electronic
Materials Corporation from March 2000 to March 2008; deputy chief
accountant of United Power from March 2008 to October 2008; and vice
president of audit department and supervision and audit department
of the company from October 2008 to May 2012. Mr. LI received a
bachelor’'s degree in economics from Hangzhou Institute of Electronics
Engineering and an MBA degree from Beijing University of Aeronautics
& Astronautics. Mr. LI is a Senior Accountant.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The following table sets out certain information relating to the senior
management of the Company.
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Name Age Position Date of Joining
HE iR B hnA B

Mr. LI Hongyuan 47 Executive Director and President May 16, 2011
FREFRE MITER R AKIE 20114573 16H
Ms. WANG Hongyan 48 Executive Director and Chief Accountant January 1, 2005
IRzt HITESERAEEED 20051 A 1H

Mr. WANG Gonglin 53 Vice President December 26, 1998
FoamEE Bl AR 19984 12 426 H
Mr. ZHANG Binquan 49 Vice President April 30, 2001
SRBR L Blaie 200144 A30H
Mr. ZHANG Xiaodong 37 Vice President November 1, 2010
SREER L Bl 201011 A1H
Mr. YANG Dong 40 Chief Engineer January 18, 2001
B E 4R T F2AD 200141 H18H
Mr. TANG Dejun 44 Secretary of the Board of Directors February 5, 2007

BRERE ExenE
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Mr. LI Hongyuan - Please see details under the heading “Board of
Directors”above.

Ms. WANG Hongyan - Please see details under the heading “Board of
Directors”above.

Mr. WANG Gonglin, is vice president of the Company. Mr. WANG
servers concurrently as the chairman of the board and the president
of Guodian Longyuan Power Technology and Engineering Co., Ltd. He
joined the Group on December 26, 1998. Mr. WANG was vice president
and then president of Longyuan Technology from December 1998 to
June 2009. He was appointed as vice president of the Company in June
2009. Mr. WANG received a master's degree in thermal measurement
and automation from Northeast Dianli University in January 1990 and is
a Senior Engineer.

Mr. ZHANG Binquan, is vice president of the Company. Mr. ZHANG
serves concurrently as the president and director of Guodian United
Power Technology Co., Ltd. He joined the Group on April 30, 2001. Mr.
ZHANG previously served successively as assistant president and vice
president of Guodian Longyuan Power Technology and Engineering
Co., Ltd. from May 2001 to October 2005; president of department of
planning and development, department of operation and development,
department new energy, department of project management and
department of solar business of the Company from November 2005
to September 2008; and president of Guodian Ningxia Solar Co., Ltd.
from October 2008 to December 2010. Mr. ZHANG majored in control
engineering and automation and graduated from Harbin Institute of
Technology in 1985 for undergraduate study and received in equivalent
master's degree in management in Yanshan University. Mr. ZHANG
is a Senior Economist. He also worked in China Great Wall Industry
Corporation and CITIC International Cooperation Co., Ltd.
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Mr. ZHANG Xiaodong, is vice president of the Company. Mr. ZHANG
joined the Group on November 1, 2010. Mr. ZHANG previously served
as project principal of Energy Conservation Information Dissemination
Center and project principal of project construction division of
Information Center of the State Economic and Trade Commission from
September 1999 to September 2004; deputy director of research and
consulting division of the SASAC’s Information Center and director of
application and development division of the SASAC’s Information Center
during the period of September 2004 to October 2010. Mr. ZHANG
majored in electric technology and received a bachelor degree from
Taiyuan Heavy Machinery Institute. Mr. ZHANG also received an MBA
degree from Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics. He is a
Senior Engineer.

Mr. YANG Dong, is chief engineer of the Company. Mr. YANG joined
the Group on January 18, 2001. Mr. YANG previously served as thermal
mechanical engineer of North China Electric Power Design Institute from
July 1993 to May 1998; project engineer of ABB Beijing Representative
Office from May 1998 to December 2000; manager of engineering
department of Beijing Guodian Longyuan Environmental Engineering
Limited Liability Company from January 2000 to August 2004; president
of Beijing Longyuan Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd from August
2004 to May 2010. Mr. YANG was assistant president and manager
of the department of technology management of the Company from
June 2010 to June 2011. Mr. YANG received his bachelor’s degree in
engineering and applied electronics technology from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University and an MBA degree from Renmin University of China.
Mr. YANG is a Senior Engineer.

Mr. TANG Dejun, is secretary of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Mr. TANG also serves concurrently as manager of securities
and financing department of the Company and director of Longyuan
Technology. Mr. TANG joined the Group on February 5, 2007. He
previously served as director of department of finance of China Center
for Information Industry Development from October 2000 to December
2001; chief financial officer (also secretary of board of directors) of
CCID Consulting Co., Ltd. from December 2001 to November 2006;
manager of finance department of the Company from February 2007 to
February 2008; and vice president and chief accountant of Longyuan
Technology from February 2008 to April 2011. Mr. TANG received a
bachelor's degree in economics from Hangzhou Institute of Electronics
Engineering and a master’'s degree of economics in finance from
Central University of Finance and Economics. Mr. TANG is a Senior
Accountant.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. TANG Dejun - Please see the subsection above under the heading
of “Senior Management”.

Mr. WONG Ki Yan Davhen, is joint company secretary of the company.
Mr. WONG is a fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Approved Supervisor to train its prospective members, a member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom, and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. WONG served as senior company secretary, senior
company accountant and authorized representative of CCID Consulting
Co., Ltd (stock code: HK08235) (2006-2011). Mr. WONG received a
bachelor's degree in International Business with his major in China
trade from City University of Hong Kong in 1993. Afterwards, he
obtained postgraduate accounting diploma at University of Lethbridge,
Canada. He received a bachelor’'s degree in accounting from Oxford
Brooks University in 2006 and a joint International Master of Business
Administration degree from Tsinghua University and Massachusetts
Institute of Technology, USA.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ESEHS

The Board of the Company hereby presents to shareholders this Annual
Report and the audited financial statements as of, and for the year
ended, December 31, 2012 (the “Financial Statements”).

Share Capital

As of December 31, 2012, the total issued share capital of the Company
was RMB6,063,770,000, divided into 6,063,770,000 shares of RMB1.0
each, including 4,754,000,000 domestic shares and 1,309,770,000 H
shares. Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 36(c) to the Financial Statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

On January 13, 2012, the Company issued and allotted additional
121,270,000 H shares of the Company as a result of the partial exercise
of the over-allotment option in connected with the Company’s initial
public offering.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed
securities during the year ended December 31, 2012.

Pre-emptive Rights

According to the articles of association of the Company or the PRC law,
there are no provisions for pre-emptive rights requiring the Company
to offer new shares to the existing shareholders of the Company in
proportion to their shareholdings.

Principal Business

The Company is principally engaged in (1) environmental protection and
energy conservation solutions, and (2) renewable energy equipment
manufacturing and solutions. The Company offers diversified products
and services and uses various business models in its business
operation. Details of subsidiaries and associates of the Company are
set out in Note 19 and Note 20 to the Financial Statements respectively.
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Results

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
December 31, 2012 and the financial position of the Company and
its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 are set out in the audited
Financial Statements of this Annual Report.

A discussion and analysis of the Group performance during the year
and material factors underlying its results and financial position are set
out in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis section of this Annual
Report.

Profit Distribution

The Board has recommended the distribution of a final dividend in
cash of RMB2.0 cents per share (before tax) and RMB121,275,400.0
in aggregate (before tax) for the year ended December 31, 2012. All
dividends will be distributed upon being approved by shareholders at
the forthcoming 2012 annual general meeting of the Company.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Company and its subsidiaries during the year are set up in Note 14 to
the Financial Statement.

Reserves

Details of the movements in reserves of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 36(a) to the Financial Statements, among
which, details of reserves available for distribution to the shareholders
as of December 31, 2012 are set out in Note 36(e) to the Financial
Statements.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and its
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 are set out in Note 29 to the
Financial Statements.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

The following table sets forth certain information concerning the
Directors, supervisors and senior management of the Company for the

EE ESNSREERAER

TRYHBEHZ2012F12831H IEFEAR
REE EENSAEEABNETER-

year ended December 31, 2012.

Name Position in the Company Date of Appointment
%A AN R B ZEAH
Directors

=

Mr. ZHU Yongpeng Chairman of the Board and Non-executive Director May 16, 2011
KK EE EEZRFIENTES 2011558 16H
Mr. YE Weifang Vice Chairman of the Board and Executive Director May 16, 2011
REFEE BEERRNTES 2011558 16H
Mr. YANG Guang Non-executive Director May 16, 2011
(I it FERITES 2011558 16H
Mr. FENG Shuchen Non-executive Director May 16, 2011
SR e A FERITES 2011458 16H
Mr. YAN Andrew Y. Non-executive Director June 8, 2012
B EAE FERITES 201256 A8H
Mr. LI Hongyuan Executive Director May 16, 2011
FRBGTE MITES 2011558 16H
Ms. WANG Hongyan Executive Director May 16, 2011
T+ MITES 20114658 16H

Mr. LU Yanchang
fEfE B S &

Mr. ZHAI Ligong

Mr. SHI Dinghuan
AEREAE

Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony
BIoELAE

Independent Non-executive Director

BIUFNITES

Independent Non-executive Director

BIUFAITES

Independent Non-executive Director

BIUFAITES

Independent Non-executive Director

BIUFAITES

September 21, 2011
201149 21H

September 21, 2011
201149211

June 8, 2012
201246 A8H

September 21, 2011
201149211
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Name Position in the Company Date of Appointment
®A PN A ZERH
Supervisors

EE

Mr. QIAO Baoping Chairman of the Board of Supervisors May 16, 2011
BRFEE EFEeIE 2011657 16H
Mr. CHEN Bin Supervisor May 16, 2011
BR O 55 A4 EE 2011457 16H
Mr. XU Xingzhou Supervisor May 16, 2011
FREMN ST EE 2011457 16H
Mr. GUAN Xiaochun Employee Representative Supervisor May 16, 2011
RS LE BIRKRES 2011457 16H
Mr. LI Wei Employee Representative Supervisor May 16, 2011
FRELE BIRKRES 20116573 16H
Senior Management Date of Joining
SREEAE A B #

Mr. LI Hongyuan Executive Director and President May 16, 2011
FRESLE MITERFRAKLIE 20114573 16H

Ms. WANG Hongyan
ERsh i+

Mr. WANG Gonglin
FAMEE

Mr. ZHANG Binquan
RABREE

Mr. ZHANG Xiaodong
SRBER 4

Mr. YANG Dong
R

Mr. TANG Dejun
HEELEE

Executive Director and Chief Accountant

HITESERAGEED

Vice President
Blfassie

Vice President
Bl faasis

Vice President
Blfaasie

Chief Engineer
BIAZED

Board Secretary

Exend

January 1, 2005
2005%1H1H

December 26, 1998
1998412 H26H

April 30, 2001
200144 8308

November 1, 2010
201011818

January 18, 2001
200141 H18H

February 5, 2007
20072 A5H

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and considers that all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent of the Company.
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Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management

Biographical details of Directors, supervisors and senior management
are set out in the Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management of this
Annual Report.

Service Contracts of the Directors and Supervisors

Each of the executive Directors and supervisors of the Company has
entered into a service agreement with the Company, and each of the
non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company, on November 28, 2011 (or June 8, 2012, in the case of
Mr. YAN Andrew Y.), in compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
the articles of association of the Company and the relevant regulations
of arbitration. Each service agreement or letter of appointment is for a
term commencing from May 16, 2011 (or June 8, 2012, in the case of
Mr. YAN Andrew Y.) and expiring on May 15, 2014. Each independent
non-executive Director has each entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company on November 28, 2011 (or June 8, 2012, in the case
of Mr. SHI Dinghuan) for a term commencing from December 30, 2011
(or June 8, 2012, in the case of Mr. SHI Dinghuan) and expiring on May
15, 2014.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or supervisors
has entered into a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Remuneration

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and supervisors of the
Company are set out in Note 9 to the Financial Statements.

Interests of Directors and Supervisors in Contracts

At any time during the year of 2012, there was no contract of
significance to the Group’s business in which the Company and its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director or supervisor had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted during the year
or at the end of the year.
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Interests of Directors in Competing Business

During the year of 2012, save as disclosed below, none of the Directors
and their associates had any competing interests in any business which
competed, or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group:

EENBFEEBNES

R2012FER - R TITXMAEETEEI  HiEE
ENEBBEARECMNEREBRXBEEESX
MERBEREFRAERBREFOEE D
BEMBHRFEA

Name of Directors

Expns

Position in the Company

AR AR BT Hnpg s

Other Interests

Non-executive Director and
Chairman of the Board

FHTEERESR

Mr. ZHU Yongpeng
RARFE

President of Guodian Group, Chairman of the board of
directors and non-executive director of GD Power and
Chairman of the board of directors and

non-executive director of Longyuan Power
HELEEHALE BMEENINTEEREERUR
ERENFNTEEREER

Non-executive Director

FHITES

Mr. YANG Guang
B HKE4E

Chief of Science and Comprehensive Industry Department
of Guodian Group

BESEMREGEEXIE

Mr. FENG Shuchen
ST ST A

Non-executive Director

FHITES

President of GD Power
B EE N BIE

Interests and Short Positions of the Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Management in the Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

As of December 31, 2012, Mr. YAN Andrew Y., a non-executive Director
of the Company, was interested in 288,200,000 shares of the Company.
Please refer to “-Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares” for
more information. Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors,
supervisors and senior management of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to
be registered in the register referred to therein, or which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers.

EX EEREREBAER
R - HEROGREZHWER
RKER

MR2012F12A31H * X AR ERITEFH
Tk 55 A $ N A 7] #9288,200,0000% B 17 B
BB R EERERABRMO ZERS] - B
EXFEEEZI ARAISREE EER
=AREE A BB AR R A s H (A 57 B
EB (& RBC(ESH REBE G EXVER) 7
A& (5 - A8 B AR (5 Sk (B 5 P B T AR IR &
R EIE GG EBXVEE7R8D B AN E A
RAIRBEABERSMAER A AR
KA (BIEREBEGER BB HZER
NHEEEARABERNERIOAE) - SR
B(EH R EIEH) F36216 & B R s 5 AT
EE eSS AR KB ECETETT
ABEZETEFRFINZETRD BN AR
RAIRBEABERSMAR A AR

S A
KA o

2012 ANNUAL REPORT £ &

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

HEMRBRREEROGERAA



|

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEERE

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares TERERARGO Z2ER

As of December 31, 2012, so far as known to the Directors, the R2012%12A318 " BEEEMA - TH A
following persons (other than the Directors, supervisors and senior T (RRREF - EEREREEABRIN)
management of the Company) had interests or short positions in the RN A B B A7 =k 48 B8 AR 17D = 1% B 1R 15 (& 5
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be R BB EEXVER B2 R 35 2B A A A A
disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of WEIZERIAE :

the SFO:

Percentage in
the Relevant  Percentage
Class of in the Total

Number of Shares/ Share Share
Class of Underlying Shares Capital® Capital®
Name of Shareholders Share Capacity Held (Share) % %
HEBRE
BERG Hhlz HREEEZ
BRREE 28 IR 17 %8 5 54 HERGHE Bk Aok
(A%) % %
Guodian Group Domestic shares Interests of beneficial 4,754,000,000@ 100.00 78.40
BEEE WE K owner and controlled (Long position)
corporation (4 %)
EnERAR
XERA 2
GD Power Domestic shares  Interests of beneficial 2,376,500,000@) 49.99 39.19
B8 WE K owner (Long position)
EnERAZER (47 8)
Mr. YAN Andrew Y. H shares Interests of beneficial 288,200,000© 22.00 4.75
B s HAR owner and controlled (Long position)
corporation (4 %)
EnERAR
RERR 2w
SAIF IV GP Capital Ltd. H shares Interests of beneficial 288,200,000® 22.00 4.75
HA% owner and controlled (Long position)
corporation (5FE)
EnfERAR
XERNR 2w
SAIF IV GP LP H share Interests of beneficial 288,200,000® 22.00 4.75
HA% owner and controlled (Long position)
corporation (5FE)
EnfERAR
RERA 2w
SAIF Partners IV L.P. H shares Interests of beneficial 288,200,000 22.00 4.75
HA% owner (Long position)

EulB AR (FR)
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Percentage in

the Relevant  Percentage
Class of in the Total
Number of Shares/ Share Share
Class of Underlying Shares Capital® Capital®
Name of Shareholders Share Capacity Held (Share) % %
EEBRRA
BER®B/ Rz HREBEHZ
BRES 28 I 63 38 5 g4 HEROHA Bato Bao
(B%) % %
China High Speed Transmission H shares Interests of beneficial 144,100,000 11.00 2.38
Equipment Group Co. Ltd. HAR owner (Long position)
RS RESHREEEERAA EnEBAZER (H%8)
China Huadian Corporation H shares Interests of beneficial 108,050,000 8.25 1.78
PRESEEAQT HA% owner and controlled (Long position)
corporation (HFE&)
EnBAAZERRE
BERAEZ R
China Huadian Hong Kong H shares Interests of beneficial 108,050,000 8.25 1.78
HEESEEERAA HA% owner (Long position)
EnEAAZER (H#%8)
Beijing High Technology H shares Interests of beneficial 105,637,000 8.07 1.74
Venture Capital Co., Ltd. HAR owner (Long position)
It RBHMRMEI R E RN EnEAAZER (H%8)
BERAR
105,637,000 8.07 1.74
(Lending pool)
(R fi5 B9 AR 1)
National Council for H shares Interests of beneficial 96,000,000 7.33 1.58
Social Security Fund of HAR owner (Long position)
the PRC EnEAAZER (H%8)
RN EREESCESS
SDIC Capital Holdings Co., Ltd.  H shares Interests of beneficial 72,050,000 5.50 1.19
B EARERERA A HiR owner (Long position)
EnEAAZER (H#%8)
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Notes:

(1)  This percentage is calculated on the basis of the number of underlying
shares/total shares that had been issued by the Company as of December
31, 2012.

(2) The Guodian Group holds, directly or indirectly, 100% of the domestic
shares of the Company via GD Power. As of December 31, 2012, Guodian
Group has 52.13% of the interests in the total shares of GD Power and
GD Power has 49.99% of the domestic shares of the Company. Therefore,
Guodian Group is deemed to have the interests in the domestic shares of
the Company possessed by GD Power.

(3) Mr. YAN Andrew Y. holds 22.00% of the H shares indirectly via SAIF
Partners IV L. P. through SAIF IV GP Capital Ltd. and SAIF IV GP LP. He is
the controlling shareholder of SAIF IV Capital Ltd., SAIF IV GP LP, and SAIF
Partners IV L. P. SAIF IV GP Capital Ltd. is the controlling shareholder of
SAIF IV GP LP. SAIF IV GP LP is the controlling shareholder of SAIF Partners
IV L.P. SAIF Partners IV L.P. has 22.00% of the H shares. Therefore, Mr. YAN
Andrew Y., SAIF IV GP Capital Ltd., and SAIF IV GP LP are deemed to have
the interests in the H shares held by SAIF Partners IV L. P.

(4)  China Huadian Corporation holds 8.25% of the H shares indirectly via
China Huadian Hong Kong.

Management Confracts

The Company did not enter into any contract in respect of the
management or administration of the entire or any significant part of
the business of the Company nor such contract subsisted at any time
during 2012.

Subsequent Events

Details of non-adjustment events after the balance sheet date of the
Company are set out in Note 44 to the Financial Statements.

Connected Transactions

The Company has entered into certain contracts with its connected
persons (as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules). These
transactions were monitored and managed by the Company in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

-

(1) ZEDPHRUAQRN2012F12A318E
BITHARBRNEE BROBBEE -

(2 HESEZARESENEERBEERA
100%H) N & % - 1R2012F 127318 * B &
SERBEEENRGBLIEREE52.13 %H)
o BEENERARFL.99%8 K E
BBt BEEEHERIEARERESE
NFRFERNEROERZ

(8) Rt EBEIBSAIF IV GP Capital Ltd. K&
SAIF IV GP LP&SAIF Partners IV L.P.[&
BEFEH22.00%KIHAR o B £k 55 & ZSAIF IV
GP Capital Ltd. * SAIF IV GP LPIA &SAIF
Partners IV L.P.EYIERZAR S o SAIF IV GP
Capital Ltd.Z2SAIF IV GP LPH)#ZERE A% R o
SAIF IV GP LPZSAIF Partners IV L.P.#)#Z
AR 3R o SAIF Partners IV L.P.#H22.00%
HOHR% o Lt - B%k - SAIF IV GP Capital
Ltd.JA &SAIF IV GP LP#48 {EB#EASAIF
Partners IV L.P.AT# BHR A #E % ©
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Non-exempt connected transactions of the Group during 2012 are as
follows:

(1) Non-exempt One-off Connected Transaction

During the year of 2012, the Group had conducted the following
non-exempt one-off connected transactions.

1. Increase in capital contribution to Guodian Finance

On April 17, 2012, Guodian Finance Corporation Ltd.
(“Guodian Finance”) entered into the capital increase
agreement with twelve shareholder companies (including
the Company), pursuant to which, these twelve shareholder
companies agreed to increase their capital contributions to
Guodian Finance. Upon the increase in capital contribution,
the twelve shareholder companies will inject a total capital
contribution of RMB2.739 billion into Guodian Finance,
among which the registered capital of Guodian Finance will
be increased by RMB2.05 billion and the capital reserve of
Guodian Finance will be increased by RMB689.00 million.

Pursuant to the capital increase agreement, the Company
agreed to inject a total capital contribution of RMB66.83
million to Guodian Finance, among which RMB18.30 million
will be transferred from its existing capital reserve to the
registered capital of Guodian Finance, RMB31.72 million will
be injected into the registered capital of Guodian Finance,
and RMB16.81 million will be injected into the capital
reserve of Guodian Finance. Upon completion of the capital
increase, the Company’s shareholding interests in Guodian
Finance will remain unchanged.

As the Guodian Group directly and indirectly holds
approximately 78.4% of the issued share capital of the
Company, it is a controlling shareholder as defined under the
Listing Rules and thus a connected person of the Company.
Guodian Finance is a subsidiary of the Guodian Group,
and is therefore a connected person of the Company. The
capital contribution to Guodian Finance by the Company
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and is therefore subject to
the reporting and announcement requirements but exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

T A 7K £ B 20124 E R ) R EE 5 BF

BR

(—) TEHRE-XRMHAERS
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—RERER S -
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The capital increase was expected to enhance the function
of Guodian Finance as a platform for central management
of funds from its member companies and improve funding
utilization efficiency, which will effectively reduce the cost
of funds and related transaction costs. Through the further
capital contribution to Guodian Finance, the Company was
expected to benefit from expanding its financing channel
to obtain more efficient financial management services with
lower risk and strengthen its financial positions. In addition,
the capital increase was expected to drive the business
expansion of Guodian Finance and increase its overall
profitability, which will, in turn, bring economic benefits
to the Company by virtue of its equity interest in Guodian
Finance.

Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated April 17, 2012.

Acaquisition of 30% of the equity interest in Jiangsu Longyuan

On July 4, 2012, Beijing Guodian Longyuan Environmental
Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Longyuan Environmental’), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
an equity transfer agreement with Guodian Environmental
Protection Research Institute, pursuant to which, Longyuan
Environmental conditionally agreed to purchase, and
Guodian Environmental Protection Research Institute
conditionally agreed to sell, Guodian Environmental
Protection Research Institute’s entire 30% equity interest in
Jiangsu Longyuan Catalyst Co. Ltd. (“Jiangsu Longyuan”)
at a consideration of RMB45,057,263. Before completion of
the transaction, Longyuan Environmental holds 70.0% equity
interest in Jiangsu Longyuan and Guodian Environmental
Protection Research Institute holds the remaining 30.0%
equity interest in Jiangsu Longyuan. After completion of the
transaction, Longyuan Environmental holds 100% equity
interest in Jiangsu Longyuan.

As the Guodian Group directly and indirectly holds
approximately 78.4% of the Company’s issued share
capital, it is a controlling shareholder as defined under
the Listing Rules and thus a connected person of the
Company. Guodian Environmental Protection Research
Institute, a subsidiary of the Guodian Group, is therefore
a connected person of the Company. The equity transfer
constitutes a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules, and is therefore subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements but exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The acquisition is in line with Company’s strategy of
streamlining and further developing its denitrification
business. It integrates the assets of the Group and
further enhances the Company’s resource allocation and
management. In addition, it reduces connected transactions
and optimizes the corporate governance structure.

Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated July 4, 2012.

Formation of a joint venture

On July 31, 2012, Guodian United Power Technology Co.,
Ltd (“United Power”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Guodian Weifang Wind Power Generation
Company Limited (“Weifang Power”) entered into an
agreement (“dJV Agreement”) in relation to the formation of
a joint venture company (“JV Company”) with a registered
capital of RMB75.0 million. The terms of the JV Agreement
were negotiated on an arm’s length basis between United
Power and Weifang Power. Pursuant to the JV Agreement,
United Power and Weifang Power will contribute RMB45.0
million and RMB30.0 million respectively to the JV Company,
accounting for 60% and 40% of its equity interest. The
payment will be paid by cash installments and will be fully
contributed by United Power and Weifang Power within two
years from the date of incorporation of the JV Company.

As the Guodian Group directly and indirectly holds
approximately 78.40% of the Company’s issued share
capital, it is a controlling shareholder as defined under the
Listing Rules and thus a connected person of the Company.
Weifang Power is a subsidiary of the Guodian Group and is
therefore a connected person of the Company. The formation
of the JV Company constitutes a connected transaction
of the Company under the Listing Rules, and is therefore
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
but exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

With the formation of the JV Company, United Power
may expand its business scope and scale in the areas of
manufacturing of wind turbine generator and its accessories,
providing EPC and other wind power services. Weifang
Power is a potential customer of United Power; setting up
a joint venture with its potential customer could increase
business opportunities for United Power. Moreover, the
JV Company will become an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and its financial results will be
consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.

Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated July 31, 2012.
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Increase in capital contribution to United Power

On August 28, 2012, United Power entered into the Increase
of Share Capital Agreement with China Longyuan Power
Group Corporation Limited (‘Longyuan Power”’) and the
Company (“Shareholder Companies”), pursuant to which,
each of the two Shareholder Companies agreed to increase
its respective capital contribution to United Power, in
proportion to each of their existing shareholdings in United
Power. The two Shareholder Companies are expected
to make a total capital contribution of approximately
RMB734.48 million to United Power. Upon completion of
above-mentioned increase of share capital, the registered
capital of United Power is expected to increase from
approximately RMB1,403.05 million to approximately
RMB2,137.53 million.

Pursuant to the Increase of Share Capital Agreement,
the Company is expected to contribute a total capital of
approximately RMB514.14 million to United Power. Upon
completion of the increase of share capital, the Company’s
equity interests in United Power will remain unchanged.

The Company owns 70%, while Longyuan Power owns 30%,
of equity interests in United Power. The Guodian Group,
the Company’s controlling shareholder, owns approximately
63.68% of equity interests in Longyuan Power. United Power
is therefore an associate of the Guodian Group. Therefore,
United Power is the Company’s connected person under
Rule 14A.11(4) and Rule 14A.11(5) of the Listing Rules.
Entering into the Increase of Share Capital Agreement
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company as
defined under Rule 14A.13 of the Listing Rules and is
therefore subject to the reporting, announcement and the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The increase of share capital can enhance the registered
capital and working capital of United Power, which will
effectively improve its operation and business. The increase
of share capital is expected to allow United Power to expand
its business and to increase its overall profitability, which in
turn is expected to bring economic benefits to the Company.

Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated August 28, 2012.
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Provision of financial assistance

In May 2012, the Company, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Beijing Lucency Environment and Technology
Corporation Limited (“Lucency”), completed the acquisition
of a total of 70% of equity interests in Galaxy Water
Treatment Limited Company (“Galaxy Water”) from two
independent third parties, Qingdao Galaxy Investment
Corporation Limited (“Galaxy Investment’, 60.82%) and
Qingdao Huayin Property Development Corporation Limited
(“Qingdao Huayin”, 9.18%). Upon completion of the
acquisition, Galaxy Water became the Company’s indirect,
non-wholly owned subsidiary. Galaxy Investment, which is
a subsidiary of Qingdao Galaxy Group Corporation Limited
(“Qingdao Galaxy”), owns the remaining 30% of equity
interests in Galaxy Water.

Before the acquisition, Galaxy Water provided a guarantee
in favor of the Changde Renmin Road Sub-branch of ICBC
to secure loan facilities provided to Changde Santong
Construction and Investment Corporation Limited (“Changde
Santong”), a then fellow subsidiary of Galaxy Water and also
a subsidiary of Galaxy Investment. The maximum amount of
the guarantee was RMB260.0 million. Furthermore, before the
acquisition, Qingdao Galaxy, together with its subsidiaries
and shareholders, provided a number of guarantees for the
benefit of Galaxy Water and its subsidiaries in a total amount
of approximately RMB259.5 million. At completion of the
acquisition, the guarantee and those guarantees provided
by Qingdao Galaxy and its shareholders and subsidiaries to
Galaxy Water have not been released.

Galaxy Investment, which owns 30% of equity interests in
Galaxy Water, is Galaxy Water's substantial shareholder.
Changde Santong is a subsidiary of Galaxy Investment,
and therefore an associate of Galaxy Investment and
therefore a connected person of the Company under
Rule 14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules. Thus the guarantee
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under
the Listing Rules, and is therefore subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements but exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The guarantee was assumed by the Group in the acquisition,
and the acquisition is expected to enable the Group to
expand its water treatment business and to allow the Group
to benefit from Galaxy Water’s expertise in constructing and
operating water treatment projects.

Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated September 5, 2012.
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(2)

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transaction

The Group has entered into certain non-exempt continuing
connected transactions during 2012.

After the listing of the Company’s shares, the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and the independent shareholders approved the
annual caps of the following non-exempt continuing connected
transactions and granted a waiver to the Company from
strict compliance with the announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements. The table below has set
out the annual caps and the actual transaction amount of such
continuing connected transactions:

TEARFRABERS

REBM2012FERL T H T NEH
RRBEREERD -

ARBERBRD LMEESEER S
RGP RBILIRRE T TR R
BHERXSHFE EROME LR
THRERETEBARERBILRR
BOEMBRE - TRIRLERFERE
RHGNFE LRMERRZEH

Actual

Transaction

Amount for

Connected Party Transaction Type Cap for 2012 2012
20124 2012 F &

BER REER FELR BBRRXEELHE

(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR¥BEER) (AR¥EER)

Guodian Group
BHEEE

Guodian Group
5 &£ =

11th Institute
F+—HIE

11th Institute
&+ WA

United Power

&8 1

United Power

BE B

Provision of Products and services by 18,475.0 12,523.0
the Group to Guodian Group and its subsidiaries
BN 52 [ () B 5 &2 [ % HO BT 88 A ml iR R EE om R R 7%

Provision of products and services by 2,746.0 928.3
Guodian Group and its subsidiaries to the Group
P B AR B N HL A N Bl AN AR B HR A A v R AR 7S

Provision of products and services by the IT Electronics 180.0 161.8
Eleventh Design & Research Institute Scientific and
Technological Engineering Corporation Limited to
the Group
HIEREXENE T —RIARARRIERD
B R A Al [A) 2 5= [ 42 g 2 on 2 R 7

Provision of products and services by the Group to 100.0 0.6
the IT Electronics Eleventh Design &
Research Institute Scientific and Technological
Engineering Corporation Limited
HAEEREEEXENE T —RAMAMABRIE
{47 B BR 2 B B2 L E om e AR 765

Provision of products and services to United Power 1,136.0 478.0
and its subsidiaries by the Group
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Lease of properties by the Group to United Power 30.0 20.9
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Actual

Transaction

Amount for

Connected Party Transaction Type Cap for 2012 2012
20124 2012 FE

BER REEH FELR BBRRXELE

(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR®BEERT) (AR¥EERT)

7 Full Dimension Provision of products and services by 70.0 54.0
it = &P 4 Beijing Full Dimension Power Tech Co., Ltd.
to the Group
M bR 2 M4 B O RHR B R R Rl 28 5 B 42 4 2 an SR

8 Longyuan Technology Provision of products and services by 30.0 221
BEIR B AT Longyuan Technology to the Group
B B TR B [ AN £R [ 1R 1t o e AR 7S

9 Jiangsu Longyuan. Provision of products and services by 320.0 156.4
TTEREEIR Jiangsu Longyuan Catalyst Co., Ltd. to the Group
HIT#REEREC B AR A R R AR ERHEm KR

10 Guodian Finance Provision of financial services by 350.0M 302.3M
B % B 75 Guodian Finance Corporation Ltd. to the Group
i B E B 75 A PR A R M 72 5 B 4 4 B 75 AR 75

Note: 1Bt -
(1)  These numbers represent the maximum daily balance of the deposit (1) BUEKFRFAEEFABESHBHEE
placed with Guodian Finance by the Group. S 1F R EREE o

1. Provision of products and services by the Group to the Guodian 1. ZEEURSEEREMEAT (B

Group and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) REBMN BEHERDRRE

The Company entered into a master agreement in good faith and AN EHREEBER20126587H &
at arm’s length on the mutual supply of products and services 20128 A28 H B & A F 51 5 Rl
with the Guodian Group on November 23, 2011, amended by a SIS BB EE SRR IREHIEE S
supplemental agreement and a second supplemental agreement NEFTHRERE NG E 85T
on May 7, 2012 and August 28, 2012, respectively. T2011F 11 23 B AT ML MIE R Wk o
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Material terms and conditions of the master agreement are set out
as follows:

Pursuant to the master agreement, the goods and services to be
provided by the Group to the Guodian Group and its subsidiaries
(other than the Group) include:

. Environmental protection and energy conservation solutions
services segment: (i) environmental protection products
(including, among others, ash removal, water treatment and
denitrification catalyst); (ii) energy conservation products
(including, among others, plasma-assisted coal combustion
equipment); (iii) environmental protection services (including,
among others, desulfurization concession service,
denitrification concession service, desulfurization EPC
service, denitrification EPC service, water treatment BOT
service); and (iv) energy conservation services (including,
among others, steam turbine flow passage improvement
service and EMC); and

. Renewable energy equipment manufacturing and integrated
solutions services segment: (i) WTGs and their parts and
components; (ii) solar power products; (iii) wind power
services including wind farm EPC services; and (iv) solar
power services including station EPC services.

If the terms and conditions of similar products and services
offered by an independent third party are no better than those
offered by one party, the other party shall give priority in sourcing
the requisite products and services from the first party.

The Group and the Guodian Group and its subsidiaries (other
than the Group) will enter into separate agreements which shall
set out the specific scope of products and services, terms and
conditions of providing such products and services according to
the principles laid down by the master agreement.

The master agreement is for a term of three years ending on
December 31, 2013. Either party may terminate the master
agreement upon giving the other party at least three months’
written notice.

The products to be provided under the master agreement will be
based on the following pricing policy:

(1) government-prescribed price (including any price prescribed

by any relevant local government, if applicable);

(2) where there is no government-prescribed price but there is a
government-guidance price, then the government-guidance price;

EZR W = 2 IEREIIAT ¢

BEERGZE AEERNEEEER
HtB AR (RAKEIN RENER
ERBBIETIISE

o  BRREEBARIERSEDE
(VRRER (BIERE  KE®R
B EBEE)  (ETREE
m(BEEETEIABREE
£ (RARRS (2RERE
FFREIRTS - BIR S R L R
% - BLAREPCHR 7% - i RYEPCAR
% KEBEEBOTRBEE) : K(iv)
B B AR 7% (B2 38 /2 b M 3 O B
R# REMCZ) : &

. AR AEREREBRERENRF
RIERRBEDE : (VA S BB
HERETIME () NEREEM
(iR E R % (215 R EFREPCHR
%) (VA aERRTE (B X%
REEEILEPCIRTE) o

6987 % =77 IR B OUE @ R RIS H9
R IGEH L N B — T iR E
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B S Rk e
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BE®  EW—HaERDR=1EA
2RI R — 7 B B R AR L HESE
% -

ERBHRBTHERERSETIE
BIRRMERE -

(1) AEBRNAEE(REEMAEBL
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(2) ARBHNTE BERMAE
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(3) where there is neither a government-prescribed price nor
a government-guidance price, the market price, which is
defined as the price at which the same type of products
and/or services are provided by the Independent Third
Parties in the ordinary course of business; or

(4) where none of the above is applicable or where it is not
practical to apply the above pricing policies, then the price
agreed between the relevant parties shall be based on
arm’s length negotiation and shall be the reasonable costs
incurred in providing the products plus reasonable profits.

The above pricing mechanism is hereinafter referred to as the
“Applicable Standard Products Pricing Policy.”

The services to be provided under this agreement will be based
on the following pricing policy:

(1) the bidding price where the bidding process is required; or

(2) where no bidding process is involved, the market price.

The above pricing mechanism is hereinafter referred to as the
“Applicable Standard Services Pricing Policy.”

The Group would be accorded priority by the Guodian Group
and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) in the provision of
the relevant products and services, provided that the terms
and conditions offered by Independent Third Parties to the
Guodian Group and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are
no more favorable than those offered by the Group for the same
products or services, and in return, under the same terms and
conditions, the Group has undertaken to the Guodian Group and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) that it shall not provide
products and services which are less favorable than those offered
by the Group to independent third parties.

Guodian Group is the controlling shareholder of the Company
and is, together with its subsidiaries, a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction for 2012
was RMB18,475.0 million and the actual transaction amount
during the reporting year was RMB12,523.0 million.
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FZTR—REBBEPREH
B EREE M &R IRIS A ERS
%

(4) £t R B A R Bk e E
LREEBRRAAIT AER
MEBAATERA T HEETE
BERREHERMELENGIEK
Ao EABAE -

bt TE BB T XX R [E AR
EEmEBRE] -

ZBHHEETORBERGIZRTIIE
BRRHERE

(1) WHFBEREF WRTHERE
2

(2 WAFRERF AHRITHS

LAt EEH R TP EEERAR
ERBEBEHRE]

AEERREEERENE QR (B
AEBEN R TFREBBE R MRS
MEEE HEBYE=7TRNEEEHE
R E W B AR (A LB SN 42 e 6
ARG LETERAEE RSBRER
IMBAREE Rz REBERK
ARG AEBEERNREEERE
MELE (FRAEES) AGE - AEE
RUENEREBRBIEEERAEE
FBME =T iR o

BEEBEAARBZERBER  RIEZL
MR BEEKERENBELRER
RRBHBEAL -

AFEFEAN  HLBEFREBERIFH
2012 FE LR A AR ¥18,475.0
BET MEBRRXZSEAEARE
12,523.08 BT °

2012 ANNUAL REPORT £ &

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

HEMRBRREEROGERAF




-

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEE®RS

Provision of products and services by the Guodian Group and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) to the Group

The Company entered into a master agreement in good faith and
at arm’s length on the mutual supply of products and services
with the Guodian Group on November 23, 2011, amended by the
second supplemental agreement dated August 28, 2012.

Please refer to relevant disclosure under “—1. Provision of
products and services by the Group to the Guodian Group and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group)” for material terms and
conditions of the master agreement.

Goods and services to be provided by the Guodian Group and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) to the Group include:
SO, emissions reduction equipment, NOx emissions reduction
equipment and water supply, electricity supply, gas supply and
consulting services.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction for 2012
was RMB2,746.0 million and the actual transaction amount during
the reporting year was RMB928.3 million.

Provision of products and services to the Group by the 11th
Institute

The Company entered into a master agreement in good faith and
at arm’s length on the mutual supply of products and services
with The IT Electronics Eleventh Design & Research Institute
Scientific and Technological Engineering Corporation Limited
(“11th Institute”) on November 23, 2011.

Material terms and conditions of the agreement are set out as
follows:

Pursuant to this master agreement, the products to be supplied
to the Group include solar power equipment and spare parts, and
the services to be supplied to the Group include engineer design,
agency services to purchase certain accessory equipment and
construction of facility system in relation to the Group’s solar
power services.

If the conditions of similar products and services and the fees
payable thereof offered by an independent third party are not
better than those offered by one party, the other party shall give
priority in sourcing the requisite products and services from the
first party.
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Relevant subsidiaries of both parties will enter into separate
agreements which shall set out the specific scope of products and
services, terms and conditions of providing such products and
services according to the principles laid down by the agreement.

The products to be provided under the agreement will be based
on the Applicable Standard Products Pricing Policy.

The agreement is for a term of three years ending on December
31, 2013. Either party may terminate the agreement upon giving
the other party at least three months’ written notice.

The 11th Institute owns 40% of equity interest in Guodian Solar
System Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd (“GD Solar (Shanghai)”),
which is a 50% owned subsidiary of Guodian Solar (Jiangsu)
Co., Ltd. (“GD Solar”). GD Solar is a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company. Therefore, the 11th Institute is a substantial
shareholder of GD Solar (Shanghai) and the connected person of
the Company under Rule 14A.11(1) of the Listing Rules. The 11th
Institute is not otherwise connected to the Guodian Group.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction for 2012
was RMB180.0 million and the actual transaction amount during
the reporting year was RMB161.8 million.

Provision of products and services by the Group to the 11th
Institute

The Company entered into a master agreement in good faith and
at arm’s length on the mutual supply of products and services
with the 11th Institute on November 23, 2011. The products
provided by the Group to the 11th Institute are equipment and
spare parts. Please refer to the disclosures under “-4. Provision of
products and services to the Group by the 11th Institute” for the
material terms of this master agreement.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction for 2012
was RMB100.0 million and the actual transaction amount during
the reporting year was RMBO0.6 million.
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Provision of products to United Power and its subsidiaries by
the Group

The Company has entered into a master agreement in good faith
and at arm’s length with United Power for provision of products
to United Power and its subsidiaries by our Group on November
23, 2011. Pursuant to this agreement, the products to be provided
to United Power and its subsidiaries by our Group are parts and
components of WTGs.

Material terms and conditions of the agreement are set out as
follows:

Subsidiaries of both parties will enter into separate agreements
which shall set out the specific scope of products and services,
terms and conditions of providing such products and services
according to the principles laid down by the agreement.

The products to be provided under the agreement will be based
on the Applicable Standard Products Pricing Policy.

The agreement is for a term of three years ending on December
31, 2013. Either party may terminate the agreement upon giving
the other party at least three months’ written notice.

The products to be provided under this agreement will be based
on the Applicable Standard Products Pricing Policy.

The Company owns 70%, while Longyuan Power owns 30%,
of equity interest in United Power. As Longyuan Power is a
63.68% owned subsidiary of the Guodian Group, the Company’s
controlling shareholder, United Power is therefore an associate
of the Guodian Group. Therefore, United Power is the connected
person of the Company under Rule 14A.11(4) and Rule 14A.11(5)
of the Listing Rules. The subsidiaries of United Power are the
Company’s connected persons under Rule 14A.11(4) and Rule
14A.11(6) of the Listing Rules. The result of the transactions
between United Power and its subsidiaries and the Group will
be eliminated in consolidation because United Power is the
Company’s connected person as well as its subsidiary.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction for 2012
was RMB1,136.0 million and the actual transaction amount during
the reporting year was RMB478.0 million.
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Properties Leasing Agreement

The Company entered into a master leasing agreement with
United Power in good faith and at arm’s length on November 23,
2011.

Material terms and conditions of the agreement are set out as
follows:

The Company agreed to lease land and buildings to United Power
and its subsidiaries as offices, production facilities, workshops
and staff quarters.

United Power and its subsidiaries are not entitled to sub-lease
or transfer any of the leases to another party without prior written
consent from the Company;

This agreement is for a term of three years ending on December
31, 2013, and is subject to compliance with the requirements of
the Listing Rules by us, renewable upon mutual agreement of the
parties;

During the term of the leases for the properties, the parties to
each lease will bear their own taxes in accordance with the
applicable laws and regulations;

United Power has warranted that it and its subsidiaries will pay
the rents specified for each of the properties in a timely manner
and that United Power and its subsidiaries shall use the properties
in accordance with the leases and not do or allow any damage to
the value of the properties;

The rights and obligations of the parties under the master leasing
agreement are not transferable; and

The rent for each of the leases has been determined for the
three year period with reference to comparable properties in
similar locations as specified in each of the leases and (where
applicable) will be adjusted in accordance with the terms of
the lease by mutual agreement or by the appointment of an
independent valuer acceptable to both parties. However, any
such increment in rent has to be reasonable and no higher than
the rent that would otherwise be payable by an independent third
party paying market rent for similar properties.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction for 2012
was RMB30.0 million and the actual transaction amount during the
reporting year was RMB20.9 million.
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Provision of products and services to the Group by Beijing Full
Dimension Power Tech. Co., Ltd.

The Company entered into a master agreement in good faith and
at arm’s length on the mutual supply of products and services with
Beijing Full Dimension Power Tech. Co., Ltd. (“Full Dimension”)
on November 23, 2011, amended by a supplemental agreement
on July 31, 2012.

Material terms and conditions of the master agreement are set out
as follows:

Pursuant to this master agreement, the products to be provided
to the Group include equipment for improvement of the circulation
function of the steam turbine, all necessary spare parts and
technical materials as required for performing the improvement.
The services to be provided by Full Dimension to the Group
include design, testing, installation, adjusting, examination and
acceptance, technical guidance, technical assistances and
training in relation to the improvement of the circulation function of
the steam turbine.

The agreement is for a term of three years ending December 31,
2013. Either party may terminate the agreement upon giving the
other party 3 months’ written notice.

Pricing Policy: The products to be provided under the agreement
will be based on the Applicable Standard Products Pricing Policy.

The services to be provided under this agreement will be based
on the Applicable Standard Services Pricing Policy.

Full Dimension owns 20% of equity interest in Beijing Long Wei
Power Generation Technology Co., Ltd. (“BJLW”), which is a 60%
subsidiary of United Power. The Company owns 70% of equity
interest in United Power. Therefore, Full Dimension is a substantial
shareholder of BJLW and the Company’'s connected person
under Rule 14A.11(1) of the Listing Rules. Full Dimension is not
otherwise connected to the Guodian Group.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction for 2012
was RMB70.0 million and the actual transaction amount during the
reporting year was RMB54.0 million.
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Provision of products and services by Longyuan Technology and
its subsidiaries to the Group

The Company entered into a master agreement in good faith and
at arm’s length on the mutual supply of products and services
with Longyuan Technology on November 23, 2011, amended by a
supplemental agreement on July 31, 2012.

Material terms and conditions of the master agreement are set out
as follows:

Pursuant to this master agreement, the products and services
to be provided to the Group by Longyuan Technology and its
subsidiaries include plasma-assisted coal combustion equipment,
and other products and services.

If the conditions of similar products and services and the fees
payable thereof offered by an independent third party are not
better than those offered by Longyuan Technology and its
subsidiaries, the Group shall give priority in sourcing the requisite
products and services from the first party.

The Group and Longyuan Technology and its subsidiaries will
enter into separate agreements which shall set out the specific
scope of products and services, terms and conditions of providing
such products and services according to the principles laid down
by the agreement.

This agreement is for a term of three years ending on December
31, 2013. Either party may terminate the master agreement upon
giving the other party three months’ written notice.

The products to be provided under this agreement will be based
on the Applicable Standard Products Pricing Policy.
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Longyuan Technology is the Company’s 23.25% owned
subsidiary. As of the latest practicable date, Hero Asia (BVI)
Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Longyuan
Power, owns approximately 18.8% of equity interest in Longyuan
Technology. Given that Longyuan Power is a subsidiary of the
Guodian Group, Longyuan Technology is a connected person
of the Company under Rule 14A.11(5) of the Listing Rules. The
subsidiaries of Longyuan Technology are the connected persons
of the Company under Rule 14A.11(6) of the Listing Rules. The
result of the transactions between Longyuan Technology and its
subsidiaries and the Group will be eliminated in consolidation
because Longyuan Technology is the Company’'s connected
person as well as its subsidiary.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction for 2012
was RMB30.0 million and the actual transaction amount during the
reporting year was RMB22.1 million.

Provision of products by Jiangsu Longyuan to the Group

The Company entered into a master agreement in good faith and
at arm’s length on the mutual supply of products and services
with Jiangsu Longyuan on November 23, 2011, amended by a
supplemental agreement on July 31, 2012.

Material terms and conditions of the master agreement are set out
as follows:

Pursuant to this master agreement, the goods to be provided
by Jiangsu Longyuan to the Group include SCR denitrification
catalyst.

This agreement is for a term of three years ending on December
31, 2013. Either party may terminate the master agreement upon
giving the other party three months’ written notice.

The products to be provided under this agreement will be based
on the Applicable Standard Products Pricing Policy.
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10.

Jiangsu Longyuan is a 70% owned subsidiary of Longyuan
Environmental, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary. Guodian
Environment Research Institute, a subsidiary of the Guodian
Group, holds the remaining 30% of equity interest in Jiangsu
Longyuan. The Guodian Group is the Company’s controlling
shareholder. Therefore, Jiangsu Longyuan is an associate of the
Guodian Group and the Company’s connected person under Rule
14A.11(4) and Rule 14A.11(5) of the Listing Rules. The result of
the transactions between Jiangsu Longyuan and its subsidiaries
and the Group will be eliminated in consolidation because Jiangsu
Longyuan is the Company’s connected person as well as its
subsidiary.

On July 4, 2012, Longyuan Environmental entered into an
equity transfer agreement with Guodian Environment Research
Institute to acquire from Guodian Environment Research Institute
the remaining 30% equity interest of Jiangsu Longyuan. Upon
completion of this acquisition in July 2012, Jiangsu Longyuan
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
transactions between the Company and Jiangsu Longyuan are no
longer connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction for 2012
was RMB320.0 million and the actual transaction amount during
the reporting year was RMB156.4 million.

Provision of financial services by Guodian Finance to the Group

The Company entered into a finance services framework
agreement with Guodian Finance in good faith and at arm’s length
on the provision of financial services by Guodian Finance to the
Group on July 31, 2012.

Material terms and conditions of the finance services framework
agreement are set out as follows:

Pursuant to the finance services framework agreement, the
services to be provided by the Guodian Finance to the Group
include (i) deposit services; (ii) loan services; and (iii) other
financial services.

Under the agreement, Guodian Finance has promised that the
financial services provided to the Company will not be less
favorable than those offered to other members of Guodian Group
network, or those provided by commercial banks or comparable
services.

10.
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The Company and its subsidiaries will utilize the financial services
of Guodian Finance on a voluntary and non-compulsory basis
and is not obliged to engage Guodian Finance for any particular
service.

Guodian Finance may, from time to time, enter into separate
individual financial service agreement with the Company and its
subsidiaries for the provision of specific financial services, subject
to the terms and conditions of the agreement.

The duration of the agreement is for a term of three years, with
retroactive effect commencing on January 1, 2012 and with an
expiration date on December 31, 2014.

The services to be provided under the agreement will be based
on the following pricing policy:

(1) Deposit services: interest rates for deposit services shall
not be lower than any of the following: (i) the interest rates
cap published by the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”)
from time to time for the same category of deposits; (ii) the
interest rates offered to other members of Guodian Group
network by Guodian Finance for the same category of
deposits; and (iii) the interest rates offered to the Company
and its subsidiaries by any commercial bank for the same
category of deposits.

(2) Loan services: interest rates shall be no higher than any of
the following: (i) interest rates 10% lower than the interest
rates published by the PBOC from time to time for the same
category of loans; (ii) the interest rates offered to other
members of Guodian Group by Guodian Finance for the
same category of loans; and (iii) the interest rates offered to
the Company and its subsidiaries by commercial banks for
the same category of loans.

(8) Other financial services: the interests or service fees
charged for other financial services (i) shall comply with
the standard rates as promulgated by the PBOC or China
Banking Regulatory Commission (“CBRC”) from time to
time (if applicable); (ii) shall be no higher than or equal to
the interests or service fees charged by commercial banks
or other financial institution for comparable services; and
(iii) shall not be higher than the interests or service fees
charged by Guodian Finance for comparable services to
other members of Guodian Group network.
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The Guodian Group is controlling shareholder of the Company
as defined under the Listing Rules and thus a connected person
of the Company. Guodian Finance is a subsidiary of the Guodian
Group, and is therefore a connected person of the Company.

The allowed maximum daily balance of this continuing connected
transaction for 2012 was RMB350.0 million and the actual
maximum daily balance during the reporting year was RMB302.3
million.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed each of the abovementioned continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that the transactions have been
conducted:

(1) in the usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or, if there are no sufficient
comparable transactions to determine whether they are
on normal commercial terms, from the perspective of the
Group, on terms no less favorable than the terms available
to or from independent third parties; and

(3) in accordance with relevant agreement governing the
relevant transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole.

Pursuant to Chapter 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor was engaged by the Board of the Company to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Based on the work
performed, the auditor of the Company confirmed to the Board of
Directors of the Company that the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions:

(1) have been approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company;

(2) involving the provision of goods and services by the Group
were priced in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group stipulated under the relevant agreements governing
such transactions;
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(3) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions; and

(4) have not exceeded the relevant annual cap as disclosed
in the Prospectus of the Company or the relevant
announcements.

The auditor has issued his letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group on pages 92 to 105 of this Annual Report
in accordance with rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no related party transaction or
continuing related party transaction set out in Note 40 to the
Financial Statements falls into the category of connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under the
Listing Rules.

In respect of the abovementioned connected transactions, the
Directors also confirmed that except for the following matters, the
Company was in compliance with the disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company technically breached the Listing Rules regarding
the continuing connected transactions with Guodian Finance and
the unstopped financial assistance at the time the Group acquired
Galaxy Water.

Guodian Finance. Before a written agreement was entered into
and before the announcement dated July 31, 2012 was published,
the Company’s accounts with Guodian Finance had a positive
balance. In light of the fact that the maximum daily amount of the
Company’s accounts with Guodian Finance was approximately
RMB302.3 million for the six month period ended June 30, 2012,
the Company should have published an announcement of the
relevant transactions when any of the applicable percentage ratios
reached 0.1% or the value reached HK$1,000,000 (whichever
is higher). The positive balance in the Company’s accounts with
Guodian Finance was a result of the Group’s customers making
deposits to the Group’s accounts located at Guodian Finance in
order to pay their accounts payables. In addition, the Company
and Guodian Finance had been evaluating services that could
replace the financial services provided by Guodian Finance,
which delayed the execution of the finance services framework
agreement. The failures to enter into a written agreement and to
make an announcement sooner were not intentional; such failures,
however, constituted a non-compliance in full of the relevant
disclosure requirement under Rules 14A.35(1) of the Listing
Rules. Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated July 31, 2012.
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Galaxy Water. The employees at the Company’s subsidiary,
Lucency, who executed the acquisition, did not immediately
realize that the guarantee was not terminated prior to the
acquisition, and such guarantee would trigger a disclosure
obligation of the Company at the closing of the acquisition. The
Company did not delay the announcement of the transaction
intentionally or on purpose. However, the delay constituted a non-
compliance in full of the Listing Rules. Details of the transaction
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated September 5,
2012.

To prevent any potential breach in the future, the Company
intends to provide further trainings on topics relating to the Listing
Rules to a wider group of employees, including employees at
the indirect subsidiary levels, so that the Group as a whole could
detect disclosable matters in a timely manner.

Compliance with Non-Competition Agreement

The Company entered into the non-competition agreement with the
Guodian Group and GD Power respectively on November 23, 2011
(“Non-Competition Agreement”).

Pursuant to the agreement, Guodian Group and GD Power provided
certain non-competition undertakings to the Company and granted
the options and pre-emptive rights to acquire the retained business
and any new business opportunities of Guodian Group or GD Power
(as the case may be) to the Company. Pursuant to the agreement, the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company are responsible
for reviewing and considering whether or not to exercise such options
and pre-emptive rights and are entitled, on behalf of the Company, to
review the implementation of the undertakings under the arrangement
on an annual basis.

During the year, the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company have reviewed the implementation of the Non-Competition
Agreement and confirm Guodian Group and GD Power has been in full
compliance with the agreement and there was no breach by Guodian
Group and GD Power.
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Maijor Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the purchase from the Group’s
five largest suppliers in aggregate contributed 14.9% of the Group’s
total purchase for the year, among which, the total purchase from the
largest supplier contributed 5.8% of the Group’s total purchase for the
year.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the sales to the Group’s five
largest customers in aggregate contributed 71.0% of the Group’s total
sales for the year, among which, the sales to the largest customer
contributed 57.5% of the Group’s total sales for the year.

Guodian Group’s subsidiaries as the Group’s customers mainly include
GD Power and Longyuan Power which are all the Group’s connected
person. Save as disclosed above, during the year, so far as the
Directors are aware, none of the Directors, associates of Directors
or any shareholders of the Company (who to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any interest in the Company’s five largest suppliers or five largest
customers during the year.

Retirement and Employees Benefit Scheme

Details of the Group’s retirement and employees benefit scheme are set
out in Note 7(a) to the Financial Statements.

Compliance with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices

As a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Company strives to maintain a high standard of corporate governance
practices and complies with the code provisions as set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report of this Annual Report
for detalils.

Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and so far as
the Directors are aware, not less than 21.6% of the issued share capital
of the Company was held by the public as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this Annual Report, which was in compliance with
the requirements under the Listing Rules.
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Material Litigation

A subsidiary of the Group is a defendant in a lawsuit. On September
29, 2012, a bank sued Guodian Solar and its associate for repayment
of a loan owed by the associate and the legal fee in the total amount
of RMB39,979,000. On January 6, 2013, the Municipal Intermediate
People’s Court in Wuxi (the “Court’) heard the case. Currently the
judgment from the Court is still pending. As of the date of this Annual
Report, based on the opinion of the Company’'s PRC counsel, the
Directors believe that it is highly likely that the Group would win the
case. Accordingly, the Group has not made any provision in relation to
the matter.

Audit Committee

The 2012 annual results of the Group and the Financial Statements as
of, and for the year ended, December 31, 2012 prepared in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards have been reviewed
by the audit committee of the Company.

Auditors

KPMG and RSM China Public Accountants Co., Ltd. were appointed
as auditors for the financial statements prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises of PRC for the year ended December 31,
2012, respectively. The enclosed Financial Statements prepared
in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards
have been audited by KPMG. KPMG and RSM China Certified Public
Accountants Co., Ltd. have been appointed by the Company since the
date of preparation of its listing.

t

v

By order of the Board

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited
Chairman of the Board

Mr. ZHU Yongpeng

Beijing, March 28, 2013
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In 2012, to protect the interests of shareholders and the Company, and
in compliance with relevant laws and regulations and the articles of
association of the Company, the board of supervisors of the Company
(the “Board of Supervisors”) had effectively exercised its supervision
authority over the meeting-convening and decision-making procedures
of the Board of Directors for compliance with relevant laws, regulations
and the articles of association of the Company. During this reporting
year, the main work of the Board of Supervisors is as follows:

1. Meetings the Board of Supervisors Convened in
2012

The Board of Supervisors convened two meetings in 2012:

1. The first meeting in 2012 of the first session of the Board
of Supervisors was held on March 27, 2012, at which the
Company’s 2011 annual report, the announcement of annual
results for 2011, the annual profit distribution proposal
for 2011 and the report of the Board of Supervisors were
considered and approved.

2. The second meeting in 2012 of the first session of the Board
of Supervisors was held on August 24, 2012, at which the
Resolutions regarding the 2012 interim report and interim
results of the Company, the Resolutions regarding the 2012
interim financial statements of the Company and the 2012
interim profit distribution proposal were considered and
approved.

2. Work Undertaken by the Board of Supervisors

In 2012, the Board of Supervisors mainly undertook the following
work:

During the reporting year, the Board of Supervisors duly
reviewed the Company’s operation plan and development plan
and proposed reasonable suggestions and advice to the Board
of Directors. The Board of Supervisors actively and effectively
performed its supervision duties over significant decisions
and implementations by the Company’s senior management to
ensure compliance with the laws, regulations, and the articles of
association of the Company, in order to protect the interests of
shareholders.
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The Board of Supervisors carefully reviewed and approved the
Directors’ Report by the Board of Directors and reviewed the
Financial Report and the dividend distribution plan which are to
be presented at 2012 annual general meeting of shareholders.
The Board of Supervisors is of the opinion that the members of
the Board of Directors, President and other senior management
of the Company strictly complied with the principles of integrity,
performed their duties diligently, exercised their powers in
the best interests of the Company, and discharged their
responsibilities in accordance with the articles of association
of the Company. Meanwhile, the Company’s operations have
been further standardized and its internal control system has
been improved. The Company’s connected transactions were
in the overall interest of the Company’s shareholders and were
on fair and reasonable terms. The Board of Supervisors has not
discovered that any of the Directors or senior management had
abused their power or any of their actions were prejudicial to the
interests of the Company or shareholders of the Company, or
violated the laws, regulations and the Articles of the Association
of the Company.

The Board of Supervisors is satisfied with the financial status and

operational results in 2012. The Board of Supervisors is confident
in the prospect of the Group.
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By Order of the Board of Supervisors
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors
Mr. QIAO Baoping

Beijing, China, March 28, 2013
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The Board of the Company hereby presents to the shareholders the
corporate governance report for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Corporate governance framework of the Company is set out as follows:

Guodian Technology & Environment
Group Corporation Limited
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Corporate Governance Practices

Since its establishment, the Company has been committed to improving
its corporate governance, which is considered an ingredient essential to
the creation of values for shareholders. The Company has established
a modern corporate governance structure, which comprises a number
of independently-operated and effectively-balanced bodies, including
general meetings of shareholders, the Board of Directors, the Board
of Supervisors and senior management, by referring to the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The Company has adopted the Code as its own corporate
governance practices. During 2012, the Company had complied with
the principles and provisions of the Code, and in some circumstances
adopted the best practices recommended by the Code.

Corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
summarized below.

1. The Board

The Board exercises its powers and functions in accordance
with the provisions as set out in the articles of association of
the Company. In the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders, the Board reports to the general meetings of
shareholders, implements the resolutions passed thereon and is
accountable to the general meetings of shareholders.

1.1 Composition of the Board

As of December 31, 2012, the Board consisted of 11
Directors, including three executive Directors, four non-
executive Directors and four independent non-executive
Directors.

The biographical details of the Directors as of this
Annual Report are set out in the Director, Supervisor and
Senior Management of this Annual Report. There are no
relationships (including financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationship) among members of the
Board. The structure of the Board is well balanced with
each Director having sound knowledge, experience and
expertise on the business operation and development of the
Group. All Directors are well aware of their joint and several
responsibilities to the shareholders.
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Since the listing of the Company, the Board has been
in compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules
regarding the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors. Furthermore, the qualifications
of all four independent non-executive Directors of the
Company are in full compliance with the requirements
under Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules. In addition,
the Company has received annual confirmations from all
independent non-executive Directors as to their respective
independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company therefore considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be in compliance with the
independence requirements as set out in the Listing Rules.

The composition of the current Board of the Company is set

forth below:
The Board

The Board of the Company consists of 11

including three executive Directors, four non-executive
Directors and four independent non-executive Directors.
The Board of the Company’s function and responsibility
include: convening general meetings; reporting its work to
the general meeting; implementing resolutions approved
by general meetings; deciding on the Company’s business
plans and investment plans; preparing the Company’s
annual budget and final accounts, preparing the Company’s
profit distribution plans and proposals for the increase in
or reduction of the registered capital; and exercising other
powers, functions and responsibilities as set out in the
articles of association of the Company. The Company has
entered into a service agreement or letter of appointment

with each of the Directors.

Certain information concerning the Directors of the Company
is set out in the table below. All our current non-executive
Directors and executive Directors except for Mr.
Andrew Y. were elected as the current Directors on May
16, 2011 and all our independent non-executive Directors
except for Mr. SHI Dinghuan were appointed on September
21, 2011. Their appointment came into effect on the listing
date. Mr. YAN Andrew Y. and Mr. SHI Dinghuan were
appointed on June 8, 2012. The term of all the Directors of

the Company will end on May 15, 2014.
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Name Age Rank Date of Appointment
®A Fie B ZEAH

Mr. ZHU Yongpeng 62 Chairman of the Board and Non-executive Director May 16, 2011
RAKRAE EZRRFUTES 2011657 16H

Mr. YE Weifang 60 Vice Chairman of the Board and Executive Director May 16, 2011
EEFKE BESRFNTES 201165 R 16H

Mr. YANG Guang 48 Non-executive Director May 16, 2011

B kEE FRTES 20114F5 4 16H
Mr. FENG Shuchen 48 Non-executive Director May 16, 2011
BRE L E FHNTESR 201157 16H

Mr. YAN Andrew Y. 59 Non-executive Director June 8, 2012

B #EAE FHTESR 2012456 A8H

Mr. LI Hongyuan 47 Executive Director May 16, 2011
FRERE HTEF 2011457168
Ms. WANG Hongyan 43 Executive Director May 16, 2011

ERE G WOIEF 2011457 16H

Mr. LU Yanchang 72 Independent Non-executive Director September 21, 2011
BEEE %4 BUFHTES 201149A21R

Mr. ZHAI Ligong 66 Independent Non-executive Director September 21, 2011
BUmEE BUFHTESF 2011697218

Mr. SHI Dinghuan 69 Independent Non-executive Director June 8, 2012
AEREE BYEHRTESF 201266388

Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony 52 Independent Non-executive Director September 21, 2011
BLERE BUEHTES 201149 F21R
Director’s Continuous Training and Development 12 EFEMEEIREE

In compliance with Rule A6.5 of the Code and to ensure that
the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant, during the reporting year, the Company
arranged and funded suitable training for all Directors
such as holding special training sessions covering topics
including notifiable transactions under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules, connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules and the issuer’s continuing obligations

under Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.
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Besides the trainings provided by the Company, Directors
have also developed their professional skills through various
ways, including attending forums, seminars and public
lectures such as those sponsored by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange in Beijing during 2012.

As of December 31, 2012, all Directors of the Company,
namely, Mr. ZHU Yongpeng, Mr. YE Weifang, Mr. YANG
Guang, Mr. FENG Shuchen, Mr. YAN Andrew Y., Mr. LI
Hongyuan, Ms. WANG Hongyan, Mr. LU Yanchang, Mr. ZHAI
Ligong, Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony and Mr. SHI Dinghuan,
have participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills as required
by Rule A6.5 of the Code.

Board Meetings

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company,
the Board is required to hold at least four Board meetings
each year, which shall be convened by the Chairman of
the Board. A notice of at least 14 days shall be given for a
regular board meeting. The notice shall state the time, venue
and means by which the board meeting will be convened.

Except for the Board’s consideration of matters in relation
to connected transactions as set forth in the articles of
association of the Company, the quorum for a board
meeting is the majority of all the Directors. A Director may
attend the board meeting in person, or appoint another
Director in writing as his proxy to attend the board meeting.
The secretary to the Board of the Company is responsible
for preparing and keeping the minutes of board meetings
and ensuring that such minutes are available for inspection
by any Director.
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During 2012, the Board held four meetings in total. Presence
of Directors at board meetings is as follows:

MR2012FE EFE G H &
MA@ BEELFES
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Number of
Meetings  Attendance Rate
Name Position in the Company Attended/Held %
HE BT

HE AN AR R YR i E =
Mr. ZHU Yongpeng Chairman of the Board and 4/4 100
KA A& Non-executive Director

EERFAIFNTES
Mr. YE Weifang Vice Chairman of the Board and 4/4 100
EEFEE Executive Director

BIEERFNTES
Mr. YANG Guang Non-executive Director 4/4 100
B eses HHMITES
Mr. FENG Shuchen Non-executive Director 4/4 100
IS B e HHMITES
Mr. YAN Andrew Y. Non-executive Director 3/3M 100
B EAE HHMITES
Mr. LI Hongyuan Executive Director 4/4 100
FRERE BITES
Ms. WANG Hongyan Executive Director 4/4 100
ErRehi+ BITES
Mr. LU Yanchang Independent Non-executive Director 4/4 100
BEFE S e 4 WY IEITES
Mr. ZHAI Ligong Independent Non-executive Director 4/4 100
B EE BYIEITES
Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony Independent Non-executive Director 4/4 100
SBICERE BYIEITES
Mr. SHI Dinghuan Independent Non-executive Director 3/3M 100
AEREE BYIERTES
Note: Hia -

(1) Because Mr. YAN Andrew Y. and Mr. SHI Dinghuan were
appointed on June 8, 2012, they only attended meetings that
were held after their appointment.

(1) BHRBEEMNATIREER2012
FeH8H Tm thIE2ME T %
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Powers Exercised by the Board and the Management

The powers and duties of the Board and the management
have been clearly defined in the articles of association of
the Company so as to ensure that adequate check-and-
balance is in place for the purpose of maintaining effective
corporate governance and internal control.

The Board is responsible for deciding on the Company’s
business and investment plans, determining the
establishment of the Company’s internal management
structure, issuing the Company’s essential administration
regulations, resolving and approving other material business
and administrative matters of the Company and supervising
the performance of the management.

Led by the President, who is also an executive Director,
the management of the Company is responsible for
implementing the resolutions passed by the Board and
managing the Company’s day-to-day operations.

Chairman and President

The posts of the Chairman of the Board and the President
of the Company (i.e. chief executive officer pursuant to the
relevant Listing Rules) are separated and held by different
persons in order to ensure the independence of their
respective responsibilities, and the balance of power and
authority between them. Mr. ZHU Yongpeng acts as the
Chairman of the Board and Mr. LI Hongyuan acts as the
President. The Rules and Procedures of the Board Meeting
and the Terms of Reference of the Senior Management of
the Company, as considered and approved by the Board,
clearly define the division of duties between the Chairman
and the President.

Mr. ZHU Yongpeng, the Chairman of the Board, is
responsible for leading the Board in determining the overall
development strategies of the Company and ensuring that
the Board effectively performs its duties and discusses
significant and appropriate matters in a timely manner that
the Company establishes effective corporate governance
practices and procedures and that the Board acts in the
best interest of the Company and its shareholders. Mr.
LI Hongyuan, the President of the Company, is mainly
responsible for the Company’s day-to-day operations,
including implementing Board resolutions and making day-
to-day decisions.
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1.6 Appointment and Re-election of Directors 16 ZHREEEE
Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, BE(RAERINRAE S
Directors including the non-executive Directors shall HRRAGEREL BEME
be elected at general meetings with a term of office for A SHBB=F  AEBEfT -
no more than three years and may be re-appointed. RKARERHESNEERET
The Company has established a set of procedures for T EERNEF -HEEFH
appointing new Directors. Nomination of new Directors shall REFEARERRZESHH
be first considered by the nomination committee, whose REBRESSRIAHER
recommendations will then be presented to the Board for WHRREANGERRB -
consideration. All newly nominated Directors are subject to
election and approval at general meetings of shareholders.
Each of the executive Directors and supervisors of the BREBERBEEEEEAR(AFE
Company has entered into a service agreement with the BYWMEE  NAFER20114F
Company, and each of the non-executive Directors has 11A8HE MU RAITEET R E
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company, FANThREWE BESN
on November 28, 2011 (or June 8, 2012, in the case of ERITESRI Y TEEE (KR
Mr. YAN Andrew Y.), in compliance with relevant laws 201246 H8H Ha i #k 5t & 7] 2
and regulations, and the articles of association of the ZEE) - ERBHBEREZESE
Company. Each service agreement or letter of appointment 2011658168 B A (B8 #t 5t
commenced from May 16, 2011 (or June 8, 2012, in the EWMZEEE2012F6 88 H
case of Mr. YAN Andrew Y.), and will expire on May 15, 1) - BHR201456F5 158 fEiR
2014. Each of the independent non-executive Directors has RAREGUE IIFANTES
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company on MR2011F11 28R I £ &
November 28, 2011 (or June 8, 2012, in the case of Mr. SHI (BLA E R ER2012F6 A8H
Dinghuan) which commenced from December 30, 2011 (or RINEIEE)  FEEEB2011
June 8, 2012, in the case of Mr. SHI Dinghuan), and will F12R30H M (A ERTERN
expire on May 15, 2014. ZFE H20126F6 A8A M) -
11201465 158 j&Eim °
1.7 Directors’ Remuneration 1.7 EFFH
The remuneration and assessment committee makes EEZHTMBEERERE  TIELR
recommendations about Directors’ remuneration by taking ERE BFMEExLES
into consideration factors such as educational background REEZ  CRFEASHEHRE
and work experience. The Board determines the Directors’ EFRBEEFLR  TIEXRR -
remuneration by considering Directors’ experiences, work B 75 R s TERE o
performances, positions and market conditions and subject
to approval of the general meeting of shareholders.
2. Board Committees 2. EEgTEZEY®

There are four Board committees, namely the audit committee,
remuneration and assessment committee, nomination committee
and strategic committee.

7
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Audit Committee

The audit committee consists of three Directors: Mr. FAN
Ren Da Anthony (independent non-executive Director), Mr.
ZHAI Ligong (independent non-executive Director) and Mr.
YANG Guang (non-executive Director). Mr. FAN Ren Da
Anthony serves as the chairman of the audit committee.
The primary responsibilities of the audit committee are to
review and supervise the Company’s financial reporting
procedures, including:

o Making proposals in respect of the appointment,
re-appointment or change of the external auditors
to the Board, approving remuneration and terms
of engagement of external auditors, and handling
any issues related to the resignation or dismissal of
external auditors;

. Evaluating and examining the independence
and objectivity of the external auditors and the
effectiveness of the auditing procedures in accordance
with applicable standards;

. Monitoring completeness, accuracy and impartiality
of the financial statements of the Company and the
Company’s accounts, annual reports and and interim
reports and reviewing significant financial reporting
opinions contained in them;

o Reviewing the Company’s financial control, internal
control and risk management systems; and

. Taking necessary measures to ensure that employees
have a channel to raise concerns in an anonymous
manner any possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters.

During the reporting year, the audit committee held two
meetings, details of which are as follows:

On March 22, 2012, the first meeting of the audit committee
of the first session of the Board for 2012 was held, at which
(1) the Company’s 2011 annual report, results announcement
and annual financial statements were considered and
approved; (2) rules and procedures of meetings of the
audit committee were considered and approved; and (3)
the proposed revised annual cap for continuing connected
transactions for 2011 was considered and approved.
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On August 17, 2012, the second meeting of the audit 201258A17THER TE—EE
committee of the first session of the Board for 2012 was EEETEEG012FF X
held, at which (1) the Company’s 2012 interim report EF CHIZARAE: (NE
and interim results announcement were considered and 2B A R2012F E  Hi 3k
approved; (2) the Company’s 2012 interim financial ERFHEENE  QBHT
statements were considered and approved; and (3) the BIA N A120124F £ F B BF 7§ 7R
proposed revised annual caps for continuing connected R UARQEZTBBFAREE
transactions for 2012 and 2013 were considered and BE R E R 52012F E k2013
approved. FELRESENZRE -

All the members of the audit committee attended the above B ZEEg2BZTEAHAEHET

meetings. ez

22 Remuneration and Assessment Committee 22 FWEHEZEERZAE

The remuneration and assessment committee of the Company AR FHEEZZE S

consists of three Directors: Mr. ZHAI Ligong (independent “REEMEK BN E (B

non-executive Director), Mr. ZHU Yongpeng (non-executive SFEHITESE) © RKREE GE

Director) and Mr. LU Yanchang (independent non-executive WITES)MEEELE (B

Director). Mr. ZHAI Ligong serves as the chairman of the FEHITES) cBYINELEB AT

remuneration and assessment committee. The primary =i NN =) Ny = e

responsibilities of the remuneration and assessment committee BeoHFMHEEZZESNETER

are to formulate the standards concerning the assessment of ERHIENHEETRSMER

Directors and senior management, assess the performance of AEREZERHBENRIRE

Directors and senior management, and decide on and review TaMh BT BHESEERSR

remuneration policies and plans concerning Directors and B 12 [E A8 00 B BN BOR REHE

senior management, including: HAaiE -

. Approving and overseeing the total remuneration of . HENEBREENSRE
Directors and senior management; assessing the BABMEEEIN &
performance of senior management and deciding on EREBEABNKRRBLE
and approving the remuneration to be paid to senior ENZAEBIMNTFTERE
management; BAEREH

. Reviewing the remuneration of Directors and making . EMHESEHFMUR Lt RE
corresponding recommendations to the Board of EeREEERE

Directors; and

e Reviewing the remuneration policies, strategies and e FHEZRARMAEEAER
principles of Directors and senior management and B BT M R - SR BE R SR B
making recommendations about it to the Board of Wttt EESREER
Directors. B e

During the reporting year, the remuneration and assessment EARMEFERN HFHEZERZ

committee held one meeting on March 27, 2012, at which ZESHERT —XREFE RN

the remuneration of Directors, supervisors and senior 201263A27TH A A ' BEE LA
management for 2012 and the rules and procedures of BTRRES EEEaRE

meetings of the remuneration and assessment committee HAB2012FEFHMA R R F

were considered and approved. R Ei%ZE & TEMA -

All the members of the remuneration and assessment FMEEZEEeREELEY

committee attended this meeting. HET biliess -
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Nomination Committee

The Company’s nomination committee consists of three
Directors: Mr. LU Yanchang (independent non-executive
Director), Mr. ZHAI Ligong (independent non-executive
Director) and Ms. WANG Hongyan (executive Director). Mr.
LU Yanchang serves as the chairman of the nomination
committee. The primary responsibilities of the Company’s
nomination committee are to formulate the procedures and
standards for nominating candidates for Directors and
senior management, and conduct preliminary review of the
qualifications and other credentials of the candidates for
Directors and senior management.

During the reporting year, the nomination committee held
one meeting on March 27, 2012, at which (1) the proposal
to appoint Mr. SHI Dinghuan as independent non-executive
Director was considered and approved; (2) the proposal to
appoint Mr. YAN Andrew Y. as non-executive Director was
considered and approved; and (3) the rules and procedures
of meetings of the nomination committee were considered
and approved.

All the members of the nomination committee attended this
meeting.

Strategic Committee

The Company’s strategic committee consists of five
Directors: Mr. ZHU Yongpeng (non-executive Director),
Mr. FENG Shuchen (non-executive Director), Mr. YE
Weifang (executive Director), Mr. LI Hongyuan (executive
Director) and Mr. ZHAI Ligong (independent non-executive
Director). Mr. ZHU Yongpeng serves as the chairman of
the strategic committee. The primary responsibilities of
the strategic committee are to formulate the Company’s
overall development plans and investment decision-making
procedures, including:

. Reviewing the Company’s long-term development
strategies;

. Reviewing the Company’s strategic plans and
implementation reports;

o Reviewing significant capital expenditures, investment
and financing projects that require approval of the
Board; and

. Authorizing the President’s office to formulate specific
plans, negotiate and implement relevant review and
approval procedures, execute contracts and relevant
documents, and handle relevant procedures for the
above matters.
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During the reporting year, the strategic committee held two
meetings, details of which are as follows:

On March 27, 2012, the first meeting of the strategic
committee for 2012 was held, at which (1) the proposed
acquisition of 30% equity interest of Jiangsu Longyuan
was considered and approved; (2) the proposed capital
contribution by the Company to Guodian Finance was
considered and approved; and (3) the proposed acquisition
of 70% equity interest of Galaxy Water by Lucency was
considered and approved.

On August 24, 2012, the second meeting of the strategic
committee for 2012 was held, at which (1) the proposal to
adjust the Company’s organization structure was considered
and approved; and (2) the proposed capital contribution to
United Power was considered and approved.

All the members of the strategic committee attended these
two meetings.

Director’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended December
31, 2012.

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear and
understandable assessment of 2012 financial statements and
other issues required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules
and other supervisory provisions. The management has provided
such explanations and information to the Board as necessary to
enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
information and position of the Group which is to be reviewed and
approved by the Board.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

In addition, appropriate insurance coverage for Directors’ liabilities
has been arranged against possible legal proceedings to be
taken against the Directors.
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Compliance with the Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct and rules governing
dealings by its Directors and supervisors in the securities of the
Company. After specific enquiries were made by the Company
to them, all Directors and supervisors of the Company have
confirmed that they have strictly complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers during the reporting year.

To ensure the compliance with relevant requirements under the
Listing Rules and to protect shareholders’ interests, the Board will
examine the corporate governance practices and the operations
of the Company from time to time.

Internal Control

The Company has attached prime importance to internal control.
An internal control system has been established to protect
shareholders’ and the Company’s interests.

The Company has set up a set of internal control rules, including
“Rules and Procedures of the Board Meeting”, “Rules and
Procedures of Meetings of the Audit Committee”, “Rules and
Procedures of Meetings of Remuneration and Assessment
Committee”, “Provisions on Information Disclosure”, “Rules on the
Conduct of Connected Transactions”, “Tentative Risk Management
Framework”, “Template for Regular Declaration Requirement by
the Directors and Senior Management”, “Terms of Reference
of the Senior Management of the Company”, “Interim Measures
on Anti-Corruption, Complaints and Reports” and “Management
System of Internal Audit”.

In order to monitor and regulate potential insider trading activities,
ensure confidentiality insider information, the Company has
established a set of “Management Rules on the Conduct of
Insider Trading of Guodian Technology & Environment Group
Corporation Limited” in accordance with the Company Law of the
PRC, Securities and Futures Ordinance, Listing Rules and other
relevant laws and regulations and the articles of association of the
Company.

The Company has also established the Finance and Property
Department, the Audit Department and the Supervision
Department and put on sufficient personnel in each department in
charge of financial operations, risk management, internal auditing
and anti-corruption. Besides, the Company has provided regular
trainings at its own expenses to the Group’s employees whose
duties relate to finance, risk management and internal auditing so
as to ensure that they are well qualified and experienced.
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Each department of the Company has the channel to submit to
the Board information requested. Being the most senior point
of contact for each department of the Company, the President
has the duty to effectively report to the Board in relation to the
operations of each department, and to coordinate and mobilize
the demands of each department to promote reasonable decision-
making within the Company.

During the reporting year, the Board assessed the internal
control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries and was
not aware of any material weaknesses nor any material defaults
with respect of financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management. The Board believes that the current
monitoring system of the Company is effective and considers
that the resources, qualifications and experiences of the staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions, its
training programs and budgets thereof are adequate.

Auditors and Remuneration

KPMG and RSM China Public Accountants Co., Ltd. were
appointed as auditors for the financial statements prepared in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards
and the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises of PRC for
the year ended December 31, 2012, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the fees payable to
KPMG and RSM China Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd.
for audit services were RMB9,600,000 and RMB3,300,000
respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the fee payable to KPMG
for non-audit service related to the review of the Company’s
interim financial report was RMB4,320,000. RSM China Certified
Public Accountants Co., did not provide any non-auditing service
for the year ended December 31, 2012.

KMPG, the Company’s external auditor's responsibilities to the
financial statements are set out on pages 142 to 143 of this
Annual Report.

The Company plans to present the proposal of re-appointing
KMPG and RSM China Certified Public Accountant Co., Ltd. as
the auditors of the Company to the annual general meeting of
shareholders which is to be convened.
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7. Communications with Shareholders

The Company highly appreciates shareholders’ opinions and
advice, actively organizes various investor relations-related
activities to maintain connections with shareholders and makes
timely responses to reasonable requests of shareholders.

7.1

Convening Extraordinary General Meetings by Shareholders

According to the articles of association of the Company,
two or more shareholders holding in aggregate more than
10% of the shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting
sought to be held shall sign one or more counterpart
requisitions requiring the Board of Directors to convene an
extraordinary general meeting and stating the objectives of
the meeting. The Board of Directors shall, in accordance with
the requirements of laws and regulations and the articles of
association of the Company, furnish a written reply stating
its agreement or disagreement to convene the extraordinary
general meeting within ten days upon receipt of such
requisition. If the Board of Directors agrees to convene the
extraordinary general meeting, a notice for convening the
extraordinary general meeting shall be issued within five days
upon adoption of the resolution by the Board of Directors.

If the Board of Directors does not agree to convene the
extraordinary general meeting, or if it fails to give its
feedback in writing within ten days upon receipt of such
requisition, shareholders individually or jointly holding an
aggregate of more than 10% of the shares carrying the
right to vote at the meeting sought to be held shall be
entitled to propose to the board of supervisors to convene
an extraordinary general meeting, and shall submit its
proposal in writing to the board of supervisors. If the board
of supervisors agrees to convene the extraordinary general
meeting, a notice for convening such meeting shall be
issued within five days upon receipt of such requisition.

If the board of supervisors fails to issue a notice for such
meeting within the prescribed period, the board of supervisors
shall be deemed not to convene and preside at the meeting,
and shareholders individually or jointly holding an aggregate
of more than 10% of the shares of the Company for more than
90 consecutive days themselves may convene and preside at
the meeting at their own discretion.

If the Board of Directors does not issue a notice of meeting
within 30 days upon receipt of the aforesaid written
requisition, the requisitioning shareholders themselves may
convene such a meeting according to procedures as similar
as possible to that in which general meeting are to be
convened by the Board of Directors within four months from
the date of receipt of the requisition by the Board of Directors.
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7.2

7.3

7.4

Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

According to the articles of association of the Company,
when the Company convenes an annual general meeting,
shareholders individually or jointly holding more than 3% of
the shares of the Company shall have the right to propose
motions. Shareholders holding more than 3% of the shares
of the Company shall have the right to propose ad hoc
motions in writing, and the Company shall include matters
in the proposed ad hoc motions within the scope of duties
and responsibilities of the general meetings on the agenda,
if the criteria as specified in the articles of association of the
Company are met.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

According to the articles of association of the Company, all
Directors shall attend general meetings. Shareholders may
present enquiries to the Board of Directors at such general
meetings. If shareholders need to contact the Board for
enquiries, they are also welcomed to send enquiries directly
to the Company at its principal place of business in the
PRC, contact details of which are as follows:

Attention: Board Office

Address: Suite 1101, 11th Floor, Building No.1,
Block No. 16, Xi Si Huan Zhong Road,
Haidian District, Beijing, PRC

Postal code: 100039

Telephone: 010-5765 7777

Fax: 010-5765 9705

Email: khdg@kh.cgdc.com.cn

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit
and send the original duly signed written enquiry or
correspondence of any type to the above address, and
provide full name, contact details and identification in order
to give effect thereto.

Disseminating Information through the Internet

In order to promote good corporate governance and
transparency, the Group uses its website (www.01296.
hk) as a medium to disseminate information. The Group
implements procedures to vet information which is to be put
on its website and also monitors its website to ensure that
all published information is up-to-date and accurate.
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7.5 Overseas Regulatory Announcement

As Yantai Longyuan Power Technology Co., Ltd, a subsidiary
of the Company, is a public company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, the Group has complied with the
requirements regarding overseas regulatory announcements
in accordance with Rule 13.09(2) of Listing Rules.

Furthermore, the Group has also complied with the
requirements regarding overseas regulatory announcements
in relation to its bonds offering on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange in accordance with Rule 13.09(2) of Listing Rules
in this regard.

Company Secretary

Mr. TANG Dejun and Mr. WONG Ki Yan Davhen are the internal
joint company secretaries of the Company. Please refer to the
Section headed “Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
— Joint Company Secretaries” for further information.

The Company’s joint company secretaries had complied with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules during 2012.

Amendments to the articles of association

As adopted as special resolutions at the 2011 annual general
meeting held on June 8, 2012, the articles of association of
the Company was amended. The amendments to the articles
of association of the Company included, among other matters,
certain changes in the corporate information of the Company,
including changes in business scope of the Company, changes
in the registered capital of the Company, and changes in the
number of H Shares of the Company as a result of the partial
exercise of the over-allotment option and the increase in the
size of the Board. For details of the amendments to the article of
association of the Company, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated April 30, 2012.

The Management of Price Sensitive Information

In order to promote fairness, transparency, accountability and
responsibility, which are the core principles of good corporate
governance, the Group assisted by compliance advisors and
legal advisors has notified the Exchange and has disclosed to
shareholders and other holders of its listed securities as soon
as practicable of any price sensitive information of the Group
pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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SUMMARY OF HUMAN RESOURCES
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As of December 31, 2012, the Group had a total of 10,928 staff, of
which 8,334 or 76.3% were male while 2,594 or 23.7% were female. The
staff structure is as follows:

Table 1: Analysis of the Group’s staff by business function

Number of
No. Business Function Staff Percentage
Fi 2 A ke i
1 Centralized Management 97 0.9%
BEER
2 Wind power business 4,027 36.8%
[7E 7
3 Coal power business 2,635 24.1%
NEER
4 Technical and related 1,986 18.2%
services business
B4 K A8 8 AR 745 2E 75
5 Other renewable energy 2,183 20.0%
H B B A BE )R
Total 10,928 100.0%
ki

Table 2: Analysis of the Group’s staff by academic qualification

Number of
No. Academic Qualification Staff Percentage
Fi BE AB 4]
1 Postgraduate or above 880 8.1%
R4 RIA £
2 Undergraduate 3,586 32.8%
RNERE
3 College diploma 2,703 24.7%
ANEHFE
4 Technical secondary school 3,759 34.4%
or below
FERT
Total 10,928 100.0%
&t

HR2012% 128318 » AEBEHEET110,928
% HPRBEET8334A  1576.3% LB T
2,594 A - 1523.7% > ABBRBERWT :

K-  FAEEREBRIBESINE TN

20.0% 0.9%

_i Centralized Management _j Technical and

BEEe related services business
@ Wind power business s R AR R AR 2% A5
REBER i Other renewable energy
Hfth AT A BER

i Coal power business

REET

R AEEREBEESNEIAIN

8.1%

34.4%
32.8%

24.7%

4 Postgraduate or above  College diploma

REERIAE RBHER
« Undergraduate . Technical secondary school
REBARR or below
FERIAT
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Table 3: Analysis of the Group’s staff by age

Number of

No. Age Staff Percentage

FiE FiR A 4]

1 55 years and above 252 2.3%
55p% M A

2 46 - 54 years 721 6.6%
46-545%

3 36 - 45 years 1,859 17.0%
36-455%

4 35 years and below 8,096 74.1%
35p% AR
Total 10,928 100.0%
i

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had a total of 97 staff. The

staff structure is as follows:

Table 4: Analysis of the Company’s staff by academic qualification

Number of
No. Academic Qualification Staff Percentage
Fi  BE AB e 41
1 Postgraduate or above 34 35.1%
o R EA |
2 Undergraduate 48 49.5%
K BAR
3 College diploma 11 11.3%
REHFE
4 Technical secondary school 4 4.1%
or below
FERIAT
Total 97 100.0%

it
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1l
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2.3%

6.6%

1 55 years and above i 36 -45years
5588 LA | 36-455%

1 46 - 54 years M 35 years and below
46-5475% 5B
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Table 5: Analysis of the Company’s staff by age

Number of

No. Age Staff Percentage

FiE FER A 4]

1 55 years and above 6 6.2%
5557 & A

2 46 - 54 years 15 15.5%
46-547%,

& 36 - 45 years 27 27.8%
36-455%

4 35 years and below 49 50.5%
35p% AR
Total 97 100.0%
&t

Staff Performance Appraisal

In order to meet its development needs, and aiming to become
a top-tier clean energy high-tech enterprise, the Group has been
actively exploring a practical, customized and sustainable innovation
mechanism for a high-tech enterprise in the power industry. The Group
has focused on quality and efficiency, constantly reinforced its staff's
competitiveness awareness, market awareness and cost-efficiency
awareness, and improved the Company’s value adding capability.
In addition to its existing position-based accountability system, the
Group has established and perfected an effective mechanism for staff
performance appraisal and management, and also implemented an all-
staff performance appraisal. The Group has implemented the approach
of both incentivization and discipline, by maintaining a clear division of
duties, identification of the performance targets for different positions,
formulation of performance standards, appraisal of staff performance
in an objective and accurate manner, stimulation of the potential and
enthusiasm of the employees.
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SUMMARY OF HUMAN RESOURCES
ADERER

Staff Training

Envisioning the Group’s future development and talents needs, the
Group has established a sound staff training system in a bid to duly
implement the strategy of strengthening the enterprise by attracting and
retaining talents, and standardize and strengthen the education and
training systems of the Group’s employees. The Group has formulated
and implemented training plans and programs tailored for management,
technical and skilled personnel.

In 2012, the Group continued its effort in training all kinds of talents
by providing its staff with various forms of training, primarily including
regular trainings for management, orientation training for new staff,
licensed induction training for operating and maintaining staff in power
stations, professional qualification training, international cooperation
training programme and others. 6,908 employees attended these
trainings during the year, representing more than 63.2% of the total
staff.

The Company has laid a solid foundation for building the platform of talent
training and appraisal of occupational skills through the establishment of
“the Lecture Hall of Guodian Tech”. Through continuous development of
various training courses, the Group has increasingly improved staff quality,
reinforced the modern management concept among its management and
enhanced the overall management efficiency.

Employee Remuneration Policy

The employee remuneration of the Group comprises of basic salary,
performance payment and bonus payment. Performance payment is
made reference to the Company’s financial results and the performance
appraisal on the individual employee. The bonus payment is made with
reference to the level of completion of the Company’s annual major tasks.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STRATEGY

AND MANAGEMENT
HTEETEKETE

Since its inception, the Company has made substantial efforts to fulfill
its corporate social responsibilities, by promoting sustainable growth
within the Group and in the society. The Company emphasizes the
importance of energy conservation and environmental protection as part
of its corporate culture, and incorporates such concept into its daily
business operation.

Today, the global economy still remains in a state of adjustment after
the financial crisis, which is expected to have a long-term impact.
Meanwhile, developed countries are implementing the strategy of re-
establishing its manufacturing industry. The third industry revolution is
gaining momentum with the development of internet and new energy.
Faced with these challenges and to adapt to fast-changing market
environments, the Company focuses its corporate social responsibilities
on the following aspects: (1) innovation and development of new
technology; (2) development of alternative energy, energy conservation,
and low-carbon technologies; (8) participation in social welfare
activities; and (4) promotion of anti-corruption efforts as well as
conducting business with honesty and integrity.

Proactive Participation in the National Technological
Innovation and R&D Projects for Environmental Protection
and Energy Conservation and Renewable Energy
Technologies

As one of the state-owned enterprises, the Company, since its inception,
has been proactively participating in multiple national technological
innovation and R&D projects and made significant contribution to
the development of the PRC’s environmental protection and energy
conservation and renewable energy related technologies. The Company
always considers enhancing independent innovation capability as its
core development strategy, and has promoted the development of
industries related to national energy security and sustainable growth of
the Chinese society.

In addition, the Company regards the industrial application of new
technologies as a significant part of the R&D activities. The Group
proactively participated in national scientific research projects with
significant practical value such as the 863 Program and the 973 Project.
Major technology breakthroughs achieved by the Group’s R&D projects
have successfully eliminated the monopoly in such areas which were
once enjoyed by multinational corporations from developed countries,
and contributed significantly to the upgrade of the power industry in the
PRC.
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Promotion of A Greener Society

Aiming to become a global leading provider of integrated green power
solutions, the Company endeavors to improve environmental quality and
energy efficiency, energy conservation and use of renewable energy,
such as wind power and solar power. The Group has implemented a set
of standard procedures in its operations. At the preliminary stage of the
projects, The Company undertakes cautious environmental protection
assessment so as to avoid negative impact on environment. During the
construction and operation stage of each project, the Company also
implements necessary and appropriate measures for environmental
protection. The Company has greatly contributed to the cleaner
production of the power industry in the PRC, which in turn boosts the
harmonic development of economy, society and ecologic environment
of China, and helps promote energy efficiency and emission reduction
initiatives in the PRC and around the world.

The Company considers raising public awareness about energy
conservation and environmental protection as part of its corporate
social responsibilities. In order to build a greener society, the Company
established the Guodian Science and Technology Exhibition Hall (the
“Exhibition Hall”) in its headquarters in Beijing. More than 4,000 people
from various walks of life such as governmental agencies, social
organizations, companies and schools have visited the Exhibition Hall in
2012. The Exhibition Hall was designed to educate the public about the
importance of energy conservation and low-carbon footprint lifestyle.
Such exhibitions have received high regards among the participants
and built up the Group’s brand image as a green and socially
responsible high-tech corporation.

Environmental Protection

Longyuan Environmental, a subsidiary of the Company, is committed to
the denitrification and desulfurication of thermal power plants. Its total
SO, emission control capacity for the 24 concession projects which
were operational for the whole year was approximately 70,000 tons,
and the annual emission reduction reached 928,100 tons, which was a
great contribution to the state and thermal power industry’s air pollutant
emission reduction. The adverse effect on environment protection can
be avoided if the emission is in line with the protocol during production.
For example, if the exhaust is released into the air after being purified
by the desulfurication system, the amount of SO,, which is as a major
pollutant in exhaust emission, will be decreased from 2,000mg/m3
before desulfurication to 100mg/m3 (based on the 1% sulfur content).

The water from the Company’s sewage treatment plants was released
after meeting the emission standard, or utilized by industrial enterprise
such as power plants after receiving further renewable treatment.
Industrial sewage and household sewage produced by sewage
treatment plants were collected into the sewage treatment system and
contained, causing no pollution to the environment. The Company’s
sewage treatment plants treated organic pollutants from exhaust
pollutant with oxidative decomposition, and released them after meeting
the required standard. With respect to solid wastes, residual sludge is
normally buried or utilized as fertilization in farmland after treatment,
and other solid wastes such as sediment and grit are shipped to refuse
landfills to be buried.
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Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction

Longyuan Technology, one of the Company’s subsidiaries, was
responsible for plasma ignition of over 600 thermal power generators,
saving over 10 million tons of oil, and its low-NOx combustion
technology significantly reduced the emission of NOx. Solid wastes
produced during the equipment manufacturing were contained
for comprehensive treatment, or handled by delegated third-party
renewable resource companies. There was no sewage emission from
production; household sewage was released into the local municipal
sewage network and handled collectively. Minor flue gas was purified
by portable ash purifying machines (effective rate over 95%), and the
total annual emission was no more than 8 kilograms.

In 2012, Guodian Longyuan Power Technology and Engineering Co.,
Ltd., one of the Company’s subsidiaries, executed 27 EMC contracts.
By the end of 2012, the cumulative amount of standard coal saved
was 500,000 tons and the amount of CO, emission reduced was
approximately 1.2 million tons.

Wind Turbine Manufacturing and Emission Reduction

The sewage from the wind turbine production of the Group’s production
bases in Jiangsu, Neimenggu, Jilin, and Hebei provinces was
released into the local municipal sewage treatment plant and handled
collectively; solid waste pollutant was handled and reused by third
party; ventilation systems with activated carbon treatment were installed
at the air pollutant sources to eliminate the pollution to the environment.
Other wastes were sold to metal recycle companies for recycling
puUrposes.

Work Place Safety and Employee Health

The Company has continuingly implemented the PRC laws and
regulations and standards on safe production and occupational
hazard, and continuingly promoted and improved the work environment
management and the occupational health and safety management
system. The Company has created for its employees a working
environment that meets the PRC safety and sanitary standard and
requirements. By providing qualified labor protection products,
preventing, controlling and eliminating occupational hazards, the
Company has safeguarded its employee’s health and relevant rights.

In order to strengthen the occupational health supervision and
management in each of the Group’s work sites, the Company has
established safety, occupational health assurance system. Each front-
line operational unit has taken the following measures:

1. Compiling the hazard causations list and the major hazard
causations list, and implementing tailored measures and
management plans for each hazard causation, especially major
hazard causations;
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2. Regularly organizing employees to take trainings on occupational
health maintenance and occupational hazard prevention, and
promoting employees’ self-protection awareness;

&, Developing and improving the work environment of the work site;

4. Organizing employees to take physical examinations on a regular
basis according to supervision and management measures; and

5 Proactively cooperating with relevant government authorities to
work on the prevention of contagious diseases.

Contribution to Social Welfare and Participation in the
Development of Local Economy

While aiming to maximize shareholders’ return, the Company is also
always devoted to promoting the society well-being and development,
pushing forward sustainable development of the Group, the Chinese
society and the environment. The Company’s subsidiaries and
associates are located all around the PRC, which have implemented
the Company’'s community service spirit and proactively participated
in the development of local economy by working with local enterprises
operated in the related industries. Through its local subsidiaries, the
Company has played a proactive role in further diversifying the local
industrial structure, stimulating the local employment and promoting the
progress of urbanization. In 2012 alone, the Group undertook numerous
social welfare activities, such as sponsoring infrastructure construction
of remote communities, blood donation, investment in and donation
to education and elderly care services, tree planting volunteering,
as its efforts in constructing a harmonic environment and driving the
development of local economy.

In addition, the Company organized a series of regularly held internal
lectures named Guodian Tech Forum to prompt the concept of
good corporate governance and corporate culture and to assist the
staffs to understand new governmental policies. It became a cultural
brand of the Company. “Guodian Tech Forum” promoted in-depth
communications and interactions among the employees, whose active
participation in developing and promoting the Company’s company
culture has become a strong factor in the steady development of the
Company.

The PRC Government has set a target that during the “12th Five-Year
Plan”, 95% of the populations in Tibet will have access to electricity.
To support such initiative, the Company, via its subsidiary Beijing
Huadian Tianren, conducted research and survey in Tibet in 2012 with
the support of the local government. After a thorough consideration
and evaluation of the area’s fragile ecological systems and traffic
inconvenience, the Group decided to use the micro-grid technologies to
minimize the environment impact and to optimize the power supply. In
2012, the Group constructed five micro-grid projects in Tibet with a total
capacity of 230 kW. More than 1,400 people in Tibet benefited from
these projects and have been able to use electricity ever since.
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Promoting Anti<orruption System and Advocating
Integrity and Honesty

Since its inception, the Company has attached importance to the
promotion of anti-corruption and integrity promotion system, formulated
and improved ten sets of anti-corruption and integrity promotion rules
such as the Implementation Rules for the Conducts of the Company
Management, the Administrative Measures for Supervision on
Company’s Efficiency, the Administrative Measures for Supervision on
Company’s Bidding.

In August 2012, Company’s discipline inspection and supervision
personnel participated in the workshop for discipline inspection and
supervision personnel of state-own enterprises, which was arranged
by the disciplinary supervision department of the Central Discipline
Inspection Commission of the Communist Party of China. The systematic
training improved the competency and skills of discipline inspection
and supervision personnel in performing their duties in accordance
with relevant laws and regulations. Furthermore, the Company held
two lectures on integrity and honesty promotion, at which the general
counsel of the Group and the deputy chief procurator of Beijing
People’s Procuratorate were invited to lecture on performance of duties
and prevention of duty-related crimes for management in state-owned
enterprises. Meanwhile, the Company follows the routine supervision
and inspection and aims to eliminate corruptions and misconducts
at the early stage. The Company’s inspection and audit department
supervises important functions such as project bidding and sourcing
procurement. A comprehensive efficiency supervision and inspection
has been conducted within the Company to timely discover and fix
the loopholes and weaknesses in management and suggestions on
supervision and inspection have been raised to effectively avoid any
potential risks.

In order to strengthen the discipline inspection and supervision function,
in June 2012, the Company divided the former supervision and audit
department into supervision department (disciplinary office) and audit
department, and appointed two specialized disciplinary inspection
officer. The Company believes that it has laid a solid foundation for the
disciplinary and prevention system.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited

(a joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China
with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Guodian
Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 144 to
296, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets
as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS (CONTINUED)

BYGZHMRE (F)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2013
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
CRiL &

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # Z=2012F12A31H L F[E
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JA A R#5I5R)

2012 2011
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR TR AREFT
Revenue PN 4 21,776,510 18,706,980
Cost of sales $HE KA (18,395,929) (15,924,329)
Gross profit EF 3,380,581 2,782,651
Other revenue LN 5 468,372 352,022
Other net (losses)/income HAth (F518) /R aF 58 5 (5,633) 278,276
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAXT (680,604) (634,980)
Administrative expenses THRAX (1,290,839) (1,115,463)
Profit from operations P —F e 1,871,877 1,662,506
Finance costs B 7% P AR 6 (642,815) (415,442)
Share of profits less losses of associates &5 B & A &) 18w s 18 34,843 24,510
Profit before taxation AR 7 1,263,905 1,271,574
Income tax FriS i 8 (229,934) (107,161)
Profit for the year AN EFE 1,033,971 1,164,413
Profit attributable to: FERER :
Equity shareholders/owners RARERSRRR A& 692,947 840,681
of the Company
Non-controlling interests IR R 2 341,024 323,732
Profit for the year AN F R 5E 1,033,971 1,164,413
Basic and diluted earnings EREARBERRA (AR¥SD) 13 11.4 17.3

per share (RMB cents)

The notes on page 155 to 296 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & Z=2012F 12 A31H It FE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JA A R¥3I5R)

2012 2011
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B E AR®TR ARET T
Profit for the year 7 F 1,033,971 1,164,413
Other comprehensive income for TEHMEE W (BE) 12
the year (after tax)
Exchange differences on translation of ~ & A RHEME ([HE]) (135) (153)
financial statements of operations BINEB IS MEREER
outside the People’s Republic of China [ & =%
(the “PRC”)
Available-for-sale securities: Al E A (23,958) =
net movement in the fair value reserve AR BEBERNFES
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (24093) (159)
Total comprehensive income RELGERELE 1,009,878 1,164,260
for the year
Attributable to: BEN:
Equity shareholders/owners RABERKRE /FTEE 668,854 840,528
of the Company
Non-controlling interests IEFE IS HE = 341,024 323,732
Total comprehensive income EEFREWNFHAE 1,009,878 1,164,260

for the year

The notes on page 155 to 296 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

SHEERER

As at 31 December 2012 2012412 H31H

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JA A R#5I5R)

2012 2011
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR TR ARETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB KRERE 14 12,896,669 10,055,273
Investment properties Ea ek 7/ 15 364,497 258,392
Lease prepayments B L E 16 933,527 885,349
Intangible assets EmRAE 17 1,170,999 648,719
Goodwill (EES 18 57,591 7,082
Interests in associates HEENRWIEE 20 478,011 291,998
Other equity investments HtE=mRE 21 329,821 112,255
Other non-current assets HM3ERBEE 22 3,864,187 2,297,352
Deferred tax assets BEMIEEE 32(b) 249,765 174,538
Total non-current assets kRBEELTE 20,345,067 14,730,958
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 23 3,306,934 7,488,905
Gross amounts due from customers B EEER R FEHRIEEEE 24 1,946,700 1,638,456
for contract work
Trade and bills receivables JRE W BR TR B R AB: 25 14,260,723 9,925,578
Deposits, prepayments and R - BN FRIE & H i fE YR IE 26 1,794,711 1,139,902
other receivables
Tax recoverable A] Uy [a] 7 18 32(a) 49,646 127,962
Restricted deposits IR H1F 5K 27 399,119 436,222
Cash at bank and in hand RITEALEFRS 28 4,192,787 6,567,715
Total current assets mEEEHAE 25,950,620 27,324,740
Current liabilities REBEE
Borrowings BN 29(b) 9,823,411 10,938,282
Trade and bills payables FET R R R iR 30 12,276,725 12,644,926
Other payables H fth & 5 R 31 3,864,609 4,807,775
Gross amounts due to customers ENEEERE P RIBRE 24 644,845 518,044
for contract work
Income tax payable e TS R 32(a) 72,574 126,058
Provision for warranty BiReEE 33 80,920 83,578
Total current liabilities REEEAE 26,763,084 29,118,663
Net current liabilities REBAEFE (812,464) (1,793,923)
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBDAE 19,532,603 12,937,035

The notes on page 155 to 296 form part of these financial statements. 1552296 E MM At EM B HmEN—F o o



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
aHEERER(H)

As at 31 December 2012 A2012%F12 831 H

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JA A R#E5I7R)

2012 2011
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® T ARET T
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Borrowings R 29(a) 6,366,579 1,138,728
Deferred income R JE WY 25 34 331,239 306,072
Deferred tax liabilities FEIERIBEE 32(b) 95,670 —
Provision for warranty BIReEE 33 508,821 391,868
Other non-current liabilities HEMIERBERE 35 89,168 104,288
Total non-current liabilities *npeaEesE 7,391,477 1,940,956
NET ASSETS EEFH 12,141,126 10,996,079
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRF#E
Share capital % 7 36(c) 6,063,770 5,942,500
Reserves fEfE 3,218,114 2,829,046
Total equity attributable to the equity BREANFEZBRRNEDERE 9,281,884 8,771,546
shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests FERERS 2,859,242 2,224,533
TOTAL EQUITY e 12,141,126 10,996,079

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28

March 2013.

fﬂ;‘ -

Mr. LI Hongyuan
ZREREE
Director

EZ

The notes on page 155 to 296 form part of these financial statements.
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Ms. WANG Hongyan

E ] oaes

Director

EZ
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BALANCE SHEET

EERER

As at 31 December 2012 2012412 H31H

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JA A R#5I5R)

2012 2011
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® T ARET T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB KRERE 14 1,277,888 1,470,461
Investment properties 1B 15 1,004,623 877,507
Intangible assets B A E 10,244 597
Investments in subsidiaries HWBARMKE 19 4,996,824 3,769,824
Interests in associates HELE N R E 20 63,116 63,116
Other equity investments HtE=mRE 21 325,104 107,538
Other non-current assets HEtIERBEE 22 158,143 157,380
Total non-current assets *npEELE 7,835,942 6,446,423
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 880 =
Gross amounts due from customers JEWRESRR P RIARZE 24 — 10,554
for contract work
Trade and bills receivables JE W AR R B R R 25 292,709 158,772
Deposits, prepayments and B - B ETE N E b fE U FRIE 26 8,173,584 3,729,608
other receivables
Restricted deposits PR Il 17 3K 303 55
Cash at bank and in hand RITFERREFRS 28 1,404,688 2,648,118
Total current assets rBaE®f® 9,872,164 6,547,107
Current liabilities REBAE
Borrowings &= 29(b) 3,895,978 4,170,000
Trade and bills payables FETRR AR R R R 30 19,503 104,973
Other payables H b JE - 3008 31 2,170,075 1,081,892
Total current liabilities n@mRfes® 0 6,085,556 @~ 5,356,865
Net current assets rBeEF® 3,786,608 A 1,190,242
Total assets less current liabilities BEERARBERE 11,622,550 7,636,665

The notes on page 155 to 296 form part of these financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
EEAEXR(A)

As at 31 December 2012 p22012F12A31H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R¥3I7R)

2012 2011
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR TR ARET T
Non-current liabilities FREBES
Borrowings R 29(a) 4,356,106 640,000
Total non-current liabilities kRBEBELHE 4,356,106 640,000
NET ASSETS EEFRHE 7,266,444 6,996,665
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARFE 36(a)
Share capital % 7 6,063,770 5,942,500
Reserves Eii] 1,202,674 1,054,165
TOTAL EQUITY B 7,266,444 6,996,665

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28
March 2013.

ﬁj -

Mr. LI Hongyuan
FRERE
Director

EF

The notes on page 155 to 296 form part of these financial statements.

BEEN2013F3 A28 8 b K HAE )% -

Ms. WANG Hongyan
IRE L+
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SOtEEEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & Z£2012F 12 A318 ILFfE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JA A R#515R)

Attributable to equity shareholdersiowners of the Company

BEANARERE/ ek
Paid-in
capital/ PRC Non-
share Capital statutory ~ Exchange  Fair value Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests equity
LU il R FER Bk

E5/R% EXffE  ieiEe Eint  BERG BEAR M | 53 a5
RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RVBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  AMBOOO  RMBOOO
AREBTT  ARETT  ARETn  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETn  ARETR
Note 36(c)  Note 36(c)() Note 36(c)(i) Note 36(d)(i) Note 36(d)(iv)
Wit alc) K SB()) B oelo)i) B aela)i) B 36(d)iv)

Balance at 1 January 2011 FIA1ALR 4,822,590 309,583 22,781 (363) — 1002585 6167176 1942855 8,100,031

Changes in equity for 2011; WHEERSL:

Profit for the year AERIE = = = = = 840,681 840,681 303732 1164413
Other comprehensive income A ka = = = (153) = = (153) - (153)

Total comprehensive income REGRNGEE - - - (153) = 840,681 840,528 323732 1,164,260
for the year

Capital contributions HIER = = = = = = = 213,995 213,995

Conversion into a joint stock EHlARHERAT 27,410 14,347 (13,638) = = (28,119) = = =
company with limited liability

Appropriation 8% = = 31,367 = = (31,367) = = =

Issuance of shares by iniial BREAARAREARD 1092500 676912 = = = — 1769412 — 1769412
public offering

Dilution of equity interest HERRRENRE = 4430 = = = = 4430 (4,430) —
in a subsidiary

Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - = = = = = —  (11622%6)  (116226)

Dividends paid by subsidiariesto B A RMEERiER = - - - - - — (135309 (135393)

non-controlling equity owners TS

Balance at 31 December 2011 11512831 A48 5,942,500 1,005,272 40,510 (516) — 1783780 8771546 2224533  10996,079

The notes on page 155 to 296 form part of these financial statements. 1552296 E MM At EM B HmEN—F o o



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED

A L =

A 1#%&1@5’]% (n\ﬁ)
For the year ended 31 December 2012 # ZE20124F 123311 It F /&
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R¥3I7R)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

BREAIRERR
PRC Non-
Share Capital statutory ~ Exchange  Fair value Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests equity
# A FER B&
R&  EARE  iEAEE  ERBE  EERE  EEAE Mg Bi 3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETn  ARETn  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn
Note 36(c) ~ Note 36(d)(i) Note 36(d)(ii) Note 36(d)(ii) Note 36(d)iv)
Hisk 36(c)  P3E 36(d))  MHsk S6(a)i)  YEE 36(oli) FiEE 36(d)v)
Balance at 1 January 2012 01251A1B &8 5,942,500 1,005,272 40,510 (516) - 1,783,780 8,771,546 2,024,533 10,996,079
Changes in equity for 2012; 0125 EHE:
Profit for the year REFE - - - - - 692,947 692,947 341,024 1,033,971
Other comprehensive income A Aks - - - (135) (23,058) - (24,093) - (24,093)
Total comprehensive KEGANSEE - - - (135)  (28958) 692947 668854 341,04 1,009878
income for the year
Capital contributions gmEnR - - - - - - - 202,205 202,205
Appropriation Bl - - 41,762 - - (41,762) - - -
Issuance of shares (note 36(c)(if)) &7 (P zE36(c)i) 121,270 70,705 - - - - 191,975 - 191,975
Dilution of equity interest KEARRENRE - 2677 - - - - 2677 (2,677) -
in a subsidiary
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENEAA - - - - - - - 325,153 325,153
(note 41(a) & (b)) (M 41(2)a(b))
Acquisition of non-controlling W RER - (14,885) - - - - (14,885) (30,172) (45,057)
interests (note 41(c)) (GEAI0)
Special dividend (note 36(b)) FAIAR 2 (i 236(b)) - - - - - (338,283  (338,283) - (338,283
Dividends paid by subsidiaries to B A Elm3EERiEs - - - - - - —  (200824)  (200,824)
non-controlling equity owners el
Balance at 31 December 2012 21251231 A& 6,063,770 1,063,769 82,212 (651) (23,958) 2,096,662 9,281,884 2859242 12,141,126

The notes on page 155 to 296 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
BHESRER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # Z=2012F12A31H L F[E
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JA A R#5I5R)

2012 2011
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i AR¥ETR AR®BF T
Cash flows from operating activities REQETBNRER
Profit before taxation 75t B A1 1,263,905 1,271,574
Adjustments for: HER:
Depreciation E 7(b) 602,494 438,575
Amortisation B 7(b) 66,673 40,210
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BB kEE(KE) 5 (208) 163
plant and equipment /BB
Net loss from changes in fair value ARBEZYERFE 5 - 1,449
Impairment loss on trade and JFE LT B 0 e L At e W R OE 7(b) 43,185 45,351
other receivables BB
Write down of inventories FEHOA 23(b) 66,467 —
Finance costs B 75 B AR 6 642,815 415,442
Foreign exchange loss/(gain), net bE 5 B8 (W) 558 5 17,561 (21,835)
Interest income B A 5 (90,645) (84,975)
Government grants BT 78 B (67,484) (11,232)
Dividend income from unquoted FEmERZEFAHRIBA 5 (15,816) (6,041)
equity securities
Net gain on disposal of associates HEBEQRAMKEFE 5 - (145,325)
Net gain on disposal of unquoted &I E R IR A W E R EE 5 — (109)
equity investments
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of HERBRRAEE, (W) 5 31,451 (97,312)
subsidiaries EEE
Share of profits less losses of associates FEIGE: = R B R HRE 8 (34,843) (24,510)
Changes in working capital: 2EEEMEIL
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BEERY,/(Em) 4,138,002 (455,146)
Increase in gross amounts due from EWEEERT P HIE (216,563) (561,393)
customers for contract work HBEE I AN
Increase in trade and bills receivables P M5 BR 3R K S 4% 9 3 (4,220,795) (4,605,560)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, e BRAZRENEM (165,632) 1,418,327
prepayments and other receivables PN R IB /Y (3B 0) /R D
Increase in other non-current assets HE IR ENE E R E AN (1,680,173) (146,015)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and ENEFRZEN(RD) (823,198) 3,686,126
bills payables /A
Decrease in other payables H i fE S FRIB RO R A (1,095,319) (791,964)
Increase/(decrease) in gross amounts [ENREERE P RIBBEN 126,801 (70,423)
due to customers for contract work #/ CRd)
Increase in provision for warranty BREGBEERIE M 114,295 246,532
Cash (used in)/generated gEn (ER) BEENRS (1,297,027) 541,909
from operations
Income tax paid BRFTEH 32(a) (262,460) (195,520)
Net cash (used in)/generated BEEH (FR) /EENERS (1,559,487) 346,389

from operating activities

The notes on page 155 to 296 form part of these financial statements. 1552296 E MM At EM B HmEN—F o o



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

AR ERER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 # ZE20124F 123311 It F /&

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JA A R#E5I7R)

2012 2011
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ik AR®TR AR®BFT
Cash flows from investing activities RERETBELENEER
Payments for purchase of property, REWE  BERSE - (2,813,783) (4,972,589)
plant and equipment, lease prepayments BRI AERR
and intangible assets BEREEIN
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries W BB B A B2 42 (555,552) -
Payments for acquisitions of associates U B B o A ) I L b A (351,524) (92,259)
and other equity investments REXH
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of HEMRBARMBRFERS (31,451) 464,176
cash disposed of
Payments for advances to related parties m & B 7 R (135,052) (117,887)
Payments for advances to third parties ,\u éﬁ =T H B (3,089) (2,699)
Increase in deposits with banks TR AL AN (844,500) (909,988)
Withdrawal of deposits with banks fEﬁﬁ?AE’J%EHX 998,068 944,920
Government grants received 12 ) /0 K A 8 B 92,651 131,655
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BENEE 11,059 1,408
plant and equipment P58
Proceeds from repayment of advances B EERN 4,615 807,636
by related parties
Proceeds from repayment of advances BEZHEEER 6,558 7,721
by third parties
Proceeds from disposal of associates HEB S AR AEAM — 119,057
and other equity investments B ERMBERIE
Dividends received 2R E 44,176 15,200
Interest received BUH A 72,719 74,052
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFEANTERE (3,505,105) (8,529,597)

The notes on page 155 to 296 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

SHRERER (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & £2012F12A831H It F &

(Expressed in Renminbi) (A A R 5I7R)

2012 2011
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i AR¥ETR ARETT
Cash flows from financing activities REBMETHELENEER
Capital contributions from non-controlling MERBFERERMAE 202,205 213,995
equity owners of subsidiaries & RRE
Proceeds from issuing shares, BIIRMAABFER LT 191,975 1,827,040
net of listing expenses X
Proceeds from borrowings BB HIAE 16,935,864 11,577,475
Proceeds from issuing corporate bonds BTN REHFEHIE 3,971,623 =
Proceeds from advances from Eﬁ § R 300,000 911,472
related parties
Proceeds from advances from BE=FBK 94,857 190,000
third parties
Decrease in restricted deposits PR H7F A A 815,727 253,219
Repayment of advances to related parties BEBAB AR (259) (2,775,296)
Repayment of advances to third parties EEE=FBHK (143,698) (46,302)
Repayment of borrowings EEEXK (17,831,469) (3,761,752)
Dividends paid by subsidiaries P8 2 R A AR A 2R (72,359) (133,914)
to non-controlling equity owners FTEEZTRE
Interest paid BARFE (910,195) (626,535)
Increase in restricted deposits X BRI 77 3R A9 12 0 (696,224) (602,528)
Payments for acquisitions of Wi e AR i 2 > (15,057) -
non-controlling interests
Net cash generated from RETBHELNFRS 2,842,990 7,026,874
financing activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash IR%BUH%%E% b (2,221,602) 3,843,666
and cash equivalents WD) /18 mE
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 1A1ENEERELEEY 5,626,647 1,790,924
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SNEE R Ly 2 242 (7,943)
Cash and cash equivalents 122A31ENAESRACEEY 28 3,405,287 5,626,647

at 31 December

The notes on page 155 to 296 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R MY o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESEHA  UAREIIR)

1

Organisation

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited
(the “Company”) was formerly known as Guodian Technology &
Environment Group Limited Liability Company and was established
on 6 April 2001 as a state-owned enterprise with limited liability.
The Company was converted to a joint stock company with limited
liability in the PRC on 16 May 2011 (the “Conversion”). On 30
December 2011, the Company’s H shares were listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKSE”).

Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on HKSE. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

1 A

EEMERAREERMERAE ([
ARAD A G ABRERFREEEER
NAE BEEBREELERKIRN
200194868 ° A" A A H20114F58 16
BEG AREROERAR ([EH]) -
20119128308 * AR A MHRE & B
BMARSHBERAR ([FBHIAT])
ke

2 FESHEE
(a) E¥REH

I ETBRRERIBRERE ST ERE
BEBEMEATA AN (R
REEA(ZABREMBEBDN
BEE(EBRTBEHREEA - (EE
S EADFRE) REB(RFIE
BIYE BT ERMmRR - b FE 0T
REBFECEEBERSMER
ARIFH ETHBD R EANEE
BT - AEBERMANEXNS T
KWMEWT

BRest £l ZE@CHMET
#aT R AR {E 7T H KBTI B 75 3 o5 2
) AR AEKERARAHE
SR E R ER KA IRERS -
RERREMILEC RRER B REK
hEASEE R E S HIRA
AR EAMERNEABRED
B1E BB EE2(c) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR SRR M =t (4R)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESEHB  UAREIIR)

2 FESHEX &)

(b) MBEHRmREH

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest
in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that financial
instruments classified as available-for-sale (see note 2(i)) are
stated at their fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs
that have significant effect on these financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

HZE2012F12A31H IEFEMAEH
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AAAMEBERERRERNEELRMNAE
ZERATHRAEARENTEEMD
R - R H B B AT &AL
HMARMSHNEEMRERT
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Bl - MR FFHAFTHERTEREE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B %5 3 R Y 5 (AR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZEHB - UAREIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued several amendments to IFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company. Of these, the amendments to IFRS 7, Financial
instruments: Disclosures - Transfers of financial assets, is
relevant to the Group’s financial statements.

The amendments to IFRS 7 require certain disclosures to be
included in the financial statements in respect of transferred
financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety and
for any continuing involvement in transferred financial assets
that are derecognised in their entirety, irrespective of when the
related transfer transaction occurred. However, an entity need
not provide the disclosures for the comparative period in the
first year of adoption. As a result of these amendments, the
relevant information is disclosed in these financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
note 46).

2 FESHEX (&)

(c) EtBER2E
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R% SRR Mt (4R)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZEHA  LAARBIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Functional and presentation currency

(e)

(f)

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”),
rounded to the nearest thousand, which is the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries established in the
PRC (“PRC Subsidiaries”) carrying on the principal activities
of the Group. The functional currencies of the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong and United States are Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD”) and United States dollars (“USD”) respectively.

Going concern

These financial statements have been prepared assuming the
Group will continue as a going concern notwithstanding the net
current liabilities of the Group at 31 December 2012. The Group
has unutilised banking facilities of RMB17,062,452,000 as at
31 December 2012 to fulfil its future capital commitments and
other financial requirements. The directors are of the opinion
that the Group will have necessary liquid funds to finance its
working capital and capital expenditure requirements.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there
is no evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5 3 R Y o (AR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZEHRB  UAREIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value or
at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders
of the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated balance
sheet in accordance with notes 2(r) or (s) depending on the
nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R% SRR Mt (4R)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZEHA  LAARBIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f)

(9)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(n)).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post-acquisition change
in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see notes 2(h)
and (n)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5 3 R Y o (AR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZEHRB  UAREIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g)

(h)

Associates (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment under
the equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at
the date when significant influence is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(i)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in associates are
stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(n)).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(iy the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R% SRR Mt (4R)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZEHA  LAARBIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Goodwill (continued)

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination
and is tested annually for impairment (see note 2(n)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in
equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries and
associates, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair value,
which is their transaction price unless fair value can be more
reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose variables
include only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise
below. These investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in equity securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At each balance sheet
date the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss does not include any dividends
earned on these investments as these are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out in note 2(x)(vi).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured are recognised in the balance sheet at
cost less impairment losses (see note 2(n)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5 3 R Y o (AR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZEHRB  UAREIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

(i

(k)

Other investments in equity securities (continued)

Investments in equity securities which do not fall into any
of the above categories are classified as available-for-sale
equity securities. At each balance sheet date the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the fair value reserve. Dividend income from these
investments is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with
the policy set out in note 2(x)(vi). When these investments are
derecognised or impaired (see note 2(n)), the cumulative gain
or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(m)) to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(n)). The
depreciation policy is the same as that of property, plant and
equipment (see note 2(k)). Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 2(x)(v).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

2(n)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads
and borrowing costs (see note 2(z)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R% SRR Mt (4R)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZEHA  LAARBIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

U)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

— Land, buildings and structures 20-70 years
— Machinery and equipment 3-20 years
— Motor vehicles 4-10 years
— Furniture, fixtures and others 3-10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The Group recognises an intangible asset arising from a
service concession arrangement when it has a right to charge
for usage of the concession infrastructure. An intangible asset
received as consideration for providing construction services
in a service concession arrangement are measured at fair
value upon initial recognition by reference to the fair value
of the services provided. Subsequent to initial recognition
the intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(n)). If the Group
is paid for the construction services partly by an intangible
asset and partly by a financial asset (see note 2(q)), then each
component of the consideration is accounted for separately
and is recognised initially at fair value of the consideration.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on
development activities is capitalised if the product or process
is technically and commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to complete development.
The expenditure capitalised includes the costs of materials,
direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of overheads and
borrowing costs, where applicable (see note 2(z)). Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(n)). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5 3 R Y o (AR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZEHRB  UAREIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

U

(m

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see
note 2(n)). Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and
brands is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised from the date they are available for
use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Concession assets 20-34 years
— Technical know-how 5-18 years
— Capitalised development costs 5-10 years
— Software and others 3-10 years

The estimated useful life of a concession asset in a service
concession arrangement is the period from when the Group is
able to charge for the use of the infrastructure to the end of the
concession period.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R% SRR Mt (4R)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESAHP  UAREIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases except for land held for own use
under an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot
be measured separately from the fair value of a building
situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For
these purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that
the lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken over
from the previous lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the
leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments, of such assets are included in property,
plant and equipment and the corresponding liabilities,
net of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership
of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 2(k).
Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note 2(n). Finance
charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to
profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting
period. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5 3 R Y o (AR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZEHRB  UAREIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(m) Leased assets (continued)

(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term.

(n) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current and non-
current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost or are classified as available-for-sale securities are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of
the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an investment in an equity instrument below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B R% SRR Mt (4R)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESAHP  UAREIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

n) Impairment of assets (continued
p

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries and associates,
the impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment with its
carrying amount in accordance with note 2(n)(ii).
The impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount in accordance with note 2(n)

(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset where
the effect of discounting is material. Impairment losses
for equity securities carried at cost are not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5 3 R Y o (AR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZEHRB  UAREIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n) Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset's carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

— For available-for-sale equity securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or loss
is the difference between the acquisition cost and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities are
not reversed through profit or loss. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets is recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of trade and bills receivables and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against the respective receivables
directly and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B R% SRR M ot (4R)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESAHRP  UAREIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

2 FTESHEX (&)

(n) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment;
— investment properties;

— lease prepayments;

— intangible assets; and

— goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R R M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZAHA - UAREIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in
use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R% SRR M ot (4R)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESAHRP  UAREIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FESFBCR (&)
(n) Impairment of assets (continued) (n) EERE (&)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

(iii) RIS & KR E

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as
it would at the end of the financial year (see notes 2(n)(i)
and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates. Consequently,
if the fair value of an available-for-sale equity security
increases in the remainder of the annual period, or in any
other period subsequently, the increase is recognised in
other comprehensive income and not profit or loss.
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Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 35 3 R Y o (AR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZAHA - UAREIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o)

(p)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically negotiated
with a customer for the construction of an asset or a group
of assets, where the customer is able to specify the major
structural elements of the design. The accounting policy for
contract revenue is set out in note 2(x)(ii). When the outcome
of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract
costs are recognised as an expense by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract at the balance sheet date. When
it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately. When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the balance sheet
date are recorded at the net amount of costs incurred plus
recognised profit less recognised losses and progress billings,
and are presented in the balance sheet as the “Gross amounts
due from customers for contract work” (as an asset) or the
“Gross amounts due to customers for contract work” (as a
liability), as applicable. Progress billings not yet paid by the
customer are included under “Trade and bills receivables”.
Amounts received before the related work is performed are
presented as “Receipts in advance” under “Other payables”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B R% SRR M ot (4R)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESAHRP  UAREIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(n)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

The Group recognises a financial asset arising from a service
concession arrangement when it has an unconditional
contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from
or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services
provided. Such financial assets are accounted for as trade and

other receivables as described above.

(r) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised

value less attributable transaction costs.

(s) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 2(w)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated

at cost.

() Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.

initially at fair
Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 35 3 R Y o (AR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZAHA - UAREIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(v)

v

Employee benefits

(i)  Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present values.

(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is
without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to business
combinations, or items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B R% SRR M ot (4R)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESAHRP  UAREIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in

which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they

will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax

assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable

that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 35 3 R Y o (AR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZAHA - UAREIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

(w) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R% SRR M ot (4R)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESAHRP  UAREIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(w) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee (being the transaction price, unless
the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and other
payables. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. In addition, provisions are recognised in
accordance with note 2(w)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that
claim on the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in trade and other payables in respect
of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 35 3 R Y o (AR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZAHA - UAREIIR)

2 FESHEX (A

(x) AR

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(x) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

WA KRS EEREZ AR EE
B MEENE R RALE
B AR BE ST S AT E A KK
R(ER) B - BRI ARE TSI7
AR R AR

(i) Sale of goods () HEEmD
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the FmEERAREEMBENE
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in ERPREGHATFPEER
time when the customer has accepted the goods and the B &FTE A B E D
related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes HEFHER - WA B R X
value added tax (“VAT”) or other sales taxes and is after H-BrESEERREMEE
deduction of any trade discounts. e o

(i) Contract revenue (i) FEESFEHA
When the outcome of a construction contract can be MEREEESRZERA AR 5
estimated reliably, revenue from a fixed price contract is wihst  BE&EEBARZ WA
recognised using the percentage of completion method, EFRATIAD LT ERER
measured by reference to the percentage of contract costs REBZFERAALBELEZ
incurred to date to estimated total contract costs for the BREAMGETERKAEEE
contract. ERFdiir-
When the outcome of a construction contract cannot MEZEESRZERTRER S
be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the st BlENEELEESRK
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be ZX A U ] &9 BE D FERR UL A ©
recoverable.

(i) Service concession revenue (i) FRFEVFFREMA

Revenue related to construction services under a service
concession arrangement is recognised based on the
stage of completion of the work performed consistent with
the Group’s accounting policy on recognising revenue
on construction contracts (see note 2(x)(ii)). Operation or
service revenue is recognised in the period in which the
services are provided by the Group. Interest income on
financial assets is recognised in accordance with note
2(x)(vii). When the Group provides more than one service
in a service concession arrangement, the consideration
received is allocated by reference to the relative fair value
of the services delivered when the amounts are separately
identifiable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R% SRR M ot (4R)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESAHRP  UAREIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(x) Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv) Rendering of services

v)

Revenue from design and consultant services rendered
is recognised in the consolidated income statement in
proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction at
the balance sheet date.

Revenue from other services rendered is recognised upon
the delivery or performance of the services.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

(vi) Dividends

— Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

— Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

(vii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 35 3 R Y o (AR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZAHA - UAREIIR)

2 FESHEX (A

(x) BARER (&)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(x) Revenue recognition (continued)

(viii) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the balance sheet
initially when there is reasonable assurance that they
will be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are initially recognised
as deferred income and are subsequently recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset.

y) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of operations which have a functional currency
other than RMB are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions. Balance sheet items are translated into RMB
at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R% SRR M ot (4R)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESAHRP  UAREIIR)

2 FTESHEX (&)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(z) Borrowing costs (2) EERAE

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(aa)Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
related to the Group if that person:

S

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(

) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R R M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZAHA - UAREIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(aa)Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close family members of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R% SRR M ot (4R)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR

EZEHA  AARBIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(bb) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial statements provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Accounting judgement and estimates

The Group’s financial condition and results of operations are
sensitive to accounting methods, assumptions and estimates that
underlie the preparation of these financial statements. The Group
bases the assumptions and estimates on historical experience
and on various other assumptions that the Group believes to be
reasonable and which form the basis for making judgements about
matters that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from those estimates as facts, circumstances and
conditions change.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and
other uncertainties affecting application of those polices and
the sensitivity of reported results to changes in conditions and
assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing these
financial statements. The principal accounting policies are set forth
in note 2. The Group believes the following critical accounting
policies involve the most significant judgements and estimates used
in the preparation of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 35 3 R Y o (AR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZAHA - UAREIIR)

3 Accounting judgement and estimates (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts

The Group estimates impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts resulting from the inability of the customers and other
debtors to make the required payments. The Group bases the
estimates on the ageing of the receivable balance, debtors’
credit-worthiness, and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of the customers and debtors were to
deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than estimated.

Construction contracts

As explained in accounting policies set out in notes 2(p) and
(x)(ii), revenue and profit recognition on an uncompleted
project is dependent on estimating the total outcome of the
construction contract, as well as the work done to date.
Based on the Group’s recent experience and the nature of
the construction activity undertaken by the Group, the Group
makes estimates of the point at which it considers the work
is sufficiently advanced such that the costs to complete and
revenue can be reliably estimated. As a result, until this point
is reached the amounts due from customers for contract
work as disclosed in note 24 will not include profit which the
Group may eventually realise from the work done to date. In
addition, actual outcomes in terms of total cost or revenue may
be higher or lower than estimated at the balance sheet date,
which would affect the revenue and profit recognised in future
years as an adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.

Provision for warranty

The Group provides warranties for its products for 2 to 5 years
for defects and/or 10 to 25 years for guaranteed performance
after sales have taken place. The Group estimates warranty
costs based on the Group’s historical cost data, industry data
and an assessment of the Group’s competitors’ accrual. The
warranty obligation of the Group will be affected not only by
the product failure rates, but also by costs incurred to repair or
replace failed products. If the actual product failure rates and
cost of replacement or repairing of failed products differ from
the estimates, the Group will need to prospectively revise the
provision for warranty costs which would affect profit or loss in
future years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R% SRR M ot (4R)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESAHRP  UAREIIR)

3 Accounting judgement and estimates (continued)

(d) Impairment losses for non-current assets

(e)

(f)

In considering the impairment losses that may be required for
certain of the Group’s assets which include property, plant
and equipment, investment properties, lease prepayments,
intangible assets, investments in associates and unquoted
equity investments, recoverable amount of the asset needs to
be determined. The recoverable amount is the greater of the
fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. It is difficult to
precisely estimate selling price because quoted market prices
for these assets may not be readily available. In determining
the value in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires significant
judgement relating to items such as level of sales volume,
selling price and amount of operating costs. The Group uses
all readily available information in determining an amount that
is a reasonable approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions
and projections of items such as sales volume, selling price
and amount of operating costs.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses and tax
credit carried forward and deductible temporary differences
are recognised and measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. In determining the carrying amounts of deferred
assets, expected taxable profits are estimated which involves
a number of assumptions relating to the operating environment
of the Group and requires a significant level of judgement
exercised by the directors. Any change in such assumptions
and judgement would affect the carrying amounts of deferred
tax assets to be recognised and hence the net profit in future
years.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment and investment properties are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets, after taking into account the estimated
residual value. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of
the assets regularly. The useful lives are based on the Group’s
historical experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes
from previous estimates.
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3 Accounting judgement and estimates (continued)

(g) Income tax

(h)

The Group files income taxes with numerous tax authorities.
Judgement is required in determining the provision for taxation
as there are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determinations are uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. For preferential tax treatments
available for approved High and New Technology Enterprises,
in determining the applicable tax rates for calculations of
current income tax and deferred income tax, after passed the
substantive approvals, the Group uses the expected tax rates
that are probably be approved by tax authorities according
to the tax rules and regulations enacted at the balance sheet
date. Where the final tax outcomes of these matters are
different from the amounts originally recorded, the differences
may impact on the current income tax and deferred income
tax provisions in the periods in which the final tax outcomes
became available.

Contingent liabilities

Management judgement is required in the area of contingent
liabilities particularly in assessing the outcome of possible
obligations arising from the transactions as detailed in note 39.
Management reassesses the likelihood of the outcome of these
possible obligations at each balance sheet date. Where a
change in the probability that an outflow of economic resources
will be required to settle the obligation, a provision will be
recognised in the period in which such determination is made.

Write-down of inventories

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of inventories at each
balance sheet date to determine whether the inventories are
carried at lower of cost and net realisable value in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 2(0). Management
estimates the net realisable value based on all available
information, including the current market price of the finished
goods and raw materials, and historical costs. Any change in
the assumptions would increase or decrease the amount of
inventories write-down or the related reversals of write-down
and affect the Group’s profit.
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(BRIESAHRP  UAREIIR)

4 WARTDEHHRE

4 Revenue and segment reporting

(a) Revenue (a) A

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of
ignition equipment, wind turbines, solar cells and modules and
other related electric equipment for power plants, construction
engineering of desulphurisation, water treatment, solar energy
and other environmental protection and energy conservation
projects, rental of desulphurisation facilities and provision of
integrated services relating to environmental protection, energy
conservation and renewable energy businesses.

Revenue represents the sales value of goods supplied to
customers, net of VAT, revenues from construction contracts,
rendering of services and service concession arrangement
and rental income. The amount of each significant category of
revenue recognised during the year is as follows:
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2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETT

Sales of goods (note) HEE M (M) 13,767,823 11,985,179
Revenue from construction contracts &4 FU A 6,497,729 5,558,146
Rendering of services IR AR 75 85,621 92,627
Service concession arrangement Rl 765 455 37 A p sk M A (BT 5E43) 262,636 62,379
revenue (note 43)
Rental income from operating leases #¢4 & &S U A (FsE40(a)(i)) 1,162,701 1,008,749
(note 40(a)(i))
21,776,510 18,706,980
Note: Bt &E -

Revenue from sale of goods amounting to RMB2,713,524,000 (2011:
RMB1,833,074,000) is sale of wind turbines to contractors who are
engaged to construct wind farms for China Guodian Corporation
(“Guodian”) and related parties under Guodian.

SHE mmU A AR %2,713,524,0007T
(20114F : AR #1,833,074,0007T) A A
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4 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)
(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by subsidiaries, which
are organised by business lines (products and services). In a
manner consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following four
reportable segments.

— Environmental protection segment: this segment
provides environmental protection products and
services which mainly consists of sulphur oxide control
technologies, nitrogen oxide control technologies, rental of
desulphurisation facilities, ash removal with filer bag, water
treatment related technologies and products.

— Energy conservation solutions segment: this segment
provides energy saving products and services which
mainly consists of plasma ignition and micro-oil ignition
equipment and gas turbine improvement services.

— Wind power products and services segment: this segment
produces and sells wind turbine and its components,
provides related system solutions and services to wind
power operators.

— Solar power products and services segment: this segment
produces and sells solar cells, solar modules and other
solar products, constructs solar power stations and
provides related system solutions and services to solar
power operators.

The Group combined other business activities that are not
reportable in “All others”. Revenue included in this category is
mainly from the wind power generation by wind farms, sale of
other electric power related products and rental of properties.
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4 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include all assets with the exception
of interests in associates, other equity investments, tax
recoverable, deferred tax assets and other corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include all liabilities with the
exception of tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other
corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is the
gross profit. In addition to receiving segment information
concerning the gross profit, management is also provided
with segment information concerning depreciation and
amortisation, interest income, finance costs, impairment
of assets, inventory write-down and additions to segment
non-current assets.
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4 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the years ended
31 December 2012 and 2011 is set out below:

4 WARTDMEE (&)
(b) %S (&)

() nERE BEXKAEGE)

RUEGAEERSMITHRER
ABREETERD I HE
Z2012F 201112318 Lk
FENDBEBEL T HEE
RALE R 28D FMAE R W

T
2012
Energy Wind power Solar power
Environmental conservation products products All

protection solutions and services and services others Total

il REER ABHER
BR BREE R R FiEfh #gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT TR ARBT TR

ARBT TR ARBT R ARBT T ARBT R

Revenue from external IS EI=LON 5,855,403 919,574 11,161,233 3,649,329 190,971 21,776,510
customers
Inter-segment revenue AHERA 66,574 14,490 189,022 - 29,128 299,214
Reportable segment revenue BEEGE:1ON 5,921,977 934,064 11,350,255 3,649,329 220,099 22,075,724
Reportable segment profit DEE: Gk 1,093,766 241,925 1,734,872 218,551 149,900 3,439,014
(gross profit) (EH)
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH 341,309 18,890 153,263 105,620 46,743 665,825
Impairment/(reversal of TEURBR 20 Ik 4t FE U 18,579 9,166 934 14,786 (280) 43,185
impairment) of trade and FERE/
other receivables (RE#ER)
Inventory write-cdown FEHR - - - 66,467 - 66,467
Interest income FamA 31,656 30,203 10,526 6,832 62 79,279
Finance costs BB 115,148 178 335,327 134,265 8,026 592,944
Reportable segment assets TERFHEE 15,461,572 2,596,381 13,875,024 9,445,457 1,978,957 43,357,391
Additions to reportable segment ERAEBAZHRDY 1,788,766 75,138 391,663 828,077 23,718 3,107,362
non-current assets FRBDEE
during the year
Reportable segment liabilities EES Sk -1 12,404,982 674,839 11,340,893 8,024,686 687,418 33,132,818
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4 WARZE#®E (&)

(b) 7 EB®/E (FK)

4 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) () #HEf%E BEREEE)
2011
Energy Wind power Solar power
Environmental conservation products products Al
protection solutions and services and services others Total
i REER KB ER
R BAAE R Bis R Bis FE At it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
Revenue from external customers MBEERA 4,262,567 788,746 9,209,921 4,294,963 150,783 18,706,980
Inter-segment revenue AEHEMA 45,035 — 190,408 — 12,619 248,062
Reportable segment revenue TE2FAPHUA 4,307,602 788,746 9,400,329 4,294,963 163,402 18,955,042
Reportable segment profit TEHABAAE(EF) 628,698 276,832 1,668,838 308,117 64,778 2,837,263
(gross profit)
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH 253,684 17,252 114,835 53,239 36,202 475212
Impairment/(reversal of ERERR R E K 24,927 9,004 (6) 12,440 (1,014) 45,351
impairment) of trade and FERE/ (REBE)
other receivables
Interest income FIEMA 28,195 21,175 16,162 2,317 1,065 68,974
Finance costs BIERA 51,274 — 248,905 60,145 9,098 369,422
Reportable segment assets 2RI PEE 9,578,509 2,315,115 16,560,658 8,089,052 1,643,465 38,186,799
Additions to reportable segment FRRENZHA P 1,683,743 11,075 582,445 1,679,880 509,810 4,466,953
non-current assets FnEEE
during the year
Reportable segment liabilities TERIPERE 7,036,597 550,609 14,894,483 6,880,855 618,692 29,981,236
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4 WARZEH®E (&)

(b) 7 #BHE (&)

4 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, gross profit, (i) AIZHSEBHA  EF - BE
assets and liabilities B (&) FERD
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Revenue L ON
Reportable segment revenue ] 2 ;o IUA 22,075,724 18,955,042
Elimination of inter-segment revenue % 2B & 4g A 4K 84 (299,214) (248,062)
Consolidated revenue A B A 21,776,510 18,706,980
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARET T
Gross Profit EF
Reportable segment profit A 23Rk H =P F 3,439,014 2,837,263
Elimination of inter-segment profit 73 & FE 7 4 8 (58,433) (54,612)
Consolidated gross profit A HEF 3,380,581 2,782,651
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AERDHEE 43,357,391 38,186,799
Inter-segment elimination 7 BB 5 (504,564) (538,811)
42,852,827 37,647,988
Interests in associates HE S NRIHNRE 478,011 291,998
Other equity investments Hith iz & 329,821 112,255
Tax recoverable A] U [B] 4 18 49,646 127,962
Deferred tax assets FEIETRTBE B 249,765 174,538
Unallocated head office APERBHRITREE 2,335,617 3,700,957
and corporate assets
Consolidated total assets EHEERT 46,295,687 42,055,698
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4 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

4 WARZE#®E (&)

(b) 7 EB®/E (FK)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, gross profit, (i) AIZHSEBHA - EF - BE
assets and liabilities (continued) H B ERFE0 (8)
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities AEHoHaE 33,132,818 29,981,236
Inter-segment elimination 7 EPE K 5 (455,040) (485,723)
32,677,778 29,495,513
Income tax payable e FT1S R 72,574 126,058
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIBAE 95,670 —
Unallocated head office ROBBHRITHEE 1,308,539 1,438,048
and corporate liabilities
Consolidated total liabilities EHtaEES 34,154,561 31,059,619
Geographical information (i) HjE (=8

The Group did not have significant business operations
outside the PRC, therefore no geographic segment
information is presented.

Major customers

Revenues from Guodian and related parties under
Guodian amounted to RMB12,523,048,000 (2011:
RMB12,242,660,000).

(iv)

AR B EA T EHEIMNEE M
BRER FAlTEZHRBE

DEMEE e

Z25F

HHEERBETEAREE S
BEMKASEAARE
12,523,048,0007¢ (20114 :
AR #12,242,660,0007T) °
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5 Other revenue and other net (losses)/income

Hts W AR Htt (BE)

Wz R EE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREF T
Other revenue Hi A
Government grants B Bh 328,162 223,808
Interest income g A 90,645 84,975
Dividend income from unquoted FELTRERIKREREWA 15,816 6,041
equity investments
Others Hih 33,749 37,198
468,372 352,022
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREF T
Other net (losses)/income Hith (F8) Wz F8
Net gain on sales of raw materials R R H B W F 8 43,171 15,307
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of PEMBAR (BE) W FE (31,451) 97,312
subsidiaries (notes (i) and (ii)) (B (i) AA(iT))
Net gain on disposal of associates o E B N Rl Uk ER B (T RE()) — 145,325
(note (i)
Net loss from changes in fair value AR BEELZEEERFE — (1,449)
Net gain on disposal of unquoted & FE B RS B e F 5 — 109
equity investments
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of HEME  BER&ERS 208 (163)
property, plant and equipment (E518) /F58
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain B (E18) W F 58 (17,561) 21,835
(5,633) 278,276
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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(BRIESAHRP  UAREIIR)

5 Other revenue and other net (losses)/income
(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

In 2011, the Group disposed of certain subsidiaries and associates
to related parties under Guodian at a consideration in total
RMB974,064,000, which was determined with reference to valuation
reports issued by independent appraisers in the PRC, and resulted in
a total net gain of RMB225,020,000 which is included in the amounts
above.

The amount for the year ended 31 December 2012 represents the
adjustment of consideration in respect of the partial disposal of equity
interest in Guodian Jintech Solar Energy Technology (Yixing) Co., Ltd.,
a former subsidiary of the Group, in 2011. As the adverse change in
market environment after the disposal, the acquirer re-negotiated the
consideration with the Group in 2012 and the Group agreed to repay
the acquirer an amount of RMB31,451,000.

6 Finance costs

5 Htr AR H A (B8~

Y 72 75 58 (4)
GEX

(i) R2011F AEEAEHEARE
974,064,0007T [ B & T &8 A9 BA 55 75
EETHBARRBE AR - HELE
THEBYTEAMEENHBERSEH
BT ZERXRFEEFRGHEIARE
225,020,000 I B FEFE it & FH o

(i) #EHZE2012F12831BILFEHNESEAR
0 FEHEREREAMGER R (BEH)
ARAR(BAREENMHEAR) D
AREMRRAM S E AR - AR ERT
5 IR IR M F 1L - R2012F Y 77 B
AEESHANEE  AEEREZRK
B 77 (82 A R#31,451,0007T ) 5108 ©

Bt 35 AR AR

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETT
Interest on bank and other borrowings ZBRAFAREHEBENIEITR 932,360 618,028
wholly repayable within five years H b8 3 F B
Interest on bank and other borrowings AR AFEEEENRITR 42,842 29,785
repayable after five years E &R A S
975,202 647,813
Less: interest expenses capitalised W BRMEEDE - BE RE&E - (332,387) (232,371)
into property, plant and BREERESESRTH
equipment, intangible assets MERAXZ
and construction contracts
642,815 415,442

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 6.31% per

annum (2011: 5.99%).

& KA B IR F M E6.31%(2011 ¢
5.99%) fE&E At o
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7 Profit before taxation 7 BATRE
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): MAFEE MR (GEA) ¢
(a) Staff costs# (a) BT RA#
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARET T

Salaries, wages and other benefits  #& - TE R EMEF 874,618 786,359
Contributions to defined contribution 5 5E # FGR KT E| A9 5% (B RE) 87,190 63,877

retirement plan (note)
961,808 850,236

Note:

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the Company and its PRC Subsidiaries participated in
defined contribution retirement schemes (the “PRC Schemes”)
organised by the relevant local government authorities for
its employees. The Group is required to make contributions
to the PRC Schemes at 17% to 20% of basic salaries of the
employees. The local government authorities are responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.
In addition, certain subsidiaries and its staff participate in a
retirement plan managed by Guodian on a voluntary basis to
supplement the above-mentioned schemes and the Group is
required to make contributions at 5% to 10% of total salaries of
the employees. The Group has no other material obligation to
make payments in respect of pension benefits associated with
these schemes and supplementary retirement plan other than
the annual contributions described above.

B3

RIEF B S BEEER  AQ
ARETREHBARAEET2M
T A Bt 77 BT A AR A 0 SR E
HRKETE ([REFTEL - A&
EEHSPHETESMNE TEAT S
HI17%E120%H {51 o & H BT %
BaEEHRENERABRINEE
ol BETHBARRERT
A EBE2MEEE RN RIKEIE
AY s EINmT  AEEAR
B THFEH5%E10%M R -
Bt EEHERIANN  REERA
H Ath gk iR K2 F B A1 35 Lo 5T B B2 4
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7 HATRE (&)

7 Profit before taxation (continued)

(b) Other items (b) Hfz1EH
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARET T
Amortisation# el
— lease prepayments — TR LA E K 18,552 14,079
— intangible assets —BEEE 48,121 26,131
Depreciation# HrEH
— investment properties — REMYE 7,798 6,497
— property, plant and equipment — ME - BE MK 594,696 432,078
Impairment losses REEE
— trade and other receivables — JE AR 3R K Hh B UK B 43,185 45,351
Auditor’s remuneration FET RN BN
— annual audit services — FEETRE 12,900 9,396
— interim review service — R HIE B R 4,320 —
Operating lease charges# LEHEE R
— hire of plant and equipment — REREZERS 12,262 5,976
— hire of properties — MEMEE 18,024 13,704
Research and development costs iR ID N 137,536 122,980
Provision for warranty (note 33) R B (F5E33) 223,430 255,907
Rental receivable from FEEMENERE S (34,336) (32,536)
investment properties
Direct outgoings of REMMENEEZERS 7,409 5,886
investment properties
Cost of inventories# (note 23(b)) T8 K A# (FizE23(b)) 11,604,976 9,912,232
# Cost of inventories includes staff costs, depreciation and # TFEKABIEEIRA - T8 &#

HERURKEHERR L8
AT E AL EXEBRE
EE7(QMBREE RS -

amortisation expenses and operating lease charges, which
amount is also included in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above or in note 7(a) for each of these types of
expenses.
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8 Income tax in the consolidated income statement

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

8 AHRERANAER

(a) APFERMTLIALE

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T ARBTT

Current tax AEABLEE
Provision for the year NEERE 288,667 200,246
Over-provision in respect of NEFEBREBE (1,375) (14,765)
prior years
287,292 185,481
Deferred tax (note 32(b)) IEFE B 18 (Ff7E32(b))
Origination and reversal of TR EENEENETD (57,358) (78,320)
temporary differences
229,934 107,161

The charge for PRC enterprise income tax for the Company and
the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC is calculated
at the statutory rate of 25% (2011: 25%) on the estimated
assessable profit of the period determined in accordance with
relevant enterprise income tax rules and regulations, except
for certain subsidiaries of the Group, which are tax exempted
or taxed at a preferential rate of 12.5% or 15% (2011: 12.5%
or 15%) and a subsidiary of the Group which is a small-scale
enterprise and is subject to enterprise income tax at 20%.

A subsidiary of the Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax at 16.5% (2011: 16.5%). Taxation for other overseas
subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate rate of taxation ruling
in the relevant jurisdiction.

A ) R 2N £ B A R B B ST A B B
AR Z EEMEH R ABIER
B EMSRARETE/ MG
JE B FR T B 1%25% (20114F : 25%)
BEEMEFTE  AEEETEM
% 1£12.5%5%15% (20114F : 12.5%
%15%) BEB AT OMB AR -
LA R — KB /N B 1 2 30 $220% 5
Wb SRS THAME A RIBRI o

AEBE —XH B R AIE16.5%
(20114 : 16.5% ) BB B F BT -
H Ath 7 SN BB A ) AR TR A8 B it 33
i AT R BN o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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8 Income tax in the consolidated income statement 8 EKRERAMAESH (&)
(continued)
(b) Reconciliations between tax expense and accounting profit at (b) FRIBFA ST Bt F) % MR AR =R
applicable tax rates: STERTE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARET T

Profit before taxation i B A 1,263,905 1,271,574
Notional tax on profit before taxation #i g F|E 1% B8 i B VA & 7 & 315,976 317,894
at PRC statutory tax rate HEMNEZEHRE
Effect on non-deductible expenses  NAJ0JE G X A & 19,046 10,263
Effect of non-taxable income FEEFIRANTE (1,216) (1,769)
Effect of research and development #2355 X Mzt BRI £ (7,912) (43,668)
bonus deductions
Effect of share of profits less losses [ {HEf & A &) K E R E5 18 A (8,707) (7,938)
of associates &
Effect of PRC tax concessions RS EENTE (128,572) (140,375)
Tax effect of unused tax losses and  REER B AR FH 77 75 5 18 N2 0 i 14 39,772 22,830
temporary differences EENRIETE
not recognised
Tax effect of unused tax losses and  AF{F A ERATEFEARERN (1,222) (37,098)
temporary differences KA A AR S B 18 N s
not recognised in previous year EENRIETE

but utilised or recognised
in current year

Over-provision in respect of NEFEREBE (1,375) (14,765)
prior years
Others Hih 4,144 1,787

Actual tax expense BERHBRAY 229,934 107,161
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9 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments 9 EENREENGHM

Details of directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments are as follows: SEENEENFMOT :
Directors’ Salaries,
and allowances Retirement
supervisors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme 2012
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total

EZER 1% HER
EZR BENEN BEEA  BASHNK 2012545
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR AR%T:

Directors =
Mr. ZHU, Yongpeng (Chairman) RKAITE - - - - -
(EZER)
Mr. FENG, Shuchen BEELE - - - - -
Mr. YANG, Guang B tEsE - - - - -
Mr. YE, Weifang EEFEE - 260 221 47 528
Mr. LI, Hongyuan EYN-d — 444 300 87 831
Ms. WANG, Hongyan ED.-1 R — 392 210 81 683
Mr. YAN, Andrew B sEE - - - - -
(Appointed in June) (201256 A {E7)

Independent non-executive directors B JEHITESR

Mr. LU, Yanchang FEFEE 4 150 — — — 150
Mr. ZHAI, Ligong Btk 150 - - — 150
Mr. FAN, Renda Anthony BLERE 150 - — — 150
Mr. SHI, Dinghuan BEREAE 88 — — — 88
(Appointed in June) (201256 A {E7)
Supervisors Ex

Mr. QIAQ, Baoping BRELE - - - - -
Mr. CHEN, Bin B OEEE - - - - =
Mr. XU, Xingzhou FFEM L E - - - - -
Mr. GUAN, Xiaochun BEELE - 444 300 87 831
Mr. LI, Wei EN - 223 216 66 505

538 1,763 1,247 368 3,916
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9 EERESHNHMN A

9 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (continued)

Directors’ Salaries,
and allowances Retirement
supervisors'  and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2011
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
ELZER I #ER
BEE EMEN BEZL RERHK  01Fal
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBTT ARBFT ARBTT ARBTR
Directors 5%
Mr. ZHU, Yongpeng (Chairman) RKREE = = = = —
(Appointed in May 2011) (EER)
(201155 A )
Mr. FENG, Shuchen BRELE — = = = —
(Appointed in May 2011) (2011E5 A fE)
Mr. YANG, Guang B tEsE — — = = =
Mr. YE, Weifang ERrak — 416 323 84 823
(Appointed in May 2011) (2011E5 A fE7)
Mr. LI, Hongyuan FREEE — 270 180 49 499
(Appointed in May 2011) (2011E5 A fE7)
Ms. WANG, Hongyan FR%ELT — 367 228 8 673
(Appointed in May 2011) (2011E5 A fE7)
Mr. XU, Fenggang fRERI% & — 212 97 42 351
(Resigned in May 2011) (201155 A B l)
Mr. WANG, Zhongqu ERRALE — = = = —
(Resigned in May 2011) (201155 A Bkt
Mr. Ql, Zhiming BERELE — = = = =
(Resigned in May 2011) (201155 A Bl
Ms. REN, Mudi ERRLL = = = = —
(Resigned in May 2011) (201155 A Bk
Mr. LI, Zhongjun TRELAE = = = — —
(Resigned in May 2011) (201155 A Bk
Mr. WANG, Baozhong TRELE — = = = =
(Resigned in May 2011) (201155 A &k
Independent non-executive directors BV FHITEE
Mr. LU, Yanchang BEfES KA 25 = = = 25
(Appointed in September 2011) (2011F9AfE7)
Mr. ZHAI, Ligong BYWEE 25 — — — 25
(Appointed in September 2011) (20114F9 R fE7n)
Mr. FAN, Renda Anthony BLELE 25 — — — 25
(Appointed in September 2011) (20114F9 A fE7n)
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9 Directors” and supervisors’ emoluments (continued)

9 EEREENHMN A

Directors’ Salaries,
and allowances Retirement
supervisors'  and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2011
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
EEER I4 #UHRk
EZE EWER WERL  RARSEFR  2011FAEH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETE ARETRT ARETR
Supervisors EZ
Mr. QIAQ, Baoping BREAE = = = = —
(Appointed in May 2011) (2011E5 A E )
Mr. CHEN, Bin B OEEAE = - — - -
Mr. XU, Xingzhou FEMEE — = = = —
(Appointed in May 2011) (2011E5 A fE7)
Mr. GUAN, Xiaochun BREELL = 413 326 84 823
(Appointed in May 2011) (2011E5 A fE7)
Mr. LI, Wei F BiE = 202 190 60 452
(Appointed in May 2011) (2011E5 A E7)
Mr. WANG, Longling FaBELE = = = = =
(Resigned in May 2011) (201155 A B ki)
Mr. JIANG, Hongyuan ZHREE — — = = =
(Resigned in May 2011) (201155 A B l)
Mr. FENG, Shuchen BRELE — = = = =
(Resigned in May 2011) (201155 A Bl
75 1,880 1,344 397 3,696
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10 Individuals with highest emoluments 10 &S HEA
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2011: FHESMAMBEAS  Eh =4
three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 9. The (20115 : =fu) RES - HFMEME
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two (2011: O AT T # EE - At Aifiz (20114F -
two) individuals are as follows ML) B AR BT -
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARETTT

Salaries and other emoluments TE&RE M 731 678
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAT 459 496
Retirement scheme contributions RIS IR 162 156
1,352 1,330
The emoluments of the two (2011: two) individuals with the highest BN (20114F : WAL) BB & & & o
emoluments are within the following band: BEANFMERE T
2012 2011
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A&

Nil to HKD1,000,000 T % B %1,000,0007T 2 2

N
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11 Profit attributable to equity shareholders/owners of

the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders/
owners of the Company includes a profit of RMB6,133,000 (2011:

RMB34,161,000) which have been dealt with

statements of the Company.

in the financial

NMEBRERRAERRER
BENFE

EERARRESERE FHENE M
FE5E A AR #6,133,0007T (20114F ¢
A R %34,161,0007T) B £ A 2 &) 8 1
HREFRIL -

Reconciliations of the above amount to the Company’s profit for the LS EEARNBDAREFEOAE
year:
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARET T
Amount of consolidated profit attributable Zx A BB 7R & 2 5 At 55 B 6,133 34,161
to equity shareholders/owners dealt RARE R EERE,
with in the Company’s FrEERE BFIE
financial statements
Final dividends from subsidiaries 57 B A DA RT B B FE F B 30 433,912 251,807
and associates attributable to RAGFEHER R B KB AR
the profits of the previous financial year B & A B HI R IR 2
and approved during the year
Company'’s profit for the year RABARERE (FisE36(a)) 440,045 285,968
(note 36(a))
12 Other comprehensive income 12 Ht 4R & W
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBT T
Exchange differences on translation RE BRI B TS R (135) (183)
of financial statements of EAENERZH
operations outside PRC
Available-for-sale securities: AHBEES
Changes in fair value recognised EFHRANARBEE (23,958) —
during the year
Net movement in the fair value reserve  RE ARG U 25 FER A (23,958) —
during the year recognised in EFARBHEHRBENFEZH
other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income E iR A W (24,093) (183)
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13 Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders/owners of the Company
of RMB692,947,000 (2011: RMB840,681,000) and the weighted
average of 6,059,794,000 ordinary shares (2011: 4,855,986,000
ordinary shares) in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

13

&

R 2

SREABFNOFERKBEAEZBENA
AEEBRERE 1A ABFBEA
R #692,947,0007T (20114 : AR
840,681,0007T) M & AN 4F & 8 17 7£ Hh
T 38 A% A 0 4 19 £16,059,794,000/%
(20114 : 4,855,986,0000% & @A) -
ATEWT

o

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 38 A% N AE P Y IR B
2012 2011
‘000 ‘000
TR T %
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January M1ATHEZETHEBR 5,942,500 —
Effect of the Conversion (note) A A2 (HfET) — 4,850,000
Effect of issuance of shares BITRMETE 117,294 5,986
Weighted average number of R12A31 8 @A 0 F 15 8 6,059,794 4,855,986

ordinary shares at 31 December

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence during
the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

Note:

The Company was converted into a joint stock company with limited liability
on 16 May 2011 by converting its equity into 4,850,000,000 ordinary shares.
These ordinary shares were issued to its then existing equity owners for
no additional consideration. Therefore, the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during 2011 is adjusted as if the Conversion
had occurred at the beginning of the earliest period presented. Details of
the Conversion are set out in note 1.

RE 22012F K2011F12A31H 1EF
EW @ KRR TN FERBIEBE L AR -

M&E :

ARARR2011F5A16BEH BRMDER A
Al + #% H 4 25 85 #2500 4,850,000,0004% & i
B ZELBAETTADBE R ERSFT
BEMBALZEE - Bt - #201145F HRHE
BATIEING L @AR N T I9 Bt 17 7 HE
fA R b i 82 ) 22 E 3 A R T BN ) B R MO 3R
SHIE) - AR EESI MM - 2R K
w1 e
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14 Property, plant and equipment

149X BERERE

The Group NE
Land, Machinery Furniture,
buildings and and Motor fixtures Construction
structures equipment vehicles and others in progress Total
i #P KA %E
REEY BERRE AE R ERIR i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETFL AREFT AREFT AREFT
Cost: BA:
At 1 January 2011 20111 1R 2,835,499 2,207,553 131,627 169,612 4,556,879 9,901,170
Additions # 93,563 631,975 46,830 58,458 3,159,664 3,990,490
Transfer from construction in progress FEEIREA 1,025,687 2,304,745 2395 19,708 (3,352,535) =
Transfer to investment properties (note 15)  B{ERE 4% (fizE15) (106,051) — — — — (106,051)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR (638,816) (1,829,402) (25,834) (13,047) (470,306) (2,977,405)
Disposal e = (3321) (2,393) (1,113) - (6827)
At 31 December 2011 and 2011F12A318 K 3,209,882 3,311,550 152,625 233,618 3,893,702 10,801,377
1 January 2012 201261818
Addiions i 60,096 304,381 27,653 26,703 2,419,468 2,839,201
Transfer from construction in progress ERIREA 1,107,241 2,622,326 - 19,928 (3,749,495) -
Transfer to investment properties (note 15)  E{ERE M2 (Hi3E15) (114,357) - - - - (114,357)
Acquisition of subsidiaries kB AR 177,503 261,632 2,175 29,670 250,665 721,645
(note 41(a) & (b)) (HtzE41(2)F(b))
Disposal e (12,714) (28) (1,069) (1,697) - (15,508)
At 31 December 2012 20124128318 4,428,551 6,499,861 181,384 308,222 2,814,340 14,232,358
Accumulated depreciation: Rt E:
At 1 January 2011 2011%181A 81,304 249,297 42,320 35,638 — 408,559
Depreciation charge for the year AEEHER 124,736 257,699 20,555 29,088 — 432,078
Transfer to investment properties (note 15)  B{ERE 4% (FfzE15) (7,887) — — — — (7,887)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR (16,469) (51,747) (7582) (5,592) = (81,390)
Written back on disposal B Em&E — (2319) (1,876) (1,061) = (5,256)
At 31 December 2011 and 2011F12A318 K 181,684 452,930 53,417 58,073 — 746,104
1 January 2012 201261814
Depreciation charge for the year AERHEER 144,054 399,601 23,535 27,506 - 594,696
Transfer to investment properties (note 15)  E{ERE MM E (HizH15) (454) - - - - (454)
Written back on disposal R EmEE (2,261) 1) (952) (1,443) - (4,657)
At 31 December 2012 2012612A31H 323,023 852,530 76,000 84,136 - 1,335,689
Net book value: RESE:
At 31 December 2012 2012612A31H 4,105,528 5,647,331 105,384 224,086 2,814,340 12,896,669
At 31 December 2011 2011512A31H 3,028,198 2,858,620 99,208 175,545 3,893,702 10,055,273
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14 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 14 Y% BERRKE (E)
The Company b YN
Land, Machinery Furniture,
buildings and and Motor fixtures Construction

structures equipment vehicles and others in progress Total
it gF BE %8

REEN BERRE RE REf ERIR &t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Cost: R
At 1 January 2011 201141818 792,450 — 7,502 87,689 95,925 983,566
Additions #1 16,510 — 2,549 1,020 499,970 520,049
Transfer from construction in progress EREIREA 36,855 116,107 — = (152,962) =
At 31 December 2011 and 2011F12A318 K 845,815 116,107 10,051 88,709 442,933 1,503,615
1 January 2012 201261814
Additions £ 2,397 - 295 4,232 12,987 19,911
Transfer from construction in progress ERIREA 22,087 428,259 - 59 (450,405) -
Transfer to investment properties (note 15)  E{E& & % (i 15) (161,434) - - - - (161,434)
Disposal HE (12,714) - - - - (12,714)
At 31 December 2012 20124 12A318 696,151 544,366 10,346 93,000 5,515 1,349,378
Accumulated depreciation: RitHE:
At 1 January 2011 201141818 = = 2,163 1,434 — 3,597
Depreciation charge for the year AEEHEE 26,588 938 1,416 615 — 29,557
At 31 December 2011 and 2011E12A318 ) 26,588 938 3,579 2,049 — 33,154
1 January 2012 201261R1A
Depreciation charge for the year AEEHEER 23,894 18,921 1,408 1,213 - 45,436
Transfer to investment properties (note 15)  E/EREIEHZE (HiFE15) (4,839) - - - - (4,839)
Written back on disposal R EmEE (2,261) - - - - (2,261)
At 31 December 2012 20124 12A318 43,382 19,859 4,987 3,262 - 71,490
Net book value: EERE:
At 31 December 2012 20124128318 652,769 524,507 5,359 89,738 5,515 1,277,888

At 31 December 2011 2011F12A31R 819,227 115,169 6,472 86,660 442,933 1,470,461
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14 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Notes:

(M)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The Group's and the Company’s plants and buildings are located in the
PRC.

As at 31 December 2012, certain of the Group’s interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings were secured by certain of the Group’s buildings
and machinery (see note 29), which had an aggregate net book value
of RMB434,976,000. There were no borrowings secured by the Group’s
buildings and machinery as at 31 December 2011.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group is in the process of applying for
the ownership certificates for certain of its properties. The aggregate
carrying value of such properties of the Group as at 31 December
2012 is approximately RMB444,600,000 (2011: RMB229,193,000). The
directors are of the opinion that the Group is entitled to lawfully occupy
or use these properties.

The Group leases out a number of items of machinery and equipment to
power plants under operating leases, details of the lease arrangements
are set out in note 40(a)(i). As at 31 December 2012, the aggregate
net book value of these assets amounted to RMB2,547,281,000 (2011:
RMB1,915,356,000).

14 9% - BERZRE (E)

GEX

(iii)

(iv)

AEBEARRTNBE REFHLNF
>

R2012%F12A31H * AR BEHETFTES
MIRTT R HEMERAEREENE TEF
R 22 iR BRI (R FE29) - HARE
FELE B AR 434,976,000 °
201112310 ' AEBEFREFR
18 AR S A A S IR L4 9 o

R2012%128318  AEBERE AE
T IR ERFE - R20125F12831
A AEBHOHEVELEAARE
444,600,0007T (20114 : 229,193,000
) cEEMRAE ASERES XN
BREAUEWE -

AEBAKEHRERNERHBATET
HEREE BRESELHE 258
40(a)(i) ° 20126128318 » WEHEEE
7Y BR R (B 458 A A R #62,547,281,000
7T (20114 « AR#1,915,356,0007T) °

15 Investment properties 15 REMY =
The Group EH
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥E T ARET T
Cost: AN :
At 1 January 1H1H 276,202 162,574
Additions 0 — 7,577
Transfer from property, Y - BE REEEA (ME14) 114,357 106,051
plant and equipment (note 14)
At 31 December 12A31H 390,559 276,202
Accumulated depreciation: -
At 1 January 1H1H 17,810 3,426
Depreciation charge for the year REEFEE 7,798 6,497
Transfer from property, W - BB REEEA (ME14) 454 7,887
plant and equipment (note 14)
At 31 December 12A31H 26,062 17,810
Net book value REFE 364,497 258,392
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15 Investment properties (continued) 15 REMY X (&)
The Company NN
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETTT

Cost: RN :

At 1 January 1H1H 903,531 859,533
Additions b=y | — 43,998
Transfer from property, Y - BE REEEA (ME14) 161,434 —

plant and equipment (note 14)

At 31 December 12A31H 1,064,965 903,531
Accumulated depreciation: 2T E

At 1 January 1H1H 26,024 —
Depreciation charge for the year AEEHEE 29,479 26,024
Transfer from property, W - BEREEEA (ME14) 4,839 =

plant and equipment (note 14)

At 31 December 12H31H 60,342 26,024
Net book value R FE 1,004,623 877,507
All the investment properties owned by the Group and the Company AEBERARQNGFENIEE EYESN
are located in the PRC. R E o

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 R2012F 128318 ' AEEMEE &
December 2012 was RMB562,539,000 (2011: RMB415,109,000). YEQREEBARKS62,539,0007T

(2011 : AR#415,109,0007T) °
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15 REM Y% (&)

(a) RELEHEHANRERYE

15 Investment properties (continued)

(a) Investment properties leased out under operating lease

The Group and the Company lease out investment properties
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 15 years, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are re-negotiated. Lease
payments are usually adjusted upon the expiry of lease terms
to reflect market rentals. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

AREBEARRBAKLEHEH L&
BUEYE - —RIGEEMES1—
165 BIMz R A B BN
TR HEGRREN KA - H
AR —RBREMSHESET
HE -BEEERRY I FERE

The Group’s and the Company’s total future minimum lease ERA R EHEET A&
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are B AR R F R R e SRR TE E A
receivable as follows: RABERS -
The Group REH
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Within 1 year 1FE R 13,503 28,238
After 1 year but within 5 years 1FEBBEER 2,901 15,980
16,404 44,218

The Company AAF
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARMET T

Within 1 year 1F R 41,787 14,894

2012 ANNUAL REPORT £ $R
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16 Lease prepayments 16 FE{+ T A S =%
The Group NEE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE TR ARET T
Cost: RN :
At 1 January 1H1H 907,977 564,060
Additions #=n 37,716 396,138
Acquisition of subsidiaries We B Bt 8 & =) (B 541 (a)&(b)) 29,014 —
(note 41(a) & (b))
Disposal of subsidiaries o &5 B BB A A — (52,221)
At 31 December 12A31H 974,707 907,977
Accumulated amortisation: ZotEes
At 1 January 1H1H 22,628 10,373
Amortisation for the year KEFHEE 18,552 14,079
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHE R F — (1,824)
At 31 December 12H31H 41,180 22,628
Net book value REFE 933,527 885,349

Lease prepayments mainly represent prepayments for rights to
use land, which is all located in the PRC, for own use properties
with lease periods of 25 to 50 years. There were no unpaid lease
prepayments as at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group was in the process of applying
for registration of the ownership certificates for certain of its land
use rights. The aggregate carrying value of such land use rights of
the Group as at 31 December 2012 is approximately RMB7,160,000
(2011: RMB9,632,000). The directors are of the opinion that the
Group is entitled to lawfully occupy or use these land.

As at 31 December 2012, certain of the Group’s interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings were secured by certain of the Group’s
lease prepayments (see note 29), which had an aggregate net
book value of RMB29,104,000. There was no borrowing secured by
the Group's lease prepayments as at 31 December 2011.

AL HHEEREE S L FEAEEN
3 BTEERIMEMRTER  (EAE
BYE - HEH A25—504F ° 20124
F20115F12A318 YR FE R
MBI FEERR -

R2012F128318  "EBERE A E
T £ b {5 PR AR o 32 E E B o MR20124F
128318 ' AEBO B E L AT E R
BEH A ARE7160,0007T(2011 : A
R #9,632,0007t) - EEMRAE A%
EEEA A AKERLE L -

R20126 128310 AEBWHE T
BHRIT R EMERAREBNE TIE
£ F & BRI (R K 5E29) - H R
HFERTE A ARK29,104,0007T ° B
2011 12A31H - "EBE /B L i
A& ROR S E 18 IR (L3 -
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17 Intangible assets 17 BILEE
The Group RE
Concession Technical Development Software
assets know-how costs and others Total
RITREE BERW MEHE BRE4REM ait
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETr ARETT ARET:H
Cost: RA:
At 1 January 2011 2011F1 /18 463,025 157,559 32,024 17,547 670,155
Additions #0 21,084 8,768 73,211 4,929 107,992
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR — (65,236) — (3,316) (68,552)
At 31 December 2011 and 20115128318 | 484,109 101,091 105,235 19,160 709,595
1 January 2012 201251 A1H
Additions 2N 33,581 4,316 101,705 12,458 152,060
Acquisition of subsidiaries W EE B B 22 A 418,152 - — 189 418,341
(note 41(a) & (b)) (FiEE41(2)&(b))
At 31 December 2012 2012%12A31H 935,842 105,407 206,940 31,807 1,279,996
Accumulated amortisation: EHE £
At 1 January 2011 201118 1H 10,532 28,644 548 3,660 43,384
Amortisation charge for the year AEEHHE 9,246 12,715 1,184 2,986 26,131
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR — (8,547) — (92) (8,639)
At 31 December 2011 and 2011&12A318 K 19,778 32,812 1,732 6,554 60,876
1 January 2012 20121718
Amortisation charge for the year AEEHRES 27,206 6,390 11,389 3,136 48,121
At 31 December 2012 2012124318 46,984 39,202 13,121 9,690 108,997
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2012 2012%12A31H 888,858 66,205 193,819 22,117 1,170,999
At 31 December 2011 2011%12A31H 464,331 68,279 103,503 12,606 648,719

Concession assets represent the rights the Group received for the
usage of the concession water treatment plants for the treatment
of water. The concession assets are amortised over the operating

period of the service concession projects.

RirREERAKREZEERFTHK
BRIERETTRKEBIENERN - B EEE
R ERB RS EEITEE -
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17 Intangible assets (continued)

The amortisation charges of RMB29,896,000 (2011: RMB15,678,000)
and RMB18,225,000 (2011: RMB10,453,000) are included in “cost
of sales” and “administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement respectively.

Certain of the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
were secured by concession assets (see note 29), which
had an aggregate net book value of RMB540,171,000 (2011:
RMB84,707,000).

17 B EE (8)

GO ERP A MEERAR] R I1TERHA
XIEETHRBEERFEAESHEER
A R #29,896,0007T (20114F : AR
15,678,0007T) ' AR AR 18,225,000
70 (20114 © AR #10,453,0007T) °

AEERE TESRITREAMME KA
FFREE EERR (R M 5E29) - HBREF
BE#% A& A R%540,171,0007T (2011
& : AR%84,707,0007T) °

18 Goodwill 18 &5 &
The Group AEFH
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
At 1 January 1818 7,082 14,409
Acquisition of subsidiaries We B it 8 & 7] (i E41(a)&(b)) 50,509 —
(note 41(a) & (b))
Disposal of a subsidiary HEHE AR — (7,327)
57,591 7,082
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units identified HESIRNIRE T 5| E5 R &S D IE|
according to operation and operating segment as follows: PRAREERESELE T :
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

Environmental protection RIR

57,591 7,082

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using zero growth rate. The cash flows are discounted
using discount rate of 14.5%. The discount rate used is pre-tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments.

REeEE BT RESETIZERE
EFFEmMEE - AREENFERER
AREEEHBZ AFHRNMERE
MBREREN - BELFHNRERE
RATERRER RS RERBFE
RA14.5%H I I K - PR A IR R
ATATHTIRE - I RERAERE 2 B E
B o
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19 Investments in subsidiaries

19HHKELARANKRE

The Company AATF
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRGD - K AFE 4,982,710 3,755,710
PRC listed shares, at cost R EMRG  RRATE 14,114 14,114
4,996,824 3,769,824
Market value of PRC listed shares FEETROTE 1,455,787 1,888,908

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries as at
31 December 2012 which principally affected the results, assets
or liabilities of the Group. All of the PRC Subsidiaries are limited

liability companies.

R2012612A31H » BAEEELE - &
EXBEABETEXENNB AN
BIROT - FIAERENBARIE AR
REEQF -

Proportion of ownership interest

FEERRLH
Place of Group’s
establishment/ Issued and fully effective  Held by the Held by
Name of the company incorporation paid-up capital interest Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
BRTH AEEW F

ARER R/ R it 2HAZNER ARER MARARAE DEAKE EEER
Beijing Guodian Longyuan Environmental The PRC RMB1,510,000,000 100% 100% —  Provision of desulphurisation and

Engineering Co., Ltd. H AK#1,510,000,000 other environmental protection
GREERRRRIZERAR) engineering services

REWITE REMRR TR RS

Jiangsu Deke Environmental The PRC RMB80,000,000 67.46% — 67.46%  Production and sale of environmental

Equipment Co., Ltd. H AR #80,000,000 protection equipment
(IHERRRXEERAR) RRABHEERHE
Beijing Longyuan Environmental The PRC RMB33,750,000 51% — 51%  Provision of desulphurisation and

Engineering Co., Ltd. H AR #33,750,000 other environmental protection
(ERERRRIEERARA) engineering services

REMAEREMRRIZRS

Zhoushan Longxi Environment The PRC RMB33,340,000 36.21% — 71%  Design and construction of

Engineering Co., Ltd. HE AR #33,340,000 environmental protection projects
(FLEERRIEERAA) RIRTE A MR ki L
Bengbu Guodian Longyuan Environmental ~ The PRC RMB30,000,000 100% — 100%  Operation of environmental

Development Co., Ltd. ] AE#30,000,000 protection facilities

(HERBERRRERERAR)

RRRIEEEE
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19 HE A RNKRE (F)

Proportion of ownership interest

FEERRLA
Place of Group’s
establishment/ Issued and fully effective  Held by the Held by
Name of the company incorporation paid-up capital interest Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
2878 AEEH F B
ARER R/ 2HARNER BXEE mARAEE DAKE TEEH
Jiangsu Longyuan Catalyst Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% — 100%  Production and sale of selective
(IHBRECEERAR) H AR #50,000,000 catalytic reduction catalyst
EEUECRRECANEEREE
Tonghua Guodian Longyuan Environment The PRC RMB26,000,000 100% — 100%  Generation and sale of electricity
Engineering Co., Ltd. H AR 26,000,000 REREE
(Bl EERRRERMERAR)
Guodian Longyuan Nanjing The PRC RMB?25,000,000 84% — 100%  Production and sale of membrane,
Membrane Technology Co., Ltd. F AR #25,000,000 water treatment equipment and
(BERRFRERGERAR) electric equipment
RES KREXERERZED
HERHE
Nanjing Longyuan Environmental Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB101,000,000 60% — 60%  Provision of environmental
(ARBERRERAR) F AR 101,000,000 protection engineering services
RERRTIERTG
Puyang Guodian Longyuan The PRC RMB10,000,000 70% — 70%  Operation of water treatment projects
Water Treatment Co., Ltd. F AR #10,000,000 KEREENEE
(EREERRKEERAR)
Guodian Technology & Environment Hong Kong 2,000,000 ordinary 100% 100% —  Sale of desulphurisation equipment
Group Hong Kong Corporation Limited EE shares of HK$1 each MR ENHHE
(HBHREE(FE) BRAR) 2,000,008 % @k -
FRITEE
Beijing Lucency Environment The PRC RMB500,000,000 100% 100% —  Construction and operation of
and Technology Co., Ltd. H A K #500,000,000 water treatment projects
(ERAFARRBRERAR) KEBIEE M T AL
Dalian Delang Water Treatment Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB?20,000,000 51% — 51%  Operation of water treatment projects
(REEAKBERARA) HE AR 20,000,000 KEEIEE REE
Shanxi Xinyuan Environment Protection The PRC RMB13,000,000 51% — 51%  Construction and operation of
Resources Development Co., Ltd. H AR #13,000,000 water treatment projects
(LEHRRRERAREERELLA) KREIER ML ER L
Taiyuan Lucency Sewage Treatment The PRC RMB102,000,000 80% — 80%  Design and installation of
Co., Ltd. F AR 102,000,000 sewage treatment equipment

(REBHTKEEERAR)

KREREORTERE
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19 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

FEERELA
Place of Group’s
establishment/ Issued and fully effective  Held by the Held by
Name of the company incorporation paid-up capital interest Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
BR{TH &AW )4

ARER R/ 2R ERBRHER BREE BAAREE DEAKE TEER
Qingdao Galaxy Water Corporation Limited ~ The PRC 300,000,000 shares 70% — 100%  Construction and operation of

(“Galaxy Water”) (note (v)) H of RMB1 each water treatment projects
(BERRAKBRHBRAR) ([RAKK]) 300,000,000 - KEBERMETIELE

(MiEE()) BRARKIT
Shanxian Jiashan River Water The PRC RMB 15,000,000 70% — 100%  Construction and operation of

Treatment Co., Ltd. (note (v)) H AR #15,000,000 water treatment projects
(BEEZEMSKREERAR) (HEv) KEBIER T EEE
Galaxy Water (Shouguang) Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB60,000,000 70% — 100%  Construction and operation of

(note (v)) H AR #60,000,000 water treatment projects
(RKH (B) BRAA) (V) KEEIEE T REE
Galaxy Water (Dezhou) Co., Ltd. (note (v)) ~ The PRC RMB21,409,200 70% — 100%  Construction and operation of
(MK (BM) BRAR) (FzHv) H AE#21,409,200 water treatment projects

KRBT E M T
Galaxy Water (Cahngle) Co., Ltd. (note (v)) ~ The PRC RMB26,000,000 70% — 100%  Construction and operation of
(K% (EL) BRAR) (FzHv) HE AR #26,000,000 water treatment projects
KEEIER T REE

Caoxian Season River Water The PRC RMB12,000,000 70% — 100%  Construction and operation of

Treatment Co., Ltd. (note (v)) B AK#12,000,000 water treatment projects
(BEMFTSKREARAA) (V) KEEERMEIELE
Galaxy Water (Tengzhou Mushi) Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB 13,250,000 70% — 100%  Construction and operation of

(note (v)) F AR #13,250,000 water treatment projects
(MoK (BMAR) BRAF) (V) KEEERMETELE
Qingdao Galaxy Water Technology The PRC RMB48,000,000 70% — 100%  Construction and operation of

Management Co., Ltd. (note (v)) B A K #48,000,000 water treatment projects
EERRBRIGERERAA) (V) KEBIER T REE
Jining Galaxy Water Treatment Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB51,710,400 44.50% — 63.57%  Construction and operation of

(note (v)) B AR 51,710,400 water treatment projects
(BEFRBREERA ) (HE(v)) KEEERMEIELE
Galaxy Water (Tengzhou) Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB47,000,000 70% — 100%  Construction and operation of

(note (v)) B AR #47,000,000 water treatment projects

(SR () AR AR) (M)

KERBE A TELE
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19 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

FEEERLA
Place of Group’s
establishment/ Issued and fully effective  Held by the Held by
Name of the company incorporation paid-up capital interest Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
2878 AEEH HKE
ARER R/ E MR 2HHRHES BRER BERARESR ARBE  TEER
Zhucheng Galaxy Water The PRC RMB50,000,000 48.61% — 69.44%  Construction and operation of
Treatment Co., Ltd. (note (v)) F A K #50,000,000 water treatment projects
(FAEPSKERERAR) (F V) KERER ML ag e
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB1,695,903,400 70% 70% —  Research and development of
Co., Ltd. H AEH1,695,908,400 wind turbine technology
(EEREYNRMERRAR) & B O B 3
Guodian United Power The PRC RMB220,000,000 70% — 100%  Production and sale of wind turbine
Technology (Baoding) Co., Ltd. i AR#220,000,000 BAO#MEERHE
(BEEREYNEM (RE)BRAA)
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB260,000,000 38.77% — 55.38%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Baotou) Co., Ltd. i AR #260,000,000 Bh#MEERHE
(EIEBaB N R (RE) BRAR)
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB150,000,000 70% — 100%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Lianyungang) Co., Ltd. i AR #150,000,000 BH#MEERHE
(BIZB BN Rl (ZEE) BRAR)
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB105,000,000 70% — 100%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Chifeng) Co., Ltd. i AR 105,000,000 Bh#MEERHE
(BB A8 N Rl (R &) BRAR)
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB50,000,000 59.50% — 85%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Yixing) Co., Ltd. H AR #50,000,000 B EERHE
(BB A3 N Rl (BR) BB A R)
Beijing Long Wei Power Generation The PRC RMB40,000,000 42% - 60%  Production and sale of steam turbine
Technology Co., Ltd. F A #40,000,000 FRENEEREE
(EREREERMERRR)
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB40,000,000 61.25% — 87.50%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. H AR #40,000,000 BAKNEEREE
(EIEBA N HM (1F) BRAR)
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB5,000,000 70% — 100%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Changchun) Co., Ltd. # AR 5,000,000 BAKNEEREE

(REH LB (BF) ERAF)
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19 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

19 BB QA RNKRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

kY $:3i20]
Place of Group’s
establishment/ Issued and fully effective  Held by the Held by
Name of the company incorporation paid-up capital interest Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
BRTH AEEWN H MY
ARER R/ E R ERBRHER BREE BERAREER DNAKE TEER
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB24,000,000 42% — 60%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Weifang) Co., Ltd. (note (i) H A #24,000,000 B EERHE
(EIEHA B N R (457) BRAF)
(zE(i)
Guodian United Power American LLC. United States USD2,000,000 70% — 100%  Sale of Solar cells
(note (ii)) (F &(ii)) E35 %712,000,000 AGRERNHE
Guodian Solar (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB1,483,000,000 100% 100% —  Production and sale of solar cells
BEEXR(IH) ERAF) HE AK#1,483,000,000 AGREONEERHE
Jiangsu Zhaojing Optoelectronics The PRC RMB300,000,000 51% — 51%  Production and sale of solar cells
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Zhaojing") H AR#300,000,000 AGRE R EEREE
(note (v))
(TERREEREERBRAR)
(TER2R) (HzHv)
Guodian Solar System Technology The PRC RMB20,000,000 50% — 50%  Construction of solar
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (note (iii)) H AR #20,000,000 power generation system
(FEEAGRZZRR (L) BRAR) AGREEZRNEIRR
(B3 (i)
Guodian Longyuan Power Technology and ~ The PRC RMB244,727,000 100% 100% —  Provision of energy conservation
Engineering Co., Ltd. FE AR #244,727,000 engineering services
(EERRENRMIREREEAR) R e T2 RS
Guodian Longyuan Energy Saving The PRC RMB100,000,000 99.58% — 100%  Provision of energy conservation
Technology Co., Ltd. F A K #100,000,000 engineering services
(EERRAERMERAR) REE R TRRS
Yantai Longyuan Power Technology The PRC 285,120,000 shares 23.25% 23.25% —  Production and sale of thermal
Co., Ltd. (note (iv)) FE of RMB1 each energy equipment
(BRERENRMBENERAR) 285,120,000 - HRENEERHEE
(PEE(iv)) BRARKIT
Guodian Longyuan Technologies United States USD2,000,000 23.25% — 100%  Production and sale of igniters and
USA Corporation e %712,000,000 other electric equipment

HARRAMERRBHEERHE
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19 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

19 HIE AR MIRE ()

Proportion of ownership interest

FEEERLA
Place of Group’s
establishment/  Issued and fully effective  Held by the Held by
Name of the company incorporation paid-up capital interest Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
BRTH AEEY HNE
ARER R/ SR 2HMZHER BAER BALARE ARABE TEER
Beijing Huadian Tianren Power The PRC RMB24,232,100 90% 90% —  Production and sale of
Controlling Technology Co., Ltd. i AR#24,232,100 variable-pitch control system
GREEXRCENEHBMERAF) for wind turbine
BB ERAZERH RS
MEERHE
Guodian Longyuan Electrical Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB14,932,900 51% 51% —  Production and sale of
(REERERERAT) hE AR#14,932,900 wind turbine components
B a0 EREHE
Notes: B =
(i) Except for Guodian Technology & Environment Group Hong Kong () PBRGuodian Technology & Environment
Corporation Limited, Guodian Longyuan Technologies USA Corporation Group Hong Kong Corporation Limited -
and Guodian United Power American LLC, the English translation of the Guodian Longyuan Technologies USA
names of other entities is for identification only. The official names of Corporation A KGuodian United Power
these entities are in Chinese. American LLCEYZ S Z 18 2 5) » HERTE
XEBERRBIZA ZEQRMIE
AEERRXHETE -
(i) These companies were newly established in 2012. (i) ZERRIRR2012FHKZAAF] e
(i) The Group appointed and has the power to appoint the directors of this (i) FZRRRIKIMLAR - KEBBEIBEFa T
company to govern the financial and operating policies of this company WHEEEGZARNESUSARZA A
so as to obtain benefits from its activities since the establishment of this B B 75 BRLAC A BRI A T B 3% A ARV &S
company. EE B P T IR o
(iv) The Company is the biggest equity owner of this company and no other (iv) ARRARZAARANERMEE 1R
equity owners individually or in the aggregate had the power to control BZ AR ARER  NFEE[ERIHK
this company according to the articles of association. Historically, SRMBRENEHZARNEMER
the Company controlled the operation of this company by appointing & -EZABEL L RAREA
senior management, approving annual budget and determining the FareaREREAE FEBEEEHRE
remuneration of employees, etc. The Company has agreements with EEEFME  —HEHZARNKE=E
certain shareholders of this company, whereby such equity owners have BIEEGIRE - BZRRIKIMIAR - RAF]
agreed to vote in concert with the Company since the establishment of HZARINE TR T a0 BE
this company. The PRC lawyer of the Company confirmed that these HERATE  WERRREHEARRQFETH
agreements are valid under relevant PRC laws. Considering the above —BRRE - AR B R EEEMER
mentioned factors, the directors are of the opinion that the Company WEREEFBEARBENEGER N - &
controlled this company during the years presented. REMRERZE  EFEMRE EREER
A - AR R %A R BB o
(v) These companies were acquired through business combinations in (v) R2012FBBEBEAHKETZEQR

2012 (note 41(a) & (b)).

(R HiFE41(a)&(b)) °
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20 Interests in associates

The Group

20 HIE RN TNKRE
AEM
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Share of net assets JEEEEFE 476,811 290,798
Amounts due from associates Bt &N B 2 R 1,200 1,200
478,011 291,998

The Company AN
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARET T

Unlisted shares, at cost

FEEMARD - ERAFE

63,116 63,116
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20 Interests in associates (continued)

The following list contains the particulars of associates, all of which
are unlisted corporate entities and established in the PRC, which
principally affected the results or assets of the Group as at 31
December 2012

20

HBEQRNKRE (&)

TRHWE T HAEE20126128311H
NEEREEEBEATYENHE QT
B FTABL AR AEHE FH
WA 2 AR E o

Proportion of ownership interest

FEEERLA
Group’s
Place of Issued and fully effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of the company establishment paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
2878 AREH HHEAE
ARER R ERRARNER BRER BERAREE BB TEER
Beijing Longyuan Cooling Technology Ltd. ~ The PRC RMB50,000,000 60% 60% —  Production and installation of
(note (ii)) H AR #50,000,000 cooling equipment
ERERRAMRIGERAR) (3 i)) RAZENEERRE
Beijing Guodian Zhishen Control The PRC RMB53,900,000 46.86% 46.86% —  Research and development of
Technology Co., Ltd. HE AR #53,900,000 automatic control system of
GREERREHRMERAR) thermal power generation units
NERAE BB RGN
Datong Sunshine Desulphurisation The PRC RMB8,000,000 20% = 20%  Production and sale of lime and
Preparation Co., Ltd. H AR %8,000,000 limestone powder
(RRBXHEHBERAR) ARERRMH IO EERHE
Guodian Jintech Solar Energy Technology The PRC RMB234,179,000 26.67% — 26.67%  Design, production and sale of
(Yixing) Co., Ltd. HE AR 234,179,000 solar power generation equipment
(EEREAGRERE (ER) BRA) AGREERENRT  EEREE
Dalian Economic and Technical The PRC RMBA48,422,000 50% — 50%  Management and operation of
Development Zone Drain F AR #48,422,000 water treatment projects
Management Co., Ltd. KERERMERELE
(RELERTRERFKERERAR)
Taian Daiyue Galaxy Water Co, Ltd The PRC RMB48,000,000 28% 40% —  Management and operation
(note (iii)) R AR #48,000,000 water treatment projects
(RRSERTFRBRA ) (ki) KEBEEMERRLE
Notes: Pt sE -

(i) The English translation of the names is for identification only. The official
names of these entities are in Chinese.

(i) According to the articles of association of this company, the resolutions
in relation to material financial and operating decisions have to be
passed by three-fourth of directors. As the Company only has rights to
appoint four out of seven directors of this company, the Company does
not have power to control the financial and operating policies of this
company although the Company owns more than half of equity interests
and voting power in this company.

(iii) This company was acquired through business combinations in 2012
(note 41(a) & (b)).

() RAAMRXEWERBANZE LA
BMIERBHH RHXEH -

(i) REZARNRABER  BRERNE
REERROREFTENN Z=EFE
BoEZRAMELBERZF  BRA
REARETHETNNRES  AitE
EARRNB A ZRABF B R MR
REE AR AEZ A R B RS E
RNEBEGIE -

(i) R2012FBAEBEHKREZAE (R
Bt 3E41(a)&(b)) °
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(BRIEZAHA - UAREIIR)

20 Inferests in associates (continued)

Summary financial statements on associates:

20 HPEQNRWRE (B)

BERRMERRME

Assets Liabilities Equity Revenues Profit
£E af 53 10N A
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR¥TR ARETE ARETRT ARETR
2012 2012
100 percent 100% 2,981,510 (1,973,171) 1,008,339 1,171,497 46,599
Group's effective interest AEENEER 1,384,781 (907,970) 476,811 596,212 34,843
2011 20115
100 percent 100% 2,922,014 (2,096,736) 825,278 1,349,581 129,865
Group’s effective interest AEERENHER 1,306,853  (1,016,055) 290,798 689,797 22,547

21 Other equity investments

21 HihERIRE

The Group EE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT
Unlisted equity securities, at cost FELEMERES  BEKATE 160,787 112,255
Listed available-for-sale equity RES A EREES 169,034
securities in Hong Kong
329,821 112,255
The Company AT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
Unlisted equity securities, at cost ELETERES  BKAFE 156,070 107,538
Listed available-for-sale equity REBEmA I HEREEES 169,034 =
securities in Hong Kong
325,104 107,538
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(BRIESAHRP  UAREIIR)

22 Other non-current assets 22 HihERBHEE
The Group AEE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARET T

Long-term trade receivables due from: REFEUR AR SR + (BIEEG))

(note (i))

— related parties under Guodian — BE TSR 242,105 140,445

— third parties —%=H 204,983 130,805
Less: current portion of long-term R RHE Y ey BN AR ER (143,683) (64,486)

trade receivables

303,405 206,764
Long-term service concession receivables J&UKEE = 75 AR 75 45 55 1 = HA FE W 308 832,706 —
due from third parties (note (ii)) (B &% (ii))
Less: current portion of long-term service & : AR 74 5 #E £ HA & Uy 0B 89 (16,194) —
concession receivables BV HAEB
816,512 —
Long-term retention receivables REAEUE RS FRIA - (FHFE(G))
due from: (note (iii))
— related parties under Guodian — BEETNEREE S 272,911 309,095
— third parties == 1,677,150 180,115
1,950,061 489,210
Long-term loans to third parties (note (iv)) 124455 = 8RB E 7 (M 5(iv)) 13,910 37,587
Less: current portion of long-term loans & : REFE KA ENEI L 55 — (10,160)
13,910 27,427
Non-current financial assets ERBEREE 3,083,888 723,401
Long-term prepayments R ERFE AT 3K 17,610 21,550
Deductible VAT (note (v)) AEHIEER (BT EE(v)) 762,689 1,552,401

3,864,187 2,297,352
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22 Other non-current assets (confinued)

22 HithFERBEE (&)

The Company AT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T

Long-term trade receivables REAEUARSR « (FERE())

due from: (note (i))

— related parties under Guodian — HETBR 152,142 132,265

— third parties — 8= 7,360 71,630
Less: current portion of long-term R EAE W R R e BV ER EF o (57,126) (56,305)

trade receivables
Non-current financial assets ERBEMEE 102,376 147,590
Deductible VAT (note (v)) AT NS (A B (B 5E(v)) 55,767 9,790
158,143 157,380

Notes: MI5E -

(iii)

(iv)

Long-term trade receivables represent trade receivables of certain
construction contracts which are repayable by instalments over a 3 to
8-year period.

Long-term service concession receivables due from third parties
represent the amounts contractually and unconditionally receivable in
connection with construction services under concession arrangements
(note 43).

Long-term retention receivables represent retentions of sales of wind
turbines which will be received when the retention period elapses.

A loan to third party represents an unsecured interest-free loan
amounting to RMB13,910,000 which is repayable by instalment from
2015 to 2034.

Deductible VAT represents the input VAT in excess of output VAT. Input
VAT is recognised for the purchase of manufacturing raw materials
and components and acquisitions of machinery and equipment used
for operation. Input VAT will be deductible from output VAT payable for
goods to be sold in subsequent years.

All non-current financial assets of the Group and the Company are
neither past due nor impaired.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

£ BB W R R I8 3-8 F i 0 HME
ME TRES RE TR B IRR -

FE RS = 77 AR5 4 R A & B R 4R
SRR E R TR RERB AR 24
JE R AR 1 FEMROR (B9 RE43) ©

EHRNE RS RBEERRR &K
U 1Bl B [ 70 # 55 65 IR & 0R

RERFE=ITNERBEEERNESR
B AR#13,910,0007C ' %2 EH
R2015F E2034F 7 HAHE

A K HISE (B 75 H 3 TR 0 (B 750 R 4 B TR
EFNED - EREEHRNERELEER
FREFEFNED M AR B B8 AR R
B RER o EREEN A REFEH
EEME AT RS ET T E

AEERARARNAMEFRE C A E
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(BRIESAHRP  UAREIIR)

23 Inventories

(a) Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet comprises:

23 7E

(a) AHFEERBERTHNEFERYE

2012 2011

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARBTT

Raw materials R 1,203,633 873,019
Work in progress TEESR 290,172 481,775
Finished goods EERK G 1,797,170 6,080,419
Spare parts =L s 15,959 53,692
3,306,934 7,488,905

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an

(b) EEHBRERTHEIR/EANGTE

expense and included in the consolidated income statement is SEMAT
as follows:

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
Carrying amount of inventories sold & HFEREHE S8 11,538,509 9,876,078
Write down of inventories FE MU 66,467 36,154
11,604,976 9,912,232
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24 Gross amounts due from/to customers for
contract work

The Group

24 Bl BNEESREFR
R

rEH

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Contract costs incurred plus recognised fEEFEEARBEBLEER 16,103,514 11,423,133
profits less recognised losses FRAN DD B W R F
in connection with construction BB HERA B KL
contracts in progress
Less: progress billings W TIREE R (14,801,659) (10,302,721)
1,301,855 1,120,412
Gross amounts due from customers EUWEESRRPKIARTE 1,946,700 1,638,456
for contract work (notes (ii) and (iii)) (B 3G (i)
Gross amounts due to customers ENEESREPHIEEE (644,845) (518,044)
for contract work (note (iv)) (B FE(iv))
1,301,855 1,120,412
The Company AT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARET T

Contract costs incurred plus recognised EEREESREEESR — 10,554
profits less recognised losses BN I E iR AR R B R MR K
in connection with construction
contracts in progress

Gross amounts due from customers EWEEE RRFRIABRE — 10,554
for contract work (notes (i) and (iii)) (B 3G i)

2012 ANNUAL REPORT £ $R
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(BRIESAHRP  UAREIIR)

24 Gross amounts due from/to customers for
contract work (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Gross amounts due from customers for contract work represent
unbilled revenue for contract work and are presented as assets in
the consolidated balance sheet. Gross amounts due to customers for
contract work represent the amounts billed in advance of the contract
work delivered and are presented as liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheet.

The gross amounts due from customers for contract work of the Group
include amounts of RMB1,571,893,000 (2011: RMB1,069,492,000)
due from related parties under Guodian. All gross amounts due from
customers for contract work of the Company as at 31 December 2011
are due from related parties under Guodian.

As at 31 December 2012, except for amounts of RMB95,815,000 (2011:
RMB66,509,000) which are payable to the Group after the retention
period of construction contracts, all of the remaining gross amounts
due from customers for contract work of the Group are expected to be
recovered within one year. As at 31 December 2011, all of the gross
amounts due from customers for contract work of the Company are
expected to be recovered within one year.

Included in the gross amounts due to customers for contract work are
amounts of RMB421,137,000 (2011: RMB244,073,000) due to related
parties under Guodian.

24 Bl BNEESREFR

TR (F)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

EYEE S RRPFIAREEARTE
HTRERENRA  ERHEERE
RPINREE - BRNEERREPHE
BEECRRESRSNOTKIREN
TR EAERBERANIAEE -

AEBEREREEGRES RBEAED
FEEAEE T B AR5 WA KR
AR #1,571,893,0007T (20114 : AR
#1,069,492,0007T) ° 2011412831
B ARAERZESREFRIEEE
ARV BT T B RS AR -

MR2012F 128318 " BEES RE
THREBRMZEENGERERENA
R #95,815,0007T (20114 : AR
66,509,0007T) Z b+ AN B fE YT 2 i
ARBFERIBAEHAFIRIERR - B
T —F Z2AME - B2011412831
B ARAEKZESREFRIEEE
WA KRR BetE—F2RKE -

BEETENEEARZTPRIEAEZA
MES N EEE BN @RS ORIER
AR #421,137,0007T (20114 : AR¥E
244,073,0007T) °
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25 Trade and bills receivables 25 EWERAR R ZEE
The Group ZN
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Trade receivables for contract SR IEAEUERK :
work due from:
— related parties under Guodian —EBEETEN@SG S 2,930,806 2,958,402
— associates . = WANE — 10,436
— third parties —%=x 1,151,661 740,572
4,082,467 3,709,410
Bills receivable for contract AERIEMNERERE
work due from:
— related parties under Guodian — BETERREE 1,449,447 82,932
— third parties — F=F 280,599 227,157
1,730,046 310,089
Trade receivables for operating 4T & A FEUUR R
leases due from:
— related parties under Guodian — EETEN@E S 531,402 327,352
— third parties —F%=F 8,282 4,938
539,684 332,290
Trade receivables for sale of goods $HE B MR RS B FE U BR X ¢
and rendering of services due ( Bf 5 (ii))
from: (note (ii))
— Guodian — BE — 145
— related parties under Guodian — HETEBABEE S 1,372,583 863,546
— associates — Bt QA 33,255 11,530
— third parties — F=h 6,142,653 3,299,075
7,548,491 4,174,296
Bills receivable for sale of goods and BRE=FHHEE DM ERRHERE 495,509 1,495,265
rendering of services due from third O FE M = BR (BT 7 (i)
parties (note (ii))
14,396,197 10,021,350
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RITBR B (135,474) (95,772)
14,260,723 9,925,578
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25 Trade and bills receivables (continued)

The Company

25 BRUWRARRE (&)

RAF

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T ARBT T

Trade receivables for contract ARIIEREIER
work due from:

— related parties under Guodian — BETENEES 71,698 —
— third parties —F=F 96,404 82,427
168,102 82,427
Trade receivables for sale of goods SHE M m MR RIS A BRI ¢
and rendering of services due from:
— related parties under Guodian — BE BB 245 56,903
— third parties — B= 84,990 25,106
85,235 82,009
Bills receivable for sale of goods FE U B A B Y H B P & 51,500 6,464
and rendering of services due TR AR TS B Uk =
from a subsidiary
304,837 170,900
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W RIEREME (12,128) (12,128)
292,709 158,772

Notes:

(i) Trade and bills receivables of the Group include bills discounted
to banks or endorsed to suppliers and factored trade receivables
with recourse totalling RMB1,559,634,000 (2011: RMB707,123,000).
These receivables were not derecognised as the Group remains
exposed to the credit risk of these receivables. The carrying amount
of the associated bank loans and trade payables amounted to
RMB1,491,103,000 (2011: RMB690,769,000). As at 31 December
2012, the fair value of the transferred assets and the associated
liabilities is the same as their carrying amount, with the net position of
RMB68,531,000.

(i) As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables of the Group amounting to
RMB335,259,000 (2011: RMB335,620,000) was pledged as collateral
for long-term bank loans (see note 29).

All trade and bills receivables (net of impairment losses for
doubtful debts) of the Group and the Company are expected to be
recovered within one year.

#iiz -

() AEENEREREZEREMES
BITHER EEERAHEINE
B ARFERENERERRE - £
% & A R #1,559,634,0007T (20114F :
AR ¥707,123,0007T) ° i& L& & U BR 53X
MBEAEP LR RARNEENY
EEERKERMZEAGERARAR -
HERTERAREMNEXNEDSE
A AR #1,491,103,0007T (20114 = A
R %690,769,0007T) ° KR2012F 128
1B HEEEN L AEBERBEEA
BEEEEESBEAR  FEBEAARK
68,531,0007T ©

(i) M2012%412A318 - $E@f‘ﬁﬁjﬁﬁﬂ
$R1T B XY i A FE U BR 3R
R #335,259,0007t (20114 : /\E%
335,620,0007T) ( R Fi7E29) °

AREBEARTNMAE BUERRERE
(B RERMNRERE) B8R —
FzR%kmE -
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25 Trade and bills receivables (continued)

(a) Ageing analysis

As at 31 December 2012, the ageing analysis of trade and bills
receivables, based on invoice date and net of allowance for
doubtful debts of the Group and the Company is as follows:

25 B IRR K R ()

(a) BRIER D47

R2012%12A318 » AEFEARD
AIERMAYZEZ AN EWRERR
Z (N RIBREBE) ERE DT

R

The Group REE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARET T
Within 1 year 1F A 13,001,712 9,385,711
Between 1 to 2 years 1—2F R 1,097,910 466,396
Between 2 to 3 years 2—3F RN 139,395 50,315
Over 3 years 3FELE 21,706 23,156
14,260,723 9,925,578

The Company AN
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
Within 1 year 1FER 253,939 109,651
Between 1 to 2 years 1—2F R 25,602 25,690
Between 2 to 3 years 2—3F RN 12,923 23,431
Over 3 years 3F L 245 —
292,709 158,772

Trade receivables are required to be settled in accordance
with contracted terms and are generally due immediately
without credit upon the issuance of invoice. Further details on
the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 37(a).

W BRI IR A RHERF AT » — TR
ERARBYNEAREE AN -
ARASBEERABRENFARSA 258

MfzE37(a) °
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25 Trade and bills receivables (continued)

(b) Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills receivables
are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against trade and bills
receivables directly (see note 2(n)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year, including both specific and collective loss components, is
as follows:

25 BRUWRARRE (&)

(b) EURERREREBHRE

JE WS BR 3k R AR A LB S 1R A M aE
ABERER BRIEAEBREBLTT
AR B RIE - ERIERZT
R E % #8 UL S B WOAR R e R LR
EREAHE (RHEE2(n)i) -

AN A B A B8 )RR AR B A 0
ZEHMT

The Group REH
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARET T
At 1 January 1H1H 95,772 49,992
Impairment losses recognised ERH R EEE 42,837 49,045
Reversal of impairment losses A E e E O (3,135) (2,859)
Uncollectible amounts written off AT U2 [B] FIE /Y S 45 — (406)
At 31 December 12A31H 135,474 95,772
The Company AN/ |
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARET T

At 1 January and 31 December 1H18 Kk12H31H

12,128 12,128

The Group’s and the Company’s trade and bills receivables of
RMB167,224,000 (2011: RMB61,064,000) and RMB12,128,000
(2011: RMB12,128,000) were individually determined
to be impaired. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial difficulties and
management assessed that the receivables are expected
to be unrecoverable. Consequently, specific allowances for
doubtful debts of RMB118,834,000 (2011: RMB60,564,000) and
RMB12,128,000 (2011: RMB12,128,000) were recognised by
the Group and the Company respectively.

AREBFBBRANRFEEANFE RSB R
ENERERREESIABARKE
167,224,0007T (20114 : AR
61,064,0007T) £ A R #12,128,0007T
(20114 : AR#12,128,0007T) ° #
BRI E A B R E R &Y RIE T @R
GEMERENZRFAEEETIER
AEBWHRIBAA gD - EFit - A&
EEANRRDFEEHREEREREET A
R 118,834,0007T (20114F : AR ¥
60,564,0007T) £ A R #12,128,0007T
(20114 : AR#12,128,0007T) °
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25 Trade and bills receivables (continued)

(c) Trade and bills receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired
are as follows:

25 B IRR K R ()

(c) XT|BENEVRERRKRRE

REE RARBIGR R ERER
EWERRME B DT

The Group NEE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
Neither past due nor impaired BR o 18 B U SR (B 3,108,033 2,425,806
Within 1 year 1F A 9,893,679 6,803,895
Between 1 to 2 years 1224 952,315 418,280
Between 2 to 3 years 2E34F 105,971 50,315
Over 3 years 3FELE 10,164 11,614
10,962,129 7,284,104
14,070,162 9,709,910

The Company b NN
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARET T
Neither past due nor impaired BE R @ AR TN Rl (B 108,626 62,769
Within 1 year 1FER 145,313 46,882
Between 1 to 2 years 1524 25,602 25,690
Between 2 to 3 years 2FE 34 12,923 23,431
Over 3 years 3F LA 245 —
184,083 96,003
292,709 158,772

Aged receivables that were not impaired relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there were no recent history of
default and have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

RAREERENREREREBERERERZE
P ZEEFPBARBENESL
EAEE-BERFRIEFNZFLH R
BRERLR  BREMRGE ZFHEE
ARERE AEREERBELEERE
B WEBULERDERBATAZHK
E - REBIARY EARBRBIHARY
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26 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

EZEHA  AARBIIR)

26 %  EAREREMER

MIE
The Group AEE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT
Prepayments to sub-contractors (note (i) 3% {45 % /& 7 e 8 1+ 3% (Bt 7))
— related parties under Guodian — BEETEMEES 21,965 44,200
— associates el WNE] 20,688 4,808
— third parties —E=5 861,775 390,837
Prepayments for purchase of inventories  REEF S R FE R
— related parties under Guodian — BEETEEE S 227 17,180
— associates el NE]| 3,270 613
— third parties —%=5 238,637 363,823
Deposits for construction contracts’ BESRAMNBEIRHRES
bidding or performance (note (ii)) (B (i)
— Guodian — BE — 300
— related parties under Guodian — BE TR S 98,909 33,294
— third parties —%=h 136,857 85,402
Other deposits Hibize 10,355 5,158
Advances to staff LB TR 15,521 29,130
Advances to IR
— related parties under Guodian — BE TR S 447 3,691
— associates (note (iii)) NI EE({T)) 137,862 4,181
— third parties = =% 81,998 6,558
Interest receivables from third parties W =75 FEW A A B 9,035 9,369
Dividends receivable from associates HEBs: 2 N B FE UL A AR 2 14,592 12,350
Consideration receivable from FEWEE TEE’JE@HﬁpHE’Jﬁ% 100,001 101,222
a related party under Guodian /N L= o N
for the disposal of an associate
Others Hib 47,302 29,966
1,799,441 1,142,082
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W RIBEREME (4,730) (2,180)
1,794,711 1,139,902
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(BRIEZEHRB  UAREIIR)

26 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

(continued)

26 B&

- ENRERHEAER

A (&)

The Company A
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT R ARET T
Prepayments to third party XNEE=7 5 BEHNTENK 84,990 —
sub-contractors
Advances to IR
— subsidiaries — B AA 7,615,524 3,550,970
— associates . NG 120 3,691
Dividends receivable from & Y B A% B
— subsidiaries — B A 348,249 38,328
— associate — B E R A 13,886 12,350
Consideration receivable from JEWEETBRER TN HE 100,001 101,222
a related party under Guodian for A E R EE
the disposal of an associate
Others Hib 10,814 23,327
8,173,584 3,729,888
Less: allowance for doubtful debts A - RIEERREME — (280)
8,173,584 3,729,608
Notes: et -

()

(i)

(iii)

The balances represent prepayments to the sub-contractors in
connection with the Group’s construction contracts. The prepayments
will be settled upon the delivery of goods and services by the sub-
contractors.

The balances represent deposits placed with customers for contracts
bidding or performance of contracts in progress. The deposits will be
released to the Group upon the completion of the related bidding or
contract work, where applicable.

All advances to associates are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand except for amounts of RMB112,000,000 and RMB21,525,000
as at 31 December 2012 bear interest at 6.00% per annum and
6.60% per annum, and are repayable on 23 December 2013 and 27
December 2013, respectively. There were no interest-bearing advances
to associates as at 31 December 2011.

()

(i)

(iii)

ZHEEEANARENZESRM
ADBEEXNNBENK - 2 BER
NEMRRS 2% - A& HTAEMAR
=E -

ZHARENERREXERELY
MXREPNRES - HAKE
FARIRTILZE  ZRESA
R ERAKE -

R2012F12A31H ' Bk A B
112,000,000 & A R #
21,525,000t F B X 5 Al &
6.00% * 6.60%2 5 * B 5 5l E R
2013% 12230 Kk2013F12A27
HEROFREBEZIN - BT MG
ERAMBRHEER  FTHSE
REEBRZEBAEIRER R
2011 12A318 * KB E A4 5
ERRIREHFE BN -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R% SRR Mt (4R)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESAHP  UAREIIR)

26 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 26 ZE  AARERHEMER
(continued) I ()
(a) Impairment of deposits, prepayments and other receivables (a) & FBAANRERHEAMERRE
#Y R {E
Impairment of deposits, prepayments and other receivables %4 - BN ZRE R HE i E W RIE
are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is MBS ABERE  BRIEAEFER
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case BT RO gl FHIE - ELE
the impairment loss is written off against deposits, prepayments T AEESLSRS BN
and other receivables directly (note 2(n)(i)). FRIE K H b FE U 70 T8 B Rk (B A 18 b

#5 (LM EE2(n)(i))
The movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful accounts NG 2 B AN L B R I AR B )

=3
during the year, including both specific and collective loss BT :
components, is as follows:

The Group AEE

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

At 1 January 1H1H 2,180 8,389
Impairment losses recognised ERA R EEE 3,779 2,385
Reversal of impairment losses A E I8 O] (296) (8,220)
Uncollectible amounts written off R EHT A Y Bl & 5B (933) —
Disposal of subsidiary &K B AR — (5,374)
At 31 December 12H31H 4,730 2,180
The Company ARH
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARETTT

At 1 January 1H1H 280 280
Reversal of impairment losses BB 5 R 8 [0 (280) —

At 31 December 12A31H — 280
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZEHRB  UAREIIR)

26 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
(continued)

(a) Impairment of deposits, prepayments and other receivables
(continued)

The Group’s deposits, prepayments and other receivables
of RMB2,846,000 (2011: RMB2,180,000) were individually
determined to be impaired. The individually impaired
receivables related to the counterparties that were in financial
difficulties and management assessed that the receivables
are expected to be unrecoverable. Consequently, specific
allowances for doubtful debts of RMB2,846,000 (2011:
RMB2,180,000) were recognised by the Group.

For other balances of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables, management is of the opinion that the
counterparties are with good credit quality and the balances
are considered fully recoverable.

27 Restricted deposits

Restricted deposits mainly represent guarantee deposits, cash
pledged as collateral for bills payable and loans. Majority of these
restricted deposits are expected to be released within one year. As
at 31 December 2012, a deposit of RMB99,900,000 was pledged
as the collateral for a short-term bank loan (see note 29).

26 %  FAREREMER

A (&)

(a) & BANREREMERKRE
YR 1E ()

AEEHRE FEARFE A RENE
& BERNRBEBRERREBEBEARE
2,846,0007T (20114 : 2,180,000
JL) o WRTE BB R AR E K FKIE
TEARTFERSREMBENE T E
ERETTRAHEBKFBEEINT
A AEdE o FH it ANEEE R E
SRS T AR 2,846,000t (2011
£ : 2,180,0007T) °

BARNEMZE BN REREME
WHRE BERERR HHTABR
HOMEREE  ERSE R
R N E At B WO AT LA SE 2 U] o

27 ZREIFER

XRHNFAEZRARESER BN
ZERARNERRE KZEZR 7T
IR P — G 2 NARBR R il - 732012
F12A318 ' ASEAMGEHRITE
I ARIR & A K #99,900,0007t (R K
££29) o

2012 ANNUAL REPORT % $R
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*
BEENEBRREBRGERAF




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 5 3 R Y 5 (4R
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(BRIESAHP  UAREIIR)

28 Cash at bank and in hand

2 RITERREFRE

The Group AEH
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARET T
Cash in hand EFRE 1,071 1,032
Cash at bank RITER 3,962,887 6,566,683
Cash at Guodian Finance Corporation  BIEM & B R A & 228,829 —
Limited (“Guodian Finance”) (TREBHFHK]) PHTER
4,192,787 6,567,715
Representing: s
— cash and cash equivalents — HeNIREEEY 3,405,287 5,626,647
— deposits with banks over — HEA R =& A LA EeiRITIE K 787,500 941,068
three months of original maturity
4,192,787 6,567,715
The Company KA F
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT
Cash in hand EFR e 89 152
Cash at bank RITTE 1,395,783 2,647,966
Cash at Guodian Finance B B 75 o R 1F K 8,816 —
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 1,404,688 2,648,118




29 Borrowings

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B %5 3 R Y o (AR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZEHRB  UAREIIR)

(a) The long-term interest-bearing borrowings comprise:

29 f& &

(a) BHIW B (SR -

The Group KEME
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREEFTT
Bank loans RITER
— secured (note (i)) — I (FEEG)) 1,842,000 293,140
— unsecured — R 1,439,900 1,175,200
Other loans Hth B
— secured (note (i)) — R (FIEG)) 6,190 —
— unsecured — ER 5,000 11,727
Corporate bonds (note (ii)) A alEH (M) 4,042,084 —
7,335,174 1,480,067
Less: current portion of B REBRE BN S (968,595) (341,339)
long-term borrowings
6,366,579 1,138,728
The Company NN
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTT
Bank loans (unsecured) RITE X (EIEIR) 1,090,000 840,000
Corporate bonds (note (ii)) AR EZ (B RE(ii)) 4,042,084 —
5,132,084 840,000
Less: current portion of o REERW B E o (775,978) (200,000)
long-term borrowings
4,356,106 640,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R% SRR Mt (4R)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESAHP  UAREIIR)

29 Borrowings (continued)

(a) Th

e long-term interest-bearing borrowings comprise:

(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

Secured long-term interest-bearing borrowings as at 31 December
2012 were guaranteed and/or secured by concession assets (note
17), property, plant and equipment (note 14), lease prepayments
(note 16), trade and bills receivables (note 25), equity interests
in and income stream of certain subsidiaries. Secured long-term
interest-bearing borrowings as at 31 December 2011 were secured
by concession assets (note 17) and income stream of certain
subsidiaries.

In August 2012, the Company issued corporate bonds of
RMB4,000,000,000, which comprise 3-year corporate bonds
of RMB1,200,000,000 issued at par and with a coupon rate of
4.30% per annum, 5-year corporate bonds of RMB800,000,000
issued at par and with a coupon rate of 4.65% per annum and
10-year corporate bonds of RMB2,000,000,000 issued at par and
with a coupon rate of 5.15% per annum. All corporate bonds are
guaranteed by Guodian. The effective interest rates of the bonds
are 4.52%, 4.85% and 5.24% per annum respectively.

29 & (&)

(a) REFEEREE  (8)

(i)

(ii)

R2012F 128318 » AN R H
BRERAZERE, A&
BREE (ME17) DE- BE

Bl (HaE14) - FEMNTHAE
(B EE16) ~ FEURBR X R = 4% (Ffd
#25) - & THE QR 2 RE R
BRI - R2011F12A318 K
R RATEERARTEEE (
H17) BE THE QAR B EE
-

201248 A20H » " A G BT A
Al f& % A R #4,000,000,0007T
BERAEZRTHN=FHAAE
% A R #1,200,000,0007C * Z&
FFEHLI0%  HEEFETHR
F Bl A Rl & % A K 800,000,000
T REEFNEKAB465% EE
BEINTFHARNBEHFARE
2,000,000,0007T * ZE & 5| & A&
515% - FTBE A RIBEHBHEE#&
R UEEBHFNERFFNES R A
4.52% ~ 4.85% 55.24% °

(b) The short-term interest-bearing borrowings comprise: (b) EHEEEREE:
The Group REE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREF T
Bank loans RITER
— secured (note) — R (H5E) 927,100 249,499
— unsecured — 4K 3 7,427,716 10,347,444
Other loans (unsecured) H M ER(EEA) 500,000 —
Current portion of REAE KA BN ER & 968,595 341,339
long-term borrowings
9,823,411 10,938,282
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29 Borrowings (continued)

(b) The shortterm interest-bearing borrowings comprise:

(continued)

The Company

29 AR (&)

(b) EHHEEREE ()

RATF

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT

Bank loans (unsecured) RITE R (EIKIR) 3,120,000 3,970,000
Current portion of REEZRHBEIERE 5 775,978 200,000

long-term borrowings
3,895,978 4,170,000

Note:

Secured short-term interest-bearing borrowings as at 31 December
2012 were guaranteed and/or secured by income stream of certain
subsidiaries, trade and bills receivables (note 25) and bank deposits
(note 27). Secured short-term interest-bearing borrowings as at 31
December 2011 were secured by trade and bills receivables (note 25).

(c) The interest rates per annum on borrowings are as follows:

#iiz -

R20126 128318 + LI EHH B8
RAZERR SIS THE A 8 # UK
Bk EUERR R ZE (HisE25) R RAT
73 (MY 5527 ) 1B 18 - 7820114512 8
BTHERE TS ETABBERRE
& (M1 5E25) fEHHH -

(c) ERERMRMT :

The Group ZS 3L

2012 2011
Long-term RE
Bank loans RITE 5.23%~7.68%  4.48%~7.74%
Other loans HiBE 0.30%~9.10% 0.30%~2.88%
Corporate bonds NAElfEFH 4.30%~5.15% —
Short-term bRt
Bank loans IRITERK 5.10%~7.22%  5.81%~7.87%
Other loans HEiER 5.40% —
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29 Borrowings (continued)

(c) The interest rates per annum on borrowings are as follows:
(continued)

The Company

29

& (&)

(c) BERFMERMT : (H)

2012

2011

Long-term R
Bank loans RITER
Corporate bonds NGIEEE2S
Short-term 5= 5
Bank loans RITER

5.23%~5.54%
4.30%~5.15%

5.10%~6.60%

4.48%~6.65%

5.81%~6.88%

(d) The long-term borrowings are repayable as follows:

(d) REERERBEROT :

The Group AEE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBF T
Within 1 year or on demand 168 (A B, B Sk R 37 BN 38 7K 968,595 341,339
After 1 year but within 2 years 1E A FE2FENUR 773,709 777,339
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F LA FBSF AR 3,780,036 190,007
After 5 years 5% E 1,812,834 171,382
7,335,174 1,480,067

The Company ARTH
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBT T
Within 1 year or on demand 1 sk 2 5Kk 37 B 3R 775,978 200,000
After 1 year but within 2 years 1 LA _FB2E AR 177,176 590,000
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F LA EESF A 2,607,106 50,000
After 5 years 5% A 1,571,824 —
5,132,084 840,000
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(BRIEZEHRB  UAREIIR)

30 Trade and bills payables 30 ERERRRFEE (H&)
The Group rEE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBTTT

Bills payable to: e AR
— sub-contractors and — D BEMEEEERS 502,444 205,997
equipment suppliers
— raw material suppliers — R R R 2,044,644 2,822,025
2,547,088 3,028,022
Trade payables to: JETRRFR -
— sub-contractors and equipment — D BRE MR ERER
suppliers:
— related parties under Guodian —BE T & B 11,720 3,538
— associates —H & A A 1,733 640
— third parties —FE=5 2,770,149 1,809,047
2,783,602 1,813,225
— raw material suppliers: — R R FERY -
— related parties under Guodian HETEMNBEE S 226,193 71,394
— associates i A=WAE 5,017 27,784
— third parties —%£=5 6,714,825 7,704,501
6,946,035 7,803,679
12,276,725 12,644,926
The Company A
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

Trade payables to sub-contractors HOBEMRERERAEMNERR
and equipment suppliers:
— related parties under Guodian —EHETNE/NBEE S 2,645 389
— subsidiaries —Pff B A &l 12,777 74,161
— associates — & N A] 368 503
— third parties == 3,713 29,920
19,503 104,973
As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, all trade and bills payables of 20124 K2011E12 8318 + B R6(E
the Group and the Company are repayable on demand except for AARAEESHNENEZR ZIN  NEEH
bills payable which are repayable within 6 months. All trade and FTAERENERRERERL S HERKET
bills payables are expected to be settled within one year. BMEE - BRI A BN ERRZREE

—FZREB °
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31 Other payables 31 Hftt B FIH
The Group 3 S
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Interest payables S FI B

— related parties under Guodian — EETBN@EE T — 7,400

— third parties —F£=5 17,636 16,410
Payables for staff related costs JE~F B TH) A8 A A 54,011 62,091
Payables for other taxes JFE A E M IE 159,373 153,149
Payable for acquisition of property, BEYE  BERZRHEAKL

plant and equipment and T (E A AER BN RUB

land use rights

— related parties under Guodian — BE B 384,303 197,569

— associates — BN A — 119,737

— third parties —E=75 1,071,902 748,657
Deposits from sub-contractors (note (i)) 78 & X HEV RS (B EE()) 142,179 158,312
Retention payables (note (ii)) FE A AR & 5K IB (BT #E(ii)) 59,595 49,417
Advances from (note (iii)) 250 (B (i)

— Guodian — HE 300,000 —

— associates — B QR — 259

— third parties —%=h 246,928 143,698
Dividends payables FERF IR B

— Guodian — 8% 172,524 —

— related parties under Guodian — BE B 298,246 —

— third parties — F=75 14,467 2,559
Listing expenses payable et EmE R 180 58,289
Other accruals and payables H b TE 12 & 5B E R < 3R 08

— Guodian — S 7,310 —

— related parties under Guodian — BE B 58,516 28,150

— associates — Bt N A 3,256 4179

— third parties —F=75 123,531 78,640
Financial liabilities TRAE 3,113,957 1,828,516
Receipts in advance (note (iv)) FEd R IR (KT EE(iv))

— related parties under Guodian — BE T B 180,104 546,645

— third parties —E=5 570,548 2,432,614

750,652 2,979,259

3,864,609 4,807,775
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31 Other payables (continued)

31 E e 5KE (&)

The Company N
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETT
Interest payables FEASFIE
— related parties under Guodian — EETBN@EE S — 7,400
— third parties —%=h 7,846 —
Payables for staff related costs FE T B TH 8K A 2,055 12,473
Payables for other taxes FE A E IR 20,568 4,576
Payable for acquisition of property, BEYE  BERZHEAKR
plant and equipment and T (E AAER BN RUR
land use rights
— subsidiaries — KB AR 291,964 204,572
— third parties — =5 55,280 136,062
Advances from subsidiaries (note (v)) WK B D RIS 2 20 (B 3E(v)) 1,261,584 587,501
Dividends payables FERF AR B
— Guodian — T 172,524 —
— related parties under Guodian — BE B 165,759 —
Listing expenses payable JEft ETE A 180 58,289
Other accruals and payables HithFEIR S EBEEN FRIE
— Guodian — BHE 7,060 —
— related parties under Guodian — BE B 59 33,326
— third parties —%=h 32,845 20,363
Financial liabilities TRIBE 2,017,724 1,064,562
Receipts in advance T8 R IE
— subsidiaries — KB AR 17,191 15,641
— third parties —%£=5 135,160 1,689
152,351 17,330
2,170,075 1,081,892
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31 Other payables (continued)

Notes:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The balances represent deposits from sub-contractors for contract
bidding. The deposits will be released to sub-contractors upon the
completion of the related bidding.

Retention payables represent the amounts due to equipment and
construction contractors which will be settled upon the expiry of the
warranty period.

All amounts are interest-free, unsecured and have no fixed terms of
repayment except for amounts totalling RMB146,964,000 as at 31
December 2012 which bear interest rate of 6.00% per annum.

Included in the balance are amounts of RMB28,751,000 (2011:
RMB111,183,000) advances received from customers for which the
related construction works have not commenced as at the balance
sheet date.

All amounts are interest-free, unsecured and have no fixed
terms of repayment except for amounts of RMB150,512,000
(2011: RMB529,451,000) of the Company which bear interest
rate of 5.80% (2011: 6.10% to 7.05%) per annum.

All of the other payables of the Group and the Company are
expected to be settled or recognised as income within one year or
are repayable on demand.

31 HAb B 7E (8])

wit -

(M)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

ZREEERGREERS BEKREN
?ﬁ HERZRER 2% BSAEE
BB -
ERERESFBERRIEG R 2% - AIE
4R E R T A B EAFIE -

201212 4318 & | £6.00%H A R
#146,964,0007C 25 * FT B RIEH T
HE - EKIEARBTEERS -

ZRERERETEFPFRINARE
28,751,0007E (20114 : 111,183,0007T
AR)BYHIE REEBERAY
ZH HEEZEIRMARTI-

BA 2R ARM150,512,0007T (2011
& AR#529,451,0007T) FF K A&
5.80% (20114 : 6.10%-7.05% ) Z 5 -
FTBEEMRBE AT EERIE  EK
o R R EEREAR -

FEFH AN S B B AN X B O P A EL A FE A R
BN —FZABEFRERB/EA - 3L
REZRZETEIZAS -
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32 Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet

(a) Tax payable/(recoverable) in the consolidated balance sheet

NREHEERBERTHAES

(@) EHEEREBRTEN (TR

represents: |)BiEA :
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT
Net tax (receivable)/payable 1818 (AT E) B R EERE (1,904) 8,135
at 1 January
Provision for the year (note 8(a)) RFZ AR (K15E8(a)) 288,667 200,246
Over-provision in respect of NEFEREE BT (FI:Es(a)) (1,375) (14,765)
prior year (note 8(a))
Income tax paid AN E TSR (262,460) (195,520)
Net tax payable/(receivable) 12 A31 B ER/ (FTHE) B TEF & 22,928 (1,904)
at 31 December
Representing: B
Tax payable FE PTG R 72,574 126,058
Tax recoverable Al Ug B 718 (49,646) (127,962)
22,928 (1,904)
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32 Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet NEHEEEBRPIIEH
(continued) (&)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) EEANELEB BEEERAR :
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised AHEEABRPHERNELETE
in the consolidated balance sheet and the movements during BE/ (BB AREXREENE L
the year are as follows: 1FR 0T prat
Provision Unrealised
for profits on Provision
impairment intra-group ~ Deferred for  Intangible
Deferred tax arising from of assets  Tax losses transactions income  warranty assets Others Total
SERE
BERE REAER
EERERE BE HEEE mAE  EEKE ERERE  BREE 2 &t

RMB'0O0 ~ RMB000  RMB000  RMBOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB00O
(note (1)) (note (i)
AREFT ARBTT AREFR ARETR AR®TT ARETR ARETT ARETR

(B (1) (B (i)

At1 January 2011 011E1718 7241 10,463 4218 40,258 5090 (14110) 4489 97,649

Disposal of a subsidiary HENBAT = (1431) = = = = = (1431)

Credited/(cherged) to profit or HA/ () B 12,658 23,081 (1,025) (6,560) 46984 2928 54 78320
loss (note 8(a)) (FizE8(a))

At 31 December 2011 and N1ERANBR 20,099 2113 3193 33698 RO74  (11182) 4543 174538
1 January 2012 20121818

Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHB AR - - - - - (77,801) - (77,801)
(note 41(a) & (b)) (F&E41(a)8 (b))

Credited)(charged) to profit A/ (M) 85 16,707 (756) 10,261 1,087 17,033 (2,638) 15,664 57,358
or loss (note 8(a) (BH5=8(a))

At 31 December 2012 20124 12A318 36,806 31,357 13,454 34,785 109,107 (91,621) 20,207 154,095
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZAHA - UAREIIR)

32 Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet
(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (continued)

Notes:

(iy Deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses are
related to subsidiaries that were established in recent
years. They are now progressing to their normal production
stage and are deriving profits. Accordingly, it is considered
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
in the future to utilise their unused tax losses before they
expire.

(i) Deferred tax liabilities in respect of intangible assets arose
from the temporary differences in development costs and
concession assets.

RNREHEEEBRTIHAER
(&)

(b) ERANELERBEEREARE:
(#%)

Hiat -

(i) BERRFI A &y m] 0B R S 48 A EE
HEHEENIREAE » BT FRKL
BB ARER  ELMBAREA
ATIEFE 2 A& IE SN0 P dR EE £ 7
e HE R RAEEFE
RSB - e A AL R
VAR AR 7 A B9 AT SN B IR B 48

(i) BER A EPTE £ EEFTSH
BERRNFAERALEFEEE
MERIEERMEER -

Reconciliation to the balance sheet AHZEERER
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Net deferred tax asset recognised  REEBBEXRTHRAL 249,765 174,538
in the balance sheet BB IR EEFH
Net deferred tax liability recognised REE B EXRHPERK (95,670) —
in the balance sheet BB R EFHE
154,095 174,538

2012 ANNUAL REPORT £ $R
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32 Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet NREHEEEBRIYVAEH

(continued) (48)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

(c) RERWELEHREE

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
2(v), the Group and the Company have not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses and
certain deductible temporary differences of RMB348,657,000
(2011: RMB194,454,000) and RMB213,226,000 (2011:
RMB178,016,000), respectively, as it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses or the temporary
differences can be utilised will be available in the relevant
tax jurisdictions and entities. As at 31 December 2012, the
expiration of tax losses of the Group and the Company, if
unused, is as follows:

RIEMZ2(v)F B EH SR
ROAEERARALERRER
FAMATEMNKEEEIRRE &
AEMNEREZEES R AA
K #348,657,0007T (20114 :
AR #194,454,0007) & A R ¥
213,226,0007T (20114F : AR
178,016,0007T) MR IEE B IH B
E BACHBEHBEERGRE
BRI - ¥R NR ] B B A AT LA A
HEAMBAHEGEESTREER
O JE 49 75 I B o 12012412 A 31
B AEBEEARRFRFANHE
EENEBRESRIWT

The Group EE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
2012 2012 — 15,188
2013 2013 33,380 33,380
2014 2014 39,784 39,784
2015 2015 45,164 45,164
2016 2016 9,812 9,812
2017 2017 129,234 —
257,374 143,328

The Company ENN|
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARET T
2012 2012 —_ 15,188
2013 2013 33,380 33,380
2014 2014 39,784 39,784
2015 2015 40,448 40,448
2017 2017 9,376 —
122,988 128,800
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32 Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet
(continued)

(d) Deferred tax liability not recognised

At 31 December 2012, taxable temporary differences relating to
undistributed profits and PRC statutory reserves of subsidiaries
and associates amounted to RMB2,091,375,000 (2011:
RMB1,933,061,000). No deferred tax liability was recognised
in respect of these taxable temporary differences as dividends
from subsidiaries and associates are not subject to PRC
income tax and the Group has no plan to dispose of these
subsidiaries and associates in the foreseeable future.

33 Provision for warranty

The movement of provisions for product warranty during the year is

RNREHEEEBRTIHAER

(%)
(d) KR HIEEDEA K

R2012F12A318 - BRK B A A
BB E N RM RS EFERFEEE
AEENEATEREEZEERAR
#2,091,375,0007T (201145 : AR
1,933,061,0007T) ° BRIt S ME N T
RUEZE AERCAECHHESR
& AAKKBARREEDQANEM
BETEHMMTBESEH  BEAIBR
HIRR  REBVETMAFEHELSE
MEARREE A G -

BBEREHE

AEREERERSBENZLNT

as follows:

The Group REH
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT
At 1 January 1H1H 475,446 228,914
Additional provisions made BINEE R 223,430 255,907
Provision utilised B AR E (36,442) (9,375)
Provision reversed B {FEE o (72,693) =
At 31 December 12A31H 589,741 475,446
Less: current portion of B EIREBENRIE S (80,920) (83,578)

provision for warranty

508,821 391,868
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33 Provision for warranty (continued)

Under the terms of the Group’s sales agreements, the Group will
rectify product defects of wind turbines and steam turbines arising
within two to five years of the date of sale. Provision is therefore
made for the best estimate of the expected settlement under these
agreements in respect of sales made within two to five years prior
to the balance sheet date.

In addition, the Group’s photovoltaic modules typically sold with a
two or five-year warranty for defects in materials and workmanship
and a ten and twenty-five year minimum power output warranty,
against declines of more than 10% and 20%, respectively, of initial
power generation capacity from the date of delivery. The Group has
the responsibility to repair or replace solar modules, at customers’
option, under the terms of the warranty policy. The Group maintains
warranty provision to cover potential liabilities that could arise
under these warranties.

The amount of the provision takes into account the Group’s
recent claim experience and the experiences of other companies
for similar products and is only made where a warranty claim is
probable.

During 2012, the warranty period of a number of wind turbine sold
has lapsed which has provided more reliable internal historical
product failure data to management for estimating the Group’s
warranty costs. In addition, the market price of wind turbine
materials has continuously decreased during 2012 which has
resulted in a decrease in warranty costs to the Group. Therefore,
management reassessed the provision for outstanding warranty
obligation at the balance sheet date and has reversed a provision
of RMB72,693,000 in respect of the wind turbines sold in prior
years.

IBEREEME (A)

REASEHEBRGTRE ERE
HH 8 2 %2—5%5F N A B )T i K E
EMERRE  NEESETRE -
- EBEERERB M ZAM2-55F
AHHE REBHEBATHRAENSS
BOREMETEL THE -

[ R Y O N R Ea o ek
FEFHEM R R RET BREERE -
B EH R4 A B M 11 0A T B AL S BRI
B B10%E120% 7 Bl 42 £ 10F K254
NR/NEEEER EERGERET
BEREFMER  NEBBEEHISK
EBMAGREANT  c AEEH L EERE
TEEMNE TG RBE -

R AR AN 68 B3 5 SR A 3B AR A B DA R H At
REARNBUERNEIEER BT
FHRBEE LEHRAGELERE
KOV BRI -

R2012F128318 » 5 B & H & #
NEREEEBE  HAEEBEEMEAL
SEMNERKARETERITEANRI
L E R EUE - 1o - B R MR
I ER E20125 FHATE T » {2(F
AEBERNEREARE - At EHE
REEBBERBEFNGTRAENERE
TEB A - Y08 (B A B 6 55 5 A L
BIRE R ART72,693,0007T °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R R M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZAHA - UAREIIR)

34 Deferred income 34 JEE W &
The Group AEH
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARETT
At 1 January 1H1H 306,072 185,649
Additions 1840 92,651 136,391
Credited to profit or loss AR (67,484) (11,232)
Disposal of subsidiaries LEMRBAR — (4,736)
At 31 December 12A31H 331,239 306,072

Deferred income mainly represents government grants relating
to the construction of property, plant and equipment, as well as
technology research funding related to environmental protection
related assets, which would be recognised as income on a straight-
line basis over the expected useful life of the relevant assets. The
deferred income recognised is included in “other revenue” in the
consolidated income statement.

BIEWE T ZEBRERAS TERYE -
BB REEEEMR - ARERIAREH
RREENRMAZRES  REERZE
FEHRBEENEERFwHARER

A BRB/EERENHBRIBES G

Was e [ HaBAlT -

35 Other non-<urrent liabilities B HMIERBARE

The Group E¥ L
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARET T
Long-term retention payables ERNE=FRBERE 82,798 97,918

to third parties

Other non-current financial liability HtI RS rmaE 6,370 6,370
89,168 104,288

2012 ANNUAL REPORT £ $R
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36 Capital, reserves and dividends

(a) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set
out in the consolidated statements of changes in equity. Details
of the changes in the Company’s individual components of

EX - EERKRE

(a) HEARBONED

a5 S g

BHfEmE

BERPIHTAKRES

Pr iR P AR BB K B R
BB AEBER - NRAREREE
BB D ) F ) R FREALIFE RN T

equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set Fr
out below:
Paid-in PRC Fair
capitall Capital statutory value Retained Total
share capital reserve reserve reserve profits equity
EhEx HEEE
/BE& ERfiE MEE  DABERE BERE BigE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARBTT  ARETT  ARETR ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2011 NMEIR1BHE 4,822,590 43,718 22,781 — 52,196 4,941,285
Changes in equity for 2011: NNEERE(:
Proft and total comprehensive TEENERGANELE - - - = 285,968 285,968
income for the year
Conversion into  joint stock E5BRHARAT 21,410 14,347 (13,638) — (28.119) —
company with limited liability
Appropriation el - - 31,367 - (31,367) -
Issuance of shares by inifial BRERARAREIRR 1,092,500 676,912 = = = 1,769,412
public offering
Balance at 31 December 2011 and 11512318 R 5,942,500 734977 40510 - 278,678 6,996,665
1 January 2012 N12E1A1BHE
Changes in equity for 2012: N12FEEE
Profit and total comprehensive FEEHERGRNELR - - - (23,958) 40,045 416,087
income for the year
Issuance of shares (note 36(c|(ii) B175R3 (H3536(c) i) 121,210 70,705 - - - 191,975
Appropriation L - - 41,762 - (4,762) -
Special dividend (note 36(b)) AR S (H236(b)) - - - - (338,283) (338,283)
Balance at 31 December 2012 12512731B5% 6,063,770 805,682 82,212 (23,958) 338,678 7,266,444
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36 EX - EERKRE ()

36 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)
(b) Dividends (b) BE

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

() AEENER A ERRERE

2012 2011

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE TR ARET T

Final dividend proposed after REEBGBERABBRRBRS 121,275 =

(i)

the balance sheet date of FREBERKRARKC.02T
RMBO0.02 per ordinary share (20114F : £%)

(2011: nil)

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date
has not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet
date.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to previous financial years, approved during the year

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 9
December 2011, in accordance with the Interim Provisions
on the Management and Financial Treatment of State
Owned Capital in Enterprise Corporate Restructuring (1t
XQAGINEEHRNEEARAE BN BEREENETH
7E) issued by the Ministry of Finance and effective on
27 August 2002, and pursuant to an ordinary resolution
passed by the shareholders on 3 June 2011, the Company
would have to pay a dividend to Guodian and GD Power
Development Co., Ltd. (“GD Power”), which represents
an amount equal to the net profit attributable to the
shareholders of the Company generated by the Group from
1 November 2010, the date following the day on which the
Group’s state-owned assets were valued, to 30 June 2011.

(i)

REEABRAREIR R
BAEREEERBRPHEER
RAE-

PO GE 1L 6 JE T K2 A s
B2 LA TR B R R B

2011E 12498 B A A 7 8
BREFTHE - RIEA RSP AR
I 200248 A 27 B A Ry (&
X¥RAHINEERREELRE
BHGFEEENEGTRE) K
N AR F201166 A3H IR A
THERANLTBERBZER  AQA
BEREMEEENEERD
ERAR(BAEEH]) ZMK
B ZKRE£BEENB20105F
1MA1R (REERAEEETE
BZz2H)ZE201146 308 #
MASEEENFEBERARAA
AR B SF A o

Pursuant to a resolution passed at directors’ meeting on RIF2012FE3A27THEE R
27 March 2012, the directors resolved to distribute the iBAEREE - BEFIRTE A B E AN

special dividend to Guodian and GD Power amounting to
RMB338,283,000 in aggregate.

As at 31 December 2012, the special dividend has not
been paid to Guodian and GD Power.

HEENHDKRESERTAHAAR
#5338,283,0007T B 45 B AL 8.

H E2012F12A318 » % &4
AR B WAL NABEEFBEE
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36 Capital, reserves and dividends (confinued) 36 EX - EERKRE ()
(c) Share capital/paid-in capital (c) BE "BRER
(i) Registered and issued share capital () EFMRETHRA

No. of shares

B &
"000 RMB'000

T ARETTT

Ordinary shares, registered S #ITER2EHEN
issued and fully paid: TER

Domestic shares of ARG BRARBIT
RMB1.00 each

At 1 January 2011 20111 A18 — =

Conversion into a joint stock =l AR AFRA R () 4,850,000 4,850,000
company with limited liability
(note)

Converted to H shares S HRR (96,000) (96,000)
(note 36(c)(iii)) (P #E36(c)(iii))

At 31 December 2011, 20114 12A318 * 20121 A1H 4,754,000 4,754,000
1 January 2012 and &2012F12831H

31 December 2012

H shares of RMB1.00 each HER  ERAR¥1T

At 1 January 2011 20111 H1H — —

Issuance of shares by IPO BREBXARBIRETRD 1,092,500 1,092,500
(note 36(c)(iii)) (B 5E36(c)(iii))

Converted from domestic shares ¥ & B R A (Bt 5E36(c)(iii)) 96,000 96,000

(note 36 (c)(iii))

At 31 December 2011 and 20118 12A318 & 1,188,500 1,188,500
1 January 2012 2012%1H1H

Issuance of shares (note 36(c)(iii)) 2172 (KT 5E36(c)(iii)) 121,270 121,270

At 31 December 2012 2012412 A31H 1,309,770 1,309,770

Total =E

At 31 December 2012 2012412 A31H 6,063,770 6,063,770

At 31 December 2011 2011612H31H 5,942,500 5,942,500
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36 EX - EERKRE ()

(c) BAE "BWREX (&)

36 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(c) Share capital/paid-in capital (continued)

(i) Registered and issued share capital (continued) () EiMRETARAE(E)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive ERREE ABEIETE A
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled s BEREARAAFE
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All S ZEXERE -TAY
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s BREATNEHREEZER
residual assets. BRAER -

Note: HiaF -

The Company was a limited liability company and converted KRR AE—RAEREETAA
into a joint stock company with limited liability on 16 May 2011. R2011F5 168 # §ilpk B — R AR
Pursuant to the approval of State-owned Assets Supervision MAERAR - EHKRHEEEE
and Administration Commission of the State Council, the BEBLZEGHE KQARME
Company’s equity of RMB4,874,724,000 was converted into m AR #4,874,724,000t B2 A
4,850,000,000 ordinary shares with par value of RMB1 each issued 4,850,000,000% 5/ % - R M E
proportionately to its existing equity owners. RSM China Certified AREEAT WKL FIBITH T A
Public Accountants Co., Ltd. (1 imEZE & TN E K FT) have verified NRIEENRESTEE - PInEE
the issued and fully paid share capital, and issued related capital SETMEEAE BB ITNE I
verification report ZhongRuiYueHuaYanZi[2011]No.068 (7 15 & 2 & HRA#ETTRE  WHEETHER
F[2011]550685%). BRERSES : RIHEERTF2011]E

0685t °
(i) Registered and paid-in capital (i) B REEHEWE LR

The paid-in capital of the Company represents the paid-in
capital of the Company before the Conversion.

The registered and paid-in capital of the Company
was RMB4,822,590,000 before the Conversion. RSM
China Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd. (PigEE
@EHEIEFT) have verified the registered and paid-
in capital, and issued related capital verification reports
ZhongRuiYueHuaYanZi[2010]No.034, 202, 223 and 269 (5
I &2 5 7 [2010]53034 + 202 + 223 % 2695%).

ARBNEREREARAE
2R ARBEWER

HE R AR A FEMAE R
&K A ANR4822,590,000
TL e RInEESMEBEBKE
HEMEKRERET TR
& WHATHBERE @S :
fF I & 2 5 T[2010]5034
202 - 223 %2695 °
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36 EX - EERKRE ()

(c) RE ERES ()

36 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)
(c) Share capital/paid-in capital (continued)

(iii) Shares issued (iii) FHITHRE

In December 2011, the Company issued an aggregate of
1,092,500,000 H shares with a nominal value of RMB1.00
each, at a price of HKD2.16 per share by way of initial
public offering to Hong Kong and overseas investors (the
“IPO”). In connection with the IPO, 96,000,000 domestic
state-owned shares of RMB1.00 each owned by Guodian
were converted into H shares on a one-for-one basis and
transferred to the National Social Security Fund Council of
the PRC.

On 13 January 2012, the over-allotment option granted
by the Company was partially exercised. The Company
issued and allotted an aggregate of 121,270,000 H shares
at HKD2.16 each. After the issuance and allotment of
these shares, the registered and issued ordinary shares
of the Company increased to 6,063,770,000 shares
with  1,309,770,000 H shares being listed on HKSE.
The net proceeds of RMB191,975,000 were credited
to share capital and capital reserves at the amount of
RMB121,270,000 and RMB70,705,000 respectively.

B20116 128 » AN AR £ 817
1,092,500,000/%HA% * & % Z
AEEBAREIT BBENX
AFBREE AT R2.1678
B [0 & S TG INE E AT -
EEaxA Bk HBEFEN
96,000,0004% B & % (&% A
REAT) A — L — &R A
Hig - AP EE2ETE
REELEERS -

R2012F1813H * AR &)
REMBERERERDS
TE - RABAFREES
2,167 Ju % 17 W0 Bt BHAR 42
B A121,270,0000% ° 1£ %%
TEHEZERNOE  ARQ
A B sk & BT R m AR g
%6,063,770,0000% » H
1,309,770,0000% 1A & 7 B X
FrEm-FIBHRBEBFEAR
#191,975,0007T 7 Bl A A R
#121,270,0007C fl A R #&
70,705,0007T 5+ A B& 78 F1 & A<
it o
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36 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve mainly represents share premium,
contributions from Guodian, and the difference between
the considerations of acquisition or disposal of equity
interests from/to non-controlling equity owners and the
carrying amount of the proportionate net assets.

PRC statutory reserve

According to the Company’s Article of Association, the
Company is required to transfer 10% of its net profit as
determined in accordance with accounting rules and
regulations of the PRC to its statutory reserve until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
transfer to this reserve must be made before distribution
of a dividend to equity shareholders/owners. This reserve
fund can be utilised in setting off accumulated losses or
increasing capital of the Company and is non-distributable
other than in liquidation.

Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations that have functional currency
other than the RMB which are dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies as set out in note 2(y).

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net charge
in the fair value of available-for-sale securities held at the
balance sheet date and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies notes 2(i) and 2(n)(i).

36 EX -

RERKRE (&)

(d) RELERAZ

(i)

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

B FH

BARBIERERMOEE -
BB - AR A FEE R
PEEBERLERANEE
HAEFEERASE ZEN
ER e

FELEFE RN EE

BEAAFTNCAGER) #H
F BRARQRBREPHRS
BT 25 B ROk 48 B E A OF F)DE
BI10%8 B AR E H)EE A
& HELESRBREES
5 & AN #950% o w4 7B 15 6 B%
RAMBEDERE ZA 1R
Bz EE - ZAEE A
FA S 18 AN 2 B 9 R A1 S 1 Bk 3
B WHRBEZINTEET
DL o

E S e

PE 3 R 4 B 1R AR R BT RE2(y) R
ENETERRAEFARER
WEE B 0 R 75 1O B 75 R R By
FTELMRAENLEZRE -

R EEFE
AREERERERESHK
R EE2>) R2(n)()EE I B R &

EEBRANAIHEEESD
RABERES -
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36 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(e) Distributability of reserves

(f)

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company,
the net profit after tax of the Company for the purpose of
dividends payment will be the lesser of (i) the net profit
determined in accordance with the accounting rules and
regulations of the PRC; and (ii) the net profit determined in
accordance with IFRSs. As of 31 December 2012, the retained
profits available for distribution are RMB338,678,000 (2011:
RMB278,678,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for equity owners/
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to financing at a reasonable costs.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
equity shareholder/owner returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to
the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
liability-to-asset ratio, which is calculated as total liabilities
by total assets. The liability-to-asset ratio of the Group and
the Company were 74% (2011: 74%) and 59% (2011: 46%)
respectively.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital
management during the year. Neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

36 EX - EERKRE ()

(e) REBHI D EM

KAl EESHEIR LM
% -BEBEARAN(ABER)
ERBKRE DB/ AR AB & FEF
HEABUTRE ZFHAESE : ()
ERPBEETEAREREEDN
FADE (R RCBEBR SR RsE
AI) 1 E &9 0F K 8 o M20124 12
3B A ENBEFFEER
A B #338,678,0007C (20114 :

278,678,0007T) ©

(f) EXEE

AEEEAEENTEERZREZE R
BRBKTFHERRBREEERE
BAEEMNKARSHE  UERE
T AT LA
BHERKRE FTAERERRIL A

REBEREL L

Ho ) 25 B R 7 e (& A o

REBEERM I A ERHES W E IR
AEBENERGEE  ERSOMER
KFEERTRBRRFEERHRER
=BEHHNFER - FREAEEAAER
HOERBERZE2M  WIRR
BERETEHERRENERERE -

AEBREEEHEEL X (ZE
BERERNEERENE) BEIEA
SENEARAEB AEEBEAR
ANBEHEELEXS R R74%
(20114 : 74% ) £859% (20114 :

46%) °

REEAREENERERTELRE
HEBE - ARAFEEMMER
AHRBEERMZINAEMNERE
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37 Financial risk management and fair values 7 HBEREERAAEE
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises REEBNTFELKBRPEFEEA R
in the normal course of the Group’s business. FED - FIRUAREERR -

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk 7R £ B BR /9 It S R B DA R K £ B Y B
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage R EIERE LB T AT

these risks are described below:

(a) Credit risk (a) EHER

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash at
bank and in hand, trade and bills receivables, deposits,
prepayments and other receivables and other non-current
assets. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

Substantially all of the Group’s cash at bank and in hand are
deposited in the stated owned/controlled PRC banks which the
directors assessed the credit risk to be insignificant.

In respect of trade and bills receivables, deposits, prepayments
and other receivables and other non-current assets, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers. These
evaluations focus on the customer’'s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. The Group generally requires customers to settle
trade receivables in accordance with contracted terms and
other debts in accordance with agreements. Credit terms may
be granted to customers, depending on the nature of business.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the
Group has significant exposure to individual customers. At the
balance sheet date, 42% and 20% (2011: 42% and 10%) of
trade and other receivables was due from Guodian and related
parties under Guodian, the Group’s largest customer, and the
five largest remaining customers respectively.
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37 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group as
set out in note 39, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial
guarantees at the balance sheet date is disclosed in note 39.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables,
deposits, prepayments and other receivables and other non-
current assets are set out in notes 25, 26 and 22 respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure continuity of sufficient
funding and flexibility by utilising a variety of bank and other
borrowings with debt maturities spreading over a range
of periods, thereby ensuring that the Group’s outstanding
borrowing obligation is not exposed to excessive repayment
risk in any one year.

The Company is responsible for the Group’s overall cash
management and the raising of borrowings to cover expected
cash demands. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB812,464,000 (2011: RMB1,793,923,000). With
regards to its future capital commitments and other financing
requirements, the Group has unutilised banking facilities of
RMB17,062,452,000 (2011: RMB11,059,342,000) as at 31
December 2012. The directors are of the opinion that the
assumptions which are included in the cash flow forecast
are reasonable. However, as with all assumptions in regard
to future events, these are subject to inherent limitations and
uncertainties and some or all of these assumptions may not be
realised.
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(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following

table details the
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37 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

remaining contractual

maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the balance sheet dates) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to

7Y HEABMEER R

(&)

(b) "B E & E R ()

TRIBTREEAGBERBHZ
B AEEEARFTEZREA
ERRBARBR  KEEERER
REASR (BREBREBEARMN KRG
HEOMBEFRE MREREZHA
o ARREEEAGBRABNF
EHEMFERE) ARATEE

pay: KAREERAARZNHOREHE:
The Group REE
2012
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARAHRALRH
Within More than More than
1 year 1 year 2 years
or on but less butless  More than Carrying
demand than 2 years than 5 years 5 years Total amount
1ERE 1ERE 2ENE
ZROH 25U 56T 56N L B3t RESHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETn AR%Tn ARETr ARETr ARETx
Long-term borrowings RAEH 160,512 934,530 4,334,246 2,810,397 8,239,685 6,366,579
(note 29(a)) (Fi#29(a))
Short-term borrowings B A (E20(b) 10,108,784 - - — 10,108,784  9,823411
(note 29(b))
Trade and bills payables EREARER 12,276,725 - - — 12276725 12,276,725
(note 30) (M30)
Other payables (note 31) H it (708 (B £31) 3,113,957 - - - 3,113,957 3,113,957
Other non-current liabilities AtERBARE - 87,290 1,878 - 89,168 89,168
(note 35) (Mi35)
25,659,978 1,021,820 4,336,124 2,810,397 33,828,319 31,669,840
Financial guarantees issued: RENSBER:
Maximum amount guaranteed EAERE (H7E39) 260,000 - - - 260,000 -

(note 39)
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37 Financial risk management and fair values (continued) 37 M BEBEER A AEBE

(#4&)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RBELRAR (&)
The Group (continued) TEE (F)
2011
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARAERAE SR
Within More than More than
1 year 1 year 2 years
oron but less but less More than Carrying
demand  than 2 years  than 5 years 5 years Total amount
15 R (£ 2ENF
ZE LT 5L 58 £ Ch RReH

RMB00O ~ RMB00  RMBOO0  RMBO0O0  RMBO00O  RMB00O
ARBETT  ARETT AR®TR ARETR ARETR ARETx

Long-term borrowings REER (H7E29(a) 70,026 831,589 239,210 201,167 1,341,992 1,138,728
(note 29(a))

Short-term borrowings AT (E20(b) 11,312,984 = = — 11312984 10,938,282
(note 29(b))

Trade and bills payables ENEIRZE 12,644,926 = = — 12644926 1264492
(note 30) (Mi#E30)

Other payables (note 31) LG EVEIGIRER) 1,828,516 = = — 1828516 1828516

Other non-current liabilities HEFERBAE = 11,871 92,417 = 104,288 104,288
(note 35) (Wi#E35)

25,856,452 843,460 331,627 201,167 27,232,706 26,654,740

Financial guarantees issued: RENSBER:

Maximum amount guaranteed EAERE (Hi739) 260,000 — — — 260,000 =
(note 39)
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37 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

7Y HEABMEER R

(&)

(b) RBE S @B ()

The Company P/ NN
2012
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARAHRALRH
Within More than More than
1 year 1 year 2 years
or on but less but less More than Carrying
demand than 2 years than 5 years 5 years Total amount
15/ 1ERE 2FNE
ZROM 25U 56T 56HE B3t RESHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETR AR%TR ARBTR ARMTRT ARETR
Long-term borrowings KA (H3E29(a)) 27,675 219474 2978872 2515000 5,741,021 4,356,106
(note 29(a))
Short-term borrowings B A (E20(b) 4,004,810 - - — 4004810  3,895978
(note 29(b))
Trade and bills payables RS VES 19,503 - - - 19,503 19,503
(note 30) (MizE30)
Other payables (note 31) H e B (H31) 2,017,724 - - — 2,017,724 2,017,724
6,069,712 219,474 2,978,872 2,515,000 11,783,058 10,289,311
Financial guarantees issued: REHSBIER:
Maximum amount guaranteed KAERE (f1539) 1,654,688 - - — 1,654,688 -

(note 39)

2012 ANNUAL REPORT £ $R
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*
BEENEBRREBRGERAF




|

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 35 3 % Y 5 (4R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESAHRP  UAREIIR)

37 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

ST HEABMEER R

(&)

(b) RBES R (&)

REE

The Company (continued) AT (&)
2011
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARRERR SR
Within More than More than
1 year 1 year 2 years
or on but less but less More than Carrying
demand  than 2 years than 5 years 5 years Total amount
15/ 1N E 2FL
ZE 2EHUT 5L S5 E = RESE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR ARETT AR%Tn ARETR ARET:R
Long-term borrowings REER (H7E29(a) 37,972 616,600 50,292 = 704,864 640,000
(note 29(a))
Short-term borrowings AT (E20(b) 4,326,463 = = — 4326463 4,170,000
(note 29(b))
Trade and bills payables SV ES 104,973 = = = 104,973 104,973
(note 30) (M30)
Other payables (note 31) B fto e 5008 (fiT3E31) 1,064,562 = = — 1064562 1,064,562
5,533,970 616,600 50,292 — 6200862 5979535
Financial guarantees issued: RENSBER:
Maximum amount quaranteed S AERE (fi7£39) 1,132,400 = = — 1132400 -

(note 39)
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37 Financial risk management and fair values (continved) 37 M B EABEER R A

(&)

(c) Interest rate risk (c) REERE

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from long-term
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of fixed and
variable rate borrowings in order to manage its interest rate
risks. During the year, however, management of the Group did
not consider it is necessary to use interest rate swaps to hedge
their exposure to interest.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the profile of the Group’s
net borrowings (interest-bearing financial liabilities less
interest-bearing financial assets) at the balance sheet
dates. The detailed interest rates and maturity information
of the Group’s borrowings are disclosed in note 29.

AEBENMERREERENEH
AR FBMEERERNEERE
RBRERMEREBRZT

RTEBAREENNXRER A&
BERBRELEZETEMNERFH
MEERNER - A AREE
EERREAFEEFTRBN X
B S AKENMEER -

() FIEELR

TRAANLTEERERA
REFRRFERBER(FLEE
BAEERTEEREE) -
2O E T AKEE R A
R LA R fE SR HARR -

The Group A& E
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARET T
Net fixed rate borrowings: EEANRRER:
Borrowings 5 6,929,373 1,38 6,943
Less: bank deposits B RAER(BEZRAER) (787,500) (995,797)
(including restricted deposits)
loans and advances BERRBR (21,525) (14,000)
6,120,348 377,146
Net floating rate borrowings: EBREFEY
Borrowings = 9,260,617 10,690,067
Other payables H T 7008 146,964 =
Less: bank deposits B RIOER(REZBHER) (3,793,473) (5,932,109)
(including restricted deposits)
loans and advances BERRBT (112,000) —
5,502,108 4,757,958
Total net borrowings FESEE 11,622,456 5,135,104
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37 Financial risk management and fair values (continued) 37 M BEBEER A AEBE

(&)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (c) F=ERE (&)
(i) Interest rate profile (continued) () FIEIELEE)
The Company AT

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T

Net fixed rate borrowings: B EFRFMGR:
Borrowings & 4,702,084 400,000
Less: loans and advances W B R (2,748,220) —
1,953,864 400,000

Net floating rate borrowings: FEARFER
Borrowings = 3,550,000 4,410,000
Other payables H b fE 5 FR0E 150,512 529,451
Less: bank deposits (including B RITER (BEZREFER) (1,404,902) (2,647,966)

restricted deposits)

loans and advances 8 ONETN (4,770,948) (8,439,391)
(2,475,338) (1,147,906)

Total net deposits e ] (521,474) (747,906)
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37 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
(i)~ Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates
of net floating borrowings, with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits
would have decreased/increased by approximately
RMB36,992,000 (2011: RMB38,258,000). Other
components of consolidated equity would not be affected
by the general increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance sheet dates and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at the balance sheet date. The
impact on the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits)
and other components of consolidated equity is estimated
as an annualised impact on interest expense or income of
such a change in interest rates.

The estimated 100 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’'s assessment of a reasonable
change in interest rates over the period until the next
annual balance sheet date. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2011.
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37 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases which give rise to receivables and payables, as
well as other equity investments, borrowings and cash at bank
and in hand that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which the transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to
this risk are primarily Euros (“EUR”), USD, HKD and Australian
Dollars (“AUD”).

(i)

(i)

Recognised assets and liabilities

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily arising
from cash at bank, other equity investments, receivables,
payables and borrowings which are denominated in EUR,
USD, HKD or AUD. Depreciation or appreciation of these
foreign currencies against Renminbi would affect the
financial position and operating results of the Group. The
Group did not hedge its foreign currency exposure.

RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the PRC
government may at its discretion restrict access to
foreign currencies for current account transactions in the
future. Changes in the foreign exchange control system
may prevent the Group from satisfying sufficient foreign
currency demands and the Group may not be able to pay
dividends in foreign currencies to its equity shareholders.

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
exposure at the balance sheet date to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts
of the exposure are shown in RMB, translated using the
spot rate at the balance sheet dates. Differences resulting
from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency are
excluded.
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(d) Currency risk (continued)
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37 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued)

(&)

7Y HEABMEER R

(d) E% =k (8)

(i) BRSO (E)

The Group rRE
2012

usbD EUR HKD AUD

Ep BT B BT

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR¥TR

ARBTT AR¥TR

Cash at bank and in hand BOEREEERSE 12,002 11,547 275,522 —

Trade receivables U ER R 52,416 - 24,276 —

Other equity investments HinfEmig g - - 169,034 —

Trade payables JE AR (97,790) — (259) -

Other receivables H b fE W kT8 — — 1,015 -

Other payables H ity 5808 (1,934) — (1,135) —

Net exposure Fr O (35,306) 11,547 468,453 —
2011

USD EUR HKD AUD

e BT ok BT

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREBTT ARETT ARETT

Cash at bank and in hand ROEREEFRE 1,431 2,228 1,839,828 —

Trade receivables & I AR 5K 15,464 14,362 — —

Trade payables JE 1 BR3K (393,539) — — -

Other receivables H fth & Wi sk B — — 1,079 —

Other payables HEAIA = (113,409) = (5,450)

Short-term borrowings RERE R = (82,443) = —

Net exposure b/ (376,644) (179,262) 1,840,907 (5,450)
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37 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued)

(iii)

7Y HEARMEERAAEE

(&)

(d) E%EkE (5

(i) EMmE GO (&)

The Company ¥ NN
2012 2011
EUR HKD EUR HKD
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT AR%Trn AR¥TR AR¥Tx
Cash at bank and in hand RITERAREFRE 1,204 273,548 2,206 1,836,745
Trade receivables & W BR 5K - 24,276 = —
Other equity investments HitgEmitE — 169,034 — —
Net exposure F A 1,204 466,858 2,206 1,836,745
Sensitivity analysis (iii) BEE ST
The followings are the related foreign currency exchange TRYE T HEINEEARE
rates to RMB during the year: Z R
2012 2011
Reporting Reporting
Average date spot Average date spot
rate rate rate rate
$EH HER
FigfE = BEEX F g E &= 3 [ [ =
USD Eiv 6.2932 6.2855 6.4588 6.3009
EUR R T 8.2401 8.3176 9.0213 8.1625
HKD B 0.8108 0.8108 0.8279 0.8107
AUD SBIT 6.4728 6.5363 6.7180 6.4093

A 5% strengthening of RMB against the following
currencies would have increased/(decreased) the net profit
after tax and retained profits by the amounts shown below.
Other components of equity would not be affected by the
strengthen of RMB against foreign currencies.
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37 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(iii) - Sensitivity analysis (continued)

7T KEKBER

(&)

(d) E% =k (8)

(i) HFEE ST (E)

The Group REE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTT
uSsD ETT (1,501) 16,008
EUR BT 500 7,630
HKD B 23,410 (69,055)
AUD R — 232
22,409 (45,185)
The Company N
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
usD e 60 (83)
HKD B 23,343 (68,878)
23,403 (68,961)

A 5% weakening of RMB against the above currencies
would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above
currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that
all other variables remain constant.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred
at the balance sheet dates and had been applied to the
Group’s exposure to currency risk for financial instruments
in existence at that date, and that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates
over the period until the next annual balance sheet date.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2011.
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37 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

(e) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
listed equity investments classified as available-for-sale equity
securities (see note 21). The Group’s listed investments are
listed on the HKSE, which have been chosen based on their
longer term growth potential and are monitored regularly for
performance against expectations.

The directors considered that the Group’s and the Company’s
exposure to equity price risk is insignificant.

(f) Fair values

(i)~ Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of financial
instruments measured at fair value at the balance sheet
date across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy
defined in IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with
the fair value of each financial instrument categorised in its
entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant
to that fair value measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

— Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments

— Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices
in active markets for similar financial instruments, or
using valuation techniques in which all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable
market data

ST HEMEERIAEE
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(e) REE®REAR
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AEBRAKBRRRAHEERER
FHE LTRERE (2REE21)
MEREERRR - AEENHE £
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EREERENERENEZAR
RE  YEHREEBHOL RS
HEEEITER -

EXZMRR/EEBARKR R
SERARBATER -

DMREE
() BAAEBEZFRAITHTA

TRINH T RIECHR I B R
SEANETHR— 2T A :
BEIFEEN=BEIAAEE
ERFARAEBEFENSH
TEREEABRAMNKEE
B HEeRIANEROA
REERBEHAABENE
EMEEENRERABAZE
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— FER(RRER N
HE €/ T EEEETDS
HMmE CREFR)FEN
DR EE

— FE&:NENeRmT
BEHEERMSHNRETE
B A7 E1E - S AR
Riifm B EEN G AL
ENERSAHEERTR
EMGHIBEMAENR A
BE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 35 3 R Y o (AR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZAHA - UAREIIR)

37 Financial risk management and fair values (continved) 37 M B EABEER R A

(&)

(f) Fair values(continued) (f)

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

— Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using

[ REHEE)

() EArEEZENZHTAE)

— FZBR(HEER) :E

valuation techniques in which any significant input is BFEETmMAEEER
not based on observable market data MAREEWIEERTEH
EMSEEBEMFENAR
BE
The Group The Company
.| N
2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2012F E-BE $-BR E£=ER @i E-Ef F-Ef $=ER @t

RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARETR ARBTL ARMTRL ARETR ARSTI AR¥TR ARETT ARETR

Assets BE
Avallable-for-sale i E s

equity securities: Hi

— Listed —BLm 169,034 — — 169,034 169,034 — — 169,034
During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, R20124F K20114F #912 A 31

there were no significant transfers between instruments in
Level 1 and Level 2.

H RE-—ERNE_ERZ
M EE T AR LS KER -
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37 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

(f) Fair values (continued)

(i) Fair value of financial instruments carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
are not materially different from their fair values as at 31

7Y HEARMEERAAEE

(#&)
(f) AREE(E)

(i) KRR EEF R Z /TR
IR 1818

BRAEBEND TEMITAEZ
A+ 720124 2011412 531
B REBRARQGRAKAS

December 2012 and 2011 except the Group’s financial BB R BN R R O B R T ALY
instruments as follows: RESE BARBERTFE
BERER-
The Group AEE
2012 2011
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount  Fair value
FESE LQAEE KEHeE 2AAEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTR ARBTT ARETT
Long-term receivables REARE W FRIE 1,963,970 1,780,283 13,427 11,413

Fixed rate long-term
bank loans
Corporate bonds
Other non-current liabilities

& A & &

HERBaE

— (5,000) (4,422)

(4,042,084) (4,002,195) — —

(89,168)

(84,491) — —

(g) Estimation of fair values

The fair values of interest-bearing borrowings and receivables
are estimated as the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at current market interest rates for similar financial

instruments.

(9) 2ABEEMMLE

w5 B fE R R EWRIB ) A A (BE R
AARARRERESRERAUSRTA
ERMBHRIFTRNEIIE -
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38 Commitments

(a) Commitments for the construction and acquisition of property,

plant and equipment outstanding at 31 December 2012 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

38 H i

(a) BAFEFRFF ARHEHHR2012F12 7
SIBEREEREEME  BEK
R E ARAPEN T A

The Group RER
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Contracted for BERT 4 2,901,444 1,872,569
Authorised but not contracted for BEREBERETY 133,633 1,926,309
3,035,077 3,798,878

The Company NN
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

Contracted for BET4

— 98,479

— 98,479

At 31 December 2012, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

(b) F20125FE12831H » BiE Al iRk
MEERE  RREMHRERE

AR T P

The Group KEE
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Within 1 year 1FR 49,965 2051
After 1 year but within 5 years 112 B5F A 9,130 1.434
59,095 3,485

The Group leases certain buildings through non-cancellable
operating leases. These operating leases do not contain
provisions for contingent lease rentals. None of the rental
agreements contain escalation provisions that may require
higher future rental payments.

AEBEBRB N HEROLERET K
BMTETRT - UEFHETRBEER
AR HOEFRE - HEHHEP IR
REMRAE SN ESEEHIEB R
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39 Contingent liabilities

I9JHEAE

At 31 December 2012, the Group and the Company issued financial
guarantees to banks in respect of the bank loans granted to related
parties and provided bid and performance guarantees to customers
and the Company’s subsidiaries for construction contracts and sale

of wind turbines as follows:

R2012F 128318 + B R R 177 B4 B
7R B SR A S B R AR A [AER
THELENERER AEEREAQTHE
REEERRRKEEMRAERS REAA
AT B A RIVE L M IR R B AR IR IR
T A

The Group REH
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBF T
Financial guarantees to banks R =T M RRITIE L A€ BiE 4R 260,000 —
for a third party (note) (P 3%)
Bid guarantees provided to: M T A EREAIRIZER
— related parties under Guodian — BETEREE S 1,436 800
— third parties —%=H 30,830 20,030
Performance guarantees provided to: MM AEREENER
— related parties under Guodian — BEETB@EE S 160,831 303,659
— third parties —%=H 792,166 1,291,238
1,245,263 1,615,727
The Company KA F]
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREF T
Financial guarantees to banks M E A Rl MR ITEH &) 2 B E R 319,400 1,132,400
for subsidiaries
Performance guarantees provided BB A RR A EAOER 515,959 676,936
to subsidiaries
835,359 1,809,336
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39 Contingent liabilities (continued) I9HBAE (&)

As at the balance sheet date, the directors do not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against the Group under any of
the guarantees.

In addition, a subsidiary is the defendant in a lawsuit arising from
its associate’s default in the repayment of a bank loan. On 29
September 2012, the bank sued the subsidiary and its associate
for the repayment of the loan and the legal fee with an amount of
RMB39,979,000. On 6 January 2013, Wuxi Intermediate People’s
Court heard the case and up to the date of authorisation of these
financial statements the litigation is pending court decision. The
subsidiary should not be liable to the loan as it is not a party in
the loan agreement, and taking into account of the relevant legal
opinion, management believes that it is more probable than not that
the Group would win the case. Accordingly, no provision has been
recognised by the Group for this claim.

Note:

The financial guarantee for a third party is assumed by the Group in the
acquisition of Galaxy Water (see note 41(a)) in 2012. On 31 December
2012, the seller of Galaxy Water provided a counter-guarantee to the Group
against the Group’s obligation under the financial guarantee.

40 Material related party transactions

(a) Transactions with related parties

The Group is part of a larger group of companies under
Guodian and has significant transactions and relationships with
Guodian and related parties under Guodian.

REEBERBD  EFMBRBEMIE
HOERAAEER AR RBERNR
BRI E TN -

gEoh - AEE —RH B A R H B
ARAEHNEERTERN —RFARR
imARFHES - N2012697298 -
RITHRFZHBARIREBENR] &
KEEBERUZ(THEBAFLABEARE
39,979,0007T ° A20134%1 568 © #45
THEAREZRLMERETERE B2
I EMBHRRLEZ B ZRNBEFE
BTk - HRZHEB A RN IEEAER
BRI —7  ZH B A R % B R
S WEBETHBELIZEERE &1
BEREASBEREUEBEZRY B
Fo At AEBIWREZBEBRFEER
B -

B

R20124F + 7K £ & Uk BE 4R A 7K 75 A 4
THE=Z TRHEMOMBEER (RME
41(a)) ° 2012512318 - R KK
HHRA AR ENT B EEREERA
SERHERER-

40 EXREABE S R Z

(a) EEBANRS
AEEREETENRZARMN—

o EEEREE BRI
ZHEBBEARGENREZME -
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40 EXBEBHATRS (F)

(a) REBITHXZ (K)

40 Material related party transactions (continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties (continued)

Except as disclosed in note 41(c), other principal transactions
which were carried out in the ordinary course of business are

BB A1) EE - EIEBEKR
RREERSNEMEEIZ0T

as follows:

Ffr it

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
Sale of goods to HE B T
Guodian ES 125,580 —
Related parties under Guodian B E T B A R HG 6,319,476 6,718,228
Associates iR RN 983 34,773
Construction service provided to TR EERE T
Guodian S 477,218 283,393
Related parties under Guodian BB RS 4,395,926 4,250,592
Service provided to TERRE T
Related parties under Guodian B E T B A R B 62,834 26,381
Associates /N - 3,691
Lease to T
Related parties under Guodian BE T & A B 5 (MIEEG)) 1,142,014 964,066
(note (i))
Lease of investment properties to HEKEMEYZET
Associates /N - 2,612
Purchase of goods from FEEEmA
Related parties under Guodian Bl & & A B B 80,364 15,561
Associates iR RN 393 55,305
Purchase of equipment from Ef KEH
Related parties under Guodian ENE AR 819,405 675,530
Service provided by IR HE S
Related parties under Guodian B E T B A R B 28,511 1,500
Associates iR RN 21,284 22,000
Working capital obtained from BE & B Z
Guodian HE 300,000 —
Related parties under Guodian Bl & & A B s — 911,213
Associates /N - 259
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40 Material related party transactions (continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties (continued)

WERBEBLIRXES (&

(a) HEABLTHXZ ()

)

2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®T T
Working capital repaid to BEBBEES T
Guodian [ E —_ 1,123,898
Related parties under Guodian Bl E & Y B B — 1,651,398
Associates = W/NC] 259 —
Working capital provided to 1IEHREEEL T
Related parties under Guodian Bl E & Y B B — 3,266
Associates = /NC] 184,094 114,621
Working capital repaid from BEBEEESH
Related parties under Guodian B N & A B B 3,244 542,636
Associates i NG| 60,613 265,000
Loans received from E /Ty( G =]
Related parties under Guodian B TNEREE S — 920,000
Loans repaid to HEEBMT
Related parties under Guodian 35 T &8 A A g — 2,750,000
Interest expenses .8 E
Guodian & — 33,322
Related parties under Guodian 35 T &8 A g — 35,211
Interest income FILEHA
Related parties under Guodian 35 T &8 A gt 451 43
Net deposits placed A (FEBR) By 7 5 F 58
with/(withdrawn from)
Related parties under Guodian BETNEBNEE S 228,829 (56,597)
Capital investment in BAKE T
Related parties under Guodian B E T B A B 5 48,532 38,038
Associates i NG| 110,000 27,500
Capital investment from BXKAH
Related parties under Guodian SN EEEE Il 97,457 150,000
Dividend paid to SZITRE T
Related parties under Guodian SN EEEE i) 151,984 90,000
Dividend received from WEARE B
Related parties under Guodian BHE B EE A 15,511 5,743
Associates iR l/NE]| 28,741 21,509
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40 Material related party transactions (continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(b) Outstanding balances,

Pursuant to the Notice of Pilot Plan of Concession of Fossil-Fired
Power Plant Flue Gas Desulphurisation (B8R FHE N EMIER
B rgLsl8 TERN@4A)) promulgated by the National
Development and Reform Commission of the PRC (the “NDRC”)
in 2007, the state
encourages power plants to engage professional desulphurisation

and Ministry of Environmental Protection

service providers to construct, operate and maintain the
desulphurisation facilities and the Group is one of the approved
service providers. Accordingly, the Group entered into various
service arrangements with power plants, including power plants
of Guodian and related parties under Guodian, to operate the
desulphurisation facilities for the treatment of sulphur dioxide
generated by power plants during their electricity generation.
The Group acquires or constructs the desulphurisation facilities
and then maintains and operates the desulphurisation facilities
to provide pollutant treatment services to power plants during
the useful lives of power plants. The service charge is based
on the volume of electricity sold by the power plant and a tariff
determined by the NDRC. These arrangements are not in the legal
form of leases, but are deemed as operating leases based on their
terms and conditions.

including commitment, with related

parties

Details of the outstanding balances with related parties are set
out in notes 22, 24, 25, 26, 28, 30 and 31.

As at 31 December 2012, a bank loan of the Group amounting
to RMB900,000,000 is guaranteed by Guodian.

40 EXRBEBHAIRS (F)

(a) REBITHXZ (K)

G

(M)

RETPHBEREKZEE S (3
RE ) BB R IR E R #& & 52007
FRMHACERRBE N ERAREBR
MR 2AE TERNBA) RE
B 5K =% Bh B RGBS 5 B Y B AR AR
%TEf/\ﬁi% B R RR

B ANEECHE R RRB M
?ﬁ Bt AEESHBEHER T
RENRBZH  BERERESE
TEE’]E‘EE&FE‘J*W %ﬁﬁﬁi |LuX
MEEEIT I UEHBBRETE
EEMAKN AL - NEEE
B BUERMR G 2 REERE
17 HAME & B E 1T BT AR 5 DA A B R
REISAYEIBIRTS - IRIBEHRE
HAE)EE LA&??E&?%‘J:EE’M&Z%
B WRBRRBER - th &
BEEE W N REREA EHEE - 1_
RIBE G EGE PR R RE SR
5o

(b) REBLTHNGE BEOE

Bif 5522 - 24 - 25~ 26 - 28 - 308
314 RN FORRERHETT T EAE RN AR o

MR2012%128310 - BEAKREE
R 17 & Z A K #5900,000,0007T 12
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40 Material related party transactions (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Outstanding balances, including commitment, with related
parties (continued)

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s commitments with related
parties that have been contracted for but not yet been

40 EXBEBHAIRS (F)

(b) EHEBLHNEGRE BEAE (B

20126 12A318 * REMEH
{88145 R 12 B 75 SR o LA 4 O

recognised in these financial statements were as follows: FRAERFRET :
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Sale of goods to HEBmDT -
Related parties under Guodian BE T EH RS

Construction service to be provided to #2{H#ZERET -
Related parties under Guodian B TNER@ESS

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans

The Group participates in various defined contribution
retirement plans organised by relevant local government
authorities and Guodian for its staff. As at 31 December
2012, there was no material outstanding contribution to post-
employment benefit plans. Details of the defined contribution
retirement plans are set out in note 7(a).

Transactions with other government-related entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic regime currently dominated
by entities directly or indirectly controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by the PRC government and numerous
government authorities and agencies (collectively referred to
as “government-related entities”). Guodian, the parent and
ultimate holding company of the Company, is a PRC state-
owned enterprise and these government-related entities are
also considered as related parties of the Group in this respect.

Apart from transactions with Guodian and related parties under
Guodian mentioned above, the Group conducts a majority of its
business activities with other government-related entities in the
ordinary course of business. These transactions are carried out
at terms similar to those that would be entered into with non-
government-related entities.

3,203,459 4,654,284

1,934,382 1,683,625

(c) SREMFR NG BB HERK

AEE 2T AR B AT S & B
BAMESNSEREHRIRAA
st &) - R20125FE12H31H © R K
BAFTEIET  RBEEARZH
3K o MY 5E7(a)# A E H FUR KT &
LT T MR o

(d) BEFEEGEFEARER BN
X5

EASEBMEENRERTZ
T EERERATERARERE
TR #4848 I s R R A
BEEGRREATENER (AW
BIRFHERER] - BE(KQA
MERARKRZERAR) ZFE
MBEEEE  HWERFEEERA
e 545 A5 7 5= [ 0 R gk

Bt ERELREE BB
ZHENR 525 EIEREBEBIE
o AREERE D EH AL EE
EBFHEERZZN - IhEXS
BT RSB SR T AR B R A X
2 &AM -
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40 Material related party transactions (continued)

40 EXRBEBHAIRS (F)

(d) Transactions with other government-related entities in the PRC

(continued)

The Group prices its services and products based on the
commercial negotiations. The Group has also established its
approval process for sales of goods, provision of services,
purchase of products and services and its financing policy for
borrowings. Such approval process and financing policy do not
depend on whether the counterparties are government-related
entities or not.

Having considered the potential for transactions to be impacted
by related party relationships, the Group’s approval processes
and financing policy, and what information would be necessary
for an understanding of the potential effect of the relationship
on these financial statements, the directors are of the opinion
that further information about the following transactions that are
collectively significant is required for disclosure:

— Sales of goods and provision of construction services;

The Group sells its goods and provide construction
services to a wide range of government-related power
companies and manufacturing enterprises. These
transactions individually are not significant to the Group.

— Deposits and borrowings;

The Group deposits most of its cash in government-related
financial institutions, and also obtains short-term and long-
term loans from these financial institutions in the ordinary
course of business. The interest rates of the bank deposits
and loans are regulated by the People’s Bank of China.

— Purchase of materials and receiving construction services;
and

The Group purchases materials and receives construction
services from a wide range of government-related
manufacturing enterprises and construction contractors.
These transactions individually are not significant to the
Group.

(d) BEPEHMBFEBRER BN

X5 (&)

A ER BRI T 35 AR A R 1 T AR 7S &
EmEE BAREMHEE RFRE
H EmERBENEE  AEEC
B TEMER WS T ERE
KT HABERR - lWREHEF
RBEBRRITEBRHH TS
EBFHEER -

ZRIBEBTARERSNEEY
2 AEENBREFARBER
R ARRT R RAE R R 5 R 7%
RNBGEREMBENGELS &S
MR HRABRBEAEREMN
WTR5 FERBEE - FPHFHA

=

— EYHEERETREHREY

AEERZERFHEBE IR
ARRECEHETYWIRHY
BERY - EXZERIME
HAEELTERX -

— FRRMERK:

AEBNABOREFRERF
HEANSEKEE  BEERE
BRET LRt B R EE
BEMEEBER - RITFER
REFMERPEARRITH
&l e

— MHBEREGHEIRE : &

A S EH AR ER
£ 98 B 51813 5 TR B AT AR
RIS R - it
SABXSEANTEHALE
FEK -
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40 Material related party transactions (continued)

(d) Transactions with other government-related entities in the PRC
(continued)

— Service concession arrangements;

The Group entered into a number of service concession
agreements with local governments to construct and
operate water treatment plants during the concession
period. All transactions under the service concession
arrangements were made with local governments and
carried out at terms set out in the respective service
concession arrangements.

(e) Key management personnel remuneration

Key management personnel are those persons holding
positions with authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
including the Company’s directors.

Remuneration for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 9,
and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note

40 EXBEBHAIRS (F)

(d) BEPEHMBFEBER BN
X5 (&)

— REEFFEZHE

REBEBEEWHNREI T %
BRFRRRBHE TS
RzA BEERKRURKEES
IKBEIE IR o AR 75 R HE hh i 1R
THA RS E 8T RF
R BERANETER
BERRE T RBAITIRK

(e) TEEEANEHM

TZERABREYHEMERMEA
BERNEEMT TTERIERER
2 REUREHAEENEEHN
A BEARANESE -

ARIBZEEABNHEHET (2
B EFHENINEARFE
EZMOEE - ARMEI0PREDN

10, is as follows: ETHM==HNES) :
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARET T

Salaries and other emoluments TEREMEFS 4,127 3,640
Discretionary bonus BIFIEAL 2,394 2,555
Retirement scheme contributions RORETHEI X 772 748

7,293 6,943
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M BBEHREARNEERES

41 Acquisition of subsidiaries and non<ontrolling
interests

(a) Acquisition of Galaxy Water (a) B SRRk %

In May 2012, the Group acquired 70% equity interests in
Galaxy Water and obtained the control of Galaxy Water
and its subsidiaries. Galaxy Water is principally engaged
in the construction and operation of water treatment plants
under service concession agreements with local municipal
governments. The acquisition of Galaxy Water allows the Group
to benefit from its expertise in the construction and operation
of water treatment projects and increases the Group’s market
share of water treatment business in the environmental
protection segment.

In the period from the date of acquisition to 31 December
2012, Galaxy Water contributed revenue of RMB153,357,000
and profit of RMB39,237,000 to the Group’s results.
Management estimates that if the acquisition had occurred on
1 January 2012, the consolidated revenue of the Group would
have been RMB21,828,242,000, and consolidated profit of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 would have been
RMB1,040,635,000. In determining these amounts, management
has assumed that the provisional fair value adjustments that
arose on the date of acquisition would have been the same if
the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2012.

Consideration transferred

The fair value of the total consideration transferred on
acquisition date was RMB466,200,000, which is satisfied fully
by cash.

R201265 8 » 7N & E U BE 4R A 7K
70% K9 A% 4 I0 & 15 88 A 7K 35 Ko EL BT
BABIKEGIE - RAKFEEEZER
B AR IR B E T BT R 5T A RS
R B KRR - Wk
BRITKEESAEEENBEEE
EMFEARKEEEENERME
R P N AN SR B KR IR TS IR
RBBHTHRHEE -

U EE B =2012F 12 A31H #fE -
MAKBERBAEELEEET R
A R #153,357,0007T #) W A F1 A
R 39,237,000t R F ) - EIE[E
HE - mRWER2012F1 518 8
4 BIE =2012F 128318 IEF
EAEEMNEHBIABBARE
21,828,242,0007T ' A& B & 4
FIE 5 & A K %1,040,635,0007T °
ERTZSSBN  BEHEEBEERR
WMREEENR2012F1 1B B4 - &£
WEAEEANBRENAABEAE
B AERERE -

HENHE
WERBZNAHENRAEBER

A R #466,200,0007T *© & 2B LA IR
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41 Acquisition of subsidiaries and non<ontrolling M BBERELTIRFERESR

interests (continued) (&)
(a) Acquisition of Galaxy Water (continued) (a) WERER Ik ()
Identified assets acquired and liabilities assumed BRANNESNEENRENEE
The following summarises the recognised amounts of assets AT AR WS B S 89 & 2 F A
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date. MEBENEHEREEE-
RMB’000
ARBTT
Property, plant and equipment M BERRE 1,117
Intangible assets BV EE 418,152
Interests in associates HEE RN RINIRE 71,774
Deferred tax assets EERIEE E 3,361
Long-term receivables R AEAE ISR IE 791,754
Inventories FE 181
Trade and other receivables JFEE U5 B SR e Lt R Uk 3R IE 255,205
Cash at bank and in hand RITERREFRS 63,052
Borrowings B (713,501)
Trade and other payables AT AR R % L A A5 SR IE (216,089)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE (81,162)
593,844
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41 Acquisition of subsidiaries and non-controlling N IBEHELRAREZRES
interests (continued) (%)
(a) Acquisition of Galaxy Water (continued) (a) WEBER KT (&)
Goodwill s
Goodwill arising from the acquisition has been recognised as WHEEEANEEREROT :
follows:
RMB’000
ARBFT
Total consideration HBEE 466,200
Non-controlling interests, based on REESHKETNEEMAGBZ 178,153
their proportionate interest in the HRE BT AN E L A IR S

recognised amounts of the asset
and liabilities of the acquiree

Fair value of identifiable net assets AIRRFEENAAEE (593,844)
Goodwill (SRS 50,509
Goodwill is attributable mainly to the skills and expertise of HMEFERBNFERKBEEIER
Galaxy Water's work force and management. None of the GHEBEENRENEZAHE -2
goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for income R BIER AR ATEH o

tax purpose.

Acquisition-related costs Uiz B #E BA B A<

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of RMB4,440,000 AEBPAEEZ WERBRAAA
relating to external legal fees and due diligence costs. These R ™4,440,0007T © B ¥ Hh 56 12 &l
amounts have been included in “administrative expenses” in EHBBASHAR ZFRIEE G

the consolidated income statement. AGHERERFPITHRASL] -
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41 Acquisition of subsidiaries and non-controlling 41 U BB B A R AR FE R ER

interests (continued) (%)

(b) Acquisition of Zhaojing (b) WEEKRE DT

In December 2012, the Group acquired 51% equity interests
in Zhaojing and obtained the control of Zhaojing and its
subsidiaries. Zhaojing is principally engaged in the production
and sale of solar products. The acquisition of Zhaojing enables
the Group to facilitate the production and sale of solar power
products and services.

Management estimates that if the acquisition had occurred on
1 January 2012, the consolidated revenue of the Group would
have been RMB22,248,513,000, and consolidated profit of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 would have been
RMB948,341,000. In determining these amounts, management
has assumed that the provisional fair value adjustments that
arose on the date of acquisition would have been the same if
the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2012.

Consideration transferred

The fair value of the total consideration transferred on
acquisition date was RMB153,000,000, which is satisfied fully
by cash.

In addition, according to the investment agreement, the selling
shareholder agreed to make good the net losses of Zhaojing
in the first three financial years from the date of acquisition
by waiving the principal and interests of loans due to the
selling shareholder and its related entities, and by cash for
any shortfall. Based on the profit forecast of Zhaojing, the
Group estimates the fair value of the contingent consideration
to be zero as at the date of acquisition and balance sheet
date. Therefore no contingent consideration asset has been
recognised as at the date of acquisition and 31 December
2012.

M2012F 128 + AEERMBKEA
AI51%E s WIS K & A 7 R E M
BAAIMZEGIE - k@R AT EER
BEABGHEERNEEMBEE - IKE
KRR B AL B A KGR E &
KBRS o

BIEEMAT  WRZWER2012F
1A1R %A - AJEE2012F12A 31
HLEFEAREENAHBABAEA
R 22 248,513,0007T * A & B Y
& O A 5 B A R #948,341,000
T EREZSCHEE EEED
B R% a0 R 3 4 201261 B 18 %
£ ERBHEENBRENAAE
ERARBEAERESE -

EEUE

KWEAERNBHENDABER
AR ¥153,000,0007C * 2 &P LAER
EEM -

o - MIRARRE RS HEA
AR R R B AR B i 7 AR R R EL
BARMERZAS RFE R
SHEEENFNBERKEARE
WERAZN =EAFENFES- B
BHRIKEARMABFFER - NE
EEsrZ BB HERKERRE
EBBEXRANAABERT At
RUEE B 2012512 A31 88 A
RABHEEE o
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41 Acquisition of subsidiaries and non-controlling MNIBEHEBLRAIRFZRES
interests (continued) (%)
(b) Acquisition of Zhaojing (continued) (b) WEEIK &2 A (&)

Identified assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The following summarises the recognised amounts of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date.

BRNMESNEENAENES

AT RRUEE B ERG8E EAE
WEENDERERE -

RMB’000
ARBTT
Property, plant and equipment M BE MK E 720,528
Lease prepayments AR LA &K 29,014
Intangible assets BRAE 189
Inventories PN 22,317
Trade and other receivables & U2 B K B EL A & W R 1B 134,595
Cash at bank and in hand RITERREFRES 596
Restrict deposits PR il 17 7K 82,400
Borrowings B (253,000)
Trade and other payables FE ) BR R R EL b JE 5 5K E (436,639)
300,000
Goodwill BeE
RMB’000
ARBF T
Total consideration EEB 153,000
Non-controlling interests, based on RESHKETNEEMAGEZ 147,000
their proportionate interest in the MRS AT A B = I 0 80 JE 1= IR i
recognised amounts of the asset
and liabilities of the acquiree
Fair value of identifiable net assets AIRRFEENAREE (300,000)
Goodwill [ _
Acquisition-related costs Uiz B 4E BA B A<

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of RMB3,700,000
relating to external legal fees and due diligence costs. These
amounts have been included in “administrative expenses” in
the consolidated income statement.

NEEFTEE 2 WEMRBKARAA
K #3,700,0007T © £ 3 4) 30 £ Al
BHBRATKAN - ZSHES A
AEHBERPHTHAZ] -
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41 Acquisition of subsidiaries and non-controlling
inferests (continued)

(c) Acquisition of non-controlling interests

In July 2012, the Group acquired from a related party under
Guodian an additional 30% interest in a subsidiary for
RMB45,057,000 in cash. The subsidiary becomes a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group after the acquisition. The
carrying amount of the subsidiary’s net assets in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements on the date of acquisition
was RMB100,574,000. The Group recognised a decrease in
non-controlling interests of RMB30,172,200 and an increase in
capital reserves of RMB14,884,800.

42 Notes to the consolidated cash flow statements

Acquisition of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December
2012

N IBEHEBLRARFZRES

(%)
() WMIZ R M

R2012F7H REBUEE AR
#45,057,0007C 1 B E T~ B A BB
7 U B — K B A §) B8 IMN30% A
s o WHESEKE - ZMTBRRIK
AEAEEEEWNBAR - KEA
ZHEB AR N AEB A G % ®
FTFRMFEERASEAARE
100,574,0007T ° AN 5 & ## 32 JE =
% #8 2= Bk > A R #30,172,2007T
BNREE AR 14,884,8007T °

2 EHETREBRNMEE

B E2012F12A31A L EEKH B 2
) 19 W

RMB’000

ARBTT

Total consideration 1w E 619,200
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BSHREe KRS EEY (63,648)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents AWENE S RBSEEWER 555,552

in respect of the acquisition

43 Service concession arrangement

The Group entered into a number of service concession agreements
with local governments (the “Grantors”) to construct and operate
water treatment plants during the concession period, which is
normally for 20-30 years of operation. The Group is responsible
for construction and maintenance of water treatment plants during
the concession period. At the end of the concession period, the
Group needs to transfer water treatment plants to the Grantors
at nil consideration. With respect to these service concession
arrangements, the Group has evaluated and assessed that these
arrangements fall under the scope of IFRIC 12, Service Concession
Arrangements.

43 R4S RrRER B

AEEBEMTHRA (REST]) T T
ZIERB ST RIGE  ERFEARS
N BEERNEEEKREER - ZHAR
—MRB20-30%F - EHFFEMRZA
AEEARKEEBAELEZRNAR
MR BRTRERZK ARERTEMN
THESKEERERGEED - @R
BERBG R EL G BAREFG
BEL BN A (BRRM B RS ERRE)
F125— IR ar i = F ) ([CEIBR
MBmEERRE)F125%]) -
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(BR

EZEHA  AARBIIR)

43 Service concession arrangement

In accordance with IFRIC 12, the Group accounts for the revenue
and costs relating to construction services in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 2(p). The consideration
received or receivables in exchange for the construction services
is recognised as a financial asset for an unconditional contractual
right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the
direction of the Grantor for the construction services and/or an
intangible asset for a right or a license to charge users of the water
treatment service.

The Group has recognised intangible assets (note 17) and service
concession receivables (note 22) related to the service concession
arrangement representing the right the Group received to charge
a fee for water treatment or sale of reclaimed water and the
guaranteed minimum payment during the operating period of the
water treatment plants respectively.

Services concession construction revenue recorded during the
year amounted to RMB74,021,000 (2011: RMB21,084,000), which
represents the revenue recognised during the construction stage of
the service concession period. The Group has recognised profit of
RMB7,931,000 (2011: RMB1,585,000) for the construction of water
treatment plants.

44 Non-adjusting events after the balance date

After the balance sheet date the directors proposed a final
dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 36(b).

45 Parent and ultimate holding company

At 31 December 2012, the directors of the Company consider its
parent and ultimate holding company of the Group to be Guodian,
which is a state-owned enterprise established in the PRC. Guodian
does not produce financial statements available for public use.

43 R 45 5T R B ()

RIZCEBR B 75 5 ERIR ) F125%
MRE NEBREWME20)PRAN S
IR AR B TR A A R 75 4R B RO LA R K
Ko ZERBHEKLBEEE - 38
RED SRR ETOERERESRE
il & B B 2 A T MY A IR 1 SR AR RE R R
—HEREE - MR EKEE RS
Z PP URER B OB M SR AT HERR R —
HELEE -

RS EFELH  AEECRRE
FEE (MEE17) R BR TS 15 &F 4 FE MR
B (FfaE22) » 2 Bl R~ A & B KREUK
RIZE MR ERKNERN - ARKE
ERE L BRMRERENKER -

REERBEITERERABAR
#74,021,0007C (20116 : AR
21,084,0007T) *+ BN & BR 1 75 5 7 4 &7
MR RIS R FTERAA - REBE
HREBREEKERERNFEARE
7,931,0007T (20114F : AR#1,585,000
JL) °

EERERBENKRAR
E

BERBRAK ARAREFEHKE
REABR B, o FEB NI FE36(D) °

45 B R AR RREZERDF

R2012F12A318 * A Q Al B & =
RE AEENEQR RERIERA A
AEE BEREFBEKIAN—REE
1 - BETREAREANM BRI o
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46 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and 46 B 2% #5 1B {4 &k £ & £2012

inferprefations issued but not yet effective for the year F12A31B L FEERNE

ended 31 December 2012 Rl FRTMERIRZEARE
EENE

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has @ﬁiﬁ%iﬁ%%ﬁ H Hﬂ_ ;TY\;@E #E'J

issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations éig BEHEMT %I,E:f\lé} R] - AAT R

which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2012 kw2 A r.‘:jjk{-‘t%j&éZ\szimﬂm

and which have not been adopted in these financial statements. BIEFENER - BREE LM BHHRE
R -

Effective for

accounting

periods beginning

on or after

BT BES

ZEBRBZ

SR AN

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of (R LR B 2ET—H HHE 1 July 2012
financial statements — Presentation of B 513 — B4R S Y e TE B 895l # ) 201257 A1H

items of other comprehensive income

IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements (BB IS h & B ) 510857
— AR
IFRS 11, Joint arrangements (BB B RELERNBIE — 2 &/

IFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities [ 81 15 5k & 2 Bl ) 55 12857
(R EREF Em )% E

IFRS 13, Fair value measurement B [ B 745 2 5 XE Bl ) 55 13558
[AnBlE:Z]
IAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011) (ERR &5t 2E Rl 5B 2755
— [ BB B (2011))
IAS 28, Investments in associates and (R et 2R ) E 85—/ BB £ 2 A &
joint ventures (2011) BB RN E2011)]
Revised IAS 19, Employee benefits (B2t ERD)E1R 2B —TES 57/

Annual Improvements to IFRS 2009-2011 Cycle (BIRSBI 7R R Y FEE =
(2009%F-20114F)

Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial instruments: (BB EREERYE75E— G T A -
Disclosures — Disclosures — Offsetting RE—HE—HEENE A EEY]

financial assets and financial liabilities

1 January 2013
201341 A 1H

1 January 2013
201341 A 1H

1 January 2013
201341 A 1H

1 January 2013
201341 A 1H

1 January 2013
201341 A 1H

1 January 2013
201341 A 1H

1 January 2013
201341 A 1H

1 January 2013
20131818

1 January 2013
20131818
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46 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and

interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

46 © % B 15 K £ & £2012

F12A31B L EFEEMWE
FlHETHNERRZREE
EENEE(E)

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after

BAUAT B8R
ZEREZ
SRAREXN

Amendments to IFRS 10, Consolidated financial BRI 75 E XY F

statements, IFRS 11, Joint arrangements
and IFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in F1155E
other entities - Transition guidance

>~

—iBREE ]

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and I1AS 27, (BB IEREERNE
CEBE S HREERNF12

Investment entities

/\“75/5 ]&
<<f‘f%§ﬂ7ﬁ%$&%fi,ﬁll>>

10%;%2ﬂ%§T 1 January 2013

20131 H1H

FE i 2 25 Y # 2E

1 January 2014
201451818

5 R KBIBR @ Rt R F 275 2B FT

REERE

Amendments to IAS 32, Financial instruments: (BB & st %8| 53258 2 (&
Presentation — Offsetting financial assets and — 3|#f—% G B E M 5 B B89 15

financial liabilities

IFRS 9, Financial instruments (2010)

Amendments to IFRS 9, Financial instruments BB B4 7% R &5 HE Al Y 058 7 (85T
and IFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures ——/ 2 gt T A | K& {BIFER B 7% 2 & £ 8 )

— Mandatory effective date and
transition disclosures

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far the Group believes that the adoption of these new IFRSs is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements, except for the following:

Rl— /2@ TR :

S B B 765 3 15 42 A1) ) 2B 955k
— /=& T A(2010)]

1 January 2014
201451818

1 January 2015

20151 H1H

1 January 2015
201551 A1H

o Y =R b Y

AEE B ATIEEFEE LAERT ~ #a]
B 2E 1) R ¥ a2 H B R BR R B R TR BA A
EETE - BEAASERRTEA LSRN
KRR B B S R T & H AL E
WEHHBRRELEERZE  RUT
Ffrt :
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46 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and

interpretfations issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

IFRS 10 replaces the requirements in IAS 27, Consolidated
and separate financial statements relating to the preparation of
consolidated financial statements and SIC 12 Consolidation -
Special purpose entities. It introduces a single control model to
determine whether an investee should be consolidated, by focusing
on whether the entity has power over the investee, exposure to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and the
ability to use its power to affect the amount of those returns.

The application of IFRS 10 is not expected to change any of
the control conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its
involvement with other entities as at 1 January 2013. However,
it may in the future result in investees being consolidated which
would not have been consolidated under the Group’s existing
policies or vice versa.

IFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

IFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the disclosure
requirements relevant to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured entities.
The disclosures required in IFRS 12 are generally more extensive
than those required in the current standards. The Group may have
to make additional disclosures about its interests in other entities
when the standard is adopted for the first time in 2013.

46 © % B 15 K £ & £2012

F12A31B L EFEEMPNE
WA ERNRRETRE
EENEE(H)

(B BREER)F105 — &
Of Bt B 3 2%

(R E R F10R B K T (R
Rt ERADB27HR— A HH B IR
MBI BEmER] PR G
HERE(RRE) B12%— & 5K
BENEER] - ZMESIAT —EHE—H
ZHRE - BREERRET B ERK
Gt EEREBEDARESKIE
T REAERRESTNREDERAE
B WEANBEENZEZTER
S -

B BR B 75 3R & 2E BI) 51055 A9 FE A 78
AT T 2 BB T ] A & B 7020131 A
H2HEMBREERNESER T
B e RERREEHOREIRES
BBEAEBBEEBEREISEH Rz
INAA ©

(B BREE)F125% — [H
fb R P 2 Y IR R

(BRI H R R E125 i B A%
HBEA AR AELTH BEQARKET
AEHMERERPNESNEEZ KA
A P —fE 2 — 2R - (B FR B 75 3R 2 2
Bl 551257 A9 4% 78 48 & — AR L 3R 1T 2 A
FrEkME EZ o N&E A g2 1220134
BRFAZERN AN EMERERE
LEEIME TR o
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46 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and

interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

IFRS 13, Fair value measurement

IFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual IFRSs with a single
source of fair value measurement guidance. IFRS 13 also contains
extensive disclosure requirements about fair value measurements
for both financial instruments and non-financial instruments. IFRS
13 is effective as from 1 January 2013, but retrospective adoption
is not required. The Group estimates that the adoption of IFRS 13
will not have any significant impact on the fair value measurements
of its assets and liabilities, but additional disclosures may need to
be made in the 2013 financial statements.

46 © % B 15 K £ & £2012

F12A31H L EEE ML
] HETNERI KRBT R

EENRE (H)
(ER B IR A 138 — [ 2
AMEEE ]

(BB R E R B/ AE — 2
A EBEFE2ESIBRESEE(EBEY B
HEER) R MIEGIEE o (BRI 5 R
LEANFIFEREEMIARIES
BTARAARBEFEEZHOEBEER -
B PR B 75 3 &5 % Il ) 551355% 7420134 1
B1B#AER  BRBIEITRPRE -
AEE T - RACHEBR MRS 2R
FIETEHEEERBBNAAEE
AEEAAMNEAFE  BAERER
2013F BA TS TR R HETTREIMNE T8 ©



OUTLOOK
R

Continue to enhance market share, explore A EIESTHIS{D%E - B ST Hy

future growth areas and boost competitiveness EE - IEEREH

Technology 5201}

« Technology of lignite comprehensive utilization o (KBS AR & FI A HlT

» Technology of flue gas waste heat comprehensive utilization o [ERRERE FI A HA

* Technology of large-capacity offshore wind power generation o KAEH LR NEBEERI
e Technology of seawater desalinization o JBIKRAL AT

e Technology of CO2 capture and fine particles (PM 2.5) collection o — &bk
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